# Asnuntuck Community College



170 Elm Street Enfield, CT 860.253.3000 www.asnuntuck.edu



# 2019-2020 College Catalog

170 Elm Street Enfield, CT 06082 860.253.3000 www.asnuntuck.edu

## **CONTENTS**

Directory2
Message from the President 3
Academic Calendar129
Academic Departments 26
Admissions
Academic Policies and Procedures9
Academic Advising12
Board of Regents127
Certificate Programs76
Course Descriptions
CSCUTransferTicket Degrees54
Degree Programs
Financial Aid
Foundation & Advisory Council128
General Information 4
Index
Personnel120
Programs of Study
Rules and Regulations 29
Student Services23
Tuition and Fees
Website2
Workforce Development &
Continuing Education28

## **DIRECTORY**

Academic Affairs 860-253-3101
Admissions
Advising 860-253-1207
Bookstore 860-741-8450
Business Office 860-253-3043
Financial Aid
General Information 860-253-3000
Manufacturing Technology Center 860-253-3189
President
Registrar
Student Services 860-253-3020
Workforce Development and
Continuing Education 860-253-3034

## **WEBSITE**

Students may access an electronic version of this catalog and other information on the college website.

Information and regulations printed in this catalog are subject to change directed by the Board of Regents and the college administration who may extend, expand or delete courses and programs described. Asnuntuck Community College was established by Public Act 812 of the 1969 General Assembly.

### **Notice of Non-discrimination:**

Asnuntuck Community College does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religious creed, age, sex, national origin, marital status, ancestry, present or past history of mental disorder, learning disability or physical disability, political belief, sexual orientation, gender identity and expression or genetic information in its programs and activities. In addition, the College does not discriminate in employment on the additional basis of veteran status or criminal record. The following individuals have been designated to handle inquiries regarding the non-discrimination policies: Yhara Zelinka, Title IX Coordinator, yzelinka@asnuntuck.edu (860) 253-3092 and Deborah Kosior, 504/ADA Coordinator, AS-DisabilityServices@asnuntuck.edu (860) 253-3005, Asnuntuck Community College, 170 Elm Street, Enfield, CT 06082.

Asnuntuck Community College is an Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity Employer.

Asnuntuck Community College is accredited by the New England Commission of Higher Education (NECHE)

# Message from the Regional President



Welcome to Asnuntuck Community College, where you can find a quality educational experience in an accessible and affordable environment. We have highly skilled and dedicated faculty and staff who are here to support you along your academic path.

Asnuntuck Community College offers you the opportunity to learn in a small class size environment with skilled professors who know you by name.

Our Student Services division will support you in your academic endeavors with academic advising, career and transfer counseling, disability counseling, access to free childcare, and many other support services.

We offer extra-curricular activities ranging from the poetry and art club, to student senate and legislative internships.

We strive to have your experiences at Asnuntuck Community College enrich your life and help you redesign your future for success.

Dr. James P. Lombella, North-West Regional President

# Message from the Interim Chief Executive Officer



Welcome to Asnuntuck Community College! Thank you for making our campus part of your educational journey. You are brightening your future with every educational step that you take.

Asnuntuck Community College has many credit and non-credit offerings to enhance your life's journey. Our classrooms have welcoming learning spaces with small class sizes. While you are with us, consider joining our student organizations, use the free childcare on campus, visit the academic tutoring center or library, ride the Magic Carpet Bus, stop at the food pantry, or make use of many amenities that Asnuntuck Community College offers. We are here to provide you with the services necessary for you to succeed.

We want you to accomplish your future goals through our supportive, affordable, and quality environment.

Michelle Coach Interim Chief Executive Officer

# General Information

Asnuntuck Community College reserves the right to change course offerings or to modify or change information and regulations printed in this catalog. This catalog should not be construed as a contract between the student and the College.

It is the responsibility of the student to become familiar with the contents of this catalog, including the rules, regulations, and requirements presented herein. Students are eligible for an associate degree who meet all requirements as stated either in 1) the catalog at the time of their acceptance into a degree program (to the extent possible within the current roster of course offerings), or 2) the catalog in effect at the time of their graduation.

Date of publication: June 30, 2019

Material accurate and current as of June 30, 2019

### **MISSION STATEMENT**

The mission of Asnuntuck Community College is to offer quality education in an accessible, affordable, and nurturing environment.

The College fulfills its mission by

- offering associate degree and certificate programs for transfer opportunities, career preparation and enhancement, and lifelong learning.
- providing individualized support services to develop critical thinking skills, strengthen self-confidence, and foster personal growth.
- supporting community and workforce development with business, industry, and community partnerships.

### HISTORY OF THE COLLEGE

Asnuntuck Community College (ACC) was established in 1969 by an act of the Connecticut state legislature as the twelfth institution in the Connecticut state community college system. Classes began in 1972 with an initial enrollment of 251, and 12 Associate in Science degrees and 20 Associate of Art degrees were awarded to the first graduating class in 1974.

In 1992, the Connecticut legislature mandated merging the state's community and technical colleges. While there was no area technical college for an Asnuntuck merger, the legislature also required each community college to complement its general education with a technical focus, bringing about several programmatic changes, as well as the change to the name, Asnuntuck Community-Technical College. The technical focus remains, particularly in the college's Advanced Manufacturing Technology program, but the state community colleges dropped the word "technical" from their names in 1999, returning the college to the simpler

name, Asnuntuck Community College.

Asnuntuck is located in Enfield, Connecticut, just off Interstate 91, the single campus facility is on 35 picturesque acres of land situated in the heart of the New England Knowledge Corridor between the metropolitan areas of Springfield, Massachusetts, and Hartford, Connecticut. Asnuntuck serves the north-central Connecticut communities of East Granby, East Windsor, Ellington, Enfield, Somers, Stafford Springs, Suffield, and Windsor Locks, and draws students from the south central area and Hampden County in Massachusetts and the greater Hartford area in Connecticut.

ACC was initially accredited by New England Association of Schools and Colleges (NEASC) in 1977, and with accreditation thereafter, being reaffirmed through 2025. Effective July 31, 2018 the New England Commission of Higher Education (NECHE) has assumed the functions of NEASC. The mission of Asnuntuck Community College is to offer quality education in an accessible, affordable, and nurturing environment. Asnuntuck completed the first Master Plan in 2003 and a Space Utilization Study & Master Plan in 2005. Beginning in 2011, the college received design and construction funds and planned for appropriate projects. In 2017, the college added the new Tower Lobby and Student Center with a welcoming and spacious entrance and lobby area. The campus building features a cafe, lounge space and informal gathering areas, as well as, the bookstore. The college also constructed a 27,000 square foot new building and renovated 5,600 square foot welding and fabrication facility for the Advanced Manufacturing Technology Center in the same year.

ACC offers 36 degrees and options and 28 certificate programs. The most recent year retention rate was 61%, graduation rate was 39%, and awarded 427 degrees and certificates in 2017-18. In fall 2018, the College has 1,858 students (1,062 FTE) enrolled in credit classes and in spring 2019, 1,755 students (958 FTE) enrolled in credit classes. During academic year 2017-18, we also served 1,148 students (totaling 3,024 seats) through our workforce development and continuing education programs. ACC also provides on-site training for area companies, military services, and correction institutions. ACC also awards non-credit credentials in allied health and other programs. Many of our non-credit program students went on to pass licensures exams or have the credentials evaluated by Charter Oak State College for credits. ACC's relatively small stature has not limited its positive impact on its local community and beyond. Asnuntuck aspires to provide academic support, career and transfer advising, disability, financial aid, tutoring, childcare, and other college services easily accessible to all students.

### ACC FOUNDATION, INC.

The Asnuntuck Community College Foundation, Inc. is the fundraising arm of the College. Its mission is to obtain funds to assist in the development of programs to meet the economic, educational, and employment needs of North Central Connecticut. The ACC Founda-

tion is a 501(c)(3) tax exempt corporation whose board meets on a regular basis. It holds annual fundraising events to encourage support for the college. The funds help to provide program enhancements and scholarships for Asnuntuck students.

For more information, call the Foundation office at 860.253.3041 or go to its website: http://www.asnuntuck.edu/Foundation.

# Admissions POLICIES ON STUDENT ADMISSION

Applicants for admission should present evidence of graduation from an approved secondary school or should have been awarded a state high school diploma or its equivalent (GED), or be qualified under the provision of Board Policy 5.1.5 for Home Schooled Students (see below). The College may also grant special waivers to applicants who demonstrate the ability and maturity to perform academically at the college level.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, whenever in the judgment of the college president, the admission, readmission or registration for any course, whether credit or non-credit, of any person as a student would constitute an unreasonable threat to the safety of the people, the security of property or the integrity of academic processes or functions of the college, such person may be denied admission or readmission to the College or registration for the course.

Applications should be forwarded to the Admissions Office of the College. Students may be admitted to the College on a full- or part-time basis.

#### **HOME-SCHOOLED STUDENTS:**

- A home-schooled student is defined, for purposes of this policy, as someone who has completed a secondary school education in a home school setting that is treated as a home school or private school under state law, or who is in the process of doing so.
- 2. Home-schooled students who wish to attend a community college and pursue a degree or certificate must meet the same admission requirements as any other applicant, except for providing evidence of graduation from a secondary school or obtaining a state equivalency diploma. This includes, but is not necessarily limited to, completing an application, paying admission fees, submitting evidence of inoculation against measles, mumps, rubella and varicella, taking placement tests, etc.

Home-schooled applicants may also submit a copy

of a transcript from any secondary school attended, whether or not they may have graduated therefrom, or a copy of a federal or state equivalency diploma, or a summary of the secondary program of study they pursued, and a certificate of successful completion thereof, signed by the parent or other provider of the home-schooling.

- Home-schooled applicants may be required to submit transcripts, or records of study, if such are required for other applicants.
- Home-schooled applicants who wish to enroll at a community college, but not pursue a degree or certificate, shall be treated as any other non-matriculated student at the college.
- 4. Home-schooled applicants may, at the discretion of the college to which they are applying, be required to have an in-person interview with the college's director of admissions, or such other officer as the college may direct, to assess the applicant's ability to benefit from the program of study.
- Each college shall develop such procedures, forms, and other materials as may be necessary to manage this policy.
- Each college shall also establish an appeals process, with appeals going to a designated dean, who may, in special circumstances, waive the requirements of the policy.
- If and when the State of Connecticut enacts laws or issues policies regarding home schooled students or their admission to public colleges, this policy will be revised and reissued, as may be necessary, to ensure compliance therewith. (Adopted April 18, 2005)

## ADVANCED PLACEMENT HIGH SCHOOL STUDENTS:

Community Colleges are authorized to accept for advanced placement high school students who demonstrate sufficient scholastic ability and who are approved by the high school principal or his or her designated representative, with the understanding that no additional general fund class sections will be created to accommodate them except as approved by the board. (Adopted June 25, 1973; amended March 15, 1982)

# How to Apply

# DEGREE OR CERTIFICATE STUDENTS

Students applying for a degree or certificate program must:

- Complete the Admissions Application form along with a one time, non-refundable \$20.00\* application fee. The application is available through the College Admissions Office at 170 Elm St., Enfield, CT 06082, or from guidance counselors at all local high schools, or online at www.asnuntuck.edu.
- Submit official transcripts from an approved high school or the official copy of the GED (General Education Development).
- Take the Basic Skills Assessment. New students should call the Admissions Office (860.253.3010) and register for a test date. Results of this test will be used for placement recommendation for college level courses in English and Mathematics.
- Submit proof of immunization for measles, mumps, rubella and varicella.

### **NON-DEGREE STUDENTS**

Non-degree students are those who are taking credit courses but are not working towards a degree or certificate at Asnuntuck Community College. Persons applying as non-degree students may complete the Admission Application form before or during published registration times. A one time, non-refundable \$20.00\* application fee must accompany the completed application form.

Applicants admitted as non-degree students may subsequently choose to become degree or certificate program seeking students. You are encouraged to speak with a college advisor to facilitate this process. Non-degree students are not eligible to receive financial aid or veterans benefits. Non-degree students are not permitted to register for a full-time course load (12 credits or more).

\*The \$20.00 non-refundable application fee will be waived for those students who have previously applied and paid an application fee at any other Connecticut Community College.

### TRANSFER STUDENTS

Students wishing to transfer to Asnuntuck Community College from other colleges are considered for admis-

sion upon completing the requirements listed above for degree and certificate students. Upon receipt of official transcripts from previous college(s) attended and the submission of an Application for Transfer Credit (available from the Admissions Office), courses will be evaluated for transfer credit for those students who have been admitted to degree or certificate programs. (Detailed information on credit by transfer can be found in the "Transfer to Asnuntuck" section of this catalog.)

It is the applicant's responsibility to request official transcripts from all previous colleges attended.

# FORMER STUDENTS AND RE-ADMISSION

Students who have previously enrolled in a degree or certificate program of study at ACC, but have not attended the College for two or more years, must submit a re-admission form (available in the Admissions Office or online). Readmitted students must follow the program requirements of the catalog in effect when they are readmitted.

#### PLACEMENT ASSESSMENT

Asnuntuck Community College assesses the basic skill level of students in order to provide them with a solid foundation in reading, writing, and mathematics. To that end, the College requires all students to take the Accuplacer assessment as part of the initial enrollment process at the College. This program (mandated by the Board of Governors for Higher Education and the Connecticut State Colleges and Universities Board of Regents for Higher Education) is in place to ensure our students are given the best opportunity for success in their academic endeavors at Asnuntuck Community College and beyond.

### **PLACEMENT WAIVERS**

- Students who have an associate's degree or higher are exempted from assessment testing upon presentation of appropriate documentation, i.e., transcripts or degree showing they have met the specified prerequisite.
- 2. Students who have a SAT Reading score of 25 or higher, or a 450 or higher on the old SAT (test date prior to March 2016), will be placed in ENG\* 101: Composition. An SAT Mathematics score of 440 or higher, or a Mathematics score of 400 or higher on the old SAT, will place you in MAT\* 095: Elementary Algebra Foundations. This math course is not used for credit towards a degree program. If you feel you should be placed in a higher level of mathematics, we would encourage you to take the mathematics

- portion of the Accuplacer assessment.
- Students who have either an ACT English score of 21 or higher, or a composite score of 47 or higher on the ACT English and Reading portions will place into ENG\* 101: Composition. Students who have an ACT Math score of 18-21 will place into MAT\* 137: Intermediate Algebra.
- Students who self-select to take an Intro. To College English or Prealgebra & Elementary Algebra course will still be encouraged to take the Accuplacer to ensure proper placement.

Any student who has a physical or learning disability, or other limitation that may require special assistance and/ or facilities for testing, is encouraged to contact the 504/ ADA Coordinator at 860.253.3005.

Students may sign up for an assessment appointment at the Admissions Office or by calling 860.253.3010.

# IMMUNIZATION REQUIREMENTS

For students born after December 31, 1956, Connecticut State Law requires that all full-time (degree-seeking and non-degree/non-matriculating) and part-time matriculating students enrolled in postsecondary schools be adequately protected against measles, mumps, rubella. In addition, beginning on August 1, 2010, all full-time and matriculating students, except those born in the continental U.S. prior to January 1, 1980, must provide proof of immunization against varicella (chicken pox). Proof includes such documentation as a physiciansigned Immunization Form (available in the ACC Admissions Office), a medical record, a physician's statement, or elementary or secondary school health record. Students must have documentation of two (2) doses of each vaccine administered before they will be permitted to register.

The first dose must be given on or after the first birthday and the second at least one (1) month later to insure adequate immunization. Exemptions will be granted only (1) for medical reasons, confirmed by a physician's statement; (2) if you have had measles, mumps, rubella and/or chicken pox and have a physician's or health department certificate stating so (ie. TiterTest results); or (3) if your religious beliefs do not allow you to be vaccinated and you sign a statement to that effect. If you claim a religious or medical exemption and there is an outbreak of measles, mumps, rubella or chicken pox on campus, you may be excluded from college activities, including classes and exams.

# SPECIAL COOPERATIVE PROGRAMS

## NEW ENGLAND REGIONAL STUDENT PROGRAM

The Board of Regents adopts the following recommendations of the New England Board of Higher Education (NEBHE) for reciprocity among the New England states through the New England regional student program, with the reservation that priorities go to Connecticut students in the event of budget and/or space limitations.

Nonresident students whose traveling time would be less if attending a Connecticut community college than if attending a similar in-state institution are permitted to attend the Connecticut institution at the NEBHE tuition rate, which is 50 percent above the resident tuition rate, pursuant to section 10a-67 of the general statutes, as amended.

Nonresident students who wish to enroll in a Connecticut community college degree program that does not exist in their home states are permitted to enroll in such program at the NEBHE tuition rate. NEBHE students must be enrolled in a degree program.

# HIGH SCHOOL PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM

Developed by the Connecticut State Colleges and Universities Board of Regents for Higher Education, this program provides the opportunity for a junior or senior to experience college while still in high school.

For students to participate, their high school must have a partnership contract signed and on file with the College. Currently school systems in East Granby, East Windsor, Ellington, Enfield, Granby, Somers, Stafford Springs, Suffield, and Windsor Locks have contractual agreements with Asnuntuck Community College. Tuition and fees for students in this program are paid for by the Board of Regents and apply toward General Fund (fall and spring semester) credit classes.

#### Admission guidelines are as follows:

- Juniors and seniors who apply must have a minimum scholastic average of 80 percent.
- Participation in all college courses is on a spaceavailable basis.
- Participating students will be responsible for the cost of books and transportation.
- Subject to the limitation on the number of high school students who may be admitted to the program based on resources available to the community colleges as a whole, the College and the school district should agree upon the total number of participating students prior to the beginning of each semester.

Transfer of these courses to other colleges is evaluated in the same manner as any other college credit transfer. For more information, contact the Admissions Office at 860.253.3010.

### **COLLEGE CAREER PATHWAYS**

College Career Pathways credit from Asnuntuck Community College is available to high school sophomores, juniors and seniors in 11 area schools. College Career Pathways, a federally funded program, allows students to earn up to 13 FREE college credits by taking classes at their high school that have been approved through Asnuntuck Community College. Students apply for College Career Pathways at their high school and can enroll in three core areas, including, math, science and a career-related area (e.g. accounting, early childhood development, digital photography, business, etc.). Students are able to apply the credits they have earned toward a degree or certificate program at Asnuntuck Community College or transfer them to another college or university.

- \* Applications must be submitted at the high school. See high school guidance office for specific dates. For additional information, please contact Julie Cotnoir, College Career Pathways Coordinator, at 860.253.3019. Visit us on the Web at www.asnuntuck.edu/admissions/college-career-pathways.
- \* Most colleges accept incoming community college credit. The final decision is dependent on the accepting college's transfer policy.

### **COLLEGE CONNECTIONS**

Asnuntuck Community College has established a series of technology programs designed to provide high school juniors and seniors with opportunities to consider career paths in manufacturing.

Through the College Connections program, students from local high schools can participate in a series of

from local high schools can participate in a series of courses in electronics, machine, and welding technologies and related subject matter and can earn both high school and college credit.

The program provides basic and advanced technology education directed specifically at the needs of the school population and the requirements of the employer community in North Central Connecticut.

The College Connections coursework involves both classroom and manufacturing lab settings and includes regularly scheduled exams and independent assignments. The classes are conducted at Asnuntuck Community College during the regular school day. College credits earned through the College Connections program can be used towards Manufacturing Technology certificate and degree programs at Asnuntuck.

The program offers the unique opportunity for high

school junior and senior students to gain high school and college credit as well as the ability to establish long-term manufacturing technology competencies and an appreciation for continuous learning and improvement.

# CROSS-REGISTRATION PRIVILEGE

A cross-registration privilege exists for students who register for Fall or Spring credit courses at multiple colleges within the state system of higher education. A student who has proof of payment for the maximum full-time tuition at their "home" institution is exempt from further charges at a state university, the University of Connecticut or another community college. A student who has paid the tuition and fees of a part-time student at their "home" institution and registers for additional courses at another college shall not exceed the amount charged for a full-time student, if the student's combined registration at both institutions would classify him or her as a full-time student. If you are a financial aid recipient and you are attending another higher education institution at the same time, please see the Financial Aid Office. This exchange privilege is offered on a space-available basis only. Connecticut community college students can register any time during in-person registration. All students interested in this special cross-registration plan should contact the Registrar's Office at 860.253.3018.

# Academic Policies and Procedures

#### **ACADEMIC CREDIT HOUR DEFINITION**

Asnuntuck Community College is in compliance with the federal definition of credit hour. For each credit hour, the College requires, at a minimum, the equivalent of three hours of student academic work each week. For instance, a typical 3 credit class during a 15 week semester involves a minimum of 9 hours of work per week. Academic work includes, but is not limited to, direct faculty instruction, e-learning, recitation, laboratory work, studio work, field work, performance, internships and practica. Additional academic activities include, but are not limited to, reading, reflections, essays, reports, inquiry, problem solving, rehearsal, collaborations, theses, and electronic interactions. Student work reflects intended learning outcomes and is verified through evidence of student achievement.

#### **SEMESTER HOUR DEFINITION**

Courses designated by semester hour are intended to prepare students for credit hour course work. Semester hour designations have expectations of 50 minutes of classroom or direct faculty instruction and a minimum of 2 hours of student work outside of class each week for each semester over approximately 15 weeks (semester hour courses do not count towards graduation).

### **GRADES AND GRADE POINTS**

Letter grades are given at the end of each semester to indicate how well a student has met the goals established for each course. For each letter grade, there is a corresponding number called a grade point. These are used to calculate a student's grade point average, or GPA.

#### **GRADES, GRADE POINTS AND GPA:**

### GRADE POINTS GRADE EXPLANATION

A 4.00	outstanding
A 3.70	outstanding
B+ 3.30	above average
В 3.00	above average
B 2.70	above average
C+ 2.30	average
C 2.00	average
C 1.70	average
D+ 1.30	below average
D 1.00	below average
D 0.70	below average
F 0.00	fail — Appears on transcript and
	counts in the GPA.

# ADMINISTRATIVE NOTATIONS NOT USED IN CALCULATING THE GPA: GRADE EXPLANATION

AU 0.00 audit (not for credit)

Students may change from credit to audit or from audit to credit only until the last day for audits.

#### I 0.00 incomplete

Temporary grade assigned to a student by the instructor. Course work must be completed by the end of the tenth week of the next standard semester. Student obtains an Assignment of Incomplete form from the Registrar and the instructor submits it with the final grade roster. Please note that although a student may request an Incomplete, the instructor is not required to honor the request.

M 0.00 maintaining progress Used only for developmental courses to indicate that the student is maintaining progress but not at the usual rate. It may be given to a student for a course only twice.

P 0.00 pass

TR 0.00 transfer Assigned by the Registrar

W 0.00 withdrawal Assigned by the Registrar

### **GRADE POINT AVERAGE (GPA)**

The grade point average is a numeric representation of your cumulative performance at ACC. To calculate your GPA, multiply the grade point for each course, add up all the number of credits for that course, add up all the resulting grade point totals and divide by the total number of credits.

Example: In one semester you take five courses, each for 3 credits, and receive these grades:

A, B, B+, C+, C

To calculate your semester GPA, multiply each grade point by the number of credits:

4.0	х	3	=	12.0
3.0	х	3	=	9.0
3.30	х	3	=	9.9
2.30	х	3	=	6.9
2.0	х	3	=	6.0
		Total	=	43.8

Divide the total number of grade points by the number of credits:

43.8/15 = 2.92

#### FRESH START OPTION

#### 3.8.1 FRESH START

- 1. Colleges shall have a policy, called Fresh Start, which will allow students who have not attended college for a period of two or more years and who have a poor academic record to refresh their Grade Point Average (GPA) and develop a more favorable academic record. Students accepted for enrollment under Fresh Start will meet with a designated college official to determine their academic status for re-entry into the College.
- 2. All grades previously earned will remain on the student's transcript. The semesters for which Fresh Start is invoked will include a transcript symbol indicating that the policy is in effect. The original GPA will not be included in any subsequent computation of the new GPA. If the Fresh Start option is approved, all grades included in the Fresh Start term(s) will have a grade notation (^) added to the grades. The student will receive credit for courses with a grade of C- or above, including "P" (Pass).
- 3. The Fresh Start option can be used only once.
- The Fresh Start option does not apply to any completed degree or certificate.
- A student must complete a minimum of 15 credits after returning to college under the Fresh Start option to be eligible for a degree or certificate, and for graduation honors.
- Each college is responsible for developing its own procedures for managing Fresh Start, including where and how the student applies, what forms are used, who approves the application, and how the student's progress is monitored.

(Adopted July 28, 2003; amended June 19, 2006)

### **REPEATED COURSES**

Courses may be repeated for a higher grade. No course may be repeated more than twice. All grades will be entered on the student's record, but only the highest grade earned will be computed in the grade point average. A student may receive credit for the same course only one time.

### **INCOMPLETE GRADES**

An incomplete (I) is a temporary grade assigned to a student who, because of special circumstances, cannot complete the semester and who has received a written time extension from the instructor.

A student requesting an incomplete must:

- have completed 75% of the course work prior to the request
- request the incomplete from the appropriate instructor

 if granted, sign the "Assignment of an Incomplete" form. The instructor will indicate on the form the grades that have already been earned by the student and the work that remains to be completed.

The instructor must send a copy of the form, with appropriate signatures, to the Registrar's Office by the semester grade deadline.

The coursework must be completed per the instructor's expectations and the deadline may not be extended beyond the 10th week of the next standard semester (Fall or Spring). Incompletes not updated will convert to the grade indicated on the original form. The "I" will convert to an "F" if no grade is indicated.

# COURSE SUBSTITUTIONS AND PREREQUISITE WAIVERS

Course Substitution and Prerequisite Waiver forms are meant to ensure that course substitutions and prerequisite waivers are well documented. The process for a course substitution or a prerequisite waiver request can be initiated by a student, advisor or faculty member. The forms are available in C.A.S.A. (Center for Advising & Student Achievement).

### **AUDITING COURSES**

A student may request audit status from the Registrar. An audited course confers no credit, grade, or quality points. Auditors pay tuition and fees at the same rate as students taking the course for credit. Financial Aid does not cover audited courses. Students must complete an Audit Form obtained from the Registrar's Office.

In order to register as an auditing student, the prospective student must meet all college requirements and obtain the consent of the instructor.

Although auditors are not required to complete examinations or other academic exercises in the course, details of the auditor's participation in class activities will be determined by prior agreement between the student and the instructor. Audited course(s) will be shown on the student's transcript with the symbol "AU" in the grade column and will not carry any credit hours or quality points. An audited course does not meet any prerequisite.

A student may not register as an audit student until the first day of classes. Changes from credit to audit are not permitted after the fourth week of class. Changes from audit to credit must occur before the end of the fourth week of class and with the written permission of the instructor.

# ADD/DROP AND WITHDRAWAL POLICY

Once a semester has begun, course schedule changes can be made in various ways. Changes made to a course schedule that increase or decrease total number of credits in which a student is enrolled will affect billing and financial aid.

Students should carefully review the Financial Aid and Tuition and Fees sections of this catalog before making schedule changes and meet with a Financial Aid counselor to determine any impact.

#### ADD/DROP AND COURSE WITHDRAWAL

Courses may be added to a student's schedule through the first seven (7) days of a standard semester (fall or spring). Students may drop or add a class:

- online at http://my.commnet.edu,
- in person at the Registrar's Office,
- or by faxing an Add/Drop form to 860.253.3016.

It is the student's responsibility to contact the instructor and make up missed work if the course added has already met.

Courses may not be added on or after the eighth (8<sup>th)</sup> calendar day after classes begin. Students who wish to add after this date can consider our late-start schedule.

Courses that do not meet for the standard fifteen (15) weeks, including Summer session, Wintersession, accelerated, and late-start courses, have their own add/drop/withdraw deadlines. These deadlines are relative to the length of the course. In some cases the add/drop period can be as short as one day. Please consult your instructor or the Registrar's website for applicable dates.

#### DROPPING AND WITHDRAWING FROM A COURSE

Courses **dropped** during the Drop Period - the first fourteen (14) days of each standard semester - will not appear on students' academic transcripts, but affect billing and financial aid.\*

After the Drop Period, a course withdrawal is reflected by a "W" notation on a student's transcript. A student may withdraw from a course through the end of the eleventh (11<sup>th</sup>) week of the semester, but the instructor's signature (or an email directly from the instructor to the Registrar) is required to withdraw after the sixth (6<sup>th</sup>) week of the semester. Students are encouraged to meet with a financial aid counselor to determine the impact that a withdrawal will have on financial aid awards.

A student may not obtain a transcript notation of "W" in a course if there exists a substantial reason to believe that the student has engaged in academic misconduct in the course. A transcript notation of "W" will only be permitted for such students when the final resolution of the case is a finding that the student did not commit the alleged academic misconduct in the course.

#### TRANSCRIPT & FINANCIAL IMPACT OF DROPPING OR WITHDRAWING FROM COURSES

STANDARD 15 WEEK SEMESTERS (FALL & SPRING)\*\*

Any change in the number of credits in which a student is enrolled can have an impact on Financial Aid. Meet with a Financial Aid counselor to determine any impact.

TIMING OF DROP/WITHDRAWAL	IMPACT ONTRANSCRIPT	FINANCIAL IMPACT	INSTRUCTOR SIGNATURE REQUIRED?
Before semester begins	Course will not appear	Fees not refunded 100% tuition refunded	No
Semester weeks 1-2 (Drop Period)	Course will not appear	Fees not refunded 50% tuition refunded	No
Semester weeks 2-6	"W" recorded	Fees not refunded Tuition not refunded	No
Semester weeks 7-11	"W" recorded with instructor permission	Fees not refunded Tuition not refunded	Yes
Semester weeks 12-15	Grade calculated based on work completed	Fees not refunded Tuition not refunded	n/a, withdrawal not permitted

<sup>\*\*</sup>Courses that do not meet for the standard fifteen (15) weeks, including Summer session, Wintersession, accelerated, and late-start courses, have their own add/drop/withdraw deadlines. These deadlines are relative to the length of the course. In some cases the add/drop period can be as short as one day. Please consult your instructor or the Registrar's website for applicable dates.

# Academic Advising

Academic advising is a partnership between student and advisor that empowers students to reach academic, career and lifelong learning goals. Through an educational process, students learn to make informed decisions to optimize their academic experience.

- NEW students meet with an Academic Advisor in the Center for Advising & Student Achievement (C.A.S.A.) to become oriented to the advising process and to plan their first semester of coursework.
- CONTINUING students should contact their Assigned Faculty Advisor to plan future semesters and talk about course options. Faculty Advisors are assigned once a student has registered for classes and are assigned according to a student's declared program of study. Faculty advisors send their advisees an email with contact information, office hours, and information about setting up an appointment in mid-September (once all students have registered and have been assigned Faculty Advisors).

Advising walk-in hours are held during registration periods which are typically from April to the beginning of September for Summer and Fall registration, and then from November to the beginning of February for Winter and Spring registration. For more information, go to: www.asnuntuck.edu/student-resources/advising

# CENTER FOR ADVISING & STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT (C.A.S.A.)

#### **ACADEMIC ADVISING**

New students are encouraged to meet with an Academic Advisor to discuss initial goals, full or part time status, placement results, and course options. It is essential that new students check in with an Academic Advisor to make sure that he or she is on the right track in the first semester. Academic Advisors can review transcripts, provide unofficial transcript evaluations, and can verify prerequisites that have been completed at other institutions of higher education. Most importantly, Academic Advisors want to make sure that the student is set up for success in the first year and beyond.

#### TRANSFER ADVISING

Students intending to transfer should meet with the Academic & Transfer Advisor as early as their first semester. Once a program of study has been selected, students are encouraged to meet with the Academic & Transfer Advisor each semester to make sure they are fulfilling major requirements and enrolling in courses transferable to their chosen school(s). Visit the Transfer

Services website www.asnuntuck.edu/student-resources/transfer for more information about the transfer process.

#### **CAREER DEVELOPMENT**

Whether you are established in your career field of choice, still searching for that right fit, or working on moving up, ACC has career services to help you succeed. Asnuntuck supports students in choosing majors, exploring career options and paths, creating resumes, networking, and many other career development processes. We provide workshops and programs throughout each semester, and a variety of resources are accessible on our website and in C.A.S.A. The Academic & Career Advisor, is also available for scheduled one-on-one appointments. For more information, please visit: www.asnuntuck.edu/student-resources/career-development.

#### **TITLE IX & DIVERSITY**

Sexual Misconduct is a serious issue that affects college students, impeding their ability to participate fully in their studies. At Asnuntuck we are committed to having an informed campus that understands reporting responsibilities and is aware of available campus resources critical to creating a culture of caring and compassion in support of our students and community.

ATitle IX coordinator's core responsibilities include overseeing the school's response to Title IX reports and complaints and identifying and addressing any patterns or systemic problems revealed by such reports, disclosures and complaints. This means that the Title IX coordinator must have knowledge of the requirements of Title IX, of the school's own policies and procedures on sex discrimination, and of all complaints raising Title IX issues throughout the school. The Title IX coordinator must be informed of all reports and complaints raising Title IX issues, even if the report or complaint was initially filed with another individual or office or if the investigation will be conducted by another individual or office. To learn more about "Sexual Misconduct Polices" please visit our web site at: www.asnuntuck.edu/ student-resources/title-ixsexual-misconduct.

### **CHANGE OF PROGRAM**

Students may change their program by filling out a Declare or Change a Major form available at the Registrar's Office. Students may also change their program at the time of registration. Students receiving veterans' benefits or other forms of financial aid should be aware that program changes may be restricted.

### STUDENT STATUS

The College does not classify students as freshmen or sophomores. To qualify for graduation, a student must meet specific degree requirements, achieve a 2.0 grade point average in the major field of study and a 2.0 overall average. Students should periodically see an academic advisor to ensure they are meeting the necessary program requirements.

### **ACADEMIC STANDARDS**

#### STATEMENT ON SATISFACTORY PROGRESS

- The grading system employed by each college should accurately reflect the academic achievement of the student. In order to ensure appropriate use of state resources available for the education of its citizens, each college will develop procedures to monitor satisfactory progress through its warning, probation and suspension policy.
- This policy shall be applicable to all students enrolled for developmental and/or credit courses, no matter the number of credits for which they are enrolled.
- No course may be repeated for credit more than twice. The highest grade received will be used in calculating the student's academic average. This does not apply to those courses that are designed to be repeated for additional credit.
- Satisfactory completion of fifty percent of the credits attempted (this phrase means actual continued enrollment beyond the add/drop period) will be the minimum standard for good standing.
- 5. Students who have completed 11 or fewer credits whose Cumulative Grade Point Average (CGPA) falls below 1.5 will be given a written warning. Students who have completed between 12 and 30 credits inclusive whose CGPA falls below 1.7, and those who have completed 31 or more credits whose CGPA falls below 2.0, will be given a written notice that they are placed on academic probation.
- Students placed on academic probation will be required to take a reduced course load for one semester.
- 7. Students who, after being placed on academic probation for one semester and after taking a reduced course load, fail to attain the required CGPA as shown above will be notified in writing that they are suspended for one semester.
- 8. After the period of suspension, students may be reinstated, either as regular or probationary students, upon application to the College.
- 9. An appeals process will be established by each college, which provides for due process.
- College procedures will be included in appropriate publications and communications.

(Adopted October 17, 1993; amended January 28, 2002; amended February 23, 2004; amended September 20, 2004; amended February 14, 2005)

### ASSOCIATE DEGREES/MULTIPLE

Students who already hold an academic degree may earn a second degree in a different curriculum at Asnuntuck Community College. Such students shall be treated similarly to transfer students with respect to the minimum number of credits they must take for the second degree. This requires that a student meet all program requirements and earn at least 25 percent of the minimum requirements for the new curriculum at Asnuntuck.

A student may earn two degrees simultaneously at Asnuntuck Community College by fulfilling all requirements stated above.

Requests for additional degrees beyond the second require prior approval from the Academic Dean. Students who receive approval must then complete all program requirements, including earning at least 25 percent of the minimum requirements for the new curriculum at Asnuntuck.

Completion of the requirements of an additional program option does not constitute a different degree.

### **GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS**

It is the student's responsibility to notify the College that he/she wishes to graduate. This is accomplished by submitting an Application for Graduation form. This must be done by: March 31 for the May graduation; August 1 for the August graduation; December 1 for the December graduation. There are no ceremonies for the August and December graduations. August graduates may request to participate in the May Commencement if they are no more than four credits short of their degree or certificate requirements. An Appeal to Participate form must be filled out in the Registrar's Office. December graduates may participate in the Commencement ceremony held the following May.

Students must apply for graduation once all their requirements, except courses in progress, for their degree programs are satisfied. They must have a 2.0 GPA overall, and a 2.0 average in their major requirements. Students who wish to graduate must have their records of all prior semesters in order by the end of the preceding fall semester. Any incompletes earned in the fall, any required transfer credits, or any non-traditional credits needed for graduation must be recorded on the student's record prior to April 1. Students must also satisfy all financial obligations to the College. Failure to meet the above deadlines absolves the school of any responsibility to graduate the student.

### **ACADEMIC HONORS**

Honors for exemplary academic achievement are awarded to Connecticut Community College students at the end of each semester and at graduation.

#### SEMESTER HONORS

Full-time students who are matriculated in a certificate or degree program and who successfully complete 12 or more credits of work in a semester with a grade point average of 3.4 or higher shall be recognized by having their names placed on a Dean's List.

Part-time students who are matriculated in a certificate or degree program are also eligible for such recognition when they have completed 12 or more credits of work with a cumulative grade point average of 3.4 or higher. They may be subsequently recognized at the completion of an additional 12 or more credits of work with a cumulative grade point average of 3.4 or higher, and at successive intervals of 12 credits.

A course withdrawal (W) or incomplete (I) shall make the student ineligible for Dean's List recognition that semester. Upon completion of the Incomplete, the student may be recognized retroactively.

Students who are in a probationary status are not eligible for Dean's List recognition, even if their cumulative grade point average might otherwise make them eligible.

#### **GRADUATION HONORS:**

3.9 to 4.00 grade point average Highest Honors

3.7 to 3.89 grade point average High Honors

3.4 to 3.69 grade point average Honors

An outstanding incomplete grade will make the student ineligible for honors at graduation. However, upon completion of the coursework, if the student has earned the required grade point average, the appropriate level of recognition will be noted on the student's official transcript.

At the Asnuntuck commencement ceremony:

- Associate degree candidates who are members of PhiTheta Kappa Honor Society wear a gold sash.
- Gold cords are worn by students who are graduating with a 3.7 GPA or higher.
- The President's Award for Academic Excellence is awarded in recognition of outstanding academic accomplishment of associate degree graduates with a perfect 4.0 cumulative average and is presented at commencement.

Annually, each community college shall determine the students eligible to receive the President's Award in ac-

cordance with the following criteria:

- Recipients must be graduating students who have earned a cumulative quality point ratio of 4.0.
- Recipients must have completed the degree requirements of an approved associate degree program and must have completed at least 50% of the degree requirements in residence at the community college awarding the degree.
- Graduates shall not be disqualified from receiving the award on the basis of having a "W" or other similar transcription notation of official course withdrawal(s).

This policy shall be implemented in recognition of the existence and intent of "Fresh Start" policies of community colleges.

# WAYS OF OBTAINING COLLEGE CREDIT

We believe that students should be given the widest possible choice of methods to receive college credit. At the present time, the following different methods are available for students.

#### A. COURSEWORK

#### • Classroom or Online Instruction

The foundation of the College is the traditional classroom style course. The majority of course descriptions reflect this. The credit granted is noted in each of those descriptions.

#### • Independent Study/299 Course Numbers

The Independent Study program was designed to provide advanced students the chance to study beyond the level of regularly offered courses. Students interested in an Independent Study course should contact a full-time instructor in their area of interest to work out a program of study, objectives, materials, resources to be used, method of evaluation, and length of time needed to complete the program. A student may register after an Independent Study Application has been submitted by the instructor to the Registrar's Office.

A student will be allowed to take one course (3-4 credits) per semester. The maximum number of credits that will be accepted towards a degree will equal no more than nine credits. Exceptions may be granted by the Academic Dean. Students planning to transfer to another institution should contact that institution to determine if it will accept Independent Study credits. Not all institutions will accept Independent Study credits.

#### Directed Study

A Directed Study is a special arrangement with a full-time faculty member for an approved course, e.g., a course listed in the current college catalog. Class meets as agreed to by the instructor and the student.

#### • Special Topics/298 Course Numbers

Each major academic area may offer a Special Topics course. This course is a one-semester offering dealing with issues/content identified as pertinent to the college curriculum but not in the formalized offerings. A specific description for a specific semester is found in registration materials and with staff of Student Services.

#### **B. CREDIT BY EXAMINATION**

Three types of Credit by Examination are available. Please note that not all colleges will accept credits granted in this manner.

#### • Advanced Placement

Degree credit will be granted on the basis of scores on the Advanced Placement Examinations administered by the College Entrance Examination Board. Students who earn scores of 3 or higher receive credit for the courses for which the examinations are stipulated as measures.

#### • College Level Examination Program (CLEP)

The College Level Examination Program (CLEP) tests are designed to measure college-level learning acquired outside of the college classroom through independent reading, job training, accelerated high school courses, or other life experience and non-traditional sources. Degree credit, to a maximum of 48 semester hours, will be granted on the basis of the College Entrance Examination Board, CLEP policy in accordance with standards established by the College and the Board of Regents. Students must submit official scores of CLEP examinations to the Office of Admissions for evaluation of credit. Students interested in using CLEP credits as transfer credits to other institutions are advised to determine in advance whether the college to which they hope to transfer will accept CLEP credit. The CLEP program offers two types of examinations:

- GENERAL EXAMINATIONS provide a measure of undergraduate achievement in five basic areas: English Composition, Humanities, Mathematics, Natural Science, and Social Science/History. The tests assess the student's knowledge of fundamental facts and concepts, ability to perceive relationships and understanding of basic principles.
- SUBJECT EXAMINATIONS measure achievement in undergraduate courses. These tests measure the understanding of fundamental facts and concepts that would normally be covered in a college-level course in a specific subject area. There are subject examinations available in Composition and Literature, Foreign Languages, History and Social Sciences, Science and Mathematics, and Business. A complete listing of CLEP testing centers and dates can be found at www.collegeboard.com.

#### Credit by Examination Not Covered by CLEP

#### 1. CHALLENGE EXAMS

At the discretion of the appropriate instructor and the Academic Dean, a student may take a special examination for credit for a course without having enrolled

in that course, usually because of previous studies or experience. Such an examination will be administered and a grade assigned under the direction of the Academic Dean. Contact an advisor for information.

#### 2. OVERSEAS ACADEMIC PROGRAMS

Asnuntuck Community College students may take courses in England, France, Jamaica, Ireland, Germany, Spain, Switzerland, Portugal, Italy, Greece, Mexico, Israel, Costa Rica, Japan, Cyprus, Egypt, Colombia, and China. College students may participate in academic programs in the liberal arts, languages, business programs and areas such as catering and hotel management and filmmaking. These overseas study opportunities are offered through Three Rivers Community College and the College Consortium for International Studies (CCIS). Students are eligible to apply for the same loans or grants that they would be eligible for on the Asnuntuck Community College campus. For further information, contact the Academic Affairs Office.

### TRANSFER FROM ASNUNTUCK

Four-year institutions, public and private, Connecticut and out-of-state, all have unique procedures and requirements for acceptance of community college students and credits in transfer.

Students intending to transfer are encouraged to take advantage of the services and resources provided by the Transfer Services office as early as their first semester. Transfer planning information including equivalencies, agreements, and pathways are available on the Transfer Services website: www.asnuntuck.edu/transfer.

Transfer events are regularly scheduled throughout the academic year including a large college fair, information sessions, luncheons, and Transfer Tuesday visits. Students are strongly encouraged to participate in transfer programs and events to explore potential transfer options.

Once a program of study has been selected, students are also encouraged to meet with the Transfer Advisor each semester to make sure they are fulfilling major requirements and enrolling in courses which are transferable to their chosen school(s).

Asnuntuck Community College has established several guaranteed admission agreements with colleges and universities, including University of Connecticut, the Connecticut State Universities, American International College, Albertus Magnus College, Bay Path University, the University of St. Joseph, and Sacred Heart University. Specific eligibility requirements apply to each of the programs. The following information outlines the criteria for each program, but interested students are encouraged to meet with the Transfer Advisor during the first semester at ACC for further information.

### TRANSFER TO ASNUNTUCK

At all community colleges, degree and certificate credit shall be granted only for credit courses completed at all institutions within the Connecticut state system of higher education and at all other collegiate institutions accredited by an agency recognized by the Council for Higher Education Accreditation as either a Regional Accrediting Organization or a Specialized and Professional Accrediting Organization in accordance with the following:

- 1. Degree and certificate credit shall be granted for all credit courses that are applicable to the objectives of, or equivalent to the course requirements of, the curriculum in which the transferring student enrolls. Credit work that is not applicable or equivalent to curriculum requirements shall be accepted for credit at the discretion of the college. Degree and certificate credit shall also be granted on the basis of performance on examinations in accordance with standards and limits approved by the Connecticut State Colleges and Universities Board of Regents for Higher Education.
- Degree and certificate credit shall be granted for credit courses completed with a letter grade of "C-minus" or better, or with a grade of "P" (Pass).
   Such credit courses shall be accepted only for credit, and letter grades assigned by other institutions shall not be recorded or included in computations of student grade point averages.
- 3. Notwithstanding the number of degree or certificate credits which shall be granted in accordance with the foregoing, the student must complete at least twenty-five percent of the minimum credit requirements for the degree or certificate through coursework at the college awarding the degree or certificate.
- 4. When a student seeks transfer credit for technical or specialty courses into a program that is also accredited by a national or regional specialized accrediting agency, such credits must be from a comparably accredited program. In the case of a request for transfer credit for technical or specialty courses from a non-specially accredited program, the College shall provide appropriate means for the validation of the student's competency in the technical specialty course areas.
- 5. This policy shall appear in all college catalogs.

(Adopted January 16, 1973; amended November 19,1979; amended May 16, 2005; amended May 21, 2007)

#### **TRANSCRIPTS**

In compliance with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), transcripts may only be obtained while securely logged in to your student account or with a signed request form. Transcripts may be requested in the following ways:

#### **ONLINE**

- Any student who attended after 1983 can request a paper or eTranscript using our third party transcript processing service. eTranscripts are official and can be provided to a valid email address on the same day of the request.
- More recent students have active accounts with the College and should request a transcript using their myCommNet account.

#### IN PERSON

Students must complete and sign a Transcript Request Form at the Registrar's Office. Official transcripts are processed once daily and will be mailed directly to the address indicated on the form.

#### BY MAIL/FAX

 Mail or fax a completed and signed Request Form to the Registrar's Office. This form can be obtained in the Registrar's Office or downloaded from our website. Transcripts are provided free-of-charge but are not processed while-you-wait. In order to obtain a transcript, the student must be in good financial standing with the college. The end of each semester is a busy time for transcript requests. Please allow at least one week for processing during this time.

# Tuition and Fees schedule of Tuition and Fees (2019-2020)

TU	ITION AMOUNT
1.	Full-Time Student—per semester: (1) a) CT and Massachusetts resident (2) 1,992.00 b) Out-of-State resident 5,976.00 c) NEBHE
2.	Part-Time Student—per semester hour: a) CT and Massachusetts resident (2) 166.00 b) Out-of-State resident
GE	NERAL FEES
ST	UDENT ACTIVITY FEES
1. 2.	Full-Time Student—per semester20.00 Part-Time Student—per semester10.00
and	New England Board of Higher Education (NEBHE) I non-resident (out-of-state) tuition and fees schedule, ase visit http://www.asnuntuck.edu/admissions
TR	ANSPORTATION FEES
1. 2.	Full-Time Student—per semester20.00 Part-Time Student—per semester20.00
MA	ANDATORY USAGE FEES (effective Fall 2019)
1. 2. cou	3
0.	Supplemental Course Fee: Level 1
4.	Supplemental Course Fee:
4.	Supplemental Course Fee:         102.50/course           Level 1         205.00/course           Level 2         205.00/course           Excess Credits Tuition Charge         (for more than 17 credits)           UCATIONAL EXTENSION FEES (effective Fall
4. <b>ED</b>	Supplemental Course Fee:         102.50/course           Level 1         205.00/course           Level 2         205.00/course           Excess Credits Tuition Charge         (for more than 17 credits)           UCATIONAL EXTENSION FEES (effective Fall

\* Rate set on a per-course basis dependent upon

SP	ECIAL FEES	<b>AMOUNT</b>
1.	Application Fee	No Fee
2.	Program Enrollment Fee	No Fee
3.	Late Registration Fee	5.00
4.	Late Payment Fee	15.00
5.	Installment Plan Fee	
6.	Returned Check Fee	
7.	CLEP Service Fee	15.00
8.	Academic Evaluation Fee	15.00
9.	Portfolio Assessment Fee	100.00
10.	Replacement of Lost ID	10.00

All tuition and fees subject to change without notice.

# FOOTNOTES AND EXPLANATIONS

- Students enrolled in Tuition Fund courses and/or Educational Extension Fund courses carrying 12 semester hours or more in total will be classified as full-time students for general fee purposes.
- 2. Waivers:
  - a. Complete a waiver of tuition for a dependent child of a person missing in action or former prisoner of war.
  - b. See Waiver of Tuition for Veterans, page 21.
  - c. The application fee and all general fees, except applicable Mandatory Usage Fees, shall be waived for any Connecticut resident 62 years of age or older who has been accepted for admission. Tuition shall be waived for any Connecticut resident 62 years of age or older who has been accepted for admission, provided at the end of the regular registration period, there is space available in the course in which the person intends to enroll. The requirements for eligibility under this provision shall include the presentation of appropriate evidence of age.
  - d. Tuition may be waived or remitted by the President, or his/her designated appointee, for any in-state student who demonstrates substantial financial need and who is enrolled on a full-time or part-time basis in a degree or certificate program or a pre-college remedial program.
  - Tuition shall be waived for any student attending the Connecticut State Police Academy who
    is enrolled in a law enforcement program at the
    Academy which is offered in coordination with

course offered.

a community college which accredits courses taken in the program. This waiver applies only to courses taken at the Connecticut State Police Academy and not to course work required for a degree taken at the College.

- f. Tuition fees of any eligible member of the Connecticut Army or Air National Guard shall be waived. To be eligible for such waiver, a member of the Connecticut Army or Air National Guard must (1) be a resident of Connecticut, (2) present certification by the Adjutant General or his or her designee as a member in good standing of the Guard, and (3) be enrolled or accepted for admission to a community college on a full-time or part-time basis in a degree granting program. The tuition waiver shall be reduced by the amount of any educational reimbursement received from an employer.
- g. The community college presidents are authorized to waive the student activity fee only for students enrolled in Tuition Fund financed courses offered at off-campus locations.
- h. Tuition is waived for any Connecticut resident who is a dependent child or surviving spouse of a specified terrorist victim, as defined in section 1 of Public Act No. 02-126, who was a resident of Connecticut.

### **REFUND POLICY**

#### I. Non-refundable Fees

The College services fee and student activity fee paid by all students registering for tuition courses, or credit extension courses, are non-refundable, except when course sections canceled by the college would result in a change in fees otherwise due.

#### **II. Tuition Courses**

#### A. REFUND SCHEDULE—GENERAL

For notice of withdrawal received prior to the first day of college classes for that semester, refund of one hundred percent of total tuition paid will be granted for both full-time and part-time students.

For notice of withdrawal received on the first day of classes and through the fourteenth calendar day of that semester, a refund of fifty percent of total tuition applicable to the courses for which registered will be granted for both full-time and part-time students.

For a reduction in load which occurs on the first day of classes and through the fourteenth calendar day of that semester, fifty percent of the difference of the tuition applicable to the original and revised course schedule will be refunded. No refund of tuition will be granted for either full-time or part-time students beyond the fourteenth calendar day after the first day of classes.

#### B. REFUND SCHEDULE—ARMED SERVICES

One hundred percent refund of tuition and fees will be granted to students entering the armed services before earning degree credit in any semester, upon submitting notice in writing of withdrawal accompanied by a certified copy of enlistment papers.

#### C. SPECIAL FEES

The following special fees are non-refundable: application fee, program enrollment fee, late registration fee, graduation fee, replacement of lost ID card fee, academic evaluation fee, portfolio assessment fee.

#### D. STUDENTS COVERED

For purposes of the refund policy outlined above, an individual is considered a student when he or she has registered and paid, in part or full, either by cash or by obligation, by the first day of class.

## E. PUBLICATION OF PAYMENT AND REFUND POLICIES

All colleges will insert in their college catalogs and brochures the information concerning tuition payment and refunds contained in this policy.

#### F. SPECIAL WAIVERS

College presidents are authorized to modify the tuition refund policy for specific students on a case by case basis under the following extenuating or extraordinary circumstances: severe illness documented by a doctor's certificate; erroneous advisement by the college; and military transfer. Other extenuating or extraordinary circumstances may also be considered upon written request submitted by a college president to the Board president. Exceptions which should not normally be considered include change in job, normal illness, and poor decision or change of mind by a student.

#### **III. Extension Account Credit Courses**

A student who withdraws by the last business day before the first class meeting of the course(s) is entitled to a full refund of all tuition paid. A request for withdrawal must be received by the president or his/her designee no later than the end of the last regular business day of the College before the first meeting of the course(s).

A student reducing his or her extension account course load will be entitled to a full refund of tuition paid, appropriate to the course(s) dropped, provided

the request for refund is received by the president or his/her designee no later than the end of the last regular business day of the College before the first class meeting of the course(s).

No refund will be made after the first class meeting of the course except in cases of serious illness or other extraordinary circumstances, at the discretion of the college president or his/her designee. If a class is canceled, a full refund of extension account course fees will be made.

# IV. Refund Policy for a Complete Withdrawal from Courses for Students Participating in Federal Title IV Student Aid Programs

#### **RETURN OF TITLE IV FUNDS:**

In accordance with Federal regulations, beginning July 1, 2000, financial aid eligibility will be recalculated for all Title IV\* recipients who completely withdraw, drop out, are dismissed, or take a leave of absence prior to completing 60% of the semester.

The recalculation is based on the percent of EARNED aid using the following formula:

Percent earned = Number of days completed up to the withdrawal date\*\* divided by the total days in the semester.

Federal financial aid is returned to the Federal Government based on the percent of unearned aid using the following formula:

Aid to be returned = (100% minus the percent earned) multiplied by the amount of aid disbursed toward institutional charges.

Of the aid to be returned, the school pays the lesser of the Title IV aid disbursed minus (the percentage of Title IV aid earned multiplied by the amount of Title IV aid disbursed or that could have been disbursed) OR the amount of institutional charges multiplied by the percentage of Title IV aid unearned. The student may be responsible for returning a pro-rated percentage of the difference between the total unearned Title IV aid to be returned minus the amount of unearned Title IV aid to be returned by the school. The student is also responsible to repay the institution the amount the institution returned to the Federal Government. Failure of the student to return the amount owed will result in an overpayment, which will block any future financial aid disbursements at any institution until the overpayment is resolved.

- \*Title IV Aid includes Federal PELL Grant, Federal SEOG Grant, Federal Direct Stafford Loans (Subsidized and Unsubsidized), and Direct PLUS Loans.
- \*\*Withdrawal Date is defined as the actual date the student began the institution's withdrawal process, the student's last day of recorded attendance, or the midpoint of the semester for a student who leaves without notifying the institution.

Samples of the calculations are available upon request in the Financial Aid Office.

### **ACCIDENT INSURANCE**

Enrolled students are carried automatically by group accident insurance while they are in class or attending a college function. Students may purchase 24-hour accident and sickness insurance through this policy. Students who wish to inquire about health insurance should contact the Dean of Students Office 860.253.3020.

# Financial Aid STUDENT FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Asnuntuck Community College makes available to its students a variety of financial assistance programs. The objective of the student financial aid program at ACC is to provide financial aid to those students who, without such assistance, would be unable to pursue their program of study at the College. For this reason, all grant aid awarded by the College is based on financial need. Financial need is determined through the use of a financial need analysis system approved annually by the U.S. Department of Education. Utilizing federal, state, and institutional funds, the College operates grant, work-study and loan programs in order to cover the student's direct costs (tuition, fees, and books) whenever possible.

- 3. GRANT PROGRAMS: Grants are gifts of aid to students, which normally would not have to be repaid. However, if a student completely withdraws from classes prior to the 60% point of the semester, the student may owe a partial repayment for any funds received and not earned.
  - \*For more detailed information, see Refunds/Return in the current Program and Course Schedule or contact the Financial Aid Office at 860.253.3030.
- WORK-STUDY PROGRAM: The College offers opportunities for employment on campus in various departments to eligible financial aid recipients. Jobs include office assistants, library assistants, and peer tutors, all at competitive pay rates.
- LOAN PROGRAMS: All loans certified and issued by the College must be repaid. Terms and interest rates vary significantly among the different programs. The College participates in the Federal Direct Loan Program: Direct Loans (Subsidized and Unsubsidized), and Direct Parents' Loans for Undergraduate Students (PLUS).

In accordance with Federal regulations, a Student Financial Aid Ombudsman has been appointed. The Ombudsman will work with student loan borrowers to informally resolve loan disputes and problems from an impartial and independent viewpoint. The Ombudsman helps borrowers having problems with Direct Loans, Subsidized and Unsubsidized Stafford Loans, PLUS Loans (for parents) and Consolidation Loans. If your student loan complaint is justified, the Ombudsman will work with you and the office, agency, or company involved in the problem to seek a reasonable and fair solution.

On your behalf, he/she will contact offices within the U.S. Department of Education, private lenders/banks and loan guaranty or servicing agencies. The Ombudsman's Office recommends solutions, but doesn't have

the authority to reverse decisions. To contact them, call 877.557.2575, or visit their website at www.ombudsman. ed.gov.

### **APPLICATION PROCEDURE**

Each academic year, all applicants must complete the Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA). Simply log on to https://fafsa.ed.gov. Be sure to list Asnuntuck's Federal Code number (011150). Once your information is processed, it will be sent to us electronically. You will then receive an email from us requesting documents necessary to complete your Financial Aid file. Check the email account created for you by the college. All official communication will be sent to that account. You can access email inside myCommNet.

For further information, please call our Call Center at 860.253.3030, email us at AS-FinAid@asnuntuck.edu, or go to http://my.commnet.edu. Enter your NetID and password. Select Student tab. Click on Student Self-Service and select Financial Aid.

The Asnuntuck Community College Foundation offers a variety of scholarships to students of the College. Guidelines and the Application Form are available at www.asnuntuck.edu/about/scholarships or from the ACC Foundation office at 860.253.3041.

## SATISFACTORY ACADEMIC PROGRESS POLICY FOR STUDENT FINANCIAL AID RECIPIENTS

Federal regulations require that a student receiving financial aid under the Title IV programs make satisfactory academic progress (SAP) in accordance with the standards set by the Board of Regents, and the US Department of Education pursuant to 34 CFR 668.34. The contents of this policy were approved by the Board of Regents on April 7, 2016 and are effective for periods of enrollment subsequent to the Spring 2017 semester. Questions concerning this policy should be addressed to the Director of Financial Aid at the attending Connecticut Community College.

#### **POLICY**

Recipients of financial aid under the Title IV programs or other financial aid programs directly administered or certified by the college must maintain satisfactory academic progress towards the completion of a certificate or degree program. Students must be cognizant when selecting a program that certain certificates are not eligible for financial aid. The progress standards within are determined in accordance with a student's current primary curriculum in a certificate or degree program.

Satisfactory academic progress for financial aid recipients in both certificate and degree programs is determined using a student's cumulative academic history at the college, by means of Cumulative Grade Point Average (qualitative) and Cumulative Pace (quantitative) components. A student must successfully complete the designated pace percentage (earned credits/attempted credits) according to their program of study. For financial aid purposes, all attempted credits resulting in either an academic grade or administrative transcript notation will be included in the quantitative calculation. Incomplete courses, course withdrawals, course repetitions, noncredit remedial courses (with appropriate credit equivalency evaluation), and ESL courses are also included in this assessment. Transfer credits are counted as both attempted and earned credits in the calculation for determining satisfactory academic progress.

For students who change majors or change between certificate and degree programs, a cumulative academic history is still considered and assessments will be performed based on the primary program of study. A student's cumulative academic history will be evaluated at the end of each payment period and prior to the subsequent term's financial aid disbursement. This policy will be used to evaluate all students uniformly, regardless of their enrollment level. In order to graduate, a minimum cumulative grade point average of 2.0 is required in all courses that are applicable to the program of study.

#### **Standards for Certificate Seeking Students**

Credits Attempted	Minimum Cumulative GPA	Minimum Completion Pace
0 – 11.99	0.0	0.00%
12+	2.0	67.00%

#### **Standards for Degree Seeking Students**

Credits Attempted	Minimum	Minimum
	Cumulative GPA	Completion Pace
0 – 11.99	0.0	0.00%
12 - 30.99	1.7	50.00%
31 - 49.99	2.0	50.00%
50 – 59.99	2.0	60.00%
60 +	2.0	67.00%

#### **ADVISING REQUIREMENT**

For students falling below a cumulative GPA of 1.7 and/or a minimum completion pace of 50%, they will be required to meet with advising staff prior to continuing to receive financial aid.

#### REPEAT/AUDIT COURSEWORK

Financial aid recipients are limited to one repetition of a previously passed course in their program of study. The second repetition of a previously passed course will not be eligible for financial aid payment. Audit courses are not financial aid eligible.

#### COMMUNICATION

Students will receive notification prior to the start of a period of enrollment via postal mail or email that will describe any changes to the status of their academic progress. Updates to academic progress status will also be made available to students through myCommNet (http://my.commnet.edu).

#### **MAXIMUM CREDIT HOURS**

Students may receive financial aid for any attempted credits in his/her program of study that do not exceed 150% of the published length of the student's educational program at the college. For example, students enrolled in a 60 credit degree program may receive financial aid for a maximum of 90 attempted credit hours. Similarly, students enrolled in a 30 credit certificate program may receive financial aid for a maximum of 45 attempted credit hours. Any attempted credits at the college must be included in the calculation. The 150% maximum credit hours rule is applicable to students who change majors, programs, or who pursue a double major.

#### FINANCIAL AID WARNING

Students who fail to meet the minimum satisfactory academic progress standard will be placed on Financial Aid Warning only once during their academic career at the college.

Students on Warning may continue to receive financial aid for one payment period despite a determination that the student is not maintaining satisfactory academic progress. The Warning period will be the student's next semester or period of enrollment at the college. Those students who achieve Satisfactory Progress after a Warning period but fail the academic standards at a later date will have an Unsatisfactory Progress status. The college will communicate the Warning status to these students and inform them that they must meet the academic progress standard by the end of the subsequent enrollment period in order to maintain eligibility to participate in the financial aid programs at the college.

#### **UNSATISFACTORY PROGRESS**

Students who fail to meet the minimum satisfactory academic progress standard at the end of the Warning period will become ineligible from the financial aid programs at the college. The college will communicate a status of Unsatisfactory Progress to students and inform them of the available Reinstatement and Appeal processes.

#### REINSTATEMENT PROCESS

A student's financial aid eligibility will be automatically reinstated at such time as the student meets the minimum satisfactory academic progress standard. Reinstatement to the financial aid programs may also occur upon a successful appeal by the student (see Appeal Process below).

#### FINANCIAL AID PROBATION

Any student who fails to meet the minimum satisfactory academic progress standard at the end of the Warning period will become ineligible from the financial aid programs at the college. Ineligible students have the opportunity to file an appeal regarding their unsatisfactory progress within the assessment for financial aid programs. Students that have

failed the academic progress standard and have been approved with a successful appeal will be considered on Financial Aid Probation. The terms of Financial Aid Probation are set by the college during the Appeal Process.

APPEAL PROCESS

Students may request consideration for reinstatement to the financial aid programs through the following Appeal Process: If a student feels their failure to meet the minimum satisfactory academic progress standard was the result of an unusual or extraordinary situation that affected successful progression, the student may appeal to the Financial Aid Office. Examples of personal mitigating circumstances could include illness or injury of the student or dependent of the student, a death in the family, or other undue hardship as the result of special circumstances. An appeal form is available in the Financial Aid Office. To provide consistency in decision-making, a designated administrator or committee at the attending institution will make all appeal decisions in a timely manner upon review of the appeal form and any applicable documentation. The student must:

- In writing, explain the extenuating circumstances causing the non-compliance;
- In writing, give a detailed explanation of specifically what has changed that will allow satisfactory progress to be demonstrated at the next evaluation; and
- Substantiate it with third party documentation (i.e. physician's note).

Should an appeal be approved and the student is not mathematically able to return to satisfactory academic progress at the conclusion of the subsequent enrollment period, a designated administrator at or committee at the attending college will devise an appropriate academic plan for the upcoming semester with the student. For example, the terms of an academic plan may be as follows:

- Register and successfully complete a minimum of six (6) credits; and
- Successfully complete these courses with a minimum GPA of 2.0.

At the end of the semester, grades will be evaluated. If the student has met the required terms of the academic plan, the student may remain on Financial Aid Probation and continue to receive financial aid the following semester. If the student fails to meet the terms of the academic plan in any subsequent semester, the student will become ineligible to participate in all financial aid programs until the student is able to once again meet the minimum requirements for academic progress. Student progress will continue to be monitored at the end of each semester with the same terms in place until the student is in compliance with this policy.

If the student's appeal is denied and the student is already registered for the upcoming semester, the student is responsible for any monies owed to the college. If the student pays for the next semester and successfully completes all classes with a GPA of 2.0 or better, the student may appeal again after that semester.

Revised April 2016

# Student Services

# PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

Asnuntuck Community College is committed to providing an equal educational opportunity and full participation for qualified students with disabilities in accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) and section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. The College strives to provide equality of access through academic adjustments, auxiliary aids and services determined to be appropriate to address those functional limitations of the disability which adversely affect educational opportunity.

The Board of Regents for Higher Education and all of the colleges under its jurisdiction are committed to the goal of achieving equal educational opportunity and full participation for people with disabilities in the community colleges. To that end, this statement of policy is put forth to reaffirm our commitment to ensure that no qualified person be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity on a community college campus.

The Board recognizes that a physical or functional impairment is a disability only to the extent that it may form a barrier that prevents full participation in valued experience, activity, or role. Higher education is therefore especially important to people with disabilities, since it aims to increase every student's access to valued experience, activities, and roles. Improving access for students and employees means removing existing barriers that are physical, programmatic, and attitudinal; it also means taking care not to erect new barriers along the way.

The efforts of the community colleges to accommodate people with disabilities should be measured against the goals of full participation and integration. Services and programs best promote full participation and integration of people with disabilities when they complement and support, but do not duplicate, the regular services and programs of the College.

This statement is intended to reaffirm the Board's commitment to affirmative action and equal opportunity for all people and in no way to replace the Equal Opportunity Policy Statement.

# STUDENT DISABILITIES SERVICES

We welcome students with disabilities and seek to provide opportunities for a positive college experience. Notification of a disability, with supporting documentation, should be submitted to the Coordinator of Student Disability Services in order to determine appropriate and reasonable services, academic adjustments and implementation. Individual services are consistent with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act and the Americans with Disabilities Act and are provided to each eligible student. Requests accompanied by appropriate documentation can be submitted at any time. Students with disabilities are encouraged to notify Deborah Kosior, 504/ADA Coordinator, AS-DisabilityServices@asnuntuck.edu (860) 253-3005, Asnuntuck Community College, 170 Elm Street, Enfield, CT 06082.

# VETERAN EDUCATIONAL BENEFITS

Veterans and Connecticut National Guard members who are eligible for State of Connecticut and/or Veterans Administration Education Benefits must see the Financial Aid Office each semester in order to be certified for their entitlement. Educational assistance is available from the Veterans Administration under the following programs:

- Chapter 30The Montgomery GI Bill
- Chapter 31 Veterans Vocational Rehabilitation
- Chapter 33 Post 9/11 GI Bill
- Chapter 35 Survivors and Dependents Education
- Chapter 1606 Selected Reserve Program
- Chapter 1607 (REAP) for Reserves and Guard members activated after 9/11/2001.

For returning active duty, National Guard and Reserve Service members, visit the Department of Veterans Affairs website at www.gibill.va.gov for specific information regarding VA Education Programs. To apply for educational benefits, use the "Apply for Benefits" tab or call the toll-free telephone number 888.442.4551 to reach an Educational Case Manager.

#### **Connecticut Veterans Tuition Waivers**

State statutes provide that tuition at Connecticut public colleges and universities may be waived for:

- any Connecticut resident who is a dependent child or a surviving spouse of a member of the Armed Forces killed in action on or after September 11, 2001 who was a Connecticut resident; and
- state residents who are dependent children of a person whom the Armed Forces has declared to be either missing in action or a prisoner of war while serving in the Armed Forces after January 1, 1960.

College costs other than tuition - such as for books, student activity and course fees, parking and room and board - are not waived. When applying for admission or registering for courses, bring a copy of your separation paper (Form DD-214). Waivers may be reduced by the amount of education reimbursement you may receive from your employer.

Tuition Waivers are for credit courses during the Spring and Fall semesters ONLY and are not provided for Summer Session, Winter Intersession, or Continuing Education/Credit-Free Courses.

#### **How to Qualify**

To be eligible at a public college or university, veterans must:

- be honorably discharged or released under honorable conditions from active service in the U.S.
   Armed Forces (U.S. Army, Navy, Marine Corps, Air Force and Coast Guard). National Guard members activated under Title 10 of the United States Code are also included.
- Under PA 18-47, veterans with an other-than-honorable discharge must submit CT DVA OTH Form 1, available from the Connecticut Department of Veterans Affairs, to access state veterans benefits. This form allows veterans with an other-than-honorable discharge to show that they have a diagnosis of PTSD orTBI, or have experienced MST, as certified by a U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs healthcare provider. Veterans with Bad Conduct or Dishonorable discharges remain ineligible for most state veterans benefits, including tuition waivers. be accepted for admission at a Connecticut public college or university.
- be domiciled in Connecticut at the time of acceptance, which includes domicile for less than one year.

#### **Periods of Service**

Those who served in the following manner may qualify for benefits:

- · Active duty for at least ninety (90) days:
- World War II December 7, 1941 to December 31, 1946
- Korean Hostilities June 27, 1950 to January 31, 1955
- Vietnam February 28, 1961 to July 1, 1975
- Persian Gulf Era (August 2, 1990 a date to be determined by Presidential proclamation or federal law Operations Desert Shield and Desert Storm, Enduring Freedom (Afghanistan) and Iraqi Freedom are included in this category).

**OR**, Engaged in combat or in combat support role in the:

- Lebanon Conflict July 1, 1958 to November 1, 1958
- Peace-keeping Mission in Lebanon September 29, 1982 to March 30, 1984
- Grenada Invasion October 25, 1983 to December 15, 1983

- Operation Earnest Will July 24, 1987 to August 1, 1990
- Panama Invasion December 20, 1989 to January 31, 1990

# STUDENT GOVERNMENT AND ACTIVITIES

The following organizations form the basis for student activities at Asnuntuck. Students are encouraged to become active members of these organizations.

# STUDENT GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION

The Student Senate helps students shape decisions that affect their education and experiences while they develop leadership skills.

"Our goal as the Student Senate is to serve and represent the student body of Asnuntuck Community College. In addition, the Senate promotes good citizenship and harmonious relationships with the College community. The Senate also provides students with opportunities to participate in leadership and college governance."

The Senate helps to promote extracurricular activities, various student groups, seasonal student functions, fundraisers and improvements to the school. We also represent the student body in assorted committees, including the Curriculum and Standards Committee, the College Council, and the Asnuntuck Community College Foundation.

Members should have the drive to help and represent their fellow students, work together as a team and display the ability to be a leader on and off campus."

Students who are interested in starting a new club should organize a group of at least five additional students interested in the same club. Once the students are organized, they should contact a full-time faculty, staff or administrator about becoming their group advisor. A Club Recognition Form and Budget Request Form will need to be completed and submitted to the Student Senate. For forms and other information, please contact Sherry Paquette at 860.253.1206 or spaquette@asnuntuck.edu.

\*Clubs vary from year to year depending on student interest. Recent clubs have included:

- Business Club
- Gay-Straight Alliance
- Human Services Club

- · Origami Club
- · Poetry Club
- Veteran Society
- · Criminal Justice Fitness Club
- APAC Asnuntuck for Prevention & Change
- Robotics & Electronics Club

### **CAMPUS ACTIVITIES BOARD**

The Student Activities Club coordinates an ongoing schedule of activities for the Asnuntuck community. Committee members choose, plan and promote social activities, parties, concerts, etc. The Activities Committee welcomes participation, new members, and ideas. If you are interested in joining, please contact Sherry Paquette at 860.253.1206 or spaquette@asnuntuck.edu.

### STUDENT ID CARDS

The Information Center provides photo ID services for the College during its regularly scheduled hours. Students are required to obtain their ID card at the time of admission. Continuing students can obtain an ID verification sticker at the Information Center. ID cards will be needed to use school computers, to obtain a copy of their schedule, and to attend activities on campus. Students are required to wear their ID cards in a visible location while on campus and present them for identification when requested by a faculty/staff member or security guard. The College will provide a lanyard/clip for students to use to display their ID.

## PHITHETA KAPPA -HONOR SOCIETY

Phi Theta Kappa is a national honor society for community college students. The society recognizes those students who have achieved academic excellence. Membership provides opportunities for leadership, involvement in college and community service, and stimulation for continuing academic excellence. For more information, contact Michelle Coach at 860.253.3141 or Heather D'Orlando at 860.253.3103

# CHILDREN'S READING ROOM/CO-OP CHILD CARE

The Children's Reading Room is a cooperative childcare service offered to registered students, staff & faculty at Asnuntuck Community College.

Established in 1974, the Children's Reading Room remains a unique service exclusive to Asnuntuck. The Children's Reading Room (CRR) functions on a cooperative basis where each parent is required to volunteer two hours per week regardless of how much time they utilize the service or their child during the week.

Parents can leave their child while they attend classes, do research, computer work, study, do homework, or any other educational needs **while on campus**. The Student Government funds the CRR, which is the reason we can offer this "priceless" service.

In a safe and encouraging environment, children registered for the CRR develop school readiness skills. With the use of developmentally age appropriate activities, children acquire social, motor and literacy skills along with executive function competencies.

The CRR is open to children 3 years and older. **All children must be pre-registered** with proof of immunization and birth certificate required.

For more information or to register your child contact 860.253.3040

# Academic Departments and Support

The Asnuntuck Community College faculty are committed to their disciplines, and committed to the community college student. Our faculty hold advanced degrees in their disciplines, and many are actively involved in publishing, community projects, research and consulting work for the betterment of the community at large. The faculty are organized under a three-tier Academic Department structure. The chart below represents the full-time faculty assigned to each Academic Department:

## DEPARTMENT OF SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY, ENGINEERING, ART & MATH (STEAM)

Department Chair: Michael Demers

Full-time Faculty:

Amely Cross Tawana Jewell Eric Mosher MaryBeth Rajczewski

CherylTurgeon Arben Zeqiraj

**Degree Programs:** Liberal Arts-Fine Arts Option, Engineering Science, and all related certificates.

#### **DEPARTMENT OF LIBERAL ARTS**

Department Chair: Fred Stefanowicz

Full-time Faculty:

Joseph Berenguel Laurie Chancey
Heather D'Orlando Joe Finckel
Michaela Mullarkey John Sheirer
Marilynn Turner Elle Van Dermark

**Degree Programs:** General Studies, Liberal Arts, LAS-UConn Psychology Plan of Study, and all related certificates.

#### **DEPARTMENT OF CAREERS**

Department Chair: Carol LaLiberte

Full-time Faculty:

Robert Brown Heidi Fitzgerald
Michelle Howard-Swan Sam Irizarry
Brian Kenny Nick Lefakis
Kobie Stewart Jim Wilkinson

**Degree Programs:** Accounting, Business administration, Communications, Criminal Justice, Early Childhood Education, Human Services, Registered Medical Assisting, and all related certificates.

#### **DEPARTMENT OF ADVANCED MANUFACTURING**

Department Chair: Mary Bidwell

Business & Industry Instructors

Muhammed Awais Stan Kochanek Michael Lombardi Robert Vaida

**Degree Programs**: Technology Studies, Welding, Electronics Controls, Electro-Mechanical Maintenance, and all related certificates.

Academic support is provided by the Academic Tutoring Center, the Library, and the Educational Technology office located in the Teaching and Learning Center. The Centers offer tutorial supports, informational literacy education, and training and access to the many different technology and media that enhance learning. The College has ample on-campus computer facilities, updated science labs, and the latest in teaching technology and distance learning opportunities.

Asnuntuck is the only community college of the Connecticut College System with its own radio station, WACC-107.7 FM. Students enjoy the experiential learning opportunities involved in creating and presenting on-air programming.

Asnuntuck Community College's eight foundational Learning Competencies provide the educational standards for a graduate of Asnuntuck. They are:

- 1. Critical/analytical thinking
- 2. Quantitative reasoning
- 3. Technological literacy
- 4. Information literacy
- 5. Communication (both written and oral)
- 6. Understanding of the values of responsible citizenship
- 7. Appreciation of other cultures
- 8. Knowledge of the methods and goals of inquiry in the arts, humanities, social sciences, and natural and physical sciences

#### **LIBRARY**

The Library supports teaching and learning at ACC by providing access to print, multimedia, and online resources. Through interlibrary loan services, the Library provides access to materials from academic and public libraries throughout the state and beyond. The Library maintains a small collection of textbooks and other materials that faculty have donated to help support classroom instruction.

The Library also offers access to a variety of online academic databases which contain magazine and journal articles, newspapers, and electronic books. These e-resources are available to students both on campus and remotely.

The Library staff provides a full range of services to support student learning, including: research assistance (in person and online), information literacy instruction (individual and classroom), interdepartmental outreach, and adaptive technological support.

The Library has comfortable seating, individual and group study tables, computers, and a magazine and newspaper reading area. The Homework Lab, equipped with PCs, Macs, and a scanner, is located on the south wall. The Academic Tutoring Center is also housed in the Library.

# ACADEMIC TUTORING CENTER

The Academic Tutoring Center helps Asnuntuck students achieve their educational goals through a variety of services including one-on-one and small group tutoring, online tutoring, and computer-assisted instruction. Traditional and online tutoring is available in mathematics and statistics, accounting, English/writing, computer information systems, and science. Registered students are welcome to use the computers with printing capability in the Academic Tutoring Center.

The Academic Tutoring Center is located in Room 119 (inside the Library) and is open six days a week for tutoring and computer use. For further information, call 860.253.3164 or 860.253.3175.

# TEACHING AND LEARNING CENTER

The Teaching and Learning Center offers a communal space that promotes a culture of excellence in teaching and learning by facilitating professional development activities. The goal of the center is to enhance teaching techniques, promote best practices, and support innovation to accommodate current and evolving pedagogies. The center is located in Room 113 and also houses the office of the Director of Educational Technology.

### **COMPUTER LABS**

Asnuntuck Community College maintains modern computing facilities equipped with the latest hardware and software in support of instructional programs, students, faculty, staff and administration. The College's instructional computing facilities, which include several full service labs and other labs that support specific programs, are networked using the latest network hardware and software. Students, faculty, staff and administrators are able to access the Internet through the campus network. A Homework Lab is located in the Library and a mini-lab is located in the Academic Tutoring Center.

## RADIO STATION (WACC)

1 107.7 FM, WACC began broadcasting in January 2003 with 100 watts. The station reaches all of Enfield and surrounding communities. Students, faculty and staff all have the opportunity to participate in the operation of WACC. WACC operates 24 hours a day through an "automation system" (technology used at professional radio stations throughout the country). This allows students to produce their shows in advance and broadcast them at any time of the day or night. WACC has state-of-the-art digital audio production

facilities. Over a dozen networked workstations allow students to produce public service announcements, sweepers, radio ID's and other materials for on-air broadcast and class projects. For more information, contact Robert Brown at 860.253.3124

#### WACC RADIO STATION MISSION STATEMENT

WACC, 107.7 FM, is a noncommercial radio station providing educational, informational, and entertainment programming for Asnuntuck Community College and its surrounding communities and beyond on the Internet. The station's primary purpose is to serve as a communications lab, engaging students and volunteers in audio production, programming, and distribution for listeners in the College's service area.

#### **BOOKSTORE**

The bookstore is open throughout the year to provide textbooks, reference materials, software at educational discount prices and course supplies. Also available are college imprinted clothing and gifts, and snacks. Text buy-back services and special ordering are done daily. Phone: 860.253.3186, Fax: 860.741.6797.

# Workforce Development & Continuing Education

The Office of Workforce Development and Continuing Education provides opportunities for lifelong learning for residents of the College's service area. The office works with other areas of the College, with business and industry, and with community organizations to identify needs and to provide educational programs to meet those needs.

Programs and services include credit and non-credit courses and workshops, customized training for area businesses, workforce training and retraining programs, a number of Allied Health Certification programs, and other programs to enhance local economic development efforts. For more information please contact 860.253.3034 or 860.253.3066.

# ADVANCED MANUFACTURING TECHNOLOGY CENTER

The Advanced Manufacturing Technology Center at Asnuntuck provides students with a related theory and technology education through application, with state-of-the art equipment, in order to produce a related career employment. The Center specializes in machining with CNC, welding, robotics, electronics and many more areas to help you start your career. Ninety percent of our students have been placed into a job immediately following completion of a certificate/degree in Advanced Manufacturing. Students can complete a certificate/degree with very little out-of-pocket expense as financial aid and scholarships are available to qualified candidates. For more information, please call 860.253.3189.

# **BUSINESS & INDUSTRY DIVISION**

Asnuntuck Community College has developed proven workforce solutions to boost your employees' productivity and morale and your company's profitability.

Our highly customized training and support services address a full spectrum of workforce needs from entry level to managerial positions. Our instructors are highly trained professionals who bring their real-world experience into the classroom.

We can educate your employees on many common issues in the workplace, including individual and organizational productivity, supervisory techniques, office skills, and specialized trade needs, among others.

We know you're busy, so we will work around your schedule to ensure you and your employees have adequate time for this essential training. You can visit our campus in Enfield, Connecticut, or our instructors will provide customized training at your work site.

Choose to hold your classes during the day, evening or on the weekend. Online training options are available as well. For more information, please call 860.253.3128.

# Rules and Regulations

# I. STUDENT CODE OF CONDUCT

#### **Preamble**

Academic institutions exist for the transmission of knowledge, the pursuit of truth, the development of students, and the general well-being of society. In line with this purpose, the Board of Regents for Higher Education (BOR) in conjunction with the Connecticut State Colleges and Universities (CSCU) has the duty to protect the freedoms of inquiry and expression, and furthermore, has the responsibility to encourage all of its members to develop the capacity for critical judgment in their sustained and independent search for truth.

CSCU has certain self-defined institutional values. Principal among these values is respect for the safety, dignity, rights, and individuality of each member of the CSCU Community. The opportunity to live, study, and work in an institution which values diverse intellectual and cultural perspectives and encourages discussion and debate about competing ideas in an atmosphere of civility is a basic component of quality higher education.

All members of CSCU must at all times govern their social and academic interactions with tolerance and mutual respect so that the students who pass through a CSCU door are enriched by these experiences and are prepared for full and enlightened participation in a multi-cultural society. Because of the BOR's and CSCU's commitment to principles of pluralism, mutual respect, and civility, certain activities are not acceptable on CSCU campuses. Acts of intolerance, of hatred or violence based on race, religion, sexual orientation or expression, disability, gender, age, or ethnic background are antithetical to the BOR's and CSCU's fundamental principles and values. It is the BOR's and CSCU's responsibility to protect our students' right to learn by establishing an environment of civility.

The disciplinary process is intended to be part of the educational mission of CSCU. Student disciplinary proceedings are not criminal proceedings and are not subject to court rules of procedure and evidence.

#### Introduction

This Student Code of Conduct (hereinafter the "Student Code" or "Code") is intended to present a clear statement of student rights and responsibilities established by the Board of Regents for Higher Education. The BOR has charged the President of the Board of Regents for Higher Education with developing procedures to protect those rights and to address the abdication of responsibilities in collaboration with the four State Universities, the twelve Community Colleges and Charter Oak State College. The Student Code describes the types of acts that are not acceptable in an academic community.

Disclaimer: This Code is neither a contract nor an offer of a contract between any BOR governed institution and any student. The provisions of this Code are subject to revision at any time.

#### **Part A: Definitions**

The following list of defined terms utilized throughout this Student Code is provided in an effort to facilitate a more thorough understanding of the Code. This list is not intended to be a complete list of all the terms referenced in the Student Code that might require interpretation or clarification. The Vice President for Student Affairs at a University, the Dean of Students at a Community College, the Provost at Charter Oak State College or their designee shall make the final decision of the interpretation of the definition of any term found in the Student Code. For purposes of interpretation and application of the Student Code only, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

- "Accused Student" means any student accused of violating this Student Code.
- 2. "Advisor" means a person who accompanies an Accused Student or an alleged victim to a hearing (or a proceeding pertaining to a report of sexual violence) for the limited purpose of providing advice and guidance to the student. An advisor may not directly address the Hearing Body, question witnesses, or otherwise actively participate in the hearing process (or other proceeding pertaining to a report of sexual violence).
- 3. "Appellate Body" means any person or persons authorized by the University Vice President for Student Affairs, Community College Dean of Students, Charter Oak State College Provost or their designee to consider an appeal from a determination by a Hearing Body that a student has violated the Student Code.
- "Calendar Days" means the weekdays (Mondays through Fridays) when the University or College is open.
- 5. "College" means either collectively or singularly any of the following institutions: Asnuntuck Community College, Capital Community College, Gateway Community College, Housatonic Community College, Manchester Community College, Middlesex Community College, Naugatuck Valley Community College, Northwestern Connecticut Community College, Norwalk Community College, Quinebaug Valley Community College, Three Rivers Community College, Tunxis Community College, and Charter Oak State College.
- 6. "Complainant(s)" means the person(s) who initiates a complaint by alleging that a Student(s) violated the code.

- "CSCU" means either collectively or singularly, any of the following institutions: Central Connecticut State University, Eastern Connecticut State University, Southern Connecticut State University, Western Connecticut State University; Asnuntuck Community College, Capital Community College, Gateway Community College, Housatonic Community College, Manchester Community College, Middlesex Community College, Naugatuck Valley Community College, Northwestern Connecticut Community College, Norwalk Community College, Quinebaug Valley Community College, Three Rivers Community College, Tunxis Community College, and Charter Oak State College.
- "CSCU Affiliates" means individuals and/or entities with whom or with which the College or University has a contractual relationship.
- "CSCU Official" means any person employed by the College or University to perform assigned administrative, instructional, or professional responsibilities.
- 10. "CSCU Premises" means all land, buildings, facilities, and other property in the possession of, or owned, used, and/or controlled by, the University or College, either solely or in conjunction with another entity.
- 11. "Disciplinary Officer" or "Conduct Administrator" means a University, College or CSCU official who is authorized to determine the appropriate resolution of an alleged violation of the Code, and/or to impose sanctions or affect other remedies as appropriate. Subject to the provisions of this Code, a disciplinary officer or conduct administrator is vested with the authority to, among other duties: investigate a complaint of an alleged violation of the Code, decline to pursue a complaint, refer identified disputants to mediation or other appropriate avenues of resolution, establish charges against a student, enter into an administrative agreement developed with an Accused Student in accordance with Section II-B-3 of this Code, advise a Hearing Body, and present the case before the Hearing
- 12. "Hearing Body" or "Hearing Panel" means any person or persons authorized by the University Vice President for Student Affairs, Community College Dean of Students or Charter Oak State College Provost to determine whether a student has violated the Code and to impose sanctions as warranted, including a hearing officer or hearing board."Institution" means the University or College within CSCU.
- 13. "Institution" means the University or College within CSCU.
- 14. "Instructor" means any faculty member, teaching assistant or any other person authorized by the

- University to provide educational services, including, but not limited to, teaching, research, and academic advising.
- 15. "Member of the CSCU Community" means any person who is a student, an official or any other person who works for CSCU, either directly or indirectly (e.g., for a private enterprise doing business on a CSCU campus).
- 16. "Policy" means the written regulations, standards, and student conduct expectations adopted by the BOR and found in, but not limited to, the Student Handbook, the Residence Life Handbook, the housing contract, the graduate and undergraduate catalogs, and other publicized University and College notices.
- 17. "Prohibited Conduct" means the conduct prohibited by this Code, as more particularly described in Part I-D of this Code.
- 18. "Reporting Party" means any person who alleges that a student has violated this Code.
- 19. "Student" means either (1) any person admitted, registered, enrolled or attending any CSCU course or CSCU conducted program, whether full-time or part- time, and whether pursuing undergraduate, graduate or professional studies, or continuing education; (2) any person who is not officially enrolled for a particular term but who has a continuing relationship with a CSCU; or (3) any person within two calendar years after the conclusion of their last registered Community College course unless the student has formally withdrawn, graduated or been expelled from the College.
- 20. "Student Code" or "Code" means this Student Code of Conduct.
- "Student Organization" means an association or group of persons that have complied with the formal requirements for University or College recognition.
- 22. "Support Person" means a person, who accompanies an Accused Student, a Reporting Party or a victim to a hearing for the limited purpose of providing support and guidance. A support person may not directly address the Hearing Body, question witnesses, or otherwise actively participate in the hearing process.
- 23. "Shall" and "will" are used in the imperative sense.
- 24. "University" means any of the following institutions: Central Connecticut State University, Eastern Connecticut State University, Southern Connecticut State University, and Western Connecticut State University, whichever the alleged violation of the Code occurred. "Shall" and "will" are used in the imperative sense.
- 25. "May" is used in the permissive sense.

## Part B: Application, Distribution, and Administration of the Student Code of Conduct

Application of the Student Code: The Student Code shall apply to the four Connecticut State Universities, the twelve Community Colleges, and the online college: Central Connecticut State University, Eastern Connecticut State University, Southern Connecticut State University, Western Connecticut State University; Asnuntuck Community College, Capital Community College, Gateway Community College, Housatonic Community College, Manchester Community College, Middlesex Community College, Naugatuck Valley Community College, Northwestern Connecticut Community College, Norwalk Community College, Quinebaug Valley Community College, Three Rivers Community College, Tunxis Community College, and Charter Oak State College. An alleged violation of the Student Code shall be addressed in accordance with the Code of Conduct, even if the accused Student has withdrawn from the Institution prior to the completion of the disciplinary procedures.

The Student Code shall apply to Students and to University Student Organizations. The term "student" shall generally apply to the student as an individual and to a Student Organization as a single entity. The officers or leaders of a particular Student Organization usually will be expected to represent the organization during the disciplinary process. Nothing in this Student Code shall preclude holding certain members of a Student Organization accountable for their individual acts committed in the context of or in association with the organization's alleged violation of this Code.

- Distribution of the Student Code: The Student Code shall be made readily available electronically and/ or in a printed publication to students, faculty and staff. The office responsible for Student Affairs will annually distribute and make available to students, faculty and staff, electronically and/or in a printed publication, any revisions to the Code.
- 3. Administration of the Student Code: A University's and Charter Oak State College's Provost or a Community College's Dean of Students shall be the person designated by the institution President to be responsible for the administration of the Academic Misconduct portion of the Student Code. A University's Vice President for Student Affairs, a Community College's Dean of Students, or Charter Oak State College's Provost shall be the person designated by the institution President to be responsible for the administration of the Non-Academic Misconduct portion of the Student Code.

#### Part C: Scope of Authority

A Student who is found responsible for engaging in conduct that violates the Student Code on any CSCU campus or on property controlled by the BOR or by any CSCU Affiliate or any CSCU sponsored function or event shall be subject to the sanctions described in this Code. The Student Code of Conduct also applies to online activities, where applicable. Students who attempt to engage in conduct that violates this Code, who knowingly encourage, aid or assist another person in engaging in such conduct, or who agree with another person, explicitly or otherwise, to engage in such conduct, may also be subject to disciplinary action.

Off-campus misconduct by University students may be subject to the jurisdiction of the University and addressed through its disciplinary procedures if one of the following conditions is met: (i) a Student engages in prohibited conduct at an official University event, at a University-sanctioned event, or at an event sponsored by a recognized University Student Organization; or (ii) a Student engages in prohibited conduct under such circumstances that reasonable grounds exist for believing that the Accused Student poses a threat to the life, health or safety of any member of the CSCU or to the property of the CSCU.

Community College students' conduct is subject to the Code on campus and off campus whenever such conduct impairs College-related activities or affairs of another member of the College community or creates a risk of harm to a member or members of the College community. Students must be aware that, as citizens, they are subject to all federal and state laws in addition to all CSCU regulations governing student conduct and responsibilities. Students do not relinquish their rights nor do they shed their responsibilities as citizens by becoming members of the CSCU Community. However, where a court of law has found a student to have violated the law, an institution has the right to impose the sanctions of this Code even though the conduct does not impair institution-related activities of another member of the university or college community and does not create a risk of harm to the college or university community. The decision to exercise this right will be in the sole discretion of the President of the impacted institution or his/her designee.

Charter Oak State College applies this Code to matriculated and non-matriculated students, including those participating in portfolio assessment, credential evaluation, testing, or contract learning. Jurisdiction shall be limited to student conduct that occurs while students are taking Charter Oak State College courses or availing themselves of Charter Oak State College services. However, if a matriculated Charter Oak State College student is found guilty of student misconduct at another institution, including but not limited to misrepresentation of records from other institutions, the student may be subject to disciplinary action at Charter Oak State College.

#### **Part D: Prohibited Conduct**

The following list of behaviors is intended to represent the types of acts that constitute violations of this Code.

- I. Academic misconduct, which includes, but is not limited to, plagiarism and all forms of cheating.
- Plagiarism is defined as the submission of work by a student for academic credit as one's own work of authorship which contains work of another author without appropriate attribution.
- Cheating includes, but is not limited to: (i) use of any unauthorized assistance in taking quizzes, tests or examinations; (ii) use of sources beyond those authorized by the instructor in writing papers, preparing reports, solving problems or carrying out other assignments; (iii) the acquisition, without permission, of tests or other academic material belonging to a member of the University faculty or staff; and (iv) engaging in any other behavior specifically prohibited by a faculty member in the course syllabus.
- 2. Acts of dishonesty, including but not limited to the following:
  - Misuse of University or College documents, including, but not limited to forging, transferring, altering or otherwise misusing a student fee card, student payroll card, identification card or other College or University identification document, course registration document, schedule card, transcript, or any other institution-issued document or record.
  - Knowingly furnishing false information to any CSCU Official, faculty member or office.
- Theft of property or services, or damage to, defacement or destruction of, or tampering with, real or personal property owned by the State of Connecticut, CSCU/BOR, the institution, or any member of the CSCU Community.
- 4. Actual or threatened physical assault or abuse, threatening behavior, intimidation, or coercion.
- Sexual misconduct may include engaging in one or more behaviors:
  - a. Sexual harassment, which can include any unwelcome sexual advance or request for sexual favors, or any conduct of a sexual nature when submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an individual's education; submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as a basis for academic decisions affecting the individual; or such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with an individual's academic performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive educational environment. Examples of conduct which may constitute sexual harassment include but are not limited to:

- sexual flirtation, touching, advances or propositions:
- · verbal abuse of a sexual nature;
- · pressure to engage in sexual activity;
- graphic or suggestive comments about an individual's dress or appearance;
- use of sexually degrading words to describe an individual;
- display of sexually suggestive objects, pictures or photographs;
- sexual jokes;
- · stereotypic comments based upon gender;
- threats, demands or suggestions that retention of one's educational status is contingent upon toleration of or acquiescence in sexual advances.
  - b. Sexual assault shall include but is not limited to a sexual act directed against another person when that person is not capable of giving consent, which shall mean the voluntary agreement by a person in the possession and exercise of sufficient mental capacity to make a deliberate choice to do something proposed by another.

A person who initially consents to sexual activity shall be deemed not to have consented to any such activity which occurs after that consent is withdrawn. Consent cannot be assumed because there is no physical resistance or other negative response. A lack of consent may result from mental incapacity (e.g., ingestion of alcohol or drugs which significantly impair awareness or judgment) or physical incapacity (e.g., the person is unconscious or otherwise unable to communicate consent). Consent must be affirmative. (See Sexual Misconduct Reporting, Support Services and Processes Policy).

Sexual assault is further defined in sections 53a-70, 53a-70a, 53a-70b, 53a-71, 53a-72a, 53a-72b and 53a-73a of the Connecticut General Statutes.

- c. Sexual exploitation occurs when a person takes non-consensual or abusive sexual advantage of another for anyone's advantage or benefit other than the person being exploited, and that behavior does not otherwise constitute one of the preceding sexual misconduct offenses. Examples of behavior that could rise to the level of sexual exploitation include:
- · Prostituting another person;
- Non-consensual visual (e.g., video, photograph) or audio-recording of sexual activity;
- Non-consensual distribution of photos, other images, or information of an individual's sexual activity, intimate body parts, or nakedness, with the in-

- tent to or having the effect of embarrassing an individual who is the subject of such images or information;
- Going beyond the bounds of consent (such as letting your friends hide in the closet to watch you having consensual sex);
- · Engaging in non-consensual voyeurism;
- Knowingly transmitting an STI, such as HIV, to another without disclosing your STI status;
- Exposing one's genitals in non-consensual circumstances, or inducing another to expose his or her genitals; or
- Possessing, distributing, viewing or forcing others to view illegal pornography.
- 6. Intimate partner violence is defined as:
  - Including intimate partner violence, which is any
    physical or sexual harm against an individual by a
    current or former spouse or by a partner in a dating
    relationship that results from (1) sexual assault, as
    defined in section 5 above; (2) sexual assault in a
    spousal or cohabiting relationship; (3) domestic
    violence; (4) sexual harassment, as defined in section 5 above; or (5) sexual exploitation, as defined
    in section 5 above.
  - Physical abuse, which can include but is not limited to, slapping, pulling hair or punching.
  - Threat of abuse, which can include but is not limited to, threatening to hit, harm or use a weapon on another (whether victim or acquaintance, friend or family member of the victim) or other forms of verbal threat.
  - Emotional abuse, which can include but is not limited to, damage to one's property, driving recklessly to scare someone, name calling, threatening to hurt one's family members or pets and humiliating another person.
- Violations of privacy, including, but not limited to, voyeurism and the use of web-based, electronic or other devices to make a photographic, audio or video record of any person without his or her express consent, when such a recording is intended or likely to cause injury or distress. This includes, but is not limited to: (i) surreptitiously taking pictures or videos of another person in spaces such as sleeping areas, bathrooms, gymnasiums, locker rooms, and changing areas; and (ii) sexually exploiting another person by electronically recording or permitting others to view or electronically record, consensual sexual activity without a partner's knowledge or permitting others to view or listen to such video or audio tapes without a partner's knowledge and consent. Publicizing or threatening to publicize such records will also be considered a violation of this Code.
- 8. Hazing, which is defined as an act which endangers the mental or physical health or safety of a Student,

- or which destroys, damages, or removes public or private property for the purpose of initiation or admission into, affiliation with or as a condition for continued membership in a group or organization. The express or implied consent of the victim will not be a defense to an allegation of hazing. Consenting to the activity by remaining silent or not objecting in the presence of hazing is not a neutral act and is also a violation of this Student Code.
- 9. Stalking, which is defined as repeatedly contacting another person when:
  - The contacting person knows or should know that the contact is unwanted by the other person; and
  - The contact causes the other person reasonable apprehension of imminent physical harm or the contacting person knows or should know that the contact causes substantial impairment of the other person's ability to perform the activities of daily life.

As used in this definition, the term "contacting" includes, but is not limited to, communicating with (including internet communication via e-mail, instant message, online community or any other Internet communication) or remaining in the physical presence of the other person.

- 10. Harassment, which is defined as conduct which is abusive or which interferes with a person's pursuit of his or her customary or usual affairs, including, but not limited to, such conduct when directed toward an individual or group because of race, ethnicity, ancestry, national origin, religion, gender, sexual orientation or expression, age, physical attribute, or physical or mental disability or disorder, including learning disabilities and mental retardation.
- 11. Conduct that is disorderly, lewd or indecent (including, but not limited to, public nudity and sexual activity in areas generally open to members of the campus community), breach of peace or aiding, abetting or procuring another person to breach the peace on CSCU premises or at functions sponsored by, or affiliated with the University or College.
- 12. Behavior or activity which endangers the health, safety, or well-being of oneself or others.
- 13. Offensive or disorderly conduct which causes interference, annoyance or alarm or recklessly creates a risk thereof at CSCU or CSCU premises, CSCU web or social media sites, at a CSCU-sponsored activity or in college or university courses, including cyber bullying. This offense does not apply to speech or other forms of constitutionally protected expression.
- 14. Unauthorized possession, duplication or use of keys (including, but not limited to, card access, card keys, fobs, etc.) to any CSCU premises or forcible

- and/or unauthorized entry on or into CSCU premises.
- Starting fires, causing explosions, falsely reporting the presence of fire, bombs, incendiary or explosive devices, or falsely reporting an emergency.
- 16. Unauthorized or improper possession, use, removal, tampering or disabling of fire and/or safety equipment and warning devices, failure to follow standard fire and/or emergency safety procedures, or interference with firefighting or emergency response equipment or personnel.
- 17. Use, possession, purchase, sale or distribution of acoholic beverages, except as expressly permitted by law and CSCU regulations. Alcoholic beverages may not, under any circumstances, be used by, possessed by, or distributed to any person under twenty-one (21) years of age.
- 18. Use, possession, purchase, sale, distribution or manufacturing of narcotics, controlled substances and/or drugs, including, but not limited to, marijuana and heroin, or drug paraphernalia, except as expressly permitted by law.
- 19. Use, possession or distribution of firearms, ammunition for firearms, other weapons or dangerous instruments, facsimiles of weapons or firearms, fireworks, explosives or dangerous chemicals. A dangerous instrument is any instrument, article or substance that, under the circumstances in which it is being utilized, is capable of causing death or serious physical injury. The possession of a deadly weapon or dangerous instrument on campus is strictly prohibited, even if such item is legally owned.
- Gambling, including, but not limited to, promoting, wagering, receiving monies for wagering or gambling for money or property on CSCU premises.
- 21. Disruption or obstruction of any College or University function, activity or event, whether it occurs on or off the campus, or of any non-University or College function, activity or event which is authorized by the institution to occur on its premises.
- 22. Intentional obstruction of the free flow of pedestrian or vehicular traffic on CSCU premises or at University or College-sponsored or supervised functions or interference with entry into or exit from CSCU premises or with the free movement of any person.
- 23. Failure to comply with the directions of CSCU officials or law enforcement officers acting in the performance of their duties and/or failure to identify oneself to these persons when requested to do so.
- 24. Conduct that violates published BOR/CSCU policies, rules, and regulations, including, but not limited to, residence hall rules and regulations.

- 25. Conduct prohibited by any federal, state, and/or local law, regulation or ordinance.
- Unauthorized use of CSCU property or the property of members of the CSCU Community or of CSCU Affiliates.
- 27. Theft, unauthorized use, or abuse of University or College computers and/or peripheral systems and networks, including, but not limited to:
  - Unauthorized access to CSCU computer programs or files;
  - b. Unauthorized alteration, transfer or duplication of CSCU computer programs or files;
  - c. Unauthorized use of another individual's identification and/or password;
  - d. Deliberate disruption of the operation of CSCU computer systems and networks;
  - Use of the institution's computing facilities and resources in violation of copyright laws (including unauthorized peer-to-peer file sharing of copyrighted material, including, but not limited to, copyrighted music, movies, and software);
  - f. Use of computing facilities and resources to send obscene messages (which are defined as messages which appeal mainly to a prurient, shameful or morbid interest in nudity, sex, excretion, sadism or masochism, go well beyond customary limits of candor in describing or representing such matters, and are utterly without redeeming social value); and
  - g. Violation of the BOR Policy Statement on Acceptable and responsible use of Information Technology resources and/or any applicable BOR computer use policy.
- 28. Abuse of the CSCU conduct and disciplinary system, including but not limited to:
  - Failure to obey the notice from a Hearing Body or CSCU Official to appear for a meeting or hearing as part of the Student Conduct system;
  - Falsification, distortion, or intentional misrepresentation of information to a Disciplinary Officer or Conduct Administrator, or before a Hearing Body;
  - Initiation of a conduct or disciplinary proceeding knowingly without cause;
  - d. Disruption or interference with the orderly conduct of a disciplinary proceeding;
  - e. Attempting to discourage an individual's proper participation in, or use of, the disciplinary system;
  - Attempting to influence the impartiality of a Disciplinary Officer, Conduct Administrator or member of a Hearing Body prior to, and/or dur-

- ing the course of, the disciplinary proceeding;
- g. Harassment (verbal or physical) and/or intimidation of a Disciplinary Officer, Conduct Administrator, or member of a Hearing Body prior to, and/or during the course of the disciplinary proceeding;
- h. Failure to comply with the sanction(s) imposed under the Student Code; and
- Influencing or attempting to influence another person to commit an abuse of the disciplinary system.

# Part E: Hearing Procedures for Sexual Misconduct, Sexual Intimate Partner, and Domestic Violence Cases

The Title IX Coordinator can assist in explaining the student conduct process. In addition to disciplinary procedures applicable to Community College students in Section III, for any hearing conducted involving allegations of sexual misconduct, the accuser and the accused student shall each have the following rights:

- At any meeting or proceeding, both the reported victim and accused student may be accompanied by an advisor or support person of the student's choice provided the advisor or support person does not cause a scheduled meeting or hearing to be delayed or postponed and provided an advisor or support person may not directly address the Hearing Body, question witnesses, or otherwise actively participate in the hearing process (or other proceeding or pertaining to a report of sexual misconduct);
- The reported victim of sexual misconduct is entitled to request that an investigation or disciplinary proceedings begin promptly;
- Any hearing regarding an accusation of sexual misconduct shall
  - (i) be fair, prompt and impartial;
  - (ii) be conducted by a Hearing Body annually trained in issues relating to sexual misconduct
  - (iii) use the preponderance of evidence (more likely than not ) standard;
  - (iv) shall allow both the accused student and reported victim the opportunity to present evidence and witnesses on their behalf during any disciplinary proceeding; and
  - (v) shall provide both the accused student and the reported victim with equal access to any information that will be used during meetings and hearings; and
  - (vi) invoke the standard of "affirmative consent<sup>1"</sup> in determining whether consent to engage in sexual activity was given by all persons who engaged in sexual activity.
- 4. In accordance with the Family Educational Rights

- and Privacy Act (FERPA), the accused student and the reported victim have the right to keep their identities confidential;
- 5. Any reported victim shall be provided written notice of the decision of the Hearing Body at the same time as the accused student, normally within one (1) business day after the conclusion of the Hearing. In accordance with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) the notice to any reported victim of sexual misconduct shall contain only the following: the name of the accused student, the violation committed, if any, and any sanction imposed against the accused student.
- 6. The reported victim shall have the same right to request a review of the decision of the Hearing Body (appeal rights) in the same manner and on the same basis as shall the accused student; however, if a request for review by a reported victim is determined to be properly made and if the review determines there is sufficient grounds for altering the decision of the Hearing Body, among the other actions that may be taken as set forth above, the sanction of the hearing may also be increased. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in any hearing pertaining to sexual misconduct both the reported victim and the accused student are entitled to be simultaneously provided notice of any change in the results of the hearing prior to the time when the results become final as well as to be notified when such results become final.

<sup>1</sup>The standard of "Affirmative Consent" is set forth in the BOR Sexual Misconduct Reporting, Support Services and Processes Policy and is incorporated herein by reference.

#### Part F: Conduct and Disciplinary Records

The written decision resulting from an administrative conference or a hearing under this Code shall become part of the student's educational record and shall be subject to the provisions of the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA). A student's disciplinary record shall be maintained separately from any other academic or official file maintained by the institution. Disciplinary records will be maintained for a period of five (5) years from the date of the incident, except that the sanction of expulsion shall be noted permanently.

While student education records are generally protected from disclosure by FERPA, there are a number of exceptions to this rule. Students should be aware that a record concerning his/her behavior while a student at the College or University may be shared with other colleges or universities to which the student may subsequently wish to transfer or be admitted. Similarly, prospective employers may require a student to provide access to his/her education records as part of the employment application process. A record of having been sanctioned for conduct that violates Section I.D. of the Code may disqualify a student for admission to another college or university, and may interfere with his/her selection for employment.

### Part G: Interpretation and Revision

Questions regarding the interpretation of this Code shall be referred to the University's and Charter Oak State College's Provost or a Community College's Dean of Students or their designees for the administration of the Non-Academic Misconduct portion of the Student Code and to the University's Vice President for Student Affairs, a Community College's Dean of Academic Affairs or Charter Oak State College's Provost or their designees for the administration of the Academic Misconduct portion of the Student Code.

This Code shall be reviewed and revised, if and as necessary, every five (5) years, or as directed by the President of the Board of Regents for Higher Education.

# II. CONDUCT AND DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURES APPLICABLE TO COMMUNITY COLLEGE STUDENTS

Procedures for Community College students differ from those procedures applicable to either the Universities or Charter Oak State College. This is due to the environmental, cultural and administrative differences within the types of the institutions comprising CSCU. Procedures for addressing allegations and sanctions regarding academic misconduct (as defined in Section I.D.1 above) for Community College Students as set forth in this Section III of the Code.

### **Part A: Disciplinary Procedures**

In regard to College Students, the following procedures shall govern the enforcement of the Code:

- Information that a student may have violated the Code should be submitted to the Dean of Students, Dean of Academic Affairs or other designee of the President (hereinafter referred to as "the Dean"), normally within thirty (30) calendar days of the date of a possible violation or within thirty (30) calendar days of the date that the facts constituting a possible violation were known.
- 2. Upon receipt of information relating to a possible violation, the Dean may immediately place restrictions on or suspend a student on an interim basis if, in the judgment of the Dean, the continued presence of the student at the College or continued participation in the full range of college activities poses a danger to persons or property or constitutes an ongoing threat of disrupting the academic process.
  - a. "Interim restrictions" are limitations on the Student's participation in certain College func-

- tions and activities, access to certain locations on campus or access to certain persons, that do not prevent the student from continuing to pursue his/her academic program. A student upon whom the Dean has placed interim restrictions shall be afforded written reasons for the restrictions, as well as the time period during which the interim restrictions shall apply. The decision of the Dean regarding interim restrictions shall be final.
- "Interim suspension" is the temporary separation of the Student from the college that involves the denial of all privileges, including entrance to College premises. Prior to imposing an interim suspension, the Dean shall make a good faith effort to meet with the Student. At this meeting, the Dean shall inform the Student of the information received and provide the Student an opportunity to present other information for the Dean's consideration. Based upon the information available at that time, the Dean shall determine whether the Student's continued presence on campus poses a danger to persons or property or constitutes an ongoing threat of disrupting the academic process. A Student suspended on an interim basis by the Dean shall be provided written reasons for the suspension and shall be entitled to an administrative conference or a hearing as soon as possible, normally within ten (10) calendar days from the date the interim suspension was imposed. The decision of the Dean regarding an interim suspension shall be final.
- 3. Following the imposition of interim restrictions or interim suspension, if any, the Dean shall promptly investigate the information received by meeting with individuals who may have knowledge of the matter, including the accused Student, and by reviewing all relevant documents. If upon the conclusion of the Dean's investigation, the Dean determines that there is insufficient reason to believe the Student has committed a violation of any part of Section I.D. of this Policy, the Dean shall dismiss the matter and shall so inform the Student in writing.
- 4. If upon the conclusion of the Dean's investigation, the Dean determines that there is reason to believe the Student has committed a violation of any part of Section I.D. of this Code and, after considering both the possible violation and the prior conduct record of the Student, that a sanction of less than suspension or expulsion is appropriate, the Dean shall schedule an administrative conference with the Student. The Student shall be given reasonable notice of the time and place of the conference. At the administrative conference, the Student shall have the opportunity to present information for the

Dean's consideration. At the conclusion of the administrative conference, the Dean shall determine whether it is more likely than not that the Student has violated the Policy and, if so, impose a sanction less than suspension or expulsion. The Dean shall provide the Student with a written explanation for the determination. The decision of the Dean shall be final.

- 5. If upon the conclusion of the Dean's investigation, the Dean determines that there is reason to believe the Student has committed a violation of any part of Section I.D. of this Code and, after considering both the violation and the prior conduct record of the Student, that a sanction of suspension or expulsion is appropriate, the Dean shall provide the Student with reasonable written notice of a meeting and shall inform the Student that his/her failure to attend the meeting or to respond to the notice may result in the imposition of the maximum permissible sanction. At the meeting, the Dean shall provide the Student with a written statement that shall include the following:
  - a. a concise statement of the alleged facts;
  - the provision(s) of Section I.D. that appear to have been violated;
  - c. the maximum permissible sanction; and
  - d. a statement that the student may resolve the matter by mutual agreement with the Dean, or may request a hearing by notifying the Dean in writing, which must be received by 5 p.m. on the following business day.
- 6. If the Student requests a hearing, he/she is entitled to the following:
  - to be heard within five (5) days or as soon as reasonably possible, by an impartial party or panel whose members shall be appointed by the Dean;
  - if the Dean appoints an impartial panel, to have a Student on the panel if requested by the Student;
  - c. to appear in person and to have an advisor who shall not attend as a representative of the Student. However, if there is pending at the time of the hearing a criminal matter pertaining to the same incident that is the subject of the hearing, a lawyer may be present for the sole purpose of observing the proceedings and advising the Student concerning the effect of the proceedings on the pending criminal matter;
  - d. to hear and to question the information presented;
  - e. to present information, to present witnesses, and to make a statement on his or her behalf; and

- f. to receive a written decision following the hearing.
- 7. As used herein, the term "impartial" shall mean that the individual was not a party to the incident under consideration and has no personal interest in the outcome of the proceedings. Prior to the commencement of the hearing, the student who is subject to the hearing may challenge the appointment of an impartial party or panel member on the ground that the person(s) is (are) not impartial. The challenge shall be made in writing to the Dean and shall contain the reasons for the assertion that the person(s) is (are) not impartial. The decision of the Dean shall be final.
- 8. The written decision of the impartial party or panel shall specify whether, based on the information presented, it is more likely than not that the Student committed the violation(s) reported and shall state the sanction to be imposed, if any. The written decision shall be provided to the student.
- 9. Sanctions imposed by an impartial party or panel are effective immediately. The President may, for good cause, suspend imposition of the sanctions imposed by the impartial party or panel to allow the student time to prepare a written request for review. If a written request is received, the President may continue to suspend imposition of the sanctions until he/she has reviewed and acted on the Student's request.
- 10. A written request for review of the decision of the impartial party or panel must be received by the President within three (3) calendar days after the Student is notified of the decision and must clearly identify the grounds for review. The review by the President is limited to the record of the hearing, the written request, and any supporting documentation submitted with the request by the Student. The decision of the impartial party or the panel shall be upheld unless the President finds that:
  - a violation of the procedures set forth herein significantly prejudiced the Student; and/or
  - the information presented to the impartial party or panel was not substantial enough to justify the decision; and/or
  - the sanction(s) imposed was (were) disproportionate to the seriousness of the violation.
- 11. Decisions under this procedure shall be made only by the college officials indicated.

### **Part B: Disciplinary Sanctions**

The prior conduct record of a Student shall be considered in determining the appropriate sanction for a Student who has been found to have violated any part of Section I.D. of this Code. Sanctions shall be progressive in nature; that is, more serious sanctions may be

imposed if warranted by the prior conduct record of the Student.

A "sanction" may be any action affecting the status of an individual as a Student taken by the College in response to a violation of this Policy, and for the purposes of this Section III of the Code include but are not limited to the following:

- "Expulsion" is a permanent separation from the College that involves denial of all Student privileges, including entrance to College premises;
- "Suspension" is a temporary separation from the College that involves denial of all Student privileges, including entrance to College premises for the duration of the suspension, and may include conditions for reinstatement;
- "Removal of College Privileges" involves restrictions on Student access to certain locations, functions and/or activities but does not preclude the Student from continuing to pursue his/her academic program;
- "Probation" is a status that indicates either (a) serious misconduct not warranting expulsion, suspension, or removal of College privileges, or (b) repetition of misconduct after a warning has been imposed;
- 5. A "Warning" is a written notice to the Student indicating that he or she has engaged in conduct that is in violation of Section I.D. of this Code and that any repetition of such conduct or other conduct that violates this Code is likely to result in more serious sanctions;
- "Community Restitution" requires a Student to perform a number of hours of service on the campus or in the community at large.

## 5.2.2 POLICY ON STUDENT RIGHTS

### Section 1: Rights of Students

It is the policy of the Board of Regents for Higher Education that the educational offerings of the community colleges be available to students without regard to the individual's race, color, religious creed, sex, age, national origin, ancestry, present or past history of mental disability, genetic information, marital status, mental retardation, sexual orientation, learning disability, or physical disability, including, but not limited to, blindness, or prior conviction of a crime (unless the provisions of sections 46a-60(b), 46a-80(b), or 46a-81(b) of the Connecticut General Statutes are controlling or there is a bona fide occupational qualification excluding persons in one of the above protected groups). With respect to the foregoing, discrimination on the basis of sex shall include sexual harassment as defined in Section 46a-60(8) of the Connecticut General Statutes. Further, the system will not discriminate against any

person on the grounds of political beliefs or veteran status.

Students are entitled to an atmosphere conducive to learning and to impartial treatment in all aspects of the teacher-student relationship. The student should not be forced by the authority inherent in the instructional role to make particular personal choices as to political action or his or her own part in society. Evaluation of students and the award of credit must be based on academic performance professionally judged and not on matters irrelevant to that performance, whether personality, race, religion, degree of political activism, or personal beliefs. Students are free to take reasoned exception to the data or views offered in any course of study, but they are responsible for learning the content of the course of study, as defined by official college publications.

Community college students are both citizens and members of the academic community. As citizens, they enjoy the same freedom of speech, peaceful assembly, and right of petition that other citizens enjoy, and as members of the academic community they are subject to the obligations which accrue to them by virtue of this membership.

### **Section 2: Student Grievance Procedure**

- Definition: A grievance is an allegation by a student that, as to him or her, an agent of the College has violated board or college policies relating to students other than assignment of grades or other academic evaluation (see Section 3: Review of Academic Standing).
- 2. How to file a grievance: A grievance is to be submitted in writing to the Dean of Student Services or such other college official as the President may designate (hereinafter, the Dean of Student Services), within thirty days of the date the grievant knew or reasonably should have known of the alleged violation. The written grievance shall specify the right claimed to have been violated and state briefly the underlying facts.
- Procedure for grievance resolution: The Dean of Student Services shall investigate the grievance and within thirty days from the time the grievance was submitted recommend to the President a disposition of the grievance, except as provided hereinafter.
  - a. In the course of each investigation, the Dean of Student Services shall consult with the Dean responsible for the area of college operations in which the grievance arose.
  - b. In the case of a grievance alleging discrimination based on race, color, religious creed, sex, age, national origin, ancestry, present or past history of mental disorder, marital status, mental retardation or physical disability, prior conviction of a crime, political beliefs, veteran status, or sexual preference, the Dean of Stu-

- dent Services shall consult with the College's affirmative action person during the course of the investigation.
- c. In the case of a grievance against a Dean, the grievance shall be filed with the President. The President may accept or reject the recommendation, or direct such further investigation as he or she deems appropriate. The President shall notify the student of the final disposition of the grievance within fifteen days of receiving the recommendation, except for good cause or as provided in 4., below.
- 4. Advisory Committee: The President may establish an Advisory Committee of students and staff which may be charged with the responsibility of making recommendations at either the level of the Deans or the President. The President may appoint and remove members of the committee. If an Advisory Committee is appointed, the President shall establish a reasonable time frame within which the committee must make recommendations.

### **Section 3: Review of Academic Standing**

A student may seek review of the assignment of a grade or other decision affecting academic status in accordance with the following procedure:

- The grade or academic decision affecting academic status should be discussed informally with
  the instructor or official responsible for the decision
  within fifteen calendar days of the student's awareness of the decision.
- 2. If the matter is not satisfactorily adjusted within ten calendar days of this appeal or the instructor is not available, the student may refer the matter to the Academic Dean by filing a written appeal. The appeal must be filed with the Academic Dean within thirty calendar days of the student's awareness of the decision which is being appealed.

Upon receipt of such appeal, the Dean shall meet with the instructor, if he or she is available, to determine that step 1 has taken place or is not possible and to receive relevant information from the instructor responsible for the decision. The Dean may then refer the matter to the academic supervisor for informal consideration prior to step 3 below.

 The Academic Dean or other designated official(s) shall afford review as provided below. The President may designate an official or an academic appeals committee to provide review at this step in lieu of the Academic Dean.

The student shall be afforded the right to present a statement of appeal and relevant information in support of it. It is the student's responsibility to show that the decision in question is arbitrary, i.e., without a

reasonable basis, or was made for improper reasons in violation in section 1 of this policy. The student is entitled to a written response within thirty days of the completion of his or her presentation. A decision to change the grade or modify the decision which has been appealed is advisory to and subject to the approval of the President.

- 4. The foregoing decision may be appealed to the President by filing a statement of appeal within ten calendar days of the date of the decision. Review by the President shall be on the basis of the written record unless he or she decides that fairness requires broader review. The decision of the President shall be final.
- 5. **The time frames provided** herein may be modified by the President for good cause shown.

(Adopted October 10, 1975; amended May 17, 1982, July 19, 1982, April 15, 1985, November 17, 1986, February 26, 1990 and March 22, 1993; technical amendment May 1, 2002 in compliance with Public Acts 98-180 and 01-28.)

### **POLICY STATEMENTS**

### 2.1.2 Equal Opportunity Policy Statement

This statement establishes a policy framework for the implementation of equal opportunity and affirmative action principles within the Community College system. The purpose is to set forth an appropriate and consistent standard for each college and the system office. The statement constitutes the policy statement required by section 46a-68-63 of the regulations of Connecticut state agencies.

The President of the Board of Regents for Higher Education is authorized to promulgate a supplement to this statement in order to achieve compliance with paragraphs 3 and 8 of the subject regulation, which supplement shall be an integral part of this policy statement. The BOR President is further authorized to establish system-wide standards for the implementation of affirmative action and equal opportunity consistent with the requirements of applicable law, regulation, and executive orders.

The Role and Purpose of Affirmative Action

The Board of Regents for Higher Education recognizes that historically certain groups have been excluded from full participation in educational and employment opportunities and that if they are to overcome the present effects of this past exclusion, affirmative steps beyond simple neutrality are required. Without such affirmative action, society runs the risk of the perpetuation of the status quo ante.

Affirmative action in employment involves taking additional steps to recruit, employ, and promote members of protected groups. More particularly, the Board endorses and expects full compliance with the requirements of law, including but not limited to positive action designed to identify and remove practices, policies, or other job related requirements which act as barriers to equal employment opportunity for women, blacks, Hispanics, and other protected groups found to be underutilized in the work force or affected by policies or practices having an adverse impact.

Similarly, the Board endorses and expects that there will be efforts made to reach out to groups within our society which have historically been excluded from or are disproportionately represented in postsecondary education. The mission of the Community Colleges is particularly well suited to include and provide an environment of success for members of such historically underrepresented groups.

### Need for Immediate Action

Both the executive and legislative branches of government have identified the need for positive and effective affirmative action in employment and services offered to the public through the agencies of the state of Connecticut. The Board recognizes, adopts, and pledges its support for such affirmative action as a necessary and immediate objective for all the Community Colleges and the system office of the Board of Regents for Higher Education.

In considering the need for affirmative action, it is useful to distinguish between affirmative action and equal employment opportunity. The latter implies an absence of discrimination. In contrast, affirmative action recognizes that a simple stance of neutrality is not sufficient to surmount existing patterns of underrepresentation and underutilization both in employment and education.

While it is understood that affirmative action relates to societal groups based on such characteristics as race and sex, the Board of Regents also recognizes the special problems of the aged and people with disabilities as requiring particular attention and sensitivity in the implementation of equal opportunity and affirmative action. To this end, each college and the system office shall identify problem areas, if any, and where appropriate, establish program goals to achieve full and fair utilization of such individuals in the workplace.

### Nondiscrimination Policy

The Community College system of the state of Connecticut will not discriminate against any person on the grounds of race, color, religious creed, sex, age, national origin, ancestry, present or past history of mental disability, genetic information, marital status, mental retardation, sexual orientation, learning disability, or physical disability, including, but not limited to, blindness, or prior conviction of a crime, unless the provisions of sections 46a-60(b), 46a-80(b), or 46a-81(b)

of the Connecticut General Statutes are controlling or there is a bona fide occupational qualification excluding persons in one of the above protected groups. With respect to the foregoing, discrimination on the basis of sex shall include sexual harassment as defined in section 46a-60(8) of the Connecticut General Statutes. Although it is recognized that there are bona fide occupational qualifications which provide for exception from employment prohibitions, it is understood these exceptions are to be applied pursuant to section 46a-68-33 of the administrative regulations.

Further, the system will not discriminate against any person on the grounds of political beliefs or veteran status.

Affirmative Action in Employment

The employment process consists of recruitment, selection, placement, promotion, transfer, tenure consideration, salary and fringe benefit determination, separation and termination, and job training. The role of affirmative action is to provide an environment for the application of equal opportunity principles and to monitor the employment process to prevent instances of illegal discrimination from arising or existing.

The affirmative action influence on the employment process seeks to assure that:

- recruitment and hiring of protected group members reflect their availability in the job market;
- selection, tenure, placement, and related activities are based upon job-related factors, and criteria and practices which have an illegal discriminatory impact have been identified and eliminated;
- salary and fringe benefits, including opportunities for training and education, are administered in an equitable manner; and
- 4. transfer, reassignment, separation, and termination decisions are nondiscriminatory and do not result in an illegal adverse impact upon members of protected groups, and, where there is a negative impact upon protected groups, alternative approaches to separation and termination are explored.

(Adopted October 10, 1975; amended May 17, 1982, July 19, 1982, April 15, 1985, November 17, 1986, February 26, 1990 and March 22, 1993; technical amendment May 1, 2002 in compliance with Public Acts 98-180 and 01-28.)

## 2.1.5 RACISM AND ACTS OF INTOLERANCE POLICY STATEMENT

The Community Colleges have long been committed to providing educational opportunities to all who seek and can benefit from them, as evidenced in the mission statements and policies concerning student rights, affirmative action, and equal opportunity. The Board and the colleges recognize that an important part of providing opportunity is creating a welcoming environment in which all people are able to work and study together, regardless of their differences. At the same time, colleges and universities have traditionally been at the cut-

ting edge of protection of our most cherished freedoms, most notably freedom of speech and nonviolent action, which protect even unpopular or divisive ideas and perspectives.

Such constitutionally protected expression can contribute to an unwelcome and even offensive social and educational environment for some individuals in the college community, particularly when it concerns race, religion, sex, sexual orientation, disability, national origin, or ethnicity, and the First Amendment does not preclude colleges from taking affirmative steps to sensitize the college community to the effects of creating such a negative environment. Therefore, the community colleges recognize that they have an obligation not only to punish proscribed actions, but also to provide programs which promote pluralism and diversity and encourage the college community to respect and appreciate the value and dignity of every person and his or her right to an atmosphere not only free of harassment, hostility, and violence but supportive of individual academic, personal, social, and professional growth.

Acts of racism or harassment directed against individuals or specific groups of individuals will not be tolerated and will be dealt with under the employee affirmative action grievance procedures and the student grievance and disciplinary procedures.

Each college will provide a comprehensive educational program designed to foster understanding of differentness and the value of cultural diversity. This will include plans to (1) promote pluralism, (2) educate the college community about appropriate and inappropriate behaviors to increase sensitivity and encourage acceptance, and (3) widely disseminate this policy statement to the entire college community.

(Adopted February 26, 1990)

### 2.1.6 PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES: POLICY STATEMENT

## PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES IN THE COMMUNITY COLLEGES

The Board of Regents for Higher Education and all of the colleges under its jurisdiction are committed to the goal of achieving equal educational opportunity and full participation for people with disabilities in the community colleges. To that end, this statement of policy is put forth to reaffirm our commitment to ensure that no qualified person be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity on a community college campus or in the system office of the Board of Regents for Higher Education.

The Board recognizes that a physical or functional impairment is a disability only to the extent that it contributes to cutting the person off from some valued experience, activity, or role. Higher education is therefore especially important to people with disabilities, since

it aims to increase every student's access to valued experiences, activities, and roles. Improving access for students and employees means removing existing barriers that are physical, programmatic, and attitudinal; it also means taking care not to erect new barriers along the way.

The efforts of the community colleges to accommodate people with disabilities should be measured against the goals of full participation and integration. Services and programs best promote full participation and integration of people with disabilities when they complement and support, but do not duplicate, the regular services and programs of the College.

Achieving the goal of full participation and integration of people with disabilities requires cooperative efforts within and among higher education. The Board of Regents for Higher Education will work to achieve a higher level of services and appropriate delivery methods at all Connecticut Community Colleges.

This statement is intended to reaffirm the Board's commitment to affirmative action and equal opportunity for all people and in no way to replace the equal opportunity policy statement.

(Adopted November 20, 1989)

### 2.1.6.1 ADA GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE FOR THE GENERAL PUBLIC

A grievance is an allegation that an agent of the College has discriminated against the grievant on the basis of disability in violation of the Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. 121011 et. seq. (ADA). The following procedure shall apply only to members of the public.\*

- How to file a grievance: A grievance must be submitted in writing to the Affirmative Action Officer/
  Title IX Coordinator or other college official as the
  President may designate within thirty days of the
  date the grievant knew or reasonably should have
  known of the alleged violation. The written grievance shall describe the discriminatory action and
  state briefly the underlying facts.
- 2. Procedure for grievance resolution: The Affirmative Action/Title IX Coordinator shall investigate the grievance in consultation with the College's affirmative action person and, within thirty days from the time the grievance was submitted, recommend to the President a disposition of the grievance. The President may accept or reject the recommendation or direct such further investigation as he or she deems appropriate. The President shall notify the grievant of the final disposition of the grievance within fifteen days of receiving the recommendation.

(Adopted December 21, 1992)

\*Members of the public include all those who are not employees or students of the Connecticut Community College system. Employees shall use the affirmative action grievance procedure and students shall use the student grievance procedure.

### 2.10 POLICY ON AIDS AND OTHER COMMUNICABLE DISEASES

The Community College system reaffirms its commitment to provide a safe and healthy educational environment, safeguard the rights of individuals, and comply with state and federal antidiscrimination laws and regulations. Sound and compassionate legal, ethical, moral, and educational principles require that students and employees with AIDS, HIV infection, and other communicable diseases be accorded the same rights and assume the same responsibilities as all other members of the community college community. It is recognized that the best method of allaying fears and promoting understanding is education; the dissemination of information based on fact and current scientific knowledge.

- People with AIDS and other communicable diseases shall be accorded the same rights as all other students and employees. State and federal laws and regulations prohibit discrimination against and harassment of individuals solely because of disability. No individual shall be discriminated against in any college programs, services, or employment solely because of his or her status as AIDS- or HIV-infected or having any other communicable disease.
- Each college shall provide information and educational programs and activities concerning AIDS and other communicable diseases for students and employees. Such information and programs shall rely on the most current knowledge about such diseases and shall focus on how such diseases are and are not transmitted, how they can be prevented, and the rights of persons with such diseases.
- Each college president shall designate an individual responsible for coordination, delivery, and evaluation of the college AIDS education program. A committee representative of the college community should be involved in formulating educational and information activities.
- 4. Restrictions shall not be placed on admission, programs, services, or employment offered to an individual on the basis of a diagnosis of AIDS, HIV infection, or other communicable disease, except in individual cases when it has been medically determined that there is risk of infection or danger to others or in programs from which individuals with specific communicable diseases are excluded by law or regulation.

All community college employees are further subject to the June 3, 1988 "AIDS Policy for State Personnel" and the January 1987 "AIDS Guidelines for State Personnel."

- 5. Colleges shall not require testing of students or employees for AIDS, HIV infection, or other communicable diseases for participation in employment, programs, or services of the College, except as required by law or regulation. Where possible, colleges shall maintain a listing of local referral sources for such testing and shall publish such listing with other educational information.
- All student or employee information related to inquiries, testing, and disclosure of AIDS, HIV, or other infection status shall be treated confidentially as all other health records. All reasonable steps shall be taken to protect the identity of an individual with AIDS.
- 7. Students and employees involved in the direct delivery of health care services and those who might otherwise come in contact with blood and other body fluids (such as in science laboratories or allied health practica) shall at all times follow the guidelines regarding precautions to be taken in the handling of such fluids disseminated by the Department of Health Services (January 1987, provided as Appendix A) or other approved guidelines.
- Violations of any part of this policy shall be dealt with under the appropriate disciplinary procedures for students or employees.
- This policy shall be published in all college catalogs and all student handbooks and shall be made available to all employees.

(Adopted February 21, 1989)

### SEXUAL MISCONDUCT, SEXUAL ASSAULT AND INTIMATE PARTNER VIOLENCE POLICY

### STATEMENT OF POLICY

The Board of Regents for Higher Education (BOR) in conjunction with the Connecticut State Colleges and Universities (CSCU) is committed to insuring that each member of every BOR governed college and university community has the opportunity to participate fully in the process of education and development. The BOR and CSCU strive to maintain a safe and welcoming environment free from acts of sexual misconduct, intimate partner violence and stalking. It is the intent of the BOR and each of its colleges or universities to provide safety, privacy and support to victims of sexual misconduct and intimate partner violence.

The BOR strongly encourages victims to report any instance of sexual misconduct, including sexual harassment, sexual assault, sexual exploitation, stalking and intimate partner violence, as an effective means of taking action by reporting such acts to the appropriate offi-

cials and pursuing criminal or disciplinary remedies, or both. The only way that action can be taken against anyone who violates another in such a manner is through reporting. Each and every BOR governed college or university shall provide those who report sexual misconduct with many supportive options, including referral to agencies that provide medical attention, counseling, legal services, advocacy, referrals and general information regarding sexual misconduct. Each and every BOR governed college or university will preserve the confidentiality of those who report sexual misconduct to the fullest extent possible and allowed by law. All BOR and CSCU employees, victim support persons and community victim advocates being consulted will make any limits of confidentiality clear before any disclosure of facts takes place. Other than confidential resouces as defined above, in addition to employees who qualify as Campus Security Authorities under the Jeanne Clery Act, all BOR and CSCU employees are required to immediatey communicate to the institution's designated recipient any disclosure or report of sexual misconduct received from a student as well as communicate any disclosure or report of sexual misconduct the employee received from another employee when misconduct is related to the business of the institution.

Affirmative consent must be given by all parties before engaging in sexual activity. Affirmative consent means an active, clear and voluntary agreement by a person to engage in sexual activity with another person. Sexual misconduct, as defined herein, is a violation of BOR policies and, in addition, may subject an accused student or employee to criminal penalties. The BOR and each of its governed colleges and universities are committed to providing an environment free of personal offenses. Sexual relationships of any kind between staff/faculty and students are discouraged pursuant to BOR policy.

The Board of Regents for Higher Education hereby directs the Connecticut State Colleges and Universities to implement the Policy stated above pursuant to the following provisions:

### **TERMS, USAGE AND STANDARDS**

Consent must be affirmed and given freely, willingly, and knowingly of each participant to desired sexual involvement. Consent is a mutually affirmative, conscious decision – indicated clearly by words or actions – to engage in mutually accepted sexual contact. Consent may be revoked at any time during the sexual activity by any person engaged in the activity.

Affirmative consent may never be assumed because there is no physical resistance or other negative response. A person who initially consents to sexual activity shall be deemed not to have affirmatively consented to any such activity which occurs after that consent is withdrawn. It is the responsibility of each person to assure that he or she has the affirmative consent of all persons engaged in the sexual activity to engage in the sexual activity and that affirmative consent is sustained throughout the sexual activity. It shall not be a valid excuse to an alleged lack of affirmative consent that the

student or employee responding to the alleged violation believed that the student reporting or disclosing the alleged violation consented to the activity

- (i) because the responding student or employee was intoxicated or reckless or failed to take reasonable steps to ascertain whether the student or employee reporting or disclosing the alleged violation affirmative ly consented, or
- (ii) if the responding student or employee knew or should have known that the student or employee reporting or disclosing the alleged violation was unable to consent because the student or employee was unconscious, asleep, unable to communicate due to a mental or physical condition, or incapacitated due to the influence of drugs, alcohol or medication. The existence of a past or current dating or sexual relationship between the persons involved in the alleged violation shall not be determinative of a finding of affirmative consent.

Report of sexual misconduct is the receipt of a communication of an incident of sexual misconduct accompanied by a request for an investigation or adjudication by the institution.

Disclosure is the receipt of any communication of an incident of sexual misconduct that is not accompanied by a request for an investigation or adjudication by the institution.

#### MANDATED REPORTING

Other than confidential resources as defined above, in addition to employees who qualify as Campus Security Authorities under the Jeanne Clery Act, all employees are required to immediately communicate to the institution's designated recipient (e.g., Title IX Coordinator) any disclosure or report of sexual misconduct received from a student regardless of the age of the reported victim. All employees are also required to communicate to the institution's designated recipient (e.g., Title IX Coordinator) any disclosure or report of sexual misconduct received from an employee that impacts employment with the institution or is otherwise related to the business of the institution.

Upon receiving a disclosure or a report of sexual misconduct, employees are expected to supportively, compassionately and professionally offer academic and other accommodations and to provide a referral for support and other services.

Further, in accordance with Connecticut State law, with the exception of student employees, any paid administrator, faculty, staff, athletic director, athletic coach or athletic trainer who, in the ordinary course of their employment, has a reasonable cause to suspect or believe that a person under the age of 18 years has been abused or neglected, has been placed in imminent harm or has had a non-accidental injury is required by law and Board policy to report the incident within twelve hours to their immediate supervisor and to the Department of Children and Families.

### CONFIDENTIALITY

When a BOR governed college or university receives a report of sexual assault, all reasonable steps will be taken by the appropriate CSCU officials to preserve the privacy of the reported victim while promptly investigating and responding to the report. While the institution will strive to maintain the confidentially of the information reported, which information is subject to privacy requirements of the Family Education Rights Privacy Act (FERPA), the institution also must fulfill its duty to protect the campus community.

Confidential resources, such as off-campus counseling and psychological services, health services providers, member(s) of the clergy, and the local Sexual Assault Crisis Center are bound by state statutes and professional ethics from disclosing information about reports without written releases. Information provided to a confidential resource by a victim of a sexual assault or the person reported to have been assaulted cannot be disclosed legally to any other person without consent, except under very limited circumstances, such as an imminent threat of danger to self or others or if the reported victim is a minor. Therefore, for those who wish to obtain the fullest legal protections and disclose in full confidentiality, she/he must speak with a confidential resource. Each BOR governed college or university will provide a list of such confidential resources in the College or University's geographic region to victims of assault as well as publish these resources on-line and in various publications.

Where it is deemed necessary for the institution to take steps to protect the safety of the reported victim and/or other members of the campus community, the institution will seek to act in a manner so as not to compromise the privacy or confidentiality of the reported victim of a sexual assault to the extent reasonably possible.

### RIGHTS OF THOSE WHO REPORT

Those who report any type of sexual misconduct, including sexual harassment, sexual assault or intimate partner violence, to any BOR governed college or university employee will be informed in a timely manner of all their rights and options, including the necessary steps and potential outcomes of each option. When choosing a reporting resource, the following information should be considered:

- All reports of sexual misconduct, including sexual harassment, sexual assault and intimate partner violence, will be treated seriously and with dignity by the institution.
- Referrals to off-campus counseling and medical services that are available immediately and confidential, whether or not those who report an assault feel ready to make any decisions about reporting the assault to police, the Dean of Students or the Campus' Title IX Coordinator.
- Those who have been assaulted have the right to take both legal action (criminal/civil action) and ac-

- tion against the individual allegedly responsible.
- Those who seek confidentiality may contact a clergy member(s) and/or the Sexual Assault Crisis Center of Connecticut – all of whom are bound by state statutes and professional ethics to maintain confidentiality without written releases.

### OPTIONS FOR CHANGING ACADEMIC, TRANSPORTATION, AND WORKING AR-RANGEMENTS

The colleges or universities will provide assistance to those involved in a report of sexual harassment, sexual assault or intimate partner violence, including but not limited to, reasonably available options for changing academic, campus transportation, housing or working situations as well as honoring lawful protective or temporary restraining orders. Each and every BOR governed college or university shall create and provide information specific to its campus detailing the procedures to follow after the commission of such violence, including people or agencies to contact for reporting purposes or to request assistance, and information on the importance of preserving physical evidence.

### SUPPORT SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION

It is BOR policy that whenever a college or university Title IX Coordinator or other employee receives a report that a student, faculty or staff member has been subjected to sexual misconduct, including sexual harassment, sexual assault or intimate partner violence, the Title IX Coordinator or other employee shall immediately provide the student, faculty or staff member with contact information for and, if requested, professional assistance in accessing and using campus, local advocacy, counseling, health, and mental health services. All CSCU campuses shall develop and distribute contact information for this purpose as well as provide such information online.

## RIGHT TO NOTIFY LAW ENFORCEMENT & SEEK PROTECTIVE AND OTHER ORDERS

Those who report being subjected to sexual misconduct, including harassment, sexual assault or intimate partner violence, shall be provided written information about her/his right to:

- 1. notify law enforcement and receive assistance from campus authorities in making the notification; and,
- 2. obtain a protective order, apply for a temporary restraining order or seek enforcement of an existing order. Such orders include:
  - standing criminal protective orders;
  - protective orders issued in cases of stalking, harassment, sexual assault, or risk of injury to or impairing the morals of a child;
  - temporary restraining orders or protective orders prohibiting the harassment of a witness;
  - relief from physical abuse by a family or household member or person in a dating relationship; and
  - family violence protective orders.

### STUDENT CONDUCT PROCEDURES

The Student Code of Conduct provides the procedures

for the investigation, definitions of terms, and resolution of complaints regarding student conduct, including those involving sexual harassment, sexual assault and intimate partner violence.

The Title IX Coordinator can assist in explaining the student conduct process. The Student Code of Conduct provides an equal, fair, and timely process (informal administrative resolution or a formal adjudication) for complainants and accused students.

Reported victims of such assault or violence shall have the opportunity to request that disciplinary proceedings begin promptly and such disciplinary proceedings shall be conducted by an official trained in issues relating to sexual assault and intimate partner violence and shall use the preponderance of the evidence standard in making a determination concerning the alleged assault or violence. Both the reported victim of such assault or violence and the accused are entitled to be accompanied to any meeting or proceeding relating to the allegation of such assault or violence by an advisor or support person of their choice, provided the involvement of such advisor or support person does not result in the postponement or delay of such meeting as scheduled, and each shall have the opportunity to present evidence and witnesses on their behalf during any disciplinary proceeding. Both the reported victim and accused are entitled to be informed in writing of the results of any disciplinary proceeding not later than one business day after the conclusion of such proceeding. Sanctions may range from a warning to expulsion, depending upon the behavior and its severity. To the extent permitted under state or federal law or as necessary for the disciplinary proceeding, the college or university shall not disclose the identity of the reporter or the accused.

### **DISSEMINATION OF THIS POLICY**

Upon adoption by the Board, all CSCU institutions shall, upon receipt, immediately post and maintain this policy at all times in an easily accessible manner on each institution's website. This Policy shall thereafter be annually provided to all Title IX Coordinators, campus law enforcement officers and security personnel, and other campus personnel. Further, this policy shall be presented at student orientation and at student awareness and prevention trainings, and made broadly available at each campus. The Policy shall be expanded upon by each institution to provide resources and contact information specific to their institution and geographic area as set forth above.

### **TERMS AND USAGE**

Sexual misconduct may include engaging in one of more behaviors:

(a) Sexual harassment, which can include any unwelcome sexual advance or request for sexual favors, or any conduct of a sexual nature when submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an individual's education; submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as a basis for academic decisions affecting the individual; or such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with an individual's academic

performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive educational environment. Examples of conduct which may constitute sexual harassment include but are not limited to:

- sexual flirtation, touching, advances or propositions:
- · verbal abuse of a sexual nature;
- · pressure to engage in sexual activity;
- graphic or suggestive comments about an individual's dress or appearance;
- use of sexually degrading words to describe an individual;
- display of sexually suggestive objects, pictures or photographs;
- sexual jokes;
- stereotypic comments based upon gender; and/or
- threats, demands or suggestions that retention of one's educational status is contingent upon toleration of or acquiescence in sexual advances.
- (b) Sexual assault may include a sexual act directed against another person when that person is not capable of giving consent, which shall mean the voluntary agreement by a person in the possession and exercise of sufficient mental capacity to make a deliberate choice to do something proposed by another. Sexual assault is further defined sections 53a-70, 53a-70a, 53a-70b, 53a-71, 53a-72a, 53a-72b or 53a-73a of the general statutes.
- (c) Sexual exploitation occurs when a person takes non-consensual or abusive sexual advantage of another for anyone's advantage or benefit other than the person being exploited, and that behavior does not otherwise constitute one of the preceding sexual misconduct offenses. Examples of behavior that could rise to the level of sexual exploitation include:
  - Prostituting another person;
  - Non-consensual visual (e.g., video, photograph) or audio-recording of sexual activity;
  - Non-consensual distribution of photos, other images, or information of an individual's sexual activity, intimate body parts, or nakedness, with the intent to or having the effect of embarrassing an individual who is the subject of such images or information;
- Going beyond the bounds of consent (such as letting your friends hide in the closet to watch you having consensual sex);
- Engaging in non-consensual voyeurism;
- Knowingly transmitting an STI, such as HIV to another without disclosing your STI status;
- Exposing one's genitals in non-consensual circumstances, or inducing another to expose his or her genitals; or
- Possessing, distributing, viewing or forcing others to view illegal pornography.

Consent is the equal approval, given freely, willingly, and knowingly of each participant to desired sexual involvement. Consent is an affirmative, conscious decision – indicated clearly by words or actions – to engage

in mutually accepted sexual contact. Consent cannot be assumed because there is no physical resistance or other negative response. A person who initially consents to sexual activity shall be deemed not to have consented to any such activity which occurs after that consent is withdrawn. A lack of consent may result from mental incapacity (e.g., ingestion of alcohol or drugs which significantly impair awareness or judgment) or physical incapacity (e.g., the person is unconscious or otherwise unable to communicate consent).

Intimate partner violence is any physical or sexual harm against an individual by a current or former spouse of or person in a dating relationship with such individual that results from any action by such spouse or such person that may be classified as a sexual assault under section 53a-70, 53a-70a, 53a-70b, 53a-71, 53a-72a, 53a-72b or 53a-73a of the general statutes, stalking under section 53a-181c, 53a-181d or 53a-181e of the general statutes, or domestic violence as designated under section 46b-38h of the general statutes. The offenses that are designated as "domestic violence" are against family or household members or persons in dating relationships and include assaults, sexual assaults, stalking, and violations of protective or restraining orders issued by a Court. Stalking is one person's repetitive and willful following or lying in wait behavior towards another person that causes that other person to reasonably fear for his or her physical safety. Relationship violence may also include physical abuse, threat of abuse, and emotional abuse.

(Adopted March 13, 2014)

## INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY RESOURCES (ACCEPTABLE USE POLICY)

http://www.ct.edu/it/policy-list

Asnuntuck Community College operates in accordance with the Board Computing Policy (printed below) and the associated Acceptable Use Policies. These documents are incorporated by reference in this Policy. All computer resources and facilities of ACC shall be used solely for legitimate and authorized ACC academic and administrative purposes. The following guidelines represent an extension and clarification of the Acceptable Use Policy applicable to Asnuntuck Community College. Sanctions: Violations of this Policy shall subject users to the regular disciplinary processes and procedures of the College for student, staff or faculty and may result in loss of computing privileges. Illegal acts involving College computing resources may also subject violators to prosecution by local, state, and/or federal authorities.

General Principles for Use: The College reserves the right to inspect and examine any Asnuntuck owned or operated communication system, computer resource, and/or files or information contained therein at any time. It is prohibited for Systems or Network Administrators to read users' files unless required to react to or prevent actions by users that may violate this Acceptable Use Policy or may cause significantly detrimental

effects on system or network operation.

Unacceptable Uses: The viewing, downloading, and/or printing of materials for purposes other than legitimate academic work is prohibited. The viewing, downloading or printing of sexually graphic or suggestive materials may additionally be considered grounds for further disciplinary action for sexual harassment. Storing of files and/or programs on the hard drives of the computers by students is prohibited. Installation of personal software on computers is prohibited.

Additional Guidelines: Software downloads or printouts of materials from the Internet are subject to limitation. No food or drink is allowed at any computer table. Cups and other containers must be left on the floor. Children must be supervised by parents at all times and are not allowed to use computers without specific authorization from College staff supervising Computer Resource areas, unless participating in College-sponsored activities.

## ACCEPTABLE USE AND RESPONSIBLE USE OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND RESOURCES POLICY (BOARD POLICY IT-001)

#### Introduction

This Policy governs the Acceptable and Responsible Use of Information Technology and Resources of Connecticut State Colleges and Universities (CSCU). Information Technology (IT) resources are a valuable asset to be used and managed responsibly to ensure their integrity, security, and availability for appropriate academic and administrative use.

The usage of CSCU IT resources is a privilege dependent upon appropriate use. Users of CSCU IT resources are responsible for using IT resources in accordance with CSCU policies and the law. Individuals who violate CSCU policy or the law regarding the use of IT resources are subject to loss of access to IT resources as well as additional CSCU disciplinary and/or legal action.

### **Purpose**

The purpose of this policy is to provide the CSCU community with common rules for the usage of IT resources.

The intent of this policy is to provide information concerning the appropriate and inappropriate use of CSCU IT systems to:

- Ensure CSCU IT resources are used for purposes consistent with CSCU mission and goals;
- Prevent disruptions to and misuse of CSCU IT resources:
- Ensure CSCU community is informed of state and federal laws and CSCU IT policies governing the use of CSCU IT resources and;
- Ensure IT resources are used in a manner, which comply with such laws and policies.

### Scope

This Policy applies to:

- · All IT resources owned or managed by the CSCU;
- All IT resources provided by the CSCU through contracts and other agreements with the CSCU; and

· All users and uses of CSCU IT resources.

### **Policy Authority**

This policy is issued by the Board of Regents for Higher Education for the Connecticut State Colleges & Universities

### **Definitions**

Knowledge of the following definition is important to understanding this Policy:

 IT Resources: This includes, but is not limited to, computers, computing staff, hardware, software, networks, computing, laboratories, databases, files, information, software licenses, computing-related contracts, network bandwidth, usernames, passwords, documentation, disks, CD-ROMs, DVDs, magnetic tapes, and electronic communication.

### **Provisions**

To adhere to the Acceptable and Responsible Use Policy, users of CSCU IT resources must:

- Ensure that any personal use of CSCU IT resources be limited and have no detrimental impact on institution operations, job performance or CSCU IT resources:
- Protect their User ID and IT resources from unauthorized use. Users are responsible for all activities on their User ID or that originate from IT resources under their control.
- Access only information that is their own or is publicly available or to which authorized access has been given.
- Use only legal versions of copyrighted software in compliance with vendor license requirements.
- Use shared resources appropriately. (e.g. refrain from monopolizing systems, overloading networks with excessive data, degrading services, or wasting computer time, connect time, disk space, printer paper, manuals, or other resources).

To adhere to the Acceptable and Responsible Use policy, users of CSCU IT resources must NOT:

- Use CSCU IT resources to violate any CSCU policy or state or federal law.
- Use another person's IT resource, User ID, password, files, or data.
- Have unauthorized access or breach any security measure including decoding passwords or accessing control information, or attempt to do any of the above.
- Engage in any activity that might be harmful to IT resources or to any information stored thereon, such as creating or propagating viruses, disrupting services, damaging files or making unauthorized modifications to computer data.
- Make or use illegal copies of copyrighted materials or software, store such copies on CSCU IT resources, or transmit them over CSCU networks.
- Harass or intimidate others or interfere with the ability of others to conduct CSCU business.
- Directly or indirectly cause strain on IT resources

- such as downloading large files, unless prior authorization from the appropriate CSCU authority as determined by the institution is given.
- Use CSCU IT resources for unauthorized purposes may include but are not limited to, the conduct of a private business enterprise, monetary gain, commercial, religious or political purposes.
- Engage in any other activity that does not comply with the general principles presented above.

### **No Expectation of Privacy**

All activities involving the use of CSCU IT systems are not personal or private. Therefore users should have no expectation of privacy in the use of these resources. Information stored, created, sent or received via CSCU IT systems is potentially accessible under the Freedom of Information Act.

Pursuant to Communications Assistance for Law Enforcement Act (CALEA), Public Act 98-142, and the State of Connecticut's "Electronic Monitoring Notice", the Board of Regents reserves the right to monitor and/or log all activities of all users using CSCU IT systems without notice. This includes, but is not limited to, files, data, programs and electronic communications records without the consent of the holder of such records.

#### **Assurance**

Each CSCU institution shall incorporate the Acceptable and Responsible Use Policy as part of the terms and conditions for issuing institution computer network accounts. Each CSCU institution shall have all full-time and part-time employees, including student employees, acknowledge that they have read and understand the Acceptable Use Policy. Each CSCU institution shall make the Acceptable Use Policy accessible to all employees and students.

### **Enforcement**

Violations of CSCU Acceptable and Responsible Use policy may result in appropriate disciplinary measures in accordance withlocal, state, and federal laws, as well as CSCU Policies, general rules of conduct for all colleges and university employees, applicable collective bargaining agreements, and the CSCU student conduct codes.

For purposes of protecting the CSCU network and information technology resources, the BOR Information Security Program Office, in conjunction with college/ university IT department, may temporarily remove or block any system, device, or person from the CSCU network that is reasonably suspected of violating CSCU information technology policy. These non- punitive measures will be taken to maintain business continuity and information security; users of the college/university information technology resources will be contacted for resolution.

### **Exception Process**

ConnSCU recognizes that some portions of the Acceptable and Responsible Use of Information Technology Resources Policy may have to be bypassed from timeto-time because of technical or business reasons.

Accordingly, exceptions may be made provided:

- the need for the exception is legitimate and approved by the BOR CIO or designee
- the exception does not disrupt or compromise other portions of the CSCU service delivery capability
- the implementation of the exception is vetted through the Change Management Process
- 4. the BOR Information Security Program Office, in conjunction with college/university IT department, is able to establish a monitoring function to assess the operations of the implementation exception
- 5. the exception has a defined lifecycle, in that the "retirement" of the exception is scheduled (e.g., "when Release 4.9 is implemented," "at contract termination," etc.)

### **Exception Request**

To request an exception, please submit the Information Security Exception request to SecProg@ct.edu. The requestor and BOR Information Security Program Office will define the approved alternative configuration if different than the original proposal of the requestor.

The exception process is NOT an alternative to the Change Control Management process.

#### Review

This policy will be reviewed every three years by the Board of Regents.

### ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS POLICY (BOARD POLICY IT-002)

### Introduction

The Connecticut State Colleges and Universities (CSCU) encourages the use of electronic communications to share information and knowledge in support of CSCU mission and goals. To this end, CSCU provides and supports interactive, electronic communications esources and services.

### **Purpose**

The purpose of this Policy is to:

- Promote the use of electronic communication as an official means of communication within CSCU
- Ensure that CSCU electronic communications resources are used for purposes appropriate to the CSCU mission and goals;
- Prevent disruptions to and misuse of CSCU electronic communications resources and services;
- Ensure that the CSCU community is aware that use of CSCU electronic communications resources is subject to state and federal laws and the CSCU policies; and
- Ensure that electronic communications resources are used in compliance with those laws and the CSCU policies.

### Scope

This Policy applies to:

- All electronic communications resources owned or managed by CSCU including the content of electronic communications, electronic attachments and transactional information associated with such communications;
- All electronic communications resources provided by CSCU through contracts and other agreements with CSCU;
- All users and uses of CSCU electronic communications resources; and
- All CSCU electronic communications records in the possession of CSCU employees or other users of electroniccommunications resources provided by CSCU.

### **Policy Authority**

This Policy is issued by the Board of Regents for Higher Education for the Connecticut State Colleges & Universities.

### **Definitions**

The following terms are used in this Policy. Knowledge of these definitions is important to an understanding of this Policy:

Electronic Communication: Any communication that is broadcast, created, sent, forwarded, replied to, transmitted, stored, held, copied, downloaded, displayed, viewed, read, or printed by one or several electronic communications services, including but not limited to email and telephone.

Electronic Communications Records: Electronic transmissions or messages created, sent, forwarded, replied to, transmitted, distributed, broadcast, stored, held, copied, downloaded, displayed, viewed, read, or printed by one or several electronic, communications services. This definition of electronic communications records applies equally to the contents of such records, attachments to such records, and transactional information associated with such records.

Electronic Communications Resources: Any combination of telecommunications equipment, transmission devices, electronic video and audio equipment, encoding or decoding equipment, computers and computer time, data processing or storage systems, computer systems, servers, networks, input/output and connecting devices, and related computer records, programs, software, and documentation that supports electronic communications services.

Electronic Communications Services: Any messaging, collaboration, publishing, broadcast, or distribution system that depends on electronic communications resources to create, send, forward, reply to, transmit, store, hold, copy, download, display, view, read, or print electronic records for purposes of communication across electronic communications network systems between or among individuals or groups, that is either

explicitly denoted as a system for electronic communications or is implicitly used for such purposes.

#### **Provisions**

ConnSCU encourages the use of electronic communications resources for legitimate and authorized academic and administrative purposes and makes them widely available to the CSCU community. To insure the reliable operation of these resources, their use is subject to the following:

- Email is an official means for communication within CSCU unless otherwise prohibited by law. The colleges and universities reserve the right to send official communications to employees and students via email. In the event of an emergency, the colleges and universities shall utilize all available communication mechanisms including email to reach employees and students.
- All employees and students will be given official college/university email accounts. Official university communications shall be sent to official college/university email addresses. Employees and students are expected to check their official email accounts on a frequent and consistent basis in order to stay current with campus related communications. Failure to receive or read official communications does not absolve the employee or student from knowing and complying with the content of such official communications.
- Employees are not allowed to conduct official CSCU business via private (unofficial) email accounts unless specifically authorized.
- Students, who choose to have their emails autoforwarded to private (unofficial) email addresses, do so at their own risk. The college/university is not responsible for any difficulties that may occur in the transmission of the emails.
- Contents of all electronic communications shall conform to state and federal laws and CSCU policies regarding protection of privacy, intellectual property, copyright, patents and trademarks
- Using electronic communications resources for any purpose restricted or prohibited by state and federal laws, regulations or CSCU policies is prohibited.
- Using electronic communications resources for monetary gain or for commercial, religious, or political purposes that are not directly related to CSCU institutional missions or otherwise authorized by appropriate CSCU authority is prohibited.
- Usage that directly or indirectly causes strain on the electronic communications resources is prohibited.
- Capturing, opening, intercepting or obtaining access to electronic communications, except as otherwise permitted by the appropriate CSCU authority is prohibited.
- Using electronic communications to harass or in-

- timidate others or to interfere with the ability of others to conduct CSCU business is prohibited.
- Users of electronic communications resources shall not give the impression that they are representing, giving opinions or otherwise making statements on behalf of CSCU unless authorized to do so.
- Directly or by implication, employing a false identity (the name or electronic identification of another), except under the following circumstances, is prohibited:

A supervisor may direct an employee to use the supervisor's identity to transact CSCU business for which the supervisor is responsible. In such cases, an employee's use of the supervisor's electronic identity does not constitute a false identity.

A user of the CSCU electronic communications services may not use a pseudonym (an alternative name or electronic identification for oneself) for privacy or other reasons, unless authorized by an appropriate CSCU authority for business reasons.

- Forging email headers or content (i.e., constructing an email so it appears to be from someone else) is prohibited.
- Unauthorized access to electronic communications or breach any security measure is prohibited.
- Interfering with the availability of electronic communications resources is prohibited, including but not limited to the following:
  - sending or forwarding email chain letters or their equivalents in other electronic communications services;
  - ii. "spamming," i.e., sending electronic junk mail or junk newsgroup postings;
  - iii. "letter-bombing," i.e., sending an extremelylarge message or sending multiple messages to one or more recipients to interfere with the recipient's use of electronic communications resources; or
  - iv. intentionally engaging in other practices such as "denial of service attacks," i.e., flooding the network with traffic.
- Distribution of an electronic mail to the entire or a substantial portion of a campus community must obtain prior approval as specified by the receiving institution.

### **No Expectation of Privacy**

All activities involving the use of CSCU IT systems are not personal or private. Therefore users should have no expectation of privacy in the use of these resources. Information stored, created, sent or received via CSCU IT systems is potentially accessible under the Freedom of Information Act.

Pursuant to Communications Assistance for Law Enforcement Act (CALEA), Public Act 98-142, and the State of Connecticut's "Electronic Monitoring Notice", the Board of Regents reserves the right to monitor and/ or log all activities of all users using CSCU IT systems without notice. This includes, but is not limited to, files, data, programs and electronic communications records without the consent of the holder of such records.

#### Assurance

Each CSCU institution shall incorporate the Electronic Communication Policy as part of the terms and conditions for issuing institution computer network accounts. Each CSCU institution shall have all full-time and part-time employees, including student employees, acknowledge that they have read and understand the Electronic Communication Policy. Each CSCU institution shall make the Electronic Communication Policy accessible to all employees and students.

#### **Enforcement**

Violations of CSCU Electronic Communication Policy may result in appropriate disciplinary measures in accordance with local, state, and federal laws, as well as CSCU Policies, general rules of conduct for all colleges and university employees, applicable collective bargaining agreements, and the CSCU student conduct codes.

For purposes of protecting the CSCU network and information technology resources, the BOR Information Security Program Office, in conjunction with college/ university IT department, may temporarily remove or block any system, device, or person from the CSCU network that is reasonably suspected of violating CSCU information technology policy. These non- punitive measures will be taken to maintain business continuity and information security; users of the college/university information technology resources will be contacted for resolution.

### **Exception Process**

ConnSCU recognizes that some portions of the Electronic Communication Policy may have to be bypassed from time-to-time because of technical or business reasons.

Accordingly, exceptions may be made provided:

- the need for the exception is legitimate and approved by the BOR CIO or designee
- the exception does not disrupt or compromise other portions of the CSCU service delivery capability
- 3. the implementation of the exception is vetted through the Change Management Process
- 4. the BOR Information Security Program Office, in conjunction with college/university IT department, is able to establish a monitoring function to assess the operations of the implementation exception
- 5. the exception has a defined lifecycle, in that the "retirement" of the exception is scheduled (e.g., "when Release 4.9 is implemented," "at contract termination," etc.)

### **Exception Request**

To request an exception, please submit the Information Security Exception request to SecProg@ct.edu.

The requestor and BOR Information Security Program Office will define the approved alternative configuration if different than the original proposal of the requestor.

The exception process is NOT an alternative to the Change Control Management process.

### **Review**

This policy will be reviewed every three years by the Board of Regents.

### **Electronic Device Policy**

In order for students to receive uninterrupted quality instruction and services, all cell phones, beepers, pagers, and alarm watches should be turned to vibrating mode while students are in classrooms, labs, Library, Academic Support Center, and Computer Labs. Should a cell phone, beeper, or pager need to be answered during these times, the student should leave the area. Many instructors do not allow students to return to the classroom if exams or presentations are in progress. Students should check instructors' individual policies on leaving the classroom to respond to one of the above-mentioned devices.

### 4.23 Weapons on College Campuses

The use or possession of weapons (as defined in Section 53-206 of the Connecticut General Statutes) is prohibited on college campuses or at college activities except as authorized by Board or college policies. Colleges are hereby authorized to develop policies which allow for specific exemptions to the extent permitted by law.

(Adopted May 18, 1992)

Sec. 53-206: "slung [sic] shot, air rifle, BB gun, black jack, sand bag, metal or brass knuckles, or any dirk knife, or any switch knife having an automatic spring release device by which a blade is released from the handle, having a blade of over one and one half inches in length, or stiletto, or any knife the edged portion of which is four inches or over in length, or any martial arts weapon or electronic defense weapon, as defined in section 53a-3, or any other dangerous or deadly weapon or instrument" Sec. 53a-3(6): "any weapon, whether loaded or unloaded, from which a shot may be discharged, or a switchblade knife, gravity knife, bill, blackjack, bludgeon, or metal knuckles."

## STUDENT RECORDS AND CONFIDENTIALITY (FERPA)

## 5.7 Notification of Rights Under the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) affords students certain rights with respect to their education records. These rights include:

- 1. The right to inspect and review the student's education records within 45 days of the day the College receives a request for access. Students should submit to the registrar, dean, head of the academic department, or other appropriate official written requests that identify the record(s) they wish to inspect. The College official will make arrangements for access and notify the student of the time and place where the records may be inspected. If the records are not maintained by the College official to whom the request was submitted, that official shall advise the student of the correct official to whom the request should be addressed.
- 2. The right to request amendment of an education record that the student believes is inaccurate. Students may ask an appropriate College official to amend a record that they believe is inaccurate. The student should write to the College official, clearly identify the part of the record he or she wants changed, and specify why he/she believes it is inaccurate. The College will notify the student of the decision. If the College decides not to amend the record as requested by the student, the College will advise the student of his or her right to a hearing regarding the request for amendment. Additional information regarding the hearing procedures will be provided to the student when notified of the right to a hearing.

NOTE: FERPA is not intended to provide a process to question substantive judgments that are correctly recorded. For example, the right of challenge does not allow a student to contest a grade in a course because the student believes that a higher grade should have been assigned.

The right to consent to disclosure of personally identifiable information contained in the student's education records, except to the extent that FERPA authorizes disclosure without consent. FERPA permits disclosure without consent to school officials with legtimate educational interests. A "school official" includes, but is not limited to the following: a person employed by the College in an administrative, supervisory, academic, research or support staff position (including law enforcement and security personnel, counseling and health staff); a person or company with whom the College has contracted (such as an attorney, auditor, collection agent or official of the National Student Clearinghouse); a person serving on the Board of Regents who is authorized to act on its behalf; or a student serving on an official committee, such as a disciplinary or grievance committee, or assisting another school official in performing his or her tasks. A school official has a legitimate educational interest if the official needs to review an education record in order to fulfill his or her professional responsibilities.

FERPA also permits disclosure of education records without consent in connection with, but not limited to:

- to comply with a judicial order or a lawfully issued subpoena;
- to appropriate parties in a health or safety emergency;
- to officials of another school, upon request, in which the student seeks or intends to enroll;
- in connection with a student's request for or receipt of financial aid, as necessary to determine the eligibility, amount or conditions of the financial aid, or to enforce the terms and conditions of the aid;
- to certain officials of the U.S. Department of Education, the Comptroller General, to state and local educational authorities, in connection with certain state or federally supported education programs;
- to accrediting organizations to carry out their functions;
- to organizations conducting certain studies for or on behalf of the College;
- the results of an institutional disciplinary proceeding against the alleged perpetrator of a crime of violence to the alleged victim of that crime with respect to that crime; and
- directory information as defined in the policy of the Board of Regents.
- 4. The right to refuse to permit the College to release directory information about the student, except to school officials with a legitimate educational interest and others as indicated in paragraph 3 above. To do so, a student exercising this right must notify the Office of Registrar in writing. Once filed, this notification becomes a permanent part of the student's record until the student instructs the College, in writing, to remove it.
- 5. The right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education concerning alleged failures by colleges to comply with the requirements of FERPA. The name and address of the office that administers FERPA is:

Family Policy Compliance Office U.S. Department of Education 400 Maryland Avenue, SW Washington, DC 20202-4605

### **Directory Information**

The Board of Regents for Higher Education has designated the following as directory information: student names and addresses, dates of attendance, full vs. parttime student status, awards and honors, major/program of study, and graduation date. For purposes of access by military recruiters only, telephone listings and, if known, age, and level of education are also designated as directory information.

Colleges may disclose directory information without prior consent, unless a student has exercised the right to refuse to permit the College to release directory information in accordance with paragraph 4 above. (Adopted March 20, 2006; amended March 15, 2010)

## 4.15 DRUGS AND ALCOHOL POLICY

The following policy covering alcohol and drugs has been adopted by the Board of Regents for Higher Education:

The Board of Regents of Higher Education endorses the Statement of the Network of Colleges and Universities Committed to the Elimination of Drug and Alcohol Abuse, which is based on the following premise:

American Society is harmed in many ways by the abuse of alcohol and other drugs—decreased productivity, serious health problems, breakdown of the family structure, and strained social resources. Problems of illicit use and abuse of substances have a pervasive effect upon many segments of society— all socioeconomic groups, all age levels, and even the unborn. Education and learning are especially impaired by alcohol abuse and illicit drug use.

a. The Board recognizes that education regarding alcohol and substance abuse is an appropriate and even necessary part of contemporary college life. Since the unauthorized use of controlled substances, in addition to the potential harmful effect it may have on students and employees, is contrary to state and federal law and regulation, it must be prohibited in any college activity, on or off the college campus. Although the conditions of alcohol and drug dependency may be considered disabilities or handicaps under state law and regulation and Board of Regents policy, employees and students will not be discriminated against because they have these disabilities. All students and employees are considered to be responsible for their actions and their conduct.

## These provisions shall apply to all colleges under the jurisdiction of the Board:

- No student or employee shall knowingly possess, use, distribute, transmit, sell, or be under the influence of any controlled substance on the college campus or off the college campus at a college-sponsored activity, function, or event. Use or possession of a drug authorized by a medical prescription from a registered physician shall not be a violation of this provision.
- All colleges shall develop and enforce policies regarding the sale, distribution, possession, or consumption of alcoholic beverages on campus, subject to state and federal law. Consistent with previous Board policy, the consumption of alco-

holic beverages on campus may be authorized by the President subject to the following conditions, as appropriate:

- when a temporary permit for the sale of alcoholic beverages has been obtained and dram shop act insurance has been purchased;
- when a college permit has been obtained;
- d. when students bring their own beverages; or
- when alcoholic beverages are provided by a student organization and no fee is charged for attendance or for said beverages.
- 3. All colleges shall provide educational programs on the abuse of alcohol and other drugs and referral for assistance for students and employees who seek it. Colleges are encouraged to establish campus-wide committees to assist in development of these programs in response to particular campus needs and identification of referral resources in their respective service planning regions.
- This policy shall be published in all college catalogs, faculty and staff manuals, and other appropriate literature.
- Failure to comply with this policy will result in invocation of the appropriate disciplinary procedure and may result in separation from the college and referral to the appropriate authorities for prosecution.

(Adopted November 20, 1989)

(1.) Statement of the Network of Colleges and Universities Committed to the Elimination of Drug and Alcohol Abuse.

### **SMOKING**

Smoking is permitted only in the gazebos located in the back of the building. Smoking is not permitted in any entrance, sidewalk, deck, or grassy area around the building.

Definitions: Smoking is the burning, lighting or use of a tobacco product and any other smoking device or equipment that includes, but is not limited to, cigarettes, cigars, electronic cigarettes (e-cigarettes), vaporizers, hookahs, and pipes.

## UNIFORM CAMPUS CRIME REPORT

In accordance with Connecticut Public Act 90-259, the Campus Safety Act, the college has prepared a Uniform Campus Crime Report consistent with the FBI's Uniform Crime Reporting System. This report reflects the crime statistics on the property of the institution for the preceding academic year. A copy of the report may be obtained by request from the Dean of Student Services.

## Programs of Study

Associate in Arts (A.A.)	page
• Liberal Arts	65
• Liberal Arts UConn PsychologyTransfer	
• Liberal Arts Fine Arts Option	67
Associate in Science (A.S.)	
• Accounting	
• Business Administration	
• Communications	57
Broadcasting Option	
Journalism Option	
Criminal Justice	
• Early Childhood Education	61
• Engineering Science (College of Technology)	62
General Studies	63
• Human Services	
Massage Therapy	
• Registered Medical Assisting	69
Technology Studies:	
• Lean Mfg. & Supply Chain Management	
Technology Studies	
Mfg.MachineTechnology Option	
Mfg. Electro-Mechanical Maintenance	
• Mfg. Electronics Controls Technology Option	
Mfg. Welding Technology Option	75
Certificates	
• Accounting Assistant	
• Business Administration	
• Certified Administrative Medical Office Skills	
Certified Phlebotomy Technician	
• Early Childhood Administration	
• Early Childhood Education	
• Entrepreneur	
• Gerontology	
• Health Career Pathway	
• Health Information Management Technician	
Human Services Management	
• Marketing	
Office User Specialist      Pagietand Medical Assistant	
<ul><li>Registered Medical Assistant</li><li>Technology Studies:</li></ul>	/ 8
Mfg. Electro-Mechanical Maintenance	0.0
Manufacturing Electronics Controls Technology	
Manufacturing Electronics Controls Technology     Manfacturing Machine Technology	
Manufacturing Welding Technology	
Woh Designer	۰ . ou 21

<b>Department Designations</b>
ACC* Accounting
ANT* Anthropology
ART* Art
AST* Astronomy
BIO*Biology
BBG*, BES*, BFN*, BMG*, BMK* Business
CAD* Computer Aided Drafting
CHE* Chemistry
CJS* Criminal Justice
COM*Communications
CSA*, CSC*, CST* Information Systems Technology
DAN* Dance
DGA* Digital Arts
ECE* Early Childhood Education
ECN* Economics
$ENG^* \dots \dots English$
ESL*English as a Second Language
EVS* Environmental Science
GRA*
HDEV
$HIM^*.\dotsHealth\ Information\ Management$
HIS* History
HLT* Health
HSE*Human Services
HPE*Physical Education
HUM*Humanities
$MAS* \dots \dots MassageTherapy$
$MAT^* \dots \dots Mathematics$
MED*Medical Assisting
$MFG^*.\dotsManufacturing$
MUS*Music
$OCE^* \ldots \ldots Oceanography$
PHL* Philosophy
PHY* Physics
POL*Political Science
$PSY^*. \dots Psychology$
QUA* Quality Assurance
$SGN^* \dots Sign \ Language$
SOC* Sociology
SPA*Spanish
THR* Theatre

### **ELECTIVE REQUIREMENTS**

### Fine Arts Electives

ART\* COM\* 166 DAN\* DGA\* 111, 128 +ENG\* 206, 207, 213, 245, 281, 282, 283, +ENG\*285, 289 GRA\* MUS\* THR\*

### Foreign Language Electives\*\*

SGN\* SPA\*

\*\*WAIVER POLICY: In order to waive the foreign language requirement, a student must provide documentation indicating qualification based on one of the following criteria:

- Three sequential years of one language in high school, with a minimum C grade in the third year;
- Two sequential years of one language in high school and one second-level college language course in the same language, with a minimum C grade in the second-level language course; or
- Demonstration of equivalent competency of a language other than English.

An additional 6-8 Liberal Arts credits must be substituted for the foreign language electives in order to meet graduation requirements toward the degree.

### **Humanities Electives**

ART\* COM\* 101, 121, 173
+ENG\* (101 or above) +HIS\*
HUM\* MUS\*101
PHL\* SPA\*
SGN\* THR\*

### **Liberal Arts Electives**

ANT*	ART*	AST*	BIO*
CHE*	COM* 10	1, 173,	DAN*
DGA*	ECN*	ENG*	ESL*
EVS*	FRE*	GRA*	+HIS*
HUM*	MAT*	MUS*	OCE*
PHL*	PHY*	POL*	PSY*
SGN*	SOC*	SPA*	THR*

### **Math Electives**

All math courses numbered above 104 satisfy the math requirement unless otherwise noted within the degree program.

### Science Electives

AST*	BIO*	CHE*	EVS*
OCF*	PHY*		

### **Social and Behavioral Sciences Electives**

ANT\* ECN\* +HIS\* POL\*
PSY\* SOC\*

### Open Electives

Any credit course numbered 100 or above.

NOTE: All courses for degree credit must be numbered 100 or above.

Students planning to transfer should refer to the requirements of the receiving transfer institution.

\*Course designation has been converted to common course numbering for the Community College System.

# Connecticut State Colleges and Universities (CSCU) TRANSFERTICKET DEGREES

CSCU's Transfer Ticket are new degree programs providing pathways for community college students to complete degree programs that transfer to Connecticut State Universities (Central, Eastern, Southern, and Western) and Charter Oak State College without losing any credits or being required to take extra credits in order to complete a bachelor's degree in that same discipline. You will be able to transfer, apply to competitive majors, and complete your BA/BS degree in the same time with the same course requirements as students who start at CSU or COSC.

The Transfer Tickets offered at Asnuntuck Community College are:

- Art Studies
- Biology Studies
- Business Studies

Accounting Business Admin

Finance Management

Marketing

- Chemistry Studies
- Communication Studies
- Criminology Studies

- Early Childhood Teacher Credential Studies
- English Studies
- History Studies
- Mathematics Studies
- Physics Studies
- Political Science Studies
- Psychology Studies
- Social Work Studies
- Sociology Studies
- Spanish Studies

Please visit http://www.ct.edu/transfer OR http://asnuntuck.edu/program-page/cscu-transfer-ticket-degrees for details.

### **DEGREE PROGRAMS ACCOUNTING**

### (Associate in Science Degree)

The accounting program has four goals:

- To prepare students to be accounting paraprofessionals. The accounting employee with an associate degree can fill positions in business, industry and government including cost-accounting technician, budget technician, general bookkeeper, and various positions in the federal government;
- To provide students with an opportunity to take accounting courses in order to advance in their present job or to qualify for a promotion. These students may only require a few courses and may not wish to earn a degree;
- To provide accounting courses to students earning degrees in related areas such as business administration; and
- To allow the largest amount of credits to transfer to as many four-year colleges and universities as possible. We recommend that students be familiar with the requirements for the institution to which they will transfer. We encourage students to select their transfer college or university as early as possible. Students should see an advisor before choosing elective courses.

### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA required)

	ACC*	115	Financial Accounting	4
+	- ACC*	118	Managerial Accounting	4
+	- ACC*	123	Accounting Software Applications	OR
+	- CSA*	135	Spreadsheet Applications	3
+	- ACC*	275	Principles of Intermediate Accounting	14
+	- ACC*	276	Principles of Intermediate Accounting	II 4
+	- ACC*	233	Principles of Cost Accounting	4
	BMG*	202	Principles of Management	3
	BBG*	234	Legal Environment of Business	3
	Two c	ourses	s from among ACC* (ACC* 108 or high	er),
	BBG*	, BES*	, BFN*, BMG*, BMK*,	
	or a 3	credit	CSA* course	6-8
			Major Requirements:	35

Major Requirements: 35

### GENERAL EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS **HUMANITIES**

+ ENG* 101	Composition (Min. grade C required)	3
+ BBG* 210	Business Communication	OR
+ BBG* 240	Business Ethics	OR
+ HUM* 185	Problem Solving & Decision Making	OR
SOC 190	Self&Others: Dynamics of Diversity	OR
COM*173	Public Speaking	3
Humanities	Elective	3

### **FINE ARTS**

Fine Arts Elective	3	
--------------------	---	--

### **MATH**

+ MAT* 104 or higher	2
TIMAL 104 OF HIGHE	J

Transfer students should consult transfer institutions for course recommendations.

### **SCIENCE**

+ Scie	ence Ele	ctive		;	3-4

For transfer students, a lab science is recommended.

### SOCIAL AND BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES

ECN* 101	Principles of Macroeconomics	OR
ECN* 102	Principles of Microeconomics	3

### **ELECTIVES**

Open Elective(s) above 100				4
	Minimum	Gen.	Ed.:	25
		<b>G</b> 011.	<b>L</b> u	_ `

MINIMUM DEGREE CREDITS: 60

### SUGGESTED SEMESTER SEQUENCE

Some courses are not offered every semester. Please see an advisor to assist you in your plan of study.

+ Prerequisite Required

Fall	
ACC* 115 Financial Accounting	4
+ ENG* 101 Composition	3
+ MAT* 104 or higher	3
Fine Arts Elective	3-4
+ Science Elective** or Open Elective(s)**	3-4
Subtotal	16-18

<sup>\*\*</sup>For transfer students, a lab science is recommended.

ı	Spring			
	BMG <sup>3</sup>	<sup>£</sup> 202	Principles of Management	3
-	+ ACC*	118	Managerial Accounting	4
+	+ ACC*	123	Accounting Software Applications	OR
+	+ CSA*	135	Spreadsheet Applications	3
	ECN*	102	Microeconomics	3
	Selec	t ONE	course from among ACC*	
	(ACC <sup>+</sup>	<sup>•</sup> 108 o	r higher), BBG*, BES*, BFN*, BMG*,	
	BMK*	ora:	3 credit CSA* course	3-4
			Subtotal: 1	6-17

<sup>\*\*</sup>Transfer students should consult transfer institutions for course recommendations.

Fall		
+ ACC* 275	Principles of Intermediate Accoun	ting I 4
+ ACC* 233	Principles of Cost Accounting	4
BBG* 234	Legal Environment of Business	3
Open Electi	ve(s) higher than 100**	1-4
(**If a lab science is not chosen, you will no		
open ele	ctives to equal 4 credits or more)	

Subtotal: 15

Spring				
+ ACC* 276 Principles of Intermediate Accounting	II 4			
Humanities Elective	3			
Select ONE course from among ACC*				
(ACC* 108 or higher), BBG*, BES*, BFN*, BMG*,				
BMK*, or a 3 credit CSA* course	3-4			
+BBG* 210 <b>OR</b> +BBG* 240 <b>OR</b> +HUM* 185 <b>OR</b>				
SOC 190 <b>OR</b> COM* 173				
3				

Subtotal: 13-14

MINIMUM DEGREETOTAL: 60

### **BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION**

### (Associate in Science Degree)

The Business Administration degree and courses are designed to prepare students for work in either profit or not-for-profit organizations in the 21st century. Rapid changes in organizations are continuing to change the nature of work. This rapid pace of change will continue to provide many people in organizations with opportunities for challenging jobs. With reductions in the number of middle managers, many workers' jobs become more interesting as organizations provide opportunities for planning, working with others, developing new ideas, and implementing new concepts. Business courses are designed to prepare students for this exciting and challenging work environment.

Students completing the degree may choose to transfer to a four-year college, move immediately into work, or combine work with further education.

### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA required)

	BMG*202	Principles of Management	3		
+	BMK* 201	Principles of Marketing	3		
	BBG* 234	Legal Environment of Business	3		
	ACC* 115	Financial Accounting	4		
+	ACC* 118	Managerial Accounting	4		
	SelectTWO	electives from among BBG*, BES*,	, BFN*,		
	BMG*, or BMK*				
	One Computer Course (CSA*, CSC*, CST*)				

Major Requirements: 26

## GENERAL EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS HUMANITIES

+	ENG*	101	Composition (Min. grade C required)	3
+	BBG* 2	210	Business Communication	OR
	One ot	her E	nglish course above 100	OR
	SOC '	190	Self&Others: Dynamics of Diversity	OR
	COM*	173	Public Speaking	3
+	HUM*	185	Problem Solving and Decision Making	OR
+	BBG* 2	240	Business Ethics	3

### **FINE ARTS**

Fine Arts Elective	3
--------------------	---

### **MATH**

+ Two Math courses MAT\* 104 or higher 6-8 Transfer students should consult transfer institutions for course recommendations.

### **OPEN ELECTIVES**

Two courses higher than 100	7
(If a lab science or other 4 credit course is not chosen y	/ou
will needTHRFF courses to make the credits required.	)

#### SCIENCE

+ Science Elective 3-4
For transfer students, a lab science is recommended.

### SOCIAL AND BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES

Two electives in this category	6
Note: Economics is strongly recommended.	
Minimum Gen. Ed.: 3	34
MINIMUM DEGREE CREDITS:	60

### SUGGESTED SEMESTER SEQUENCE

Some courses are not offered every semester. Please see an advisor to assist you in your plan of study.

+ Prerequisite Required

Fall	
+ ENG* 101 Composition	3
Social and Behavioral Sciences Elective	3
Math Elective (MAT* 104 or higher**)	3-4
BMG* 202 Principles of Management	OR
+ BMK* 201 Principles of Marketing	3
CSA*, CSC*, or CST* course	3
C 1	1-1-1 45 47

Subtotal: 15-17

<sup>\*\*</sup> Transfer students should consult transfer institutions for course recommendations.

S	Spring Sp			
+	BMK* 201 Principles of Marketing	3		
+	- Math Elective (MAT* 104 or higher**)			
	BBG*, BES*, BFN*, BMG*, or BMK* elective			
	Open Elective higher than 100			
	Social and Behavioral Sciences Elective	3		

Subtotal: 15-16

<sup>\*\*</sup> Transfer students should consult transfer institutions for course recommendations.

Fall			
ACC* 115 Financial Accounting	4		
BBG* 234 Legal Environment of Business	3		
Open Elective higher than 100			
Fine Arts Elective	3-4		
+ Science Elective**	3-4		
Subtatal	16 17		

Subtotal: 16-17

<sup>\*\*</sup>If a lab science or other 4 credit course is not chosen you will need THREE Open Electives to make the 7 credits required.

5	Semeste	er 4		
4	- ACC*	118	Managerial Accounting	4
4	- HUM*	185	Problem Solving and Decision Making	OR
4	- BBG*	240	Business Ethics	3
Н	- BBG*	210	Business Communication	OR
	One o	ther E	nglish course above 100	OR
	SOC	190	Self&Others: Dynamics of Diversity	OR
	COM*	173	Public Speaking	3
	Busin	ess Ele	ective	3
	Open	Electiv	ve higher than 100	1-3

Subtotal: 14-16 MINIMUMTOTAL: 60

Degrees 56 www.asnuntuck.edu

### **COMMUNICATIONS**

### (Associate in Science Degree)

The Communications program is designed to provide a foundation of knowledge and skills needed in this rapidly changing industry. Students may choose the Communications A.S. degree, which provides a broad overview of communications, or they may specialize their studies with the Broadcasting or Journalism options. The Communications program emphasizes hands-on experience in the classroom, through internships, and in the Radio Practicum course. This program is intended for students wishing to transfer to four-year schools to further their studies and complete baccalaureate degrees.

### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA r	equired)
------------	----------

+	COM*101	Introduction to Mass Communication	1 3
+	COM*121	Journalism I	3
	COM*131	Audio Production	3
	COM*241	Television Production	3
+	COM*295	Internship I	OR
+	COM*191	Radio Practicum (1 credit)	OR
	COM* Elec	tive	1-3
+	CST* 150	Web Design and Development I	3
	DGA* 128	Digital Photography	3
	THR* 107	History of Film	3
	One course	from the following:	3
	ART* 141	Photography I	
+	COM*122	Sports Reporting	
	COM*166	Video Filmmaking	
	COM*200	Social Media Marketing	
+	COM*232	Advanced Audio Production	
+	COM*296	Internship II OR	
	One course	from:	3
	BBG*, BES	*, BFN*, BMG*, BMK*, DGA*,THR	

Major Requirements: 28

## GENERAL EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS HUMANITIES

+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
+ ENG* 102	Literature & Composition	OR
+ ENG* 103	Composition II	3
COM*173	Public Speaking	3
Humanities	Elective	3

### FINE ARTS

Fine Arts Elective	3-4

### **MATH**

+	Math Elective	(MAT*	104 or higher**)	3-4

Transfer students should consult transfer institutions for course recommendations.

### SCIENCE

+ Science Elective	3-4

For transfer students, a lab science is recommended.

### SOCIAL AND BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES

SOC 190	Self and Others:	Dynamics of Diversity	3
Two elective	es in this categor	/	6

### **OPEN ELECTIVES**

Open Elective higher than 100		;	3-4
	Minimum	Gen. Ed.:	33
MINIMU	M DEGREE	<b>CREDITS</b>	: 61

### SUGGESTED SEMESTER SEQUENCE

Semester 1		
+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
+ COM*101	Introduction to Mass Communication	3
COM*131	Audio Production	3
SOC 190	Self and Others: Dynamics of Diversity	3
Fine Arts Ele	ective 3	-4

Subtotal: 15-16

Semester 2		
+ COM*121	Journalism I	3
COM*241	Television Production	3
+ ENG* 102	Literature & Composition	OR
+ ENG* 103	Composition II	3
+ Math Electi	ve (MAT* 104 or higher**)	3-4
Social and	Behavioral Sciences Electiv	e 3
		Subtotal: 15-16

\*\*Transfer students should consult transfer institutions for course recommendations.

Semester 3		
COM*173	Public Speaking	3
+ CST* 150	Web Design & Development I	3
DGA* 128	Digital Photography	3
Science Elect	tive**	3-4
Humanities E	Elective	3
In addition, s	students must take 1-3 credits from	1-3
the following	g:	
+ COM*295	Internship I (3 credits)	
+ COM*191	Radio Practicum (1 credit)	
COM* Electiv	ve (3 credits)	
	Cubtatali	16 10

Subtotal: 16-19

<sup>\*\*</sup>For transfer students, a lab science is recommended.

_			
	Semester 4		
	THR* 107	History of Film	3
	Social and E	Behavioral Sciences Elective	3-4
	Open Electiv	ve	3-4
	One course	from the following:	3
	ART* 141	Photography I	
+	COM*122	Sports Reporting	
	COM*166	Video Filmmaking	
	COM*200	Social Media Marketing	
+	COM*232	Advanced Audio Production	
+	COM*296	Internship II	
	One course t	from BBG*, BES*, BFN*, BMG*, BMK*,	
	DGA, THR*		3
		0 1	- 4-

Subtotal: 15-17 MINIMUMTOTAL: 61

## COMMUNICATIONS: BROADCASTING OPTION

### (Associate in Science Degree)

Students choosing the Broadcasting Option focus their studies on media production. Classes include audio, video, and television production, as well as Web design. Broadcasting students are encouraged to enroll in the Radio Practicum class and pursue internships, as hands-on experience is highly valued in this aspect of the communications industry. The Broadcasting Option is designed for students wishing to transfer to four-year schools to pursue baccalaureate degrees.

### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA required)

•		·	
+	COM*101	Introduction to Mass Communication	3
	COM*131	Audio Production	3
	COM*166	Video Filmmaking	3
+	COM*232	Advanced Audio Production	3
	COM*241	Television Production	3
+	COM*295	Internship I	OR
+	COM*191	Radio Practicum	OR
	COM* Elect	tive higher than 100	1-3
+	CST* 150	Web Design & Development I	3
+	`THR* 110	Acting I	3
C	ne course fr	om the following:	3
	ART* 141	Photography I	
+	· COM*121	Journalism I	
+	· COM* 122	Sports Reporting	
	COM*200	Social Media Marketing	
+	· COM*296	Internship II	
	One course	from BBG*, BES*, BFN*, BMG*,	3
	BMK*, DGA	A*, orTHR* designation.	

Major Requirements: 28

## GENERAL EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS HUMANITIES

+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
+ ENG* 102	Literature & Composition	OR
+ ENG* 103	Composition II	3
COM*173	Public Speaking	3
Humanities Elective		3

### **FINE ARTS**

Fine Arts Elective	3-4

### **MATH**

+ Math Elective (MAT* 104 or higher**) 3-4	
--	--

Transfer students should consult transfer institutions for course recommendations.

### **SCIENCE**

+ Science Elective	3-4
For transfer students, a lab science is recommended	H

### **OPEN ELECTIVES**

O a a a El a ati a la falla antila a a 100	0.4
Open Elective higher than 100	3-4

### SOCIAL AND BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES

SOC 190	Self and Others:	Dynamics of	Diversity	3
Two elective	es in this category	/		6
		Minimum	Gen. Ed.:	33

MINIMUM DEGREE CREDITS: 61

### SUGGESTED SEMESTER SEQUENCE

S	emester 1		
+	ENG* 101	Composition	3
+	COM*101	Introduction to Mass Communication	3
	COM*131	Audio Production	3
	SOC 190	Self and Others: Dynamics of Diversity	3
	Fine Arts Ele	ective 3	-4

Subtotal: 15-16

S	emester 2		
	COM*241	Television Production	3
+	COM*232	Advanced Audio Production	3
+	ENG* 102	Literature & Composition	OR
+	ENG* 103	Composition II	3
+	Math Elect	ive (MAT* 104 or higher**)	3-4
	Social and	Behavioral Sciences Elective	3
		Subtota	l: 15-16

\*\*Transfer students should consult transfer institutions for course recommendations.

Semester 3			
COM*173	Public Speaking	3	
+ CST* 150 \	Web Design & Development I	3	
COM*166	Video Filmmaking	3	
+ Science Elect	ive**	3-4	
Humanities Elective			
In addition, students must take 1-3 credits from			
the following:			
+ COM* 295 Internship I			
+ COM* 191 I	Radio Practicum (1 credit)		
COM* Elective			
	Subtotal:	16-19	

Jubiotai. 10-13

<sup>\*\*</sup> For transfer students, a lab science is recommended.

Semester 4		
THR* 110	Acting I	3
Social and E	Behavioral Sciences Elective	3
Open Electi	ve higher than 100	3-4
One course	from the following:	3
ART* 141	Photography I +	
COM*121	Journalism I+	
COM*122	Sports Reporting	
COM*200	Social Media Marketing+	
COM*296	Internship II	
One course	from BBG*, BES*, BFN*, BMG*, BMK*,	3
DGA*, GRA*	*,THR*	

Subtotal: 15-16 MINIMUMTOTAL: 61

Degrees 58 www.asnuntuck.edu

### **COMMUNICATIONS: JOURNALISM OPTION**

### (Associate in Science Degree)

The Journalism Option is intended to give students a foundation of skills in both traditional and new media. Classes emphasize the practical application of interviewing, writing, and editing stories for print, broadcast, and online distribution. The Journalism Option is designed to prepare students to transfer to four-year schools and earn baccalaureate degrees.

### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2	0.	<b>GPA</b>	required)	١
14	.υ	UI A	I CUUII CU	,

+	COM*101	Introduction to Mass Communication	1 3
+	COM*121	Journalism I	3
	COM*131	Audio Production	3
	COM*241	Television Production	3
+	COM*295	Internship I	OR
+	COM*191	Radio Practicum (1 credit)	OR
	COM* Electi	ve	1-3
	CST* 150	Web Design & Development I	3
	DGA* 128	Digital Photography	3
	Minimum of	six credits from the following:	6
	ART* 141	Photography I	
+	COM* 122	Sports Reporting	
	COM* 166	Video Filmmaking	
	COM*200	Social Media Marketing	
+	COM*232	Advanced Audio Production	
+	COM*296	Internship II	
	One course	from BBG*, BES*, BFN*, BMG*, BMK*	, 3
	DGA*, THR*	designation.	
		M : D : .	

Major Requirements: 28

### **GENERAL EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS HUMANITIES**

+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
+ ENG* 102	Literature & Composition OR	
+ ENG* 103	Composition II	3
COM*173	Public Speaking	3
Humanities	Elective	3

### **FINE ARTS**

Fine Arts Elective 3-4	tive	3-4
------------------------	------	-----

### **MATH**

+ Math Elective (MAT* 104 or higher**)	3-4
Transfer students should consult transfer institu	utions for
course recommendations	

### **SCIENCE**

+ Science Elective	3-4
For transfer atudente	a lab asianas is recommended

### SOCIAL AND BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES

00017 1	_ /	<i>D2111</i> (1710111112	
SOC	190	Self and Others: Dynamics of Diversity	3
Two e	elective	es in this category	6

### **OPEN ELECTIVES**

Open Elective higher than 100			3	3-4
	Minimum	Gen.	Ed.:	33
MINIMUI	M DEGREE	CRF	OITS:	61

### SUGGESTED SEMESTER SEQUENCE

Semester 1		
+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
+ COM*101	Introduction to Mass Communication	3
COM*131	Audio Production	3
SOC 190	Self and Others: Dynamics of Diversity	/ 3
Fine Arts Ele	ective 3	3-4
	Subtotal: 15-	16

Semester 2		
+ COM*121	Journalism I	3
COM*241	Television Production	3
+ ENG* 102	Literature & Compositio	n OR
+ ENG* 103	Composition II	3
+ Math Electi	ve**	3-4
Social and	Behavioral Sciences	3
		Subtotal: 15-16

<sup>\*\*</sup>Transfer students should consult transfer institutions for course recommendations.

Semester 3		
COM*173	Public Speaking	3
+ CST* 150	Web Design & Development I	3
DGA* 128	Digital Photography	3
Science Ele	ective**	3-4
Humanities	s Elective	3
In addition	,students must take 1-3 credits from	1-3
the following	ng:	
+ COM* 295	Internship I (3 credits)	
+ COM* 191	Radio Practicum (1 credit)	
COM* Elect	tive (3 credits)	
	Subtotal:	16-19

<sup>\*\*</sup> For transfer students, a lab science is recommended.

Semester 4					
Social and I	Social and Behavioral Sciences Elective				
Open Electi	Open Elective higher than 100				
In addition,	students must take a minimum of	6			
six credits f	rom the following:				
ART* 141	Photography I +				
+ COM*122	Sports Reporting				
COM*166	Video Filmmaking				
COM*200	Social Media Marketing				
+ COM*232	Advanced Audio Production				
+ COM*296	Internship II				
One course from BBG*, BES*, BFN*, BMG*, BMK*, 3					
DGA*, GRA*,THR*					

Subtotal: 15-16 MINIMUMTOTAL: 61

### **CRIMINAL JUSTICE**

### (Associate in Science Degree)

This program provides a broad overview of the field of criminal justice and will prepare students for careers in this field. Program graduates may be employed as law enforcement officers, correctional officers, case workers, and court advocates.

### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA required)

•			•	
	CJS*	101	Introduction to Criminal Justice	3
	CJS*	102	Introduction to Corrections	OR
	CJS*	244	Community Based Corrections	3
	CJS*	120	Police and the Community	3
+	CJS*	201	Criminology	OR
+	CJS*	202	Juvenile Delinquency	3
+	CJS*	211	Criminal Law I	3
+	CJS*	213	Evidence & Criminal Procedure	3
	CJS*	Electi	ve	1
+	CJS*	290	Practicum in Criminal Justice	OR
	CJS*	Electi	ve	3
			Major Requireme	ante: 22

Major Requirements: 22

## GENERAL EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS HUMANITIES

+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
+ ENG* 103	Composition II (or higher with permission)	3
COM*173	Public Speaking	3
Humanities	Elective	3

### **FINE ARTS**

Fine Arts Elective 3-4	•
------------------------	---

### **MATH**

+ MAT* 104 or higher	3-4
Transfer attidents about a consult transfer in at	:++: a ma fa =

Transfer students should consult transfer institutions for course recommendations.

### **SCIENCE**

+	Science	Elect	ive				3-4
_					-		

For transfer students, a lab science is recommended.

### SOCIAL AND BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES

	POL* 111	American Government	OR
	POL* 112	State and Local Government	3
	PSY* Electi	ve	3
	SOC* 101	Principles of Sociology	3
	SOC 190	Self and Others: Dynamics of Diversity	3

### **ELECTIVES**

Directed Elective (with permission from Coordinator)	) 3
Open Elective higher than 100	3-4

Minimum Gen. Ed.: 39

MINIMUM DEGREE CREDITS: 61

### SUGGESTED SEMESTER SEQUENCE

Semester 1		
+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
PSY* Electi	ve	3
SOC 190	Self and Others: Dynamics of Diversity	3
SOC* 101	Principles of Sociology	3
CJS* 101	Introduction to Criminal Justice	3
CJS* Electi	ve	1

Subtotal: 16

Semester 2		
+ ENG* 103	Composition II (or higher with permission)	3
COM*173	Public Speaking	3
CJS* 102	Introduction to Corrections O	R
CJS* 244	Community Based Corrections	3
POL* 111	American Government OR	3
POL* 112	State and Local Government	
+ MAT* 104	or higher**	3
	Subtotal: 15-7	16

\*\*Transfer students should consult transfer institutions for course recommendations.

Semester 3	
CJS* 120 Police and the Community	3
+ CJS* 213 Evidence and Criminal Procedure	3
+ Science Elective**	3-4
Humanities Elective	3
Directed Elective (with permission of Coordinator	) 3
C. latatal 4	- 10

Subtotal: 15-16

<sup>\*\*</sup>For transfer students, a lab science is recommended.

Semes	ter 4				
+ CJS*	201	Criminology	OR		
+ CJS*	202	Juvenile Delinquency	3		
+ CJS*	211	Criminal Law I	3		
Fine A	Fine Arts Elective				
Open	Open Elective higher than 100				
CJS* Elective					
+ CJS*	290	Practicum in Criminal Justice	3		

Subtotal: 15-17 MINIMUM TOTAL: 61

## EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION

### (Associate in Science Degree)

Students who earn the Early Childhood Education Associate in Science Degree obtain employment as teacher assistants, paraprofessionals, literacy aides, and teachers of young children, ages birth through second grade, in private and public care and education settings in both Connecticut and Massachusetts. (Students wishing to teach in third grade and higher are advised to complete the A.S. in Liberal Studies to increase their likelihood of credits transferring to a four-year college.)

Graduates of this program may also choose to transfer credits earned to a four-year college to continue on to earn the Bachelor's Degree in Early Childhood Education and certification for careers working in public school settings, day cares, preschools, family resource centers and after school programs.

Our courses meet the Connecticut Head Teacher requirements and Massachusetts EEC Levels I, II, and III Certification requirements. The Early Childhood Education Associate Degree is accredited by the National Association for the Education of Young Children (NAEYC) and upholds these standards in both our Early Childhood Education Certificate and Degree programs.

### **MAJOR AREA REQUIREMENTS**

### (2.0 GPA required)

	ECE*	101	Introduction to Early Childhood Education	3
	ECE*	103	Creative Experiences/Children	3
4	F ECE*	210	Observation, Participation and Seminar	3
	ECE*	176	Health, Safety and Nutrition	3
	F ECE*	215	The Exceptional Learner	3
	F ECE*	231	Early Language and Literacy Development	3
	F ECE*	295	Student Teaching Practicum	6
			Major Requirements: 2	24

### GENERAL EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS HUMANITIES

+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
+ ENG* 102	Literature & Composition	3
ENG* 114	Children's Literature	3
COM*173	Public Speaking	OR
THR* 110	Acting I	3

### **FINE ARTS**

Fine Arts Elective	3-4

### MATH

+ MAT* 104 or higher 3	3-4	MAT* 104 or higher	+
------------------------	-----	--------------------	---

Transfer students should consult transfer institutions for course recommendations.

### **SCIENCE**

+	Science Elective	3-4

For transfer students, a lab science is recommended.

### SOCIAL AND BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES

	PSY* 111	General Psychology I	3
	ECE* 182	Child Development	OR
Н	- PSY* 203	Child Development	3
	SOC* 101	Principles of Sociology	3
	SOC 190	Self & Others: Dynamics of Diversity	3

### **ELECTIVES**

Open Elective higher than 100	3-4
(For transfer students, +HIS* recommended)	
ECE* Elective OR SOC* Elective	3

Minimum Gen. Ed.: 39 MINIMUM DEGREE CREDITS: 63

### SUGGESTED SEMESTER SEQUENCE

		1		
2	Semest	erı		
+	ENG*	101	Composition	3
	ECE*	101	Introduction to Early Childhood Education	3
	ECE*	176	Health, Safety, & Nutrition	3
	PSY*	111	General Psychology I	3
+	MAT*	104 or	higher**	3
			Subtotal: 1	5

\*\* Transfer students should consult transfer institutions for course recommendations.

Semester 2		
ECE*103	Creative Experiences/Children	3
ENG* 114	Children's Literature	3
+ ENG* 102	Literature & Composition	3
+ ECE* 215	The Exceptional Learner	3
SOC* 101	Principles of Sociology	3
SOC 190	Self and Others: Dynamics of Divers	ity 3
	Subtota	l: 18

Semester 3		
+ ECE* 210	Observation, Participation and	d Seminar 3
COM*173	Public Speaking	OR
THR* 110	Acting I	3
ECE* 182	Child Development	OR
+PSY*203	Child Development	3
ECE* Electiv	ve OR SOC* Elective	3
+ ECE* 231	Early Language & Literacy Dev	elopment 3
	,	Subtotal: 15

Semester 4		
+ ECE* 295	Student Teaching Practicum	6
Open Electi	ive higher than 100	3-4
+ Science Ele	ctive**	3-4
Fine Arts El	ective	3-4

Subtotal: 15-18 MINIMUM TOTAL: 63

<sup>\*\*</sup>For transfer students, a lab science is recommended.

## COLLEGE OF TECHNOLOGY: ENGINEERING SCIENCE

### (Associate in Science Degree)

The Engineering Pathway program is offered systemwide. It consists of coursework in engineering, mathematics, and the sciences, and GENERAL EDUCATION requirements that provide a solid comprehensive background for continuation in a four-year engineering degree program. A grade average of "B" with no grade less than "C" is required for automatic continuation at the University of Connecticut's School of Engineering, University of Hartford's College of Engineering, or the University of New Haven. The curriculum is designed to serve as the first two years of the Bachelor of Science degree. Some courses in this program are not offered at Asnuntuck Community College but can be taken at other Connecticut community colleges.

### MAJOR REQUIREMENTS

(3.0 GPA required)

+	MAT* 268	Calculus III, Multivariable	4
+	MAT* 285	Differential Equations	3
+	ENGR XXX	X Applied Mechanics I	3
+	ENGR XXX	X Applied Mechanics II	3
+	PHY* 221	Calculus-Based Physics I	4
+	PHY* 222	Calculus-Based Physics II	4
+	CSC* 210	C Programming	3
	Two Techn	ical Electives OR	
	Foreign La	anguage Electives (2)	6
		84 : 5 :	~~

Major Requirements: 30

## GENERAL EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS HUMANITIES

+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
+ ENG* 103	Composition II	3
FINE ARTS		
Fine Arts Fle	ective	3

### SOCIAL AND BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES/HUMANI-TIES

SOC 190	Self and Others: Dynamics of	Diversity 3
Two Electiv	ves in this category:	6
(History, W	estern Culture recommended	OR
Humanitie	s: PHL* recommended)	

### MATH

+ CHE\* 121

SCIENCE			
+ MAT* 256	Calculus II	4	4
+ MAT* 254	Calculus I	4	4
IVIAI N			

General Chemistry I

+ CHE\* 122 General Chemistry II 4 Minimum Gen. Ed.: 34 MINIMUM DEGREE CREDITS: 64

### SUGGESTED SEMESTER SEQUENCE

Semester 1		
+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
+ CHE* 121	General Chemistry I	4
+ MAT* 254	Calculus I	4
+ CSC* 210	C Programming	3
Fine Arts El	ective	3
		Subtotal: 17

Semes	ter 2		
+ ENG <sup>3</sup>	103	Composition II	3
+ CHE*	122	General Chemistry II	4
+ MAT	256	Calculus II	4
Socia	I and I	Behavioral Sciences Elective	3
(Histo	ry, We	estern Culture recommended)	

Subtotal: 14

Semester 3 + ENGR XXX Applied Mechanics I 3 + MAT* 268 Calculus III, Multivariable 4 + PHY* 221 Calculus-Based Physics I 4 Technical or Foreign Language Elective 3 Social and Behavioral Sciences Elective OR Humanities (Philosophy recommended)						
+ MAT* 268 Calculus III, Multivariable 4 + PHY* 221 Calculus-Based Physics I 4 Technical or Foreign Language Elective 3 Social and Behavioral Sciences Elective OR 3	5	Semester	3			
+ PHY* 221 Calculus-Based Physics I 4 Technical or Foreign Language Elective 3 Social and Behavioral Sciences Elective OR 3	+	ENGR X	ΚXΧ	Applied Mechanics I		3
Technical or Foreign Language Elective 3 Social and Behavioral Sciences Elective OR 3	+	MAT* 26	68	Calculus III, Multivariable		4
Social and Behavioral Sciences Elective OR 3	+	PHY* 22	21	Calculus-Based Physics I		4
		Technica	al or	Foreign Language Elective		3
Humanities (Philosophy recommended)		Social a	nd B	ehavioral Sciences Elective	OR	3
		Humar	nities	(Philosophy recommended	d)	

Subtotal: 17

Semester 4		
+ ENGR XXX	Applied Mechanics II	3
+ MAT* 285	Differential Equations	3
+ PHY* 222	Calculus-Based Physics II	4
Technical or	Foreign Language Elective	3
SOC 190	Self and Others: Dynamics of Diversity	3

Subtotal: 16 MINIMUM TOTAL: 64

4

### **GENERAL STUDIES**

### (Associate in Science Degree)

This program is designed for students who wish to explore a broad range of subjects and interests. The General Studies program allows for maximum flexibility in the choice of courses. Students should regularly seek advising to align course selection with academic and career goals.

### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA required)

### **HUMANITIES**

+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
+ ENG* 102	Literature and Composition	3
COM*173	Public Speaking	OR
THR* 110	Acting I	3

### **FINE ARTS**

Fine Arts Elective	3-4
I III AIG LICUIVE	J- <del>-</del>

### **HUMAN DEVELOPMENT**

HDEV 101	First Year Experience	3
(to be taker	within the first 12 credits)	

### SOCIAL AND BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES

SOC 190	Self and Others: Dynamics of Diversity	3
Three Elect	ives in this category	9

### **MATH**

+ Math Elective (MAT* 104 or higher)	3-4
Transfer students should consult transfer institution	s for

Transfer students should consult transfer institutions for course recommendations.

### **SCIENCE**

+ Science Elective		3-4
For transfer students	a lab ecianca is recommended	1

### **ELECTIVES**

Open Electives higher than 100	27-30
Minimum	Gen. Ed.: 60
MINIMUM DEGREE	CREDITS: 60

### SUGGESTED SEMESTER SEQUENCE

Semester 1		
+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
COM*173	Public Speaking OR	3
THR* 110	Acting I	
HDEV 101	First Year Experience	3
+ Math Electiv	ve (MAT 104 or higher**)	3-4
Open Electiv	ve higher than 100	3-4
		Subtotal: 15-17

<sup>\*\*</sup> Transfer students should consult transfer institutions for course recommendations.

Semester 2		
Fine Arts Ele	ective	3-4
+ ENG* 102	Literature & Composition	3
SOC 190	Self and Others: Dynamics of Div	ersity 3
+ Science Ele	ctive**	3-4
Open Electi	ve higher than 100	3-4
	Subtot	al: 15-18

<sup>\*\*</sup>For transfer students, a lab science is recommended.

### Semester 3

Social and Behavioral Sciences Electives (Two cour	ses) 6
Open Electives higher than 100 (3 courses)	9-12

Subtotal: 15-18

#### Semester 4

Social and Behavioral Sciences Elective	3
Open Electives higher than 100 (4 courses)	12-16

Subtotal: 15-19

MINIMUMTOTAL: 60

### **HUMAN SERVICES**

### (Associate in Science Degree)

The field of Human Services is broadly defined, uniquely approaching the objective of meeting human needs through an interdisciplinary knowledge base, focusing on prevention as well as remediation of problems, and maintaining a commitment to improving the overall quality of life of service populations. The Human Services profession is one which promotes improved service delivery systems by addressing not only the quality of direct services, but also by seeking to improve accessibility, accountability, and coordination among professionals and agencies in human service delivery. (National Organization for Human Services.)

Because the field of Human Services is so diverse, coursework at the A.S. level reflects this as well. Students are advised which electives to take based on career and educational goals that may focus on mental health, case work, gerontology, working with juvenile offenders and more. Course work culminates in two capstone courses: Human Services Agencies and Organizations and Field Work where students spend 120 hours working in a Human Services agency.

### MAJOR REQUIREMENTS

(2.0 GPA required)

### **HUMAN SERVICES**

HSE* 101	Introduction to Human Services	3
+ PSY* 212	Health Psychology	OR
HSE* 236	Legal Issues in Human Services	3
+ HSE* 241	Human Services Agencies and	
	Organizations	3
+ HSE* 281	Human Services Field Work I	3
	Major Poquiromento	12

Major Requirements: 12

## GENERAL EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS HUMANITIES

+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
+ ENG* 102	or higher	3
COM*173	Public Speaking	3

### **FINE ARTS**

Fine Arts Elective 3-4			
	F	Fine Arts Elective	3-4

### SOCIAL AND BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES

R
_
3
3
3
3
R
3
3
3

### MATH

+ MAI* 104 or higher	3-4
Transfer students should consult transfer institution	s fo
course recommendations.	

### **SCIENCE**

+ Science Elective 3-4
For transfer students, a lab science is recommended.

### **ELECTIVES**

Open Electives higher than 100	9-12	
Minimum Gen. I	Ēd.: 48	3
MINIMUM DEGREE CRED	ITS: 60	)

### SUGGESTED SEMESTER SEQUENCE

Semester 1		
+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
SOC 190	Self and Others: Dynamics of Dive	ersity 3
HSE* 101	Introduction to Human Services	3
PSY* 111	General Psychology I	3
+ MAT* 104 c	or higher **	3-4
	Subtota	l: 15-16

\*\* Transfer students should consult transfer institutions for course recommendations.

Semester 2		
+ ENG* 102	or higher	3
PSY* 112	General Psychology II	3
SOC* 101	Principles of Sociology	3
+ HSE* 241	Human Services Agencies and	
	Organizations	3
COM*173	Public Speaking	3
	Sub	total: 15

S	Semest	ter 3		
	Open	Electiv	/e	3-4
+	PSY	201	Life Span Development	OR
+	PSY*	245	Abnormal Psychology	3
	POL*	111	American Government	OR
	POL*	112	State and Local Government	3
	HSE*	236	Legal Issues in Human Services	OR
+	PSY*	212	Health Psychology	3
	Fine A	rts Ele	ective	3-4
			0 1.11.	1 45 47

Subtotal: 15-17

Semester 4		
+ HSE* 281	3	
+ Science Ele	ective**	3-4
+ PSY* 143	Counseling Skills	3
Two Open	Electives higher than 100	6-8
	Sul	ototal: 15-18
	MINIMUI	MTOTAL: 60

<sup>\*\*</sup>For transfer students, a lab science is recommended.

Degrees 64 www.asnuntuck.edu

### LIBERAL ARTS

### (Associate in Arts Degree)

This program provides a broad background in humanities, social sciences, natural sciences, and mathematics. The Liberal Arts program of study closely aligns with the general education and liberal arts coursework typically required by four-year colleges and universities. It is intended to provide maximum opportunity for transfer.

### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA required)

### **HUMANITIES**

+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
+ ENG* 102	Literature & Composition	3
COM*173	Public Speaking	OR
THR* 110	Acting I	3
Humanities	Elective	3

### FINE ARTS ELECTIVE

Fine Arts Elective	3-4
--------------------	-----

### FOREIGN LANGUAGE

Two sequential	semesters of language
----------------	-----------------------

### **HUMAN DEVELOPMENT**

HDEV 101	First Year Experience	3
----------	-----------------------	---

### SOCIAL AND BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES

SOC 190	Self and Othe	ers: Dynamics	of Diversity	3
Choose one	course from:	ANT*, PSY*,	SOC*	3
Choose one	course from:	ECN*, POL*		3
Choose one	course from:	+HIS*		3

### **MATH**

+ Math Elective (MAT* 140 or higher)	3-4
Transfer students should consult transfer institution	ns for
course recommendations.	

### SCIENCE

+ Science Elective 3	-4
+ Lab Science Elective	4
For transfer students, a lab science is recommended	

### LIBERAL ARTS ELECTIVES

Four Electives in this category	12-16
---------------------------------	-------

### FI FCTIVES

LLLCTIVLO	
Open Elective 100 or higher	3-4
Minim	um Gen. Ed.: 61
MINIMUM DEGF	REE CREDITS: 61

### SUGGESTED SEMESTER SEQUENCE

Semester 1		
+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
SOC 190	Self and Others: Dynam	ics of Diversity 3
COM*173	Public Speaking OR	3
THR* 110	Acting I	
+ Math Electiv	ve (MAT* 140 or higher)	3-4
HDEV 101	First Year Experience	3
		Subtotal: 15-16

Semester 2	
+ ENG* 102 Literature & Composition	3
Humanities Elective	3
Science Elective (1 lab science required)	4
Social and Behavioral Sciences Elective	3
Liberal Arts Elective	3-4
Subt	total: 16-17

Semester 3	
Foreign Language	3
Science Elective	3-4
Fine Arts Elective	3-4
Social and Behavioral Sciences Elective	3
Liberal Arts Elective	3-4
Subto	tal: 15-19

Semester 4	
Foreign Language	3
Social and Behavioral Sciences Elective	3
Liberal Arts Electives	6-8
Open Electives	6-8
Subtot	al: 18-22
MINIMUMTO	OTAL: 64

Students can be waived from the foreign language requirement with the following documented qualifications. If waived, students will need to substitute at least 6 Liberal Arts credits to replace the foreign language requirement. Note: these options reflect policy of Asnuntuck Community College only. Options may differ with other postsecondary institutions.

- Successful completion of the third level\* or higher of one foreign language in high school.
  - \*If the student has completed only up to the second level, the student can request to take the second level of a foreign language (college SPA 102, SGN 102, etc.) to satisfy the foreign language requirement Requests must be made to the Program Coordinator of Liberal Arts or Liberal Arts/Fine Arts.
- 2. Passing the CLEP standardized examination.
- Foreign language proficiency in a language other than English can be assessed on an individual basis.

If waived, ENG\* 114, 211, 213, 233, or +MAT\*146 recommended.

### LIBERAL ARTS

# (Associate in Arts Degree) Plan of Study with The University of Connecticut Psychology Department as of October 21, 2008

This is a transfer agreement between Asnuntuck Community College and the University of Connecticut for students majoring in psychology. Courses must be completed within seven years of transfer with a grade of C or better. Information is available on the Asnuntuck Community College website and the UCONN Transfer website.

### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA required)

### SUGGESTED SEMESTER SEQUENCE

Semester 1		
+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
PSY* 111	General Psychology I	3
HDEV 101	First Year Experience	3
+ MAT* 137	Intermediate Algebra	3
Humanities		
(COM* 173 orTHR* 110)		3
		Subtotal: 15

Semester 2 + ENG\* 102 Literature & Composition 3 3 **Humanities Elective** (PHL\* 101, 111, 131 or 150) 1st Semester of a Language OR + MAT\* 146 Math for Liberal Arts 3 4 Lab Science (BIO\* 121 or BIO\* 122) PSY\* 112 General Psychology II 3 Subtotal: 16

Semester 3	
Art Elective	3
(ART* 100, 101, 102 orTHR*101)	
SOC 190 Self & Others	3
Social Science Elective	
(ECN* 101, 102 or POL* 103, 111)	3
Science Elective	3-4
(OCE* 101 or BIO* 115)	
2nd Semester of a Language	OR
Liberal Arts Elective (+ENG* 114, 211, or 213)	3
+PSY* 203, 240, 243, or 245	3

Subtotal: 18-19

Semester 4	
Social Science	3
(+HIS* 101, 102, 201, or 202)	
+ MAT* 167 Principles of Statistics	3
ANT* 101 Introduction to Anthropolog	у 3
+ PSY* 203, 240, 243, or 245	3
SOC* 101 Principles of Sociology	3

Subtotal: 15 MINIMUM TOTAL: 64

**RECOMMENDED ELECTIVES:** ART\*, BIO\* 121, 122, +ENG\* 103, +MAT\* 222, +HIS\*101, 201, 202, HUM\*, PHL\* 101, 111, 131.

### LIBERAL ARTS/PERFORMING ARTS ELECTIVES:

ART\*, BIO\*, CHE\*, COM\*, ENG\*,THR\*, MAT\*, PHL\*, PHY\*

**SOCIAL SCIENCE ELECTIVES:** ANT\*, ECN\*, GEO\*, +HIS\*, POL\*, SOC\*

### \*SUGGESTED PSYCHOLOGY ELECTIVES:

+PSY\* 203, 240, 243, 245.

\*Psychology courses that have been articulated with UCONN. Only two of the 200-level psychology courses will transfer into the Psychology Major at UCONN. Students must earn a grade of C or better; courses must be completed within seven years prior to transfer to UCONN. Other courses may be used for credit toward graduation pending approval by UCONN.

Students can be waived from the foreign language requirement with the following documented qualifications. If waived, students will need to substitute at least 6 Liberal Arts credits to replace the foreign language requirement. Note: these options reflect policy of Asnuntuck Community College only. Options may differ with other postsecondary institutions.

- Successful completion of the third level\* or higher of one foreign language in high school.
  - \*If the student has completed only up to the second level, the student can request to take the second level of a foreign language (college SPA 102, SGN 102, etc.) to satisfy the foreign language requirement Requests must be made to the Program Coordinator of Liberal Arts or Liberal Arts/Fine Arts.
- 2. Passing the CLEP standardized examination.
- 3. Foreign language proficiency in a language other than English can be assessed on an individual basis.

If waived, ENG\* 114, 211, 213, 233, or +MAT\*146 recommended.

## LIBERAL ARTS — FINE ARTS OPTION

### (ASSOCIATE IN ARTS DEGREE)

This program provides a focus on the basic principles of a work of art as explored primarily through Art Appreciation, Drawing, Design and other studio courses. The requirements of art history and other liberal arts courses support the student in acquiring a broad view of human experience. The program transfers well to a four-year institution. It is recommended that students confer with a transfer counselor early on in their experience at Asnuntuck.

### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA required)

ART* 102 Art History II 3 ChooseTWO of the following: ART*, DGA*, GRA*, orTHR* 107 6	ART*	123	Design I		3
Choose TWO of the following: ART*, DGA*, GRA*, or THR* 107	ART*	101	Art History I		OR
ART*, DGA*, GRA*, orTHR* 107	ART*	102	Art History II		3
	Choo	seTWC	of the following:		
ART* 100 Humanities (Directed Elective) 3	ART*	, DGA*	, GRA*, orTHR* 107		6
Art Appreciation	ART*	100	•	/e)	3
ART* 111 Fine Arts (Directed Elective) 3	ART*	111	Fine Arts (Directed Elective)		3
Drawing I			Drawing I		

Subtotal: 18

## GENERAL EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS HUMANITIES

+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
+ ENG* 102	Literature & Composition	OR
+ ENG* 103	Composition II	3
COM*173	Public Speaking	OR
THR* 110	Acting I	3

### HUMAN DEVELOPMENT

HDEV 101 First Year Experience 3

### SOCIAL AND BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES & HUMANITIES

SOC 190	Self and Others:	<b>Dynamics of Diversity</b>	3
Choose one	course from: AN	T*, PSY*, SOC*	3
Choose one	course from: ECI	N*, POL*	3
Choose one	course from: +HI	S*	3/

### **MATH**

+ Math Elective (MAT* 140 or higher)	3-4
Transfer students should consult transfer institution	s for
course recommendations.	

### SCIENCE

+ Science Elective	3-4
+ Science Elective (A Lab Science must be taken)	4

### **FOREIGN LANGUAGE**

Two sequential semesters of language 6

#### **ELECTIVES**

ART\*, DGA\*, GRA\*, orTHR\* 107 Recommended 3

Minimum Gen. Ed.: 43

MINIMUM DEGREE CREDITS: 61

### SUGGESTED SEMESTER SEQUENCE

Semester 1		
+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
ART* 111	Drawing I	3
HDEV 101	First Year Experience	3
Social and E	Sehavioral Sciences/Humanities Electives	3
ART* 123	Design I	3

Subtotal: 15

Semester 2		
Science Ele	ctive	3-4
ART* 100	Art Appreciation	3
+ ENG* 102	Literature & Composition	on <b>OR</b>
+ ENG* 103	Composition II	3
+ Math Electi	ve 104 or higher**	3-4
Social and I	Behavioral Sciences/Huma	anities Elective 3
		Subtotal: 16-17

\*\*Transfer students should consult transfer institutions for course recommendations.

Semester 3		
+ Lab Science	e Elective**	3-4
ChooseTW	O (ART*, DGA*, GRA*, orTHR* 107)	6
ART* 101	Art History I (Fall)	OR
ART* 102	Art History II (Spring)	3
Foreign Lar	nguage	3
	Subtotal:	15-16

\*\*For transfer students, a lab science is recommended.

Semester 4		
SOC 190	Self and Others: Dynamics of Diversity	3
Open Electi	ve (ART*, DGA*, GRA*, orTHR* 107)	3
Social and E	Behavioral Sciences/Humanities Elective	3
Foreign Lan	guage	3
COM*173	Public Speaking C	R
THR* 110	Acting I	3

Subtotal: 15

MINIMUM TOTAL: 61

Students can be waived from the foreign language requirement with the following documented qualifications. If waived, students will need to substitute at least 6 Liberal Arts credits to replace the foreign language requirement. Note: these options reflect policy of Asnuntuck Community College only. Options may differ with other postsecondary institutions.

- Successful completion of the third level\* or higher of one foreign language in high school.
  - \*If the student has completed only up to the second level, the student can request to take the second level of a foreign language (college SPA 102, SGN 102, etc.) to satisfy the foreign language requirement Requests must be made to the Program Coordinator of Liberal Arts or Liberal Arts/Fine Arts.
- 2. Passing the CLEP standardized examination.
- Foreign language proficiency in a language other than English can be assessed on an individual basis.

If waived, ENG\* 114, 211, 213, 233, or +MAT\*146 recommended.

### **MASSAGE THERAPY**

### (Associate in Science Degree)

This program provides a broad background in the principles and ethics of massage therapy:

- Students will be able to perform a full body massage using and integrating effleurage, petrissage, vibration, friction and tapotement.
- Students will demonstrate a knowledge of anatomy and physiology, and understand the origin, insertion and actions of the muscles of the upper and lower body.
- Students will understand pathologies and how to work safely and effectively with those using massage therapy, as well as demonstrate knowledge of the principles of Massage Therapy.
- Students will understand business practices of massage therapy.

### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA required)

+ MED* 116	Anatomy & Physiology for Medical Asst.	4
MAS* 101	MassageTheory and Practice	3
+ MAS* 104	MassageTherapy I	4
MAS* 122	Musculoskeletal Anatomy***	4
+ MAS* 133	Pathology 1	3
+ MAS* 170	Massage Business and Ethics	3
+ MAS* 222	Kinesiology for MassageTherapy	3
+ MAS* 148	MassageTherapy II	4
+ MAS* 233	Pathology 2	3
+ MAS* 248	MassageTherapy III	4
+ MAS* 260	Massage Therapy	
	Clinical Internship	4

Major Requirements: 39

\*\*\* MAS\* 122 Musculoskeletal Anatomy does not satisfy the Lab Science requirement for any Associate's Degree at Asnuntuck.

## GENERAL EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS HUMANITIES

+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
COM*173	Public Speaking	3

## SOCIAL AND BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES & HUMANITIES

ChooseTWO courses from: ANT*, PSY*, SOC*,	6
ECN*, POL*, +HIS*	

### **MATH**

+ Math Elective 10	4 or higher	3-4
+ Math Elective 10	4 or higher	3-

### FINE ARTS ELECTIVES

A Fine Arts elective from ART*, DGA*, GRA*,	THR*	or
see catalog for select ENG* courses		3

### **SCIENCE**

A Science Elective (BIO\* 111 Nutrition is recommended)3-4
Minimum Gen Ed. 21

MINIMUM DEGREE CREDITS: 60

### SUGGESTED SEMESTER SEQUENCE

Semester 1		
+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
MAS* 101	MassageTheory and Practice	3
+ MAS* 104	MassageTherapy I	4
+ MAS* 133	Pathology 1	3
+ MED* 116	Anatomy & Physiology for Medical Asst.	4
	Subtotal:	17

Semester 2		
+ MAT* Elect	ive 104 or higher**	3-4
MAS* 122	Musculoskeletal Anatomy***	4
+ MAS* 148	MassageTherapy II	4
+ MAS* 170	Massage Business and Ethics	3
+ MAS* 233	Pathology 2	3
	Subtot	al: 17-18

\*\* Transfer students should consult transfer institutions for course recommendations.

Semester 3		
COM 173	Public Speaking	3
Social/Behav	vioral Sciences Elective 100 or higher	3
+ MAS* 222	Kinesiology for MassageTherapy	3
+ MAS* 248	MassageTherapy III	4
	Subtotal:	13

•	
Semester 4	
Social/Behavioral Sciences Elective 100 or higher	3
+ MAS* 260 Massage Therapy	
Clinical Internship	4
A Fine Arts Elective	3
A Science Elective (BIO* 111 is recommended)	3-4
Contractal	. 10

Subtotal: 13

MINIMUM DEGREE TOTAL: 60

<sup>\*\*</sup>For transfer students, a lab science is recommended

## REGISTERED MEDICAL ASSISTANT

### (Associate in Science Degree)

The Registered Medical Assistant degree is designed to prepare students for entry-level positions in private medical offices, hospitals, home health care agencies, nursing homes, clinics and diagnostic centers or take it to the next level and become certified.

Successful completion of the program satisfies the eligibility requirements needed to sit for a voluntary national certification exam sponsored by the American Medical Technologists, a nationally recognized certification agency for allied health professionals.

### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA required)

	MED* 111	Medical Office Procedures	3
+	MED* 112	Medical Insurance and Coding	3
+	MED* 116	Anatomy & Physiology for Medical Asst.	4
	MED* 125	MedicalTerminology	3
+	MED* 133	Clinical Medical Assisting	4
+	MED* 142	Clinical Lab. Procedures and Practices I	4
	MED* 170	Law and Ethics for Health Careers	3
	MED* 240	Psychology and Communication in	
		Healthcare for Medical Assisting	3
+	MED* 242	Clinical Lab. Procedures and Practices II	4
+	MED* 250	Principles of Pharmacology	3
+	MED* 280	Medical Assistant Externship	4
		Major Requirements: 3	38

## GENERAL EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS HUMANITIES

+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
COM*173	Public Speaking	OR
THR* 110	Acting I	3

### SOCIAL AND BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES & HUMANITIES

SOC 190	Self and Others: Dynamics of Diversity	3
Choose one	course from: ANT*, PSY*, SOC*,	3
ECN*, POL*	, +HIS*	

### **MATH**

+ Math Elective 104 or higher	3-4
-------------------------------	-----

### FINE ARTS ELECTIVES

A Fine Arts elective from ART*, DGA*, GRA*,	THR*	or
see catalog for select ENG* courses		3

### SCIENCE

•	0:2::02		
	A Lab Science		4
		Minimum Gen Ed.	22

MINIMUM DEGREE CREDITS: 60

### SUGGESTED SEMESTER SEQUENCE

Semester 1		
+ENG* 101	Composition	3
MED* 111	Medical Office Procedures	3
+ MED* 116	Anatomy & Physiology for Medical Asst.	4
MED* 125	MedicalTerminology	3
+ MED* 133	Clinical Medical Assisting	4
	Subtotal:	17

S	emester 2		
+	MAT* Elect	ive 104 or higher**	3-4
+	MED* 112	Medical Insurance and Coding	3
+	MED* 142	Clinical Lab. Procedures and Practices	14
	MED* 170	Law and Ethics for Health Careers	3
	SOC 190	Self and Others: Dynamics of Diversity	3

Subtotal: 16-17

<sup>\*\*</sup>Transfer students should consult transfer institutions for course recommendations.

Semester 3		
COM*173	Public Speaking	OR
THR* 110	Acting I	3
MED* 240	Psychology and Communication	in
	Healthcare for Medical Assisting	3
+ MED* 242	Clinical Lab. Procedures and Prac	tices II 4
+ MED* 250	Principles of Pharmacology	3
	Sub	total: 13

<sup>\*\*</sup>For transfer students, a lab science is recommended.

Semester 4		
+ MED* 280	Medical Assistant Externship	4
Social/Behav	ioral Sciences Elective 100 or higher	3
A Fine Arts E	lective	3
A Lab Science	e	4
	O 1-1-1-1	4.4

Subtotal: 14

MINIMUM DEGREE TOTAL: 60

# Technology Studies LEAN MANUFACTURING AND SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT OPTION

### (Associate in Science Degree)

The College of Technology is a specialized curriculum that allows a student to begin technology or engineering technology studies at any of the state's twelve community colleges with the ultimate goal of achieving a four-year, baccalaureate degree in Technology at Central Connecticut State University or Charter Oak State College. The curriculum is designed to serve as the first two years of the Bachelor of Science degree.

### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA required)

### LEAN MANUFACTURING CERTIFICATE

	Certificate Tota	l: 6
+ MFG* 271	Advanced Lean Manufacturing	3
MFG* 171	Introduction to Lean Manufacturing	3

### SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT CERTIFICATE

	Certificate Total:	6
+ MFG* 272	Implementing Lean Supply Chain Mgmt	3
MFG* 172	Intro to Lean Supply Chain Management	3

### **TECHNICAL ELECTIVES**

Directed Liective II	3-4
Directed Elective II	3-4
Directed Elective I	3-4
+ CAD* 133 CAD Mechanical AUTO	CAD 3

Subtotal: 21-23

## GENERAL EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS HUMANITIES

COM*173	Public Speaking	3
+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
+ ENG* 202	Technical Writing	3
Any PHL* (P	hilosophy) course	3

### **FINE ARTS**

A Fine Arts Elective	3-4

### SOCIAL AND BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES/LIBERAL ARTS

SOC 190	Self and Others: Dynamics of Diversity	3
ECN* 101	Principles of Macroeconomics	3
Elective Soc	ial and Behavioral Sciences	3
(+HIS* or EC	CN* recommended)	
Elective Soc	ial and Behavioral Sciences	3
(POL* or +H	IS* recommended )	R
Liberal Arts:	GEO* recommended	

### **MATH**

+ MAT* 167	Principles of Statistics	3
+ MAT* 186	Precalculus	4
SCIENCE		
+ CHE* 111	Concepts of Chemistry	4
+ PHY* 110	Introductory Physics	4

### SUGGESTED SEMESTER SEQUENCE

Semester 1		
+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
COM*173	Public Speaking	3
+ MAT* 167	Principles of Statistics	3
+ CHE* 111	Concepts of Chemistry	4
MFG* 171	Introduction to Lean Manufacturing	3

Subtotal: 16

Semester 2		
+ ENG* 202	Technical Writing	3
+ MFG* 271	Advanced Lean Manufacturing	3
+ MAT* 186	Precalculus	4
+ PHY* 110	Introductory Physics	4
Elective Soc	cial and Behavioral Sciences	3
(+HIS* or ECN	I* Recommended)	

Subtotal: 17

ECN* 101 Principles of Macroeconomics 3 PHL* XXX Any Philosophy Course 3
PHI * VVV Any Philosophy Course
THE AAA Ally Filliosophy Course 5
Directed Elective I 3-4
+ CAD* 133 CAD Mechanical AUTOCAD 3
MFG* 172 Intro to Lean Supply Chain Management 3

Subtotal: 15-16

Semester 4		
Elective Soc	cial and Behavioral Sciences/LA	3
(GEO*, POL	* or +HIS* Recommended)	
Elective	Fine Arts Elective	3-4
+MFG* 272	Implementing Lean Supply Mgmt.	3
SOC 190	Self and Others: Dynamics of Divers	sity 3
Elective	Directed Elective II	3-4

Subtotal: 15-17 MINIMUMTOTAL: 63

### **DIRECTED ELECTIVES:**

Any group of related courses from the following areas: Computer and Information Systems (CSA\*, CSC\*, CST\*), Manufacturing (MFG\*), Mathematics (MAT\*), or Physics (PHY\*).

Degrees 70 www.asnuntuck.edu

### **TECHNOLOGY STUDIES**

### (Associate in Science Degree)

The College of Technology is a specialized curriculum that allows a student to begin technology or engineering technology studies at any of the state's twelve community colleges with the ultimate goal of achieving a four-year, baccalaureate degree in Technology at Central Connecticut State University or Charter Oak State College. The curriculum is designed to serve as the first two years of the Bachelor of Science degree. Some courses in this program are not offered at Asnuntuck Community College but can be taken at other Connecticut community colleges.

### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA required)

+ ENG* 202 Technical Writing Directed Elective I 3- Directed Elective II 3-
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
+ ENG" 202 Technical Writing
· ENIC* 202 Tooksis all Muiting
+ MAT* 167 Principles of Statistics
+ CAD* 133 CAD Mechanical AUTOCAD

Subtotal: 15-17

### **GENERAL EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS**

### **HUMANITIES**

COM*173	Public Speaking	3
+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
PHL* Any F	hilosophy course	3

### **FINE ARTS**

A Fine Arts Elective	e 3

### SOCIAL AND BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES/LIBERAL ARTS

SOC 190	Self and Others: Dynamics of Diversity	3
ECN* 101	Principles of Macroeconomics	3
Social and E	Behavioral Sciences Elective	3
(+HIS* or EC	CN* recommended)	
Social and E	Sehavioral Sciences Elective	3
(POL* or +H	IS* recommended)	

### **MATH**

SCIENCE			
+ CHE* 111	Concepts of Chemistry	4	
+ PHY* 110	Introductory Physics	4	

### TECHNICAL ELECTIVES

+ MAT\* 186 Precalculus

Technical Electiv	/e l	3-4
Technical Electiv	/e II	3-4
Technical Electiv	/e III	3-4
Technical Electiv	ve IV	3-4
Technical Elective	ve V	3-4

### SUGGESTED SEMESTER SEQUENCE

Semester 1		
+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
COM*173	Public Speaking	3
+ MAT* 167	Principles of Statistics	3
+ CHE* 111	Concepts of Chemistry	4
Fine Arts El	3	
		Subtotal: 16

S	emester 2		
+	ENG* 202	Technical Writing	3
+	CAD* 133	CAD Mechanical AUTOCAD	3
	SOC 190	Self and Others: Dynamics of Diversity	3
+	PHY* 110	Introductory Physics	4
	Social and E	Behavioral Sciences Elective	3
	(History or F	conomics Recommended)	

Subtotal: 17

Semester 3		
ECN* 101 Principles of Macroeconomics		3
PHL* Any Philosophy Course		3
Directed Elective I		3-4
Technical Elective I		3-4
Technical Elective II		3-4
Social and Behavioral Sciences Elective		3
(Political Science or History Recommended)	OR	
Liberal Arts: GEO* recommended		

Subtotal: 18-21

Semester 4	
Technical Elective III	3-4
Technical Elective IV	3-4
Technical Elective V	3-4
+ MAT* 186 Precalculus	4
Directed Elective II	3-4
	Subtotal: 15-19

MINIMUMTOTAL: 66

### **DIRECTED AND TECHNICAL ELECTIVES:**

Any group of related courses from the following areas: Computer and Information Systems (CSA\*, CSC\*, CST\*), Manufacturing (MFG\*), Mathematics (MAT\*), or Physics (PHY\*).

# TECHNOLOGY STUDIES: Machine Technology Option (Associate in Science Degree)

Pathway to entry into Central Connecticut State University's School of Technology (2.0 GPA required with no grade less than "C")

The Technology Studies—Machine Technology Option provides a solid, comprehensive GENERAL EDUCA-TION in engineering technology, industrial technology, mathematics, and sciences, as provided by the standard Technology Studies program, but with a concentrated focus on machining technology. Completion of the entire program with an average grade of "C" provides for automatic continuation at Central Connecticut State University's School of Technology or Charter Oak State College, where the student can earn a bachelor of science degree in engineering technology, industrial technology, or technology education.

#### MAJOR REQUIREMENTS

(2.0 GPA required)

MFG* 105	Manufacturing Math II	3
+ MFG* 120	Metrology	3
MFG* 124	Blueprint Reading I	2
+ MFG* 125	Blueprint Reading II	3
MFG* 150	Introduction to Machine Technology	4
+ MFG* 160	Introduction to GD&T	3
+ MFG* 165	Intermediate Machine Technology	3
MFG* 166	Benchwork	1
MFG* 168	CNC I	3
+ MFG* 256	CNC II	3
MFG* 110	SolidWorks	3
QUA* 114	Principles of Quality Control	3
	Major Area Requirements Total:	34

#### **GENERAL EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS**

#### **HUMANITIES**

**FINE ARTS** 

A Fine Arts Elective

COM*173	Public Speaking	3
+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
Two Humanities and/or Language Electives		6

### SOCIAL AND BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES

One Elective (ECN* or +HIS* recommended)	Choose
from ANT* ECN* +HIS* POL* PSY* or SOC*	3

#### MATH AND SCIENCE

+ MAT* 167	Statistics	3
+ MAT* 186	Precalculus	4
CHE* 111	Concepts of Chemistry	4
+ PHY* 110	Introductory Physics	4

Minimum Gen Ed: 33

#### SUGGESTED SEMESTER SEQUENCE

Semester 1		
MFG* 120	Metrology	3
MFG* 124	Blueprint Reading I	2
MFG* 150	Introduction to Machine Technology	4
MFG* 166	Benchwork	1
MFG* 168	CNC I	3
MFG* 110	SolidWorks	3
	Subtota	l: 16

Semester 2		
MFG* 105	Manufacturing Math II	3
+ MFG* 125	Blueprint Reading II	3
+ MFG* 165	Intermediate Machine Technolo	gy 3
+ MFG* 160	Introduction to GD&T	3
+ MFG* 256	CNC II	3
QUA* 114	Principles of Quality Control	3
	Su	btotal: 18

Semester 3		
+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
Social and B	ehavioral Sciences Elective	3
+ MAT* 167	Statistics	3
+ CHE* 111	Concepts of Chemistry	4
Humanities a	and/or Language Elective I	3
		Subtotal: 16

Semester 4		
COM*173	Public Speaking	3
Fine Arts El	ective	3-4
+ MAT* 167	Precalculus	4
+ PHY* 110	Introductory Physics	4
Humanities	and/or Language Elective II	3

Subtotal: 17-18

MINIMUM DEGREETOTAL: 67

3-4

### **Technology Studies:**

### MANUFACTURING ELECTRO-MECHANICAL MAINTENANCE TECHNOLOGY OPTION

### (Associate in Science Degree)

This degree option provides comprehensive foundation course work in electro-mechanical industrial and engineering technologies, electronic controls, mathematics and physical sciences for continuation in a four-year technology degree program. A grade average of "C" is required for automatic continuation at Central Connecticut State University's School of Technology, where you can earn a Bachelor of Science degree in engineering technology, industrial technology, or technology education.

#### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA required)

#### ELECTRO-MECHANICAL MAINTENANCE TECHNOLOGY CERTIFICATE

+ MFG* 158	8 Pneumatics & Hydraulics	3
+ MFG* 159	9 Industrial Maintenance	3
+ MFG* 162	2 CNC Maintenance & Repair I	3
+ MFG* 163	3 CNC Maintenance & Repair II	3
+ MFG* 164	4 Electro-Mechanical Seminar/Inte	rnship 4
	Certificate	Total: 16
+ MFG* 133	3 Math for Electricity & Electronics	3
+ MFG* 137	7 CircuitTheory	3
+ MFG* 138	8 Digital Fundamentals	3
+ MFG* 139	9 CircuitTheory II	3
	Sub	total: 28

#### **GENERAL EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS**

#### **HUMANITIES**

peaking 3
tion 3
I Writing 3
y Course) 3

#### **FINE ARTS**

Fine Arts Elective	3-4
--------------------	-----

#### SOCIAL AND BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES

SOC 190	Self and Others: Dynamics of Diversity	3
ECN* 101	Principles of Macroeconomics	3
Social and B	Sehavioral Sciences Elective	3
(+HIS* or EC	CN* recommended)	
Social and B	Sehavioral Sciences Elective	3
(POL* or +H	IS* recommended )	

#### **MATH AND SCIENCE**

+ MAT* 123	Principles of Statistics or higher	3
+ CHE* 111	Concepts of Chemistry	4
+ PHY* 110	Introductory Physics	4

#### SUGGESTED SEMESTER SEQUENCE

S	emester 1		
+	ENG* 101	Composition	3
	ECN* 101	Principles of Macroeconomics	3
	SOC 190	Self and Others: Dynamics of Diversity	3
+	MFG* 133	Math for Electricity & Electronics	3
+	MFG* 137	CircuitTheory	3
	Fine Arts El	ective 3	3-4
+	MFG* 133 MFG* 137	Self and Others: Dynamics of Diversity Math for Electricity & Electronics CircuitTheory	3

Subtotal: 18-19

Semester 2		
+ ENG* 202	Technical Writing	3
COM*173	Public Speaking	3
+ MFG* 138	Digital Fundamentals	3
+ MFG* 139	CircuitTheory II	3
+ MFG* 158	Pneumatics & Hydraulics	3
Social and	Behavioral Sciences Elective	3
(+HIS* or E	CN* Recommended)	

Subtotal: 18

Semester 3		
+ MFG* 159	Industrial Maintenance	3
+ MFG* 162	CNC Maintenance & Repair I	3
+ MAT* 123	Principles of Statistics or higher	3
PHL* (Any P	hilosophy Course)	3
+ PHY* 110	Introductory Physics	4
	Subtotal: 1	16

Semester 4		
+ MFG* 163	CNC Maintenance & Repair II	3
+ MFG* 164	Electro-Mechanical Seminar/Interns	ship 4
+ CHE* 111	Concepts of Chemistry	4
Social and E	Behavioral Sciences Elective	3
(POL* or +H	IIS* Recommended)	

Subtotal: 14 MINIMUM TOTAL: 66

### **TECHNOLOGY STUDIES:**

### Manufacturing Electronics Controls Technology Option (Associate in Science Degree)

Pathway to entry into Central Connecticut State University School of Technology

(2.0 GPA required with no grade less than "C") The objective of the Manufacturing Electronic Technology Option Associate Degree Program is to provide our students higher level electronic technical skills. Install, analyze and troubleshoot electronic systems; use and configure computer hardware, operating systems and basic networks; apply electronic circuit simulation software for circuit design and analysis; troubleshoot electronic equipment; and program PLC's and robots.

#### MAJOR REQUIREMENTS

(2.0 GPA required)

MFG* 133	Mathematics for Electricity & Electronics	3
MFG* 137	CircuitTheory	3
MFG* 138	Digital Fundamentals	3
+ MFG* 139	CircuitTheory II	3
MFG* 140	Robotics	3
MFG* 142	Electronic Circuits & Devices	3
MFG* 143	Industrial Motor Controls	3
MFG* 146	Programmable Logic Controllers	3
MFG* 147	Microprocessor/Microcontroller	3
MFG* 170	Introduction to Automated Mfg.	3

Major Area Requirements Total: 30

#### GENERAL EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS

#### **HUMANITIES**

OM* 173	Public Speaking	3
NG* 101	Composition	3
wo Humani	ties and/or Language Electives	6
IE ARTS		
	Elective	3-4
	NG* 101 iwo Humani <i>IE ARTS</i>	NG* 101 Composition  Woo Humanities and/or Language Electives  WE ARTS  Fine Arts Elective

### SOCIAL AND BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES/LIBERAL ARTS

One Elective (ECN\* or +HIS\* recommended) Choose from ANT\* ECN\* +HIS\* POL\* PSY\* or SOC\* 3

#### MATH AND SCIENCE

+ MAT* 167	Principles of Statistics	3
+ MAT* 186	Precalculus	4
+ CHE* 111	Concepts of Chemistry	4
+ PHY* 110	Introductory Physics	4

#### **ELECTIVES**

	B 4 · ·	_	F 1 00
Open Elective 100 or higher			3-4

Minimum Gen Ed: 36

#### SUGGESTED SEMESTER SEQUENCE

The following is a suggested semester course sequence to complete the Manufacturing Electronics & Controls Technology option.

The Manufacturing Electronics Fundamentals Certificate provides a base Manufacturing Electronics skills set. This is followed by the Manufacturing Electronics Systems and Controllers Certificate.

Semester 1		
MFG* 133	Mathematics for Electricity & Electronic	cs 3
MFG* 137	CircuitTheory	3
MFG* 138	Digital Fundamentals	3
+ MFG* 139	Circuit Theory II	3
MFG* 140	Robotics	3

Subtotal: 15

Semester 2		
MFG* 142	Electronic Circuits & Devices	3
MFG* 143	Industrial Motor Controls	3
MFG* 146	Programmable Logic Controllers	3
MFG* 147	Microprocessor/Microcontroller	3
MFG* 170	Introduction to Automated Mfg.	3

Subtotal: 15

Semest	er 3	
COM*	173 Public Speaking	3
+ CHE*	111 Concepts of Chemistry	4
+ ENG*	101 Composition	3
+ MAT*	167 Principles of Statistics	3
Humai	nities and/or Language Elective I	3
Fine A	rts Elective	3-4

Subtotal: 19

Semester 4		
+ MAT* 186	Precalculus	4
+ PHY* 110	Introductory Physics	4
Humanities	and/or Language Elective II	3
Open Electi	ve	3
Social and E	Behavioral Sciences Elective	3

Subtotal: 17

MINIMUM TOTAL: 66

### **TECHNOLOGY STUDIES:**

# Manufacturing Welding Technology Option (Associate in Science Degree)

Pathway to entry into Central Connecticut State Univeristy's School of Technology (2.0 GPA required with no grade less than "C")

The Advanced Manufacturing Welding Technology Associate Degree provides detailed knowledge of welding principles as applied to modern manufacturing processes and applications. It will provide the student requisite advanced skills necessary to welding in today's technological environment. Students will be able to demonstrate and apply basic metallurgy principles and guidelines in industrial applications and will understand advanced theory and show manual dexterity/competence in performing code acceptable weldments on various metals.

The objective of the Associate Degree Program is to provide our students higher level welding technical skills; to function safely in a welding environment; to apply successful metal fabrication layouts and blueprints; and to demonstrate manual and automated welding and metal fabrication equipment skills.

#### MAJOR REQUIREMENTS

(2.0 GPA required)

+ MFG* 105	Manufacturing Math II	3
+ MFG* 128	Blueprint Reading for Welders	3
+ MFG*149	Introduction to Metal Fabrication	3
+ MFG* 157	Welding I	3
+ MFG* 257	Welding II	3
+ MFG* 265	Welding III	3
+ MFG* 266	Welding IV	3
+ MFG* 267	Metallurgy	3
+ MFG* 270	Welding Automation & Other Proc.	3
+ MFG* 273	Welding Codes, Testing, and Cert.	3
	Major Area Requirements Total:	: 30

# GENERAL EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS HUMANITIES

FINE ARTS		
Two Human	nities and/or Language Electives	6
+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
COM*173	Public Speaking	3

#### SOCIAL AND BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES

Choose one ANT\* ECN\* +HIS\* POL\* PSY\* or SOC\* 3

#### MATH AND SCIENCE

+ MAT* 167	Principles of Statistics	3
+ MAT* 186	Precalculus	4
+ CHE* 111	Concepts of Chemistry	4
+ PHY* 110	Introductory Physics	4

#### **ELECTIVES**

Open Elective 100 or higher	3-4
	Minimum Gen Ed: 36

#### SUGGESTED SEMESTER SEQUENCE

Semester 1		
MFG* 128	Blueprint Reading for Welders	3
MFG* 149	Introduction to Metal Fabrication	3
MFG* 157	Welding I	3
+ MFG* 257	Welding II	3
+ MFG* 267	Metallurgy	3
	Subt	otal: 15

Semester 2		
+ MFG* 105	Manufacturing Math II	3
+ MFG* 265	Welding III	3
+ MFG* 266	Welding IV	3
+ MFG* 269	Welding	3
+ MFG* 270	Welding Automation & Other Proc.	3
	Subtota	l: 15

Semester 3		
COM*173	Public Speaking	3
+ CHE* 111	Concepts of Chemistry	4
+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
+ MAT* 167	Principles of Statistics	3
Humanities	and/or Language Elective I	3
Social and B	Sehavioral Sciences Elective	3
		Subtotal: 19

Semester 4	
+ MAT* 186 Precalculus	4
+ PHY* 110 Introductory Physics	4
Fine Arts Elective	3-4
Humanities and/or Language Elective	II 3
Open Elective 100 or higher	3
	0 1 1 4=

Subtotal: 17 MINIMUM TOTAL: 66

Fine Arts Elective

3-4

# **Certificate Programs**

### **ACCOUNTING ASSISTANT**

### (Certificate)

The Accounting Assistant Certificate curriculum provides a beginning base of skills, information, and techniques for those students who have an interest in the area of accounting. Students who complete the certificate could be employed in entry-level accounting positions.

#### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA required)

	ACC*	115	Financial Accounting	4
+	ACC*	118	Managerial Accounting	4
+	ACC*	123	Accounting Software Applications	OR
+	CSA*	135	Spreadsheet Applications	3
	BMG*	202	Principles of Management	3
	Two E	lective	es **(see below)	6-8
			MINIMUMTOTA	1 · 20

<sup>\*\* 6-8</sup> credits from among courses in Accounting (ACC\* 108 or higher), BBG\*, BES\*, BFN\*, BMG\*, BMK\*, or CSA\*. All courses must be 3 credits or more.

# BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION (Certificate)

The courses in this certificate provide a solid background for either immediate job needs or eventual further studies in business. All courses will also apply to a business degree at ACC.

#### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA required)

	BMG*202	Principles of Management	3
+	BMK* 201	Principles of Marketing	3
+	ENG* 101	Composition	3
	CSA*, CSC*	, or CST* Elective	3-4
	Four course	s selected from Business OR	12-14
	Two courses	from Business and two courses	
	from Accoun	nting	

MINIMUM TOTAL: 24

# CERTIFIED ADMINISTRATIVE MEDICAL OFFICE SKILLS

### (Certificate)

The Certified Administrative Medical Office Skills Certificate is a 15 credit certificate designed for students interested in working in the medical office with a focus on front office functions. Integral parts of the job duties include handling valuable medical documentation such as appointment scheduling, correspondence, medical billing and coding, knowledge of insurance, and adhering to privacy laws Individuals should enjoy performing administrative duties, and most careers in medical office require strong computer and data entry skills. This field involves interaction with patients and providers and requires strong communication and interpersonal skills and the ability to work with people. The Certified Administrative Medical Office Skills Certificate consists of five courses and prepares the student to sit for the national Certified Medical Administrative Assistant (CMAA) exam.

#### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA required)

	•	
CSA* 105	Introduction to Software Apps	3
MED* 111	Administrative Medical Assisting	3
MED* 112	Medical Insurance & Billing	3
MED* 125	MedicalTerminology	3
MED* 216	Electronic Medical Records Mgmt.	3

MINIMUM TOTAL: 15

# CERTIFIED PHLEBOTOMY TECHNICIAN (Certificate)

A phlebotomist is a member of a health care team that is trained in the collection and handling of laboratory specimens. The phlebotomist must provide a quality specimen for testing and adhere to patient safety mandates, strict professional behavior, and standards of practice. Safety is key and all safety precautions must be taken to prevent the transmission of infectious diseases. This 16 credit certificate consists of 5 courses that will prepare the student to sit for the national Certified PhlebotomyTechnician (CPT) exam allowing them to work in any state and perform all duties required of a PhlebotomyTechnician.

#### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA required)

HLT*`103	Investigations in Health Careers	3
HLT* 141	Techniques of Phlebotomy	4
+ HLT 291	Phlebotomy Externship	3
MED* 170	Law & Ethics for Health Careers	3
MED* 125	MedicalTerminology	3

MINIMUM TOTAL: 16

Certificates 76 www.asnuntuck.edu

# EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION (Certificate)

The Early Childhood Education Certificate is designed to provide students with the opportunity to complete a course of study which will prepare them to work in the field of early care and education. It is also designed for students who are already employed in an early care situation and desire to improve their knowledge and competency in working with young children. Students who complete this certificate may apply credits earned towards the Associate in Science degree and all students earning the A.S. degree also earn the Early Childhood Education Certificate.

#### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA required)

	ECE*	101	Introduction to Early Childhood Education	3
	ECE*	103	Creative Experiences/Children O	R
	ECE*	176	Health, Safety, & Nutrition	3
+	ECE*	210	Observation, Participation & Seminar	3
+	ECE*	231	Early Language & Literacy Development	3
+	ECE*	215	The Exceptional Learner	3
*	*ECE*	Early	Childhood Education Elective	3
+	ENG*	101	Composition	3
	ENG*	114	Children's Literature	3
	SOC 1	190	Self and Others: Dynamics of Diversity	3
	COM*	173	Public Speaking O	R
	THR*	110	Acting I	3

MINIMUM TOTAL: 30

# ECE: CHILD DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATE CREDENTIAL (Certificate)

The Child Development Associate Credential (CDATraining), granted by the Council for Professional Recognition, is designed to provide students with the opportunity to complete a course of study which will prepare them to work in the field. Students who complete this certificate may move into the program leading to an Associate in Science degree.

#### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA required)

	ECE*	101	Introduction to Early Childhood Educatio	n 3
	ECE*	141	InfantToddler Growth/Dev	OR
	ECE*	182	Child Development	3
+	ECE*	180	CDA Credential Preparation	3
	ECE*	One	ECE Elective (103, 109, 225, 231 or 275)	3

MINIMUM TOTAL: 12

# EARLY CHILDHOOD ADMINISTRATION

(Certificate)

The Early Childhood Administration Certificate acknowledges that professionals working in the field of early care and education and school age care have knowledge and competencies required of those who lead such programs. This certificate consists of five courses and is designed to give the students administration course work for the Connecticut Director's Credential (CDC) issued by Charter Oak State College. In addition, students are required to have an A.S. Degree in Early Childhood Education or a related field or 12 credits in Early Childhood Education to meet the initial level of the CDC Credential. This certificate can be obtained online.

#### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA required)

directors.)

+ ECE\* 206 Administration and Supervision
of Early Childhood Programs 3
(This course is designed to meet the requirement for the CT
Director's Credential at Charter Oak State College and as the
comprehensive Introductory Administration and Supervision
survey course AND meets the licensing 3 credit regulation for

+ ECE\* 212 Administrative Leadership in
Early Childhood Programs 3
Successful completion of ECE 206 is required to take

ECE 212)

+ ECE\* 275 Child, Family, and
School Relationships 3
(This course meets the Child/Family/School requirement for the CT Director's Credential)

ACC\* 115 Financial Accounting 4
(This course meets the Budget/Fiscal requirement for the CT Director's Credential)

+ BMG\* 210 Organizational Behavior 3

MINIMUMTOTAL: 16

(NOTE: The prerequisite for BMG\* 210 will be waived for students who already have an A.S. Degree in Early Childhood Education or a B.S. Degree in a related field.)

<sup>\*\*</sup>Early Childhood Education Electives: ECE\* 103, ECE\* 106, +ECE\* 109, ECE\* 141, ECE\* 176, +ECE\* 180, ECE\* 215, +ECE\* 225, +ECE\* 275

### **ENTREPRENEUR**

### (Certificate)

This certificate seeks to assist people in our region who wish to explore starting their own profit or not-for-profit organization, or work in an entrepreneurial department of a larger organization. This certificate intentionally contains elective courses for students in the arts, media, social services, education (or more traditional business fields) to develop their skills both in a field of choice and entrepreneurship.

#### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA required)

	BMG*	202	Principles of Management	3
+	BMK*	201	Principles of Marketing	3
	BES*	118	Small Business Management OR	
	BES*	218	Entrepreneurship	3
+	BBG*	294	Business Internship	3
	One co	ourse	in ACC*, or CSA*	3
	Three	course	es with approval of Department Chair	9-12
			MINIMUMTOTA	L: 24

# GERONTOLOGY (Certificate)

Gerontology is the multidisciplinary study of the biological, psychological, and social aspects of aging. By completing the one-year certificate program, students may find immediate opportunity for employment in professional and paraprofessional entry-level positions at human service agencies, senior centers, residential communities, health care facilities, and other agencies that provide much needed services for the elderly. For others, this certificate will allow them to further enhance their knowledge of gerontology.

#### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA required)

+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
SOC 190	Self and Others: Dynamics of Divers	sity 3
COM*173	Public Speaking	OR
THR* 110	Acting I	3
HSE* 101	Introduction to Human Services	3
PSY* 111	General Psychology I	3
+ PSY* 210	Death and Dying	3
SOC* 101	Principles of Sociology	3
SOC* 114	Sociology of Aging	OR
HSE* 170	Introduction to Gerontology	3
+ MAT* 137	Intermediate Algebra or higher	OR
+ MAT* 104	Quantitative Reasoning	3-4

MINIMUMTOTAL: 27

# HEALTH CAREER PATHWAY (Certificate)

This program is designed to assist the student to achieve success in health care programs. Students will be provided with the foundation necessary for health care professions. Credits from this program may be applied toward health care program requirements within Connecticut's Community College System. However, completion of this program does not guarantee an automatic acceptance into any health care program. Students are responsible for verifying specific requirements for their program of interest.

#### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA required)

+	CHE*	111	Concepts of Chemistry	4
+	BIO*	235	Microbiology	4
+	BIO*	212	Anatomy & Physiology II	4
+	BIO*	211	Anatomy & Physiology I	4
	SOC*	101	Principles of Sociology	3
	PSY*	111	General Psychology I	3
+	MAT*	137	Intermediate Algebra	3
+	ENG*	101	Composition	3

MINIMUM TOTAL: 28

# HEALTH INFORMATION MANAGEMENT TECHNICIAN

### (Certificate)

This certificate is designed to assist the student to achieve success in health career programs. Students will be provided with the foundation necessary for health care professions. Credits from this certificate may be applied toward health care program requirements within Connecticut's Community College System. However, completion of this certificate does not guarantee an automatic acceptance into any health care program. Students are responsible for verifying specific requirements for their program of interest.

#### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA required)

+ ENG* 101	Composition	3
HIM* 102	Introduction to Health Care Systems	3
+ HIM* 201	Health Information Management	3
+ HIM* 210	Coding I	3
+ HIM* 211	Advanced Medical Coding	3
+ MED* 112	Medical Insurance and Coding	3
MED* 116	A&P for Medical Assistants	4
MED* 125	MedicalTerminology	3
MED* 216	Electronic Medical Records Mgmt.	3

MINIMUM TOTAL: 28

### HUMAN SERVICES MANAGEMENT (Certificate)

This certificate will provide students with the opportunity to expand their knowledge of management styles within human service agencies as well as the field of human resources. Students may pursue this certificate for professional development and/or as a means of formal training. All courses will apply to the human services degree at Asnuntuck.

#### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA required)

	HSE* 101	Introduction to Human Services	3
+	HSE* 241	Human Services Agencies and	3
		Organizations	
	BMG*202	Principles of Management	3
+	BMG*220	Human Resources Management	OR
+	BMG*210	Organizational Behavior	3
	ACC***	Any 3-4 credit Accounting Course	3-4
+	ENG* 101	Composition	3
	PSY* 111	General Psychology I	OR
	SOC* 101	Principles of Sociology	3
	SOC 190	Self and Others: Dynamics of Diversi	ty 3
+	MAT*	Any Math Course above MAT*100	3-4
		MINIMITATAL	. 27

<sup>\*\*\*</sup> ACC\* 115 Financial Accounting is recommended.

### **MARKETING**

### (Certificate)

The marketing certificate program is designed to provide a focus on the marketing process as a strategic decision-making skill. The program will enhance career opportunities for those currently employed in marketing related positions or those seeking such positions who lack the necessary marketing concepts to make appropriate marketing decisions.

#### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA required)	
+ ENG* 101 Composition	3
BMG*202 Principles of Management	3
+ BMK* 201 Principles of Marketing	3
Select two BMK* courses (at least 6 credits)	6
One additional course (3 credit minimum) from	n 3
BBG*, BES*, BFN*, BMG*, CSA*	
One ACC* course (3 credit minimum)	3-4

MINIMUM TOTAL: 21

# OFFICE USER SPECIALIST (Certificate)

The Office User Specialist Certificate is designed to prepare students to enter the workforce as computer professionals trained in a variety of software applications. This certificate is for students who want to use the computer as a tool of productivity. The specialized computer courses will emphasize the Office software suite for students looking to acquire current skills in preparation for entry into or advancement in today's workplace. Students may wish to enhance these opportunities by pursuing certifications available from various software vendors such as the Microsoft User Specialist.

#### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA required)

CSA* 105	Introduction to Software Applications	3
+ CSA* 135	Spreadsheet Applications	3
+ CSA* 145	Database Management	3
+ CSA* 125	Exploring Word Processing and	
	Desktop Publishing	4
	MINIMUMTOTAL:	13

# REGISTERED MEDICAL ASSISTANT

(Certificate)

The Registered Medical Assistant certificate is designed to prepare students for entry-level positions in private medical offices, hospitals, home health care agencies, nursing homes, clinics and diagnostic centers or take it to the next level and become certified.

Successful completion of the program satisfies the eligibility requirements needed to sit for a voluntary national certification exam sponsored by the American Medical Technologists, a nationally recognized certification agency for allied health professionals.

#### MAJOR REQUIREMENTS

(2.0 GPA required)

MED* 111	Medical Office Procedures	3
+ MED* 112	Medical Insurance and Coding	3
+ MED* 116	Anatomy & Physiology for Medical Asst.	4
MED* 125	MedicalTerminology	3
+ MED* 133	Clinical Medical Assisting	4
+ MED* 142	Clinical Lab. Procedures and Practices I	4
MED* 170	Law and Ethics for Health Careers	3
MED* 240	Psychology and Communication in	
	Healthcare for Medical Assisting	3
+ MED* 242	Clinical Lab. Procedures and Practices II	4
+ MED* 250	Principles of Pharmacology	3
+ MED* 280	Medical Assistant Externship	4

MINIMUM TOTAL: 38

#### **TECHNOLOGY STUDIES:**

### MANUFACTURING ELECTRO-MECHANICAL MAINTENANCE TECHNOLOGY (Certificate)

This certificate will provide the student with prerequisite skills necessary to several diverse fields such as manufacturing, health industry, distribution systems, machining industry and engineering. The technology of computer directed design, production, warehousing, distribution and wholesale and retailing requires the knowledge and skills inherent in the certificate program.

#### MAJOR REQUIREMENTS

(2.0)	GPA re	quired)
-------	--------	---------

+ MFG*	158	Pneumatics & Hydraulics	3
+ MFG*	<sup>+</sup> 159	Industrial Maintenance	3
MFG*	<sup>+</sup> 162	CNC Maintenance & Repair I	3+
MFG*	163	CNC Maintenance & Repair II	3
+ MFG*	<sup>+</sup> 164	Electro-Mechanical Seminar/Internship	4
		MINIMUMTOTAL: 1	16

**TECHNOLOGY STUDIES:** 

### MANUFACTURING ELECTRONICS TECHNOLOGY (Certificate)

The objective of the Manufacturing Electronic Technology Certificate is to provide our students higher level electronic technical skills. Install, analyze and trouble-shoot electronic systems; use and configure computer hardware, operating systems and basic networks; apply electronic circuit simulation software for circuit design and analysis; troubleshoot electronic equipment; and program PLC's and robots.

#### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA required)

MFG* 133	Math. for Electricity & Electronics	3
MFG* 137	CircuitTheory	3
MFG* 138	Digital Fundamentals	3
+ MFG* 139	CircuitTheory II	3
MFG* 140	Robotics	3
+ MFG* 142	Electronic Circuits & Devices	3
+ MFG* 143	Industrial Motor Controls	3
+ MFG* 146	Programmable Logic Controllers	3
+ MFG* 147	Microprocessor/Microcontrollers	3
MFG* 170	Introduction to Automated Mfg.	3

MINIMUM TOTAL: 30

# TECHNOLOGY STUDIES:

# MANUFACTURING MACHINE TECHNOLOGY

(Certificate)

The objective of the certificate program is to provide a primary level of essential skills and knowledge to individuals seeking a background in the machine technology profession. This certificate provides entry level skills to those seeking positions in machine technology environments.

#### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA required)

٠-			
	MFG* 105	Manufacturing Math II	3
	MFG* 110	SolidWorks	3
	MFG* 120	Metrology	3
	MFG* 124	Blueprint Reading I	2
+	MFG* 125	Blueprint Reading II	3
	MFG* 150	Introduction to Machine Technology	4
	MFG* 160	Introduction to GD&T	3
+	MFG* 165	Intermediate Machine Technology	3
	MFG* 166	Benchwork	1
	MFG* 168	CNC I	3
+	MFG* 256	CNC II	3
	QUA* 114	Principles of Quality Control	3
		B 41B 11B 41 1B 4 TO TA 1	

MINIMUM TOTAL: 34

### **TECHNOLOGY STUDIES:**

# MANUFACTURING WELDING TECHNOLOGY

### (Certificate)

This certificate provides detailed knowledge of welding principles as applied to modern manufacturing processes and applications. It will provide the student requisite advanced skills necessary to welding in today's technological environment.

#### MAJOR REQUIREMENTS

(2.0 GPA required)

	•	
+ MFG* 105	Manufacturing Math II	3
+ MFG* 128	Blueprint Reading for Welders	3
+ MFG*149	Introduction to Metal Fabrication	3
MFG* 157	Welding I	3
+ MFG* 257	Welding II	3
+ MFG* 265	Welding III	3
+ MFG* 266	Welding IV	3
+ MFG* 267	Metallurgy	3
+ MFG* 270	Welding Automation & Other Proc.	3
+ MFG* 273	Welding Codes, Testing, and Cert.	3

Major Area Requirements Total: 30

# WEB DESIGNER (CERTIFICATE)

This certificate program is designed for the individual who wants to design and maintain Web pages for a variety of settings including personal, professional and business use. This certificate will provide training which will enable students to improve job skills and gain immediate employment.

#### **MAJOR REQUIREMENTS**

(2.0 GPA required)

	CSA*	105	Introduction to Software Applications	OR
	CSC*	106	Structured Programming	3
-	+ CST*	150	Web Design & Development I	3
	+ CST*	250	Web Design & Development II	3
-	+ CST*	258	<b>Fundamentals of Internet Programming</b>	4
	DGA*	111	Introduction to Computer Graphics	3
	- BMK*	201	Principles of Marketing	

MINIMUM TOTAL:16

# **Course Descriptions**

### **ACCOUNTING**

Prior to enrolling in an Accounting course, students must address any needs for developmental work in mathematics and English by taking MAT\* 075 and ENG\* 073.

Regular written homework is required in all Accounting courses. Students must achieve a "C-" or better in an Accounting course to continue to the next level.

The college offers instructional labs for Accounting students who wish to avail themselves of the opportunity to confirm homework, seek help with practice sets, or receive tutorial help in a difficult area of study. These labs are subject to available funding.

#### ACC\* 100: BASIC ACCOUNTING 3 CREDITS

An introductory course for non-Accounting majors, and owners and managers of small businesses. Covers the basic structure, concepts, and principles of accounting, and correct use of accounting terminology. The practical aspect of accounting is emphasized through recording, classifying, and summarizing the financial information that flows within a business enterprise. The accounting cycle, including statement presentation, is examined along with such areas as sales, purchases, cash, receivables, and payroll. Supplemented with software applications. This course is not open to students who have completed ACC\* 115 or higher, with a grade of "C-" or better.

Prerequsites: None

Offered: Not regularly offered

#### ACC\* 108: PAYROLL ACCOUNTING 3 CREDITS

This course will provide accounting students with an overview of the responsibilities of a payroll specialist and the importance of the payroll operations in a business. It will provide the student with an essential understanding of payroll accounting laws, regulations and methodology. Other topics covered are the need for timely and accurate payroll data as a key part of the management function, tax rules, tax rates and tax reports. In this course, students will have hands-on experience aided by technology that utilizes the latest payroll accounting software.

Prerequisites: ACC\* 100 or ACC\* 115

Offered: Not regularly offered

#### ACC\* 115: FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING 4 CREDITS

Designed as an introduction to the accounting theory necessary to understand basic accounting practices; to read, analyze, and interpret financial statements; and to make informed business and financial decisions.

Prerequisites: None

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

#### ACC\* 118: MANAGERIAL ACCOUNTING 4 CREDITS

An introduction to the basic concepts needed to select and use accounting information necessary for managerial decision making. Students learn how managers plan for the operations of their business, assess how effectively their plans are being implemented, control operations, and use accounting data to make internal decisions.

Prerequisite: ACC\* 115 with a grade of "C-" or better

Offered: Fall, Spring

### ACC\* 123: ACCOUNTING SOFTWARE APPLICATIONS 3 CREDITS

A hands-on course in accounting information management that demonstrates the accounting uses of spreadsheet software. Students learn the major components of spreadsheet software for accounting including macros, graphics, and database manipulation. Students build real-world accounting models in each of the three components utilizing print options, function commands, and file manipulation. Recommended prior to taking +ACC\* 275.

Prerequisites: ACC\* 100 or ACC\* 115 with a grade of

"C-" or better.

Offered: Spring

## ACC\* 125: ACCOUNTING COMPUTER APPLICATIONS 3 CREDITS

This course will provide the student with a basic understanding of accounting information systems. Students will learn how to enter data, prepare financial statements, and create reports, while following sound accounting practices and principles. Accounting software such as QuickBooks is used. Students may find it beneficial to also enroll in ACC\* 100 or ACC\* 115 during the same semester, or to have completed ACC\* 100 or ACC\* 115 prior to taking this course.

**Prerequisites:** None **Offered:** Fall, Spring

## ACC\* 233: PRINCIPLES OF COST ACCOUNTING 4 CREDITS

Presents the principles involved in determining the cost of manufacturing an article and covers job order cost, process cost, and standard cost accounting. Uses of cost accounting information in the determination of management decisions are studied through cost analysis. Joint costs, by-product costs, the nature of the master budget, direct and absorption costing, and break even analysis are examined.

Prerequisites: +ACC\* 118 with a grade of "C-" or better

Offered: Fall

#### ACC\* 241: FEDERAL TAXES I

3 CREDITS

This course is primarily concerned with the federal tax structure and the preparation of individual income tax returns and related schedules. Practice is supplied through problem solving. A class project may be assigned.

Prerequisites: None Offered: Spring

## ACC\* 275: PRINCIPLES OF INTERMEDIATE ACCOUNTING I 4 CREDITS

The focus of this course is the application of concepts and principles used in the preparation and analysis of financial statements, including Cash Flows Statements. There is an emphasis on theory, classification, and evaluation of assets and liabilities. Current changes in the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) are studied where applicable, and comparisons are made with IFRS. This course is supplemented by the use of spreadsheet software for problem solving.

**Prerequisites:** +ACC\* 118 and either + ACC\* 123 or CSA\* 135, as a prerequisite or co-requiste. Prerequisite must be a grade of "C-" or better

Offered: Fall

## ACC\* 276: PRINCIPLES OF INTERMEDIATE ACCOUNTING II 4 CREDITS

The study of the theoretical aspects of liability and related expense recognition, shareholders' equity, and financial statement preparation and analysis. Major emphasis is placed on the analytical process, and the use of interpretation of financial data. Spreadsheet and accounting software are sometimes used for problem solving.

Prerequisites: +ACC\* 275 with a grade of "C-" or bet-

ter

Offered: Spring

## ACC\* 294: INTERNSHIP IN ACCOUNTING

3 CREDITS

This course combines a classroom seminar with onthe-job work experience, to provide a vital link between classroom theories and ideas and the world of work. Assignments may be in private, public, or non-profit organizations in areas such as manufacturing, retailing, personnel, accounting, service or governmental organizations, or finance. This experience will enable students, under supervision, to integrate experience with theoretical knowledge. Each credit earned requires 40 hours of work placement. In addition, six classroom seminar periods are required during the semester, where students will establish learning goals for the work assignment, discuss work-related issues, and career development in their field. Students must complete their work assignment, attend the seminars, and complete their required course papers in order to receive credit for the course.

**Prerequisites:** Minimum of 21 credits completed in program and permission of instructor. Graded pass/fail.

Offered: Not regularly offered

### ANTHROPOLOGY

A grade of C- is the passing grade for prerequisites in this category unless otherwise noted.

#### ANT\* 101: INTRODUCTION TO ANTHROPOLOGY

3 CREDITS

This survey course is primarily devoted to cultural anthropology, emphasizing the study of culture and social institutions through a comparative examination of nonliterate peoples, early civilizations and modern societies. Less emphasized is the study of human evolution and the effects of cultural and biological factors in that evolution.

**Prerequisites:** None **Offered:** Fall, Spring

### **ART**

All ART\* courses satisfy the Fine Arts requirement.

#### ART\* 100: ART APPRECIATION 3 CREDITS

This course explores the constantly changing world of art, discovering how this form of expression is defined and the varied ways in which it can be appreciated. The study of the individual elements and principles that constitute a work of art is undertaken in this exploration of creativity. Visits to galleries, studios, and museums are an integral part of the course, as are artist videos and websites, class discussions and written assignments.

Prerequisites: None

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer, Winter

#### ART\* 101: ART HISTORY I 3 CREDITS

An examination of painting, sculpture, architecture, and graphics from pre-history to the Renaissance. Gaining an understanding of art from these periods and an awareness of its historical significance are emphasized. The study of art is approached through slide lectures, discussions, papers, and gallery/museum visits.

Prerequisites: None

Offered: Fall

#### ART\* 102: ART HISTORY II 3 CREDITS

An examination of painting, sculpture, architecture, and graphics from the Renaissance to the present. Gaining an understanding of art from these periods and an awareness of its historical significance are emphasized. The study of art is approached through slide lectures, discussions, papers, and gallery/musuem visits.

Prerequisites: None. ART\* 101 (Art History I) is NOT

required for this course

Offered: Spring

#### ART\* 111: DRAWING I 3 CREDITS

This studio course covers the basic elements, media and processes of drawing within a hands-on studio context. Composition, value and perspective are addressed. Extensive drawing from still-life, landscapes and reproductions will emphasize development of students' manual and perceptual skills.

**Prerequisites:** None **Offered:** Fall, Spring

#### ART\* 112: DRAWING II 3 CREDITS

This course will explore in a more complex manner the objects, principles, and media as presented in ART\* 111: Drawing I. Greater emphasis will be placed upon the development of personal drawing styles and the expression of individual feelings toward a variety of subjects and themes. (Note: This course was previously known as ART\* 215 - Illustration. Students can take either ART\* 112 or ART\* 215 for credit, but not both.)

Prerequisite: ART\* 111
Offered: Spring

#### ART\* 123: DESIGN I 3 CREDITS

The theory and practice of design principles within a hands-on studio context. Texture, figure and ground, value, color, perspective, movement, space, motion, and mass will be addressed. An understanding of, and an ability to control, these elements and principles of design will be emphasized.

Prerequisites: None

Offered: Fall

#### ART\* 131: SCULPTURE I 3 CREDITS

A studio course in the principles, techniques, and materials of sculpture. Processes include metal fabrication/welding, casting, plaster, wood, and found objects, among others. Students will concentrate on controlling scriptural media and examining the fundamentals of three-dimensional design.

Prerequisites: None
Offered: Fall

#### ART\* 151: PAINTING I 3 CREDITS

A studio course in the technical and aesthetic fundamentals of painting, covering the selection and use of materials, basic color theory, and realistic and expressive paint handling. Students will work in both traditional and experimental painting styles.

Prerequisites: None Offered: Spring

#### ART\* 167: PRINTMAKING I 3 CREDITS

This studio course covers all phases of the printing process from the preparation of the screen, block or plate to the printing of an edition of works. The three basic approaches to printing: relief (raised surface), intaglio (recessed surface), and lithography (flat surface) are utilized in the creation of individual works of art.

Prerequisites: None Offered: Spring

#### ART\* 250: DIGITAL PHOTOGRAPHY 3 CREDITS

A hands-on studio based introduction to digital photography as a fine art and a means of communication. Topics include camera handling and creative controls, image editing and manipulation using Adobe Photoshop, and photographic history and theory. Through lectures, readings, slide presentations, videos and assignments, students will be introduced to the basic vocabulary, concepts, tools and expressive possibilities of digital photography. It is recommended that students have their own camera. *This course satisfies the Fine Arts requirement.* See also DGA\* 128.

Prerequisite: None

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

### **ASTRONOMY**

## AST\* 101: PRINCIPLES OF ASTRONOMY

3 CREDITS

This course is an introduction to descriptive astronomy. Topics include understanding the earth and its motions; the moon; instrumentation used in astronomy; and the origin of the universe. Emphasis is on visual observation of celestial phenomena. Recent advances in astronomy are discussed.

Prerequisite: One year of high school mathematics

Offered: Fall, Spring

### **BIOLOGY**

A grade of C is the passing grade for prerequisites in this category unless otherwise noted.

Students interested in majoring in biology should consider the CSCUTransferTicket in Biology Studies (see CSCUTransferTicket degrees on the web site.) By completing this Asnuntuck associate degree, students can transfer to the Connecticut State Universities (CSU: Central, Eastern, Southern, and Western) and Charter Oak State College (COSC) with a junior status and complete their BA/BS degree. Contact Eric Mosher at emosher@asnuntuck.edu) for further details.

# BIO\* 105: INTRODUCTION TO BIOLOGY 4 CREDITS

This one-semester lecture and laboratory course will provide the student with a background of the basic concepts of Biology. Topics will include chemistry, genetics, cells, evolution and ecology, biotechnology, the diversity of life, and the major systems of the human body.

Prerequisites: None Offered: Fall, Spring

Courses 84 www.asnuntuck.edu

### BIO\* 111: INTRODUCTION TO NUTRITION

3 CREDITS

This course is an introduction to the basic principles of nutrition with emphasis on the biological basis of human nutrition, nutrient metabolism and interaction. Topics include the structure and function of the carbohydrates, lipids, proteins, vitamins and minerals; the role these nutrients play in energy balance needs; human health; and degenerative diseases.

Prerequisites: None

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer, Winter

#### BIO\* 115: HUMAN BIOLOGY 4 CREDITS

This introductory course offers an overview of the human body and its processes emphasizing health and how the body maintains homeostasis in a changing environment. This course will cover cell biology, histology and the major systems of the body, including skeletal, muscular, cardiovascular, nervous and digestive. (3 hours lecture/3 hours lab). This course does NOT satisfy the prerequisite for +BIO\* 211: Anatomy & Physiology I and +BIO\* 235: Microbiology.

**Prerequisites:** None **Offered:** Fall, Spring

#### BIO\* 121: GENERAL BIOLOGY I 4 CREDITS

This course investigates the concepts of scientific methodology and the studies of representative plant and animal cells. Topics include the study of molecular and plant biology; cell division; the basic principles of genetics; and the role of DNA and RNA in human inheritance. (BIO\* 121 or BIO\* 122 may be taken in either semester. BIO\*121 with a grade of C will satisfy the prerequisite for +BIO\* 211 Anatomy & Physiology I and +BIO\* 235 Microbiology. 3 hours lecture/3 hours lab.)

**Prerequisites:** None **Offered:** Fall, Spring, Summer

#### BIO\* 122: GENERAL BIOLOGY II 4 CREDITS

This course investigates the concept of taxonomy and the diversity of life forms. Topics include the comparative study of representative microorganisms; the anatomy and physiology of animal systems, with special emphasis on the human body; and the ecological and evolutionary relationship between plants, animals and their environment. (BIO\* 121 or BIO\* 122 may be taken in either semester. 3 hours lecture/3 hours lab.)

Prerequisites: None Offered: Spring

# BIO\* 180: PRINCIPLES OF ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE 3 CREDITS

This is a survey course of environmental science. Topics include ecology, biodiversity, human populations, water, soil, forests, and pollution, renewable and nonrenewable energy, and legislation.

Prerequisites: None **Offered:** Fall, Spring

### BIO\* 211: ANATOMY AND PHYSIOLOGY I

4 CREDITS

This course is a comprehensive study of the structure and function of the human body and the integration of body systems. Includes study of macroscopic and microscopic anatomy and the principles involved in the physiology of the following body systems: integumentary, lymph, muscular, skeletal, articular, and nervous. (3 hours lecture/3 hours lab)

**Prerequisite:** C or better in BIO\* 121 **Offered:** Fall, Spring, Summer

## BIO\* 212: ANATOMY AND PHYSIOLOGY II

4 CREDITS

This course is a continuation of Anatomy and Physiology I. A detailed study of the structure and function of the following body systems: endocrine, circulatory, respiratory, digestive, excretory, and reproductive. (3 hours lecture/3 hours lab)

Prerequisite: C or better in +BIO\* 211

Offered: Fall, Spring

#### BIO\* 220 BIOCHEMISTRY 4 CREDITS

This course focusses on the chemistry and metabolism of carbohydrates, amino acids, and lipids. The structure and function of proteins and enzymes will be studies and how they relate to diseases and real world applications. All diseases that are comprehensively understood can be explained using cellular biochemistry, therefore to understand health, and diseases, we must first understand biochemistry. See also +CHE\* 220.

Prerequisite: C or better in BIO\* 121 and +CHE\* 122

Offered: Spring

#### BIO\* 235: MICROBIOLOGY 4 CREDITS

This course is a basic study of microorganisms with an emphasis on bacteria. It investigates host-parasite relationships, epidemiology, immunology, microscopy, microbial metabolism and growth, pathogenicity, microbial genetics, and microbial control. It also includes a survey of the microbiology of the major infectious diseases

**Prerequisite:** C or better in BIO\* 121 **Offered:** Fall, Spring, Summer

#### **BIO\* 260: PRINCIPLES OF GENETICS 3 CREDITS**

This is an introductory course in genetics. This course covers the basic principles of genetics from Mendel to recombinant DNA, with emphasis on human inheritance. Topics include an examination of the role genetics plays in cancer, aging, and behavior along with the concepts of eugenics (selective breeding), genetic diseases, and genetic engineering.

Prerequisites: None

Offered: Spring, Summer, Fall, Winter

### **BUSINESS**

### BBG\* 101: INTRODUCTION TO BUSINESS

3 CREDITS

Provides a basic overview of the structure of business organizations, large and small. Reviews distinguishing features of sole proprietorships, partnerships, and corporations. Covers all aspects of organizing a business. An excellent course for someone wishing an overview of business, or for the person who has not worked extensively in a business and wishes to get some solid background. Highly recommended for all people without significant business experience.

**Prerequisites:** None **Offered:** Fall, Spring

# BBG\* 115: BUSINESS SOFTWARE APPLICATIONS 3 CREDITS

Using Microsoft Suite applications software, students in this hands-on course will learn to use each of the software packages as they relate to the business environment. A major emphasis is placed on Excel to build flexible spreadsheets used in business decision-making, supplemented with Word to produce professional looking documents, Access to select and analyze data to produce valid results, and PowerPoint to effectively present and communicate.

Prerequisites: Eligible for +ENG\* 101 or +ENG\* 101S

Offered: Not regularly offered

## BBG\* 125: THE FUTURE AND ORGANIZATIONS 3 CREDITS

An introduction to the study of the future from an organizational perspective. Emphasis is on examination of the effect population has on the future; learning different methods of futures forecasting; development of future-oriented thinking; environmental scanning techniques; and networks to increase our capabilities to address and adapt to change. (See also HUM\* 141.)

Prerequisites: None

Offered: Not regularly offered

### BBG\* 210: BUSINESS COMMUNICATIONS

3 CREDITS

This course introduces the fundamentals of communication for personal, business and professional use. Students will practice how to write letters, memos and reports, prepare graphics, and deliver oral presentations according to current writing styles and business conventions. Instruction will include reinforcement of English/grammar skills, team and small group communication, oral presentations, nonverbal communications, resume preparation and interviewing skills. See also +COM\* 271.

Prerequisite: Eligible for +ENG\* 101 or +ENG\* 101S

Offered: Spring

#### BBG\* 215: GLOBAL BUSINESS 3 CREDITS

An introduction course designed to provide students with the foundations for conducting international business and an understanding of the impact of the social, cultural, economic, political, religious, and legal environments in international trade. The course will focus on the importance of globalization, foreign investment, international marketing, international management, and operations of multinational corporations.

Prerequisite: BMG\* 202

Offered: Spring

## BBG\* 234: LEGAL ENVIRONMENT OF BUSINESS 3 CREDITS

The meaning of law and structure of the American legal system are studied with a view toward the impact of law upon the operation of American business. Ethics and social responsibility are examined through the lens of stakeholder analysis and other analytical tools. Students will explore ethical issues and their own ethics as major components of the course. Major aspects of government regulation of business such as products liability, securities regulation, worker protection, and intellectual property issues are also explored. The course also examines fiduciary duty and tort liability. May not be taken by students who have completed either Business Law I or Business Law II.

Prerequisites: None Offered: Fall, Spring

#### BBG\* 240: BUSINESS ETHICS 3 CREDITS

This course is an introduction to Business Ethics. Students will explore the philosophical underpinnings of ethics, which will then be applied to the modern corporate environment. The macro and micro environment that impacts decision making, the context of the ever-increasing pressure for public and private corporations to increase profitability, and the social, moral and legal implications will be examined. The case method will be used to study actual corporate cases, as well as hypothetical cases designed to examine the philosophical, moral, sociological, and legal issues.

Prerequisite: BMG\* 101 or BMG\* 202 or permission

of instructor

Offered: Fall

#### BBG\* 294: BUSINESS INTERNSHIP 3 CREDITS

Field work experience in business and accounting. Assignments may be in private, public, or non-profit organizations in areas such as manufacturing, retailing, personnel, accounting or finance. This experience will enable students, under supervision, to integrate experience with theoretical knowledge. Each credit earned requires 40 hours of work placement. In addition, six one-hour classroom seminar periods will be required during the semester.

**Prerequisites:** Minimum of 21 credit hours completed in program core and permission of instructor. Graded pass/fail.

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

#### BES\* 118: SMALL BUSINESS MANAGEMENT

3 CREDITS

A basic course studying the problems involved in starting, managing, and operating a small business. Provides an overall approach to small business. Emphasis is on evaluating the problems, risks, and rewards of operating a small firm.

Prerequisites: None

Offered: Not regularly offered

#### BES\* 218: ENTREPRENEURSHIP 3 CREDITS

This is a basic course designed to help people identify the challenges and opportunities that people face who wish to create their own organizations. While the course will be aimed at starting a business, most of the concepts are easily transferable to the not-forprofit sector. Students with interests in either area are invited. In the 21st century, information technology, the widespread dispersion of talent across the world, and the speed of transportation all have combined to create an entrepreneurial opportunity that is unparalleled. It is now possible to create a new business that serves a particular market need dispersed throughout the world. No longer do small businesses have to 'act small.' Websites, email, and package delivery speed all mean that small businesses can compete with large ones as never before, even in the manufacturing arena. This course is about learning how to think like an entrepreneur, act like an entrepreneur, and how to be successful as an entrepreneur - creating an organization that works.

Prerequisites: None

Offered: Fall

#### BFN\* 201: PRINCIPLES OF FINANCE 3 CREDITS

The basic principles of finance, the functions and relationships of financial institutions, and operational procedures of the money markets, including sources of financing and management of financial assets. Applications of finance to the business firm, community, and family are investigated in light of the current economy.

Prerequisites: BMG\* 101 or BMG\* 202, MAT\* 121, or

equivalent (Accounting I recommended).

Offered: Not regularly offered

## BMG\* 202: PRINCIPLES OF MANAGEMENT

3 CREDITS

A beginning course in management emphasizing the development of problem identification, analysis, and problem-solving skills. Concentrates on the human side of management through coverage of such topics as motivation, planning, leadership, team development, decision making, communications, and organizing. Case studies are a major part of the course. This course is not open to students who have completed BMG\* 101: Introduction to Management.

Prerequisites: None

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer, Winter

#### BMG\* 203 LEADERSHIP

3 CREDITS

Provides an in-depth examination of the nature and importance of leadership concepts and principles as applied to organizational effectiveness. Leadership research, practice, and skills are emphasized in light of modern theories and applications. This course utilizes personal inventories, journals, service opportunities, discussion, and critical reflection to develop leadership skills and build an understanding of the role of leadership in organizations. See also HUM\* 145.

Prerequisite: None

Offered: Not regularly offered

#### BMG\* 210: ORGANIZATIONAL BEHAVIOR

3 CREDITS

The study of people and groups in organizations. Includes the study of team effectiveness, learning styles, communications, motivation, conflict, the evaluation of behavior. Extensive student participation. Orientation is toward development of personal effectiveness in dealing with others.

Prerequisite: BMG\* 101 or BMG\* 202

Offered: Fall, Spring

### BMG\* 220: HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

3 CREDITS

Mismanagement of human resources costs organizations millions of dollars yearly. This course emphasizes positive ways to select, train, motivate, and evaluate today's workers to provide maximum effectiveness. Organizational behavior findings provide the basis for the topics covered in the course.

Prerequisite: BMG\* 101 or BMG\* 202

Offered: Fall

# BMK\* 201: PRINCIPLES OF MARKETING

3 CREDITS

This course covers marketing methods and institutions, including analysis and interrelationship of the marketing mix. Application of basic management and marketing strategy planning methods, and performance computations related to marketing efficiency are also covered. This course is not open to students who have completed BMK\* 101: Introduction to Marketing.

Prerequisite: Eligible for +ENG\* 101 or +ENG\* 101S

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

#### BMK\* 207: CONSUMER BEHAVIOR 3 CREDITS

This course builds a useful conceptual framework that both enhances understanding and permits practical application of consumer behavior principles to marketing strategy. Discussion focuses on the consumer as an individual, consumers in their social and cultural settings, the consumer decision-making process, and consumer behavior and society.

Prerequisite: Grade of C or better in BMK\* 101 or

+BMK\* 201

Offered: Fall, Spring

#### BMK\* 208: SOCIAL MEDIA MARKETING

3 CREDITS

Facebook, blogs, YouTube, Twitter, and other new technologies have changed and challenged the marketing landscape. By analyizing case studies and examining current uses of social media marketing, students will learn how to harness the power of user-generated content to create buzz, position products, and raise brand awareness. The course will emphasize strategies for measuring the effectiveness of social media marketing campaigns. See also COM\* 200.

**Prerequisites:** None **Offered:** Fall, Summer

#### BMK\* 221: SALES MANAGEMENT 3 CREDITS

Studies the persuasive techniques used in personal selling. Discussion focuses on the steps in the sales process, the management of that process, and the role of sales within the promotion element of the marketing

Prerequisite: BMK\* 101 or +BMK\* 201

Offered: Spring

### BMK\* 230: ADVERTISING & PROMOTION

3 CREDITS

Concentrates on the communication aspects of marketing. Discussion focuses on the Promotion element of the marketing mix and its sub-elements of advertising, sales, public relations, and sales promotion. The importance of promotion in the strategic marketing planning process is analyzed.

Prerequisite: BMK\* 101 or +BMK\* 201

Offered: Spring

### **CHEMISTRY**

A grade of C- is the passing grade for prerequisites in this category unless otherwise noted.

Students interested in majoring in chemistry should consider the CSCUTransferTicket in Chemistry Studies (see CSCUTransferTicket degrees on the web site.) By completing this Asnuntuck associate degree, students can transfer to the Connecticut State Universities (CSU: Central, Eastern, Southern, and Western) and Charter Oak State College (COSC) with a junior status and complete their BA/BS degree. Contact Amely Cross (860-253-3119 or across@asnuntuck.edu) for further details.

#### CHE\* 111: CONCEPTS OF CHEMISTRY 4 CREDITS

This is a one-semester course for non-majors covering atomic structure and chemical bonding, followed by discussion of air, water, foods, drugs, plastics, and agricultural chemicals. Not a prerequisite for other chemistry courses, not a substitute for +CHE\* 121 or +CHE\* 122. (3 hours lecture/3 hours lab)

Prerequisite: +MAT\* 095 Offered: Fall, Spring

#### CHE\* 121: GENERAL CHEMISTRY I 4 CREDITS

The first semester is a study of the principles of chemistry, including basic concepts, atomic structure, energy, relationships, periodicity, bonding, gases, liquids, and solids. Laboratory is coordinated with lecture. (3 hours lecture/3 hours lab)

**Prerequisite:** +MAT\* 137 (may be taken concurrently)

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

#### CHE\* 122: GENERAL CHEMISTRY II 4 CREDITS

This course is a continuation of General Chemistry I. Topics included are thermodynamics, reaction rates, equilibria, electrochemistry, and an introduction to organic and biochemistry. Laboratory is coordinated with lecture. (3 hours lecture/3 hours lab)

Prerequisite: +CHE\* 121

Offered: Fall, Spring

#### CHE\* 220: BIOCHEMISTRY 4 CREDITS

This course focusses on the chemistry and metabolism of carbohydrates, amino acids, and lipids. The structure and function of proteins and enzymes will be studied and how they relate to diseases and real world applications. All diseases that are comprehensively understood can be explained using cellular biochemistry, therefore to understand health, and diseases, we must first understand biochemistry. See also +BIO\* 220.

Prerequisite: C or better in BIO\* 121 and +CHE\* 122

Offered: Spring

### **COMMUNICATIONS**

Students interested in majoring in communications should consider the CSCUTransferTicket in Communication Studies (see CSCUTransferTicket degrees on the web site.) By completing this Asnuntuck associate degree, students can transfer to the Connecticut State Universities (CSU: Central, Eastern, Southern, and Western) and Charter Oak State College (COSC) with a junior status and complete their BA/BS degree. Contact Robert Brown at 860.253.3124 or kbrown@asnuntuck.edu for further details.

### COM\* 101: INTRODUCTION TO MASS COMMUNICATION 3 CREDITS

Course is intended to foster the intelligent appraisal of print media, radio, film, television, and new media, and to track their historical development, structures, roles, and functions in our society and others throughout the world. The media are analyzed in terms of their manipulative powers and role in the development of our environment. Materials reviewed include newspaper reports, press releases, newscasts, advertising copy, films, television broadcasts, social media, and new media. Communications majors may explore specific areas of concern for employment and/or college transfer.

Prerequisite: Eligible for +ENG\* 101 or +ENG\* 101S

Offered: Fall

Courses 88 www.asnuntuck.edu

#### COM\* 121: JOURNALISM I

3 CREDITS

The primary aim of the class is to teach the basics of print journalism. Toward that end, students will engage in a series of exercises and assignments as they learn how to report news. Additional areas of exploration may include newspaper history, investigative work, and feature and sports reporting. Internships with the college newspaper or newspapers in nearby towns are possibilities. We will also attempt to acquaint those interested in journalism as a career choice with workplace environment. See also +ENG\* 171.

Prerequisites: "C-" or better in +ENG\* 101 or +ENG

101S

Offered: Spring

#### COM\* 122: SPORTS REPORTING 3 CREDITS

Introduces students to the fundamentals of sports writing. Students will analyze sports reporting in print, broadcast, and online. Assignments emphasize practical skills grounded in journalism, including interviewing, writing, and editing. Students will produce both written and recorded (audio/video) assignments to demonstrate course competencies. See also +ENG\* 172.

Prerequisite: Eligible for +ENG\* 101 or +ENG 101S

Offered: Fall

#### COM\* 131: AUDIO PRODUCTION 3 CREDITS

Introductory class designed to familiarize students with the basics of audio production and performance. Technical aspects of the class focus on the equipment, studio environment, and recording, mixing, and editing techniques used in radio production. Students will learn performance basics and practice these techniques while producing PSAs, promos, and commercials. While the class focuses primarily on radio production and performance, many of the skills developed over the course of the semester can be transferred to other applications, such as video and multi-media production.

Prerequisites: None

Offered: Fall

#### COM\* 166: VIDEO FILMMAKING 3 CREDITS

An introduction to basic video production concepts, ideas, and techniques. A hands-on course-students actively participate in video field production. Students work on their projects individually and/or in small groups as required. Class covers instruction in the use of all college video production equipment, including cameras, VTRs, switchers, editors, and post-production equipment; an analytical survey of production styles and formats, such as ENG and EFP production, documentary, performance (music, theater, film), training, advertising and sports; and fundamental instructional design, production outlining, scriptwriting, narrative structures, and post-production techniques. By the course's end, each student should be able to produce one finished program of about ten minutes in length using a variety of production techniques.

**Prerequisites:** None **Offered:** Fall, Spring

#### COM\* 173: PUBLIC SPEAKING

3 CREDITS

Objective is to develop student capabilities in oral communication before an audience. Focuses on observation, analysis, and practice in various types of public speaking. Special attention is given to the organization of ideas, proper English language usage, platform presence, control of voice, and confidence building. Students may also participate in group activities including debates, panel discussions and forums, and general reporting.

Prerequisites: None

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

#### COM\* 191: RADIO PRACTICUM 1 CREDIT

Students enrolled in the practicum gain hands-on experience at WACC, Asnuntuck's radio station. Each student is assigned a weekly, three-hour air shift. Students will learn how to operate station equipment, follow a format clock, and adhere to FCC rules and regulations as well as WACC policies. This class is graded on a pass/fail basis. Course may be repeated for up to three credits.

**Prerequisites:** COM\* 131 with a grade of C- or better, or permission of the Communications Program Coordinator after review of a demo recording of on-air work.

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

#### COM\* 200: SOCIAL MEDIA MARKETING

3 CREDITS

Facebook, blogs, YouTube, Twitter, and other new technologies have changed and challenged the marketing landscape. By analyzing case studies and examining current uses of social media marketing, students will learn how to harness the power of user-generated content to create buzz, position products, and raise brand awareness. The course will emphasize strategies for measuring the effectiveness of social media marketing campaigns. See also BMK\* 208.

Prerequisite: None Offered: Fall, Summer

## COM\* 232: ADVANCED AUDIO PRODUCTION

3 CREDITS

The course introduces students to advanced digital production techniques for radio, video, and multimedia. Through lectures, demonstrations, and production assignments, students gain valuable knowledge of the theory and practices of audio art as a recognized form of artistic expression using advanced techniques of audio manipulation on digital audio workstations. Topics include digitizing, formats, synthesis, filtering, and effects via digital techniques. Particular emphasis is placed on audio for radio and video. The course provides students with intensive practice and skill development in audio production techniques, while preparing them to work directly with video and radio program producers.

Prerequisite: COM\* 131

Offered: Spring

#### COM\* 241: TELEVISION PRODUCTION 3 CREDITS

Designed to familiarize students with video production concepts, ideas, and techniques beyond the elementary understanding of the process. This is a hands-on course; each student or team produces a variety of finished programs. The focus is on live studio production with limited post-production. Students work in teams. Includes review of instruction in the use of all college video production equipment, including cameras, and recording, switching, editing and post-production equipment; instructional design, production outlining, scriptwriting, narrative structures and news, and post-production techniques; introduction to Video Toaster and graphic design; and extensive experience producing studio-based programs. Intended for students having a working knowledge of TV equipment.

Prerequisites: None Offered: Spring

#### COM\* 271: BUSINESS COMMUNICATIONS

3 CREDITS

This course introduces the fundamentals of communication for personal, business and professional use. Students will practice how to write letters, memos and reports, prepare graphics, and deliver oral presentations according to current writing styles and business conventions. Instruction will include reinforcement of English/grammar skills, team and small group communication, oral presentations, nonverbal communications, resume preparation and interviewing skills. See also +BBG\* 210.

Prerequisite: Eligible for +ENG\* 101 or +ENG 101S

Offered: Spring

#### COM\* 295: INTERNSHIP I 3 CREDITS

Supervised experience working in a professional communications environment. The internship is a program designed to provide the student with hands-on, practical experience in the information or communications professions. In collaboration with the Program Coordinator, the student will design a program of study and work to identify an appropriate placement (e.g. radio or television station, newspaper, Web design company, photography studio, art design firm, etc.). Students will serve their internship under the supervision of a full-time faculty member, adjunct instructor, and/or a practicing member of the profession. Evaluation of the internship experience is shared between the Communications Program Coordinator and on-site supervisor.

**Prerequisite:** Approval of Communications Program

Coordinator

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

### **CRIMINAL JUSTICE**

Students interested in majoring in criminology should consider the CSCUTransferTicket in Criminology Studies (see CSCU Transfer Ticket degrees on the web site.) By completing this Asnuntuck associate degree, students can transfer to the Connecticut State Universities (CSU: Central, Eastern, Southern, and Western) and Charter Oak State College (COSC) with a junior status and complete their BA/BS degree. Contact Kobie Stewart (860-253-3106 or kstewart@asnuntuck.edu) for further details.

### CJS\* 101: INTRODUCTION TO CRIMINAL JUSTICE

3 CREDITS

This course material presents an overview of the criminal justice system, surveying the basic elements of law enforcement, the courts, and corrections. Students will develop a working knowledge of the language of the criminal justice system and discuss problems and improvements of the system.

Prerequisite: None Offered: Fall, Spring

### CJS\* 102: INTRODUCTION TO CORRECTIONS

3 CREDITS

This course is an overview of the historical development of corrections in the U.S. and the present-day workings of the correctional system. Students will consider the integral position of corrections in the criminal justice system and explore the dynamics of corrections in relationship to changing socioeconomic, political, and cultural conditions.

Prerequisites: None Offered: Fall, Spring

### CJS\* 120: POLICE AND THE COMMUNITY

3 CREDITS

This course covers the study, analysis and recommendations for reducing the severity of the major tension points between police and the community. The course presents an overview of the various aspects of Community Policing, which involves partnerships among the police, the community and other government agencies as a method of responding to citizen demand for service. Students are taught the evolution of policing ranging from the political to the professional era.

**Prerequisite:** None **Offered:** Fall, Spring

#### CJS\* 126: GANGS AND "FAMILIES" 1 CREDIT

This course will provide the student with an overview of the psychology and sociology behind various gangs around the country. In-depth coverage will be given to local gangs' symbolism including their graffiti, styles, tattoos, patches and other markings. The course will cover assorted proactive strategies to control gang violence and crime.

Prerequisite: None Offered: Spring

### CJS\* 137: TEST PREPARATION FOR POLICE CANDIDATES 1 CREDIT

This course will prepare the students for the application and testing phases of the hiring process in law enforcement, as well as other related criminal justice fields. Students will receive instruction on how to develop contacts for job-related internships. In addition, students will learn about employer expectations and requirements when they are applying for entry-level law enforcement or corrections careers.

Prerequisite: None

Offered: Fall

#### CJS\* 201: CRIMINOLOGY 3 CREDITS

Students in this course develop an understanding of crime by reading and discussing the leading theories related to the phenomenon of criminal behavior. Students will examine the influence of criminological theory on public policy and the administration of justice in the United States. Upon completion of the course, the student will be able to apply the various theories in an explanation of the occurrence, prevention and reaction to crime in society. See also +SOC\* 240.

Prerequisite: CJS\* 101 Offered: Fall, Summer

#### CJS\* 202: JUVENILE DELINQUENCY 3 CREDITS

This course examines the multifaceted concepts of juvenile delinquency. Students will explore the relationship between social attitudes and definitions of youthful law violations. Popular causal factors of juvenile delinquency will be reviewed in this course. See also +SOC\* 241.

**Prerequisite:** *CJS\* 101.* 

Offered: Spring

#### CJS\* 210: CONSTITUTIONAL LAW 3 CREDITS

This course presents an introduction to individual rights guaranteed by the U.S. Constitution, the workings of the U.S. Supreme Court, the Bill of Rights and their application to individual states. Students will review the significance of constitutional law, and how judges' interpretation of the Constitution transforms society.

Prerequisite: CJS\* 101. See also POL\* 212.

Offered: Summer

#### CJS\* 211: CRIMINAL LAW I 3 CREDITS

This course is an exploration of the purposes of criminal law, the problems of crime in a free society, elements of a crime, criminal liability and responsibility, defenses available to the criminal defendant, and punishments for criminal acts. The substance of the eight Part I UCR crimes is discussed in detail.

Prerequisite: CJS\* 101, and placement in +ENG\* 101

Offered: Spring

#### CJS\* 213: EVIDENCE & CRIMINAL PROCEDURE

3 CREDITS

This course provides an in-depth study of criminal procedure and due process as they are applied to policing and correctional management. Students will study diverse topics of concern to criminal justice professionals such as search and seizure rules, rights of the accused before and during the trial process, and the rights of prisoners. This course will emphasize problem solving skills through an understanding of case and civil law.

Prerequisite: CJS\* 101

Offered: Fall

#### CJS\* 220: CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION 3 CREDITS

This course will introduce the student to the science of criminal investigation. Students will learn about searching the crime scene, interviewing witnesses, interrogating suspects, methods of surveillance and the special techniques employed in particular kinds of criminal investigations.

Prerequisite: None Offered: Spring

# CJS\* 244: COMMUNITY BASED CORRECTIONS

3 CREDITS

Students who take this course receive in-depth instruction in the areas of probation, parole, pre- and post-incarceration offender supervision, and alternatives to traditional incarceration. Students will become familiar with the role of jails, local court systems, and the community diversion programs as important elements in the correction process. By the end of the course, students will be able to identify the foundational principles of community oriented corrections, identify nationally recognized examples of successful local offender treatment, and understand the methods for evaluating the success of offender supervision.

Prerequisite: None

Offered: Fall

## CJS\* 290: PRACTICUM IN CRIMINAL JUSTICE

3 CREDITS

This course provides students with hands-on experience in the daily functions of a publicly funded or non-profit organization that operates within some parameter of the criminal justice system. Provides students with an opportunity to translate classroom theory into practical applications.

Prerequisite: Written permission of Criminal Justice

Program Coordinator. Graded pass/fail.

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

### **DANCE**

All DAN\* courses satisfy the Fine Arts requirement.

#### DAN\* 121: DANCE I 3 CREDITS

This course is an exploration of the basic techniques, styles, concepts, and composition of dance and movement. No previous training is required or assumed. The course introduces and explores dance movements in the 20th century through historical analysis and movement. Students will participate in numerous dance exercises during the class.

**Prerequisite:** None **Offered:** Fall, Spring

### **DIGITAL ARTS**

### DGA\* 111: INTRODUCTION TO COMPUTER GRAPHICS

3 CREDITS

An introduction to creating images using the computer. Students will learn basic imaging skills through the use of industry standard Adobe software programs (Photoshop, Illustrator and InDesign). Assignments will stress specific criteria related to the software programs and incorporate design objectives that will enhance the understanding of the programs. Students will produce original art work on the computer. *This course satisfies the Fine Arts requirement*.

Prerequisite: None Offered: Fall, Spring

#### DGA\* 128: DIGITAL PHOTOGRAPHY 3 CREDITS

A hands-on studio based introduction to digital photography as a fine art and a means of communication. Topics include camera handling and creative controls, image editing and manipulation using Adobe Photoshop, and photographic history and theory. Through lectures, readings, slide presentations, videos and assignments, students will be introduced to the basic vocabulary, concepts, tools and expressive possibilities of digital photography. It is recommended that stuents have their own camera. See also ART\* 250. *This course satisfies the Fine Arts requirement.* 

Prerequisite: None

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

# EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION

## ECE\* 101: INTRODUCTION TO EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION 3 CREDITS

This course is designed to acquaint students with the field of early childhood education. The importance of the years from birth through 8 years play in a child's development are emphasized. The course acquaints students with historical perspectives of early childhood education along with modern trends and developments. This course requires 12 hours of observation at an approved site.

Prerequisite: None Offered: Fall, Spring

#### ECE\* 103: CREATIVE EXPERIENCES/CHILDREN

3 CREDITS

Students explore a wide variety of creative media suitable for use with young children. This includes experimentation with and the use of various media, techniques and methods. Emphasis is given to creative experiences as they impact the development of young children. Six hours of field work is required.

Prerequisite: None

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

### ECE\* 106: MUSIC AND MOVEMENT FOR CHILDREN 3 CREDITS

The role that music and movement play in the young child's life will be learned and experienced in this highly interactive course. Students will understand the importance of music in all domains of development and will create and implement appropriate lesson plans to include music and movement in their curriculum.

Prerequisite: None Offered: Fall

#### ECE\* 109: SCIENCE & MATH FOR CHILDREN

3 CREDITS

This course is designed to familiarize students with math and science activities and materials appropriate for young children. Students explore the environment as a vehicle to understand science as both a body of knowledge and also a way of learning through daily events and objects that relate to the fields of mathematics and science.

Prerequisite: ECE\* 101
Offered: Spring

# ECE\* 141: INFANT/TODDLER GROWTH AND DEVELOPMENT 3 CREDITS

This course is developed specifically for those who are already providing care for infants and toddlers in daycare or home settings or plan to work with this age group in the future. The course emphasizes developmentally appropriate caregiving by focusing on the

emotional, social, cognitive and physical development of infants and toddlers. Other areas covered include nutrition and its impact on infant and toddler development, information and techniques necessary for long-term planning, routines, safety, first aid and the effective use and management of physical space. This course is also appropriate for those involved in the training and supervising of infant and toddler caregivers. Student observations of infant/toddler care are required. This course is required for CDA candidates and those seeking the infant/toddler credential from Charter Oak. A one hour observation in an infant program and a one hour observation in a toddler program is required.

Prerequisite: None Offered: Spring

## ECE\* 176: HEALTH, SAFETY & NUTRITION

3 CREDITS

Examines the relationship between health, safety, nutrition, and child development. Emphasis will be placed on strategies needed to develop a safe, healthy, nutritionally sound program. Course content will also focus on the concept of preventive health care. Students will have an opportunity to learn about the Infant/Child CPR Certificate. Four hours of observation is required.

Prerequisite: None Offered: Fall, Summer

### ECE\* 180: CDA CREDENTIAL PREPARATION

3 CREDITS

This course is designed for child care providers who wish to obtain a Child Development Associate Credential (CDA) through the Council for Early Childhood Professional Recognition under the direct assessment system. Students examine and review the CDA competencies and functional areas and their integration with early childhood education theory and practice. Most of the coursework assists students in the development of their professional resource file and the completion of other necessary preparation and documentation needed to obtain the credential.

Prerequisite: ECE\* 101 Offered: As Needed

#### ECE\* 182: CHILD DEVELOPMENT 3 CREDITS

This course is concerned with human development from prenatal through elementary education with particular emphasis on the preschool child. The physical, socio-emotional, and cognitive benchmarks through successive stages of development will be studied in depth. This course requires ten hours of observation (in an NAEYC accredited program or an instructor-approved program) in order to complete the course.

Prerequisite: None
Offered: Spring, Summer

### ECE\* 206: ADMINISTRATION AND SUPERVISION OF EARLY CHILDHOOD PROGRAMS 3 CREDITS

This course examines the multi-dimensional role of the early childhood program director/administrator. Topics covered are: the responsibilities and skills involved in management, supervision and leadership of preschool programs. Emphasis is placed on the duties and responsibilities of an administrator; the recruitment, orientation, supervision and evaluation of staff members; program development; the budgeting process and fiscal management; food and health services; laws and regulations concerning state child care licensing; and parent involvement.

**Prerequisite:** Students who attend this class need to have either a CDA or nine credits in early childhood education or the permission of the coordinator of the early childhood education program.

Offered: Fall

### ECE\* 210: OBSERVATION, PARTICIPATION & SEMINAR 3 CREDITS

This course is designed to increase objectivity in observing and interpreting children's behavior, to observe developmental characteristics, and to increase the awareness of normal patterns of behavior. Observation and participation placements are provided for the study of young children in an approved NAEYC accredited early childhood setting. For eleven weeks, the student will observe and participate in a center for a total of 66 hours. There is a weekly seminar.

Prerequisite: ECE\* 101

Offered: Fall

## ECE\* 212: ADMINISTRATIVE LEADERSHIP IN EARLY CHILDHOOD PROGRAMS 3 CREDITS

This course is designed to examine the multi-dimensional roles of the early childhood program administrator. Emphasis will be on effective leadership and the impact of communication and interpersonal skills; decision making and participatory management tools; how to conduct effective meetings; formation of partnerships with families; child welfare advocacy; and strategic approaches to initiating and implementing change.

Prerequisite: ECE\* 101, +ENG\* 101

Offered: Winter

#### ECE\* 215: THE EXCEPTIONAL LEARNER

3 CREDITS

This course examines the history of treatment of children with exceptionalities. Course content includes legislative milestones relating to the handicapped, identification of children with special needs, and understanding the screening, assessment and evaluation process. Students also become aware of strategies for effective instruction as well as the impact on the family of a child with exceptionalities. Twelve hours of observation in an integrated program are required.

Prerequisite: ECE\* 101
Offered: Spring, Summer

### ECE\* 225: ANTIBIAS ISSUES IN EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION 3 CREDITS

This course provides students with a multicultural perspective in teaching children. Topics include diversity in the classroom and in the community. Students will explore various ethnic, religious, family, cultural, racial, and generational perspectives. Emphasis will be placed on expanding the view of diversity among students who will be taught in the 21st century.

Prerequisite: ECE\* 101
Offered: Not regularly offered

### ECE\* 231: EARLY LANGUAGE AND LITERACY DEVELOPMENT 3 CREDITS

This course is an introduction to language and literacy in the young child. Students will explore the early childhood language arts curriculum including speaking, listening, writing and reading skills. Emphasis will be placed on how a child's cultural background and experiences influence emerging literacy development. The teacher's role in creating and fostering a literacy-print rich environment that engages children in developmentally appropriate language arts experiences will be covered.

Prerequisite: ECE\* 101 Offered: Spring

### ECE\* 241: METHODS AND TECHNIQUES FOR INFANTS AND TODDLERS 3 CREDITS

Students will be introduced to the concept of curriculum for infants and toddlers. Several curriculum models will be explored. Students will learn ways to interact and create stimulating learning opportunities for children under age two. This course is recommended for those working or wanting to work with infants and toddlers. Successful completion of ECE\* 141 Infant/Toddler Growth and Development is highly recommended.

Prerequisite: None

Offered: Summer, Not regularly offered

### ECE\* 275: CHILD, FAMILY AND SCHOOL RELATIONSHIPS 3 CREDITS

This course examines the environment in which a child develops, the relationships of people in the environment and the interactions that take place in various settings. Course content includes the development of the child as a social being, communication between parents and teachers and the ways in which teachers can encourage parent involvement.

Prerequisite: ECE\* 101
Offered: Summer

## ECE\* 295: STUDENT TEACHING PRACTICUM 6 CREDITS

This capstone course provides twelve weeks of supervised student teaching in an approved NAEYC accredited center or public school. The purpose of student teaching is to apply child development theory to a learning environment and to work with children under

close supervision. Student teachers will plan, organize, implement and evaluate classroom learning experiences. Students will complete 220 hours of student teaching and attend a weekly seminar class devoted to issues in Early Childhood Education and their student teaching experience. It is recommended that students take this class the semester of their anticipated graduation.

**Prerequisite:** Permission of Program Coordinator and a grade of C- or better in the following ECE courses: ECE\* 101, ECE\* 103, ECE\* 176, +ECE \*210, +ECE\* 215, and +ECE\* 231

Offered: Spring

### **ECONOMICS**

### ECN\* 101: PRINCIPLES OF MACROECONOMICS

3 CREDITS

An introduction to contemporary macroeconomic thought and practices. Major concepts and tools of economic analysis covered include: unemployment, inflation, national income accounting, business cycles, growth theory, monetary policy, and investment and conception. Format is lecture/discussion, exams and/or papers. Course is required in most four-year business programs.

Prerequisite: None

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

## ECN\* 102: PRINCIPLES OF MICROECONOMICS

3 CREDITS

An introduction to contemporary microeconomic thought and practices. Major concepts and tools of economic analysis covered include: market allocation of resources, prices and income distribution, prices and profits, and the labor theory of value. Course is required in most four-year business programs.

Prerequisites: None

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

### **ENGLISH**

Students interested in majoring in English should consider the CSCUTransferTicket in English Studies (see CSCUTransferTicket degrees on the web site.) By completing this Asnuntuck associate degree, students can transfer to the Connecticut State Universities (CSU: Central, Eastern, Southern, and Western) and Charter Oak State College (COSC) with a junior status and complete their BA/BS degree. Contact John Sheirer (860-253-3138 or jsheirer@asnuntuck.edu) for further details.

## ENG\* 093 INTRODUCTION TO COLLEGE READING AND WRITING 3 SEMESTER HOURS

Prepares students for the reading and writing work of +ENG 101 and other college-level courses by integrating the development of reading, writing, and critical

Courses 94 www.asnuntuck.edu

thinking skills. Students will focus on understanding, responding to, and analyzing the ideas of others. Students learn and practice specific college-level skills through critical reading and writing assignments, class discussions, lecture, group activities, and workshops. A final grade of C or better in +ENG 093 is required in order to enroll in +ENG 101. This course does not satisfy a credit requirement or an elective in any degree program, nor do its credits count toward graduation.

Prerequisite: Approved placement criteria

Offered: Fall, Spring

## ENG\* 096: INTRODUCTION TO COLLEGE ENGLISH 6 SEMESTER HOURS

Prepares students for the reading and writing demands in +ENG 101 and other college-level writing courses by integrating reading writing, and critical thinking. Student writing will focus on understanding, reporting on, reacting to, and analyzing the ideas of others. Texts will serve as models and sources for students to refine their skills in exposition, interpretation, and argumentation. Students learn and practice specific college-level skills through critical reading and writing, class discussions, lectures, group presentations, or workshops. This course does not satisfy a credit requirement or an elective in any degree program, nor do its credits count toward graduation.

Prerequisite: Approved placement criteria

Offered: Fall, Spring

#### ENG\* 101: COMPOSITION 3 CREDITS

Composition focuses on the study and practice of effective written communication across a variety of rhetorical situations. The course develops skills in applying language conventions, engaging with and using authoritative sources, and crafting logical arguments.

Prerequisite: Approved placement criteria.

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

## ENG\* 101S: COMPOSITION WITH EMBEDDED SUPPORT 6 CREDITS

Composition focuses on the study and practice of effective written communication across a variety of rhetorical situations. The course develops skills in applying language conventions, engaging with and using authoritative sources, and crafting logical arguments. Composition with Embedded Support meets the same outcomes as +ENG101, but offers students additional support through supplemental instruction, increased time on task, focused workshops, and tutoring.

Prerequisites: Approved placement criteria

Offered: Fall, Spring

# ENG\* 102: LITERATURE & COMPOSITION

3 CREDITS

This course introduces students to the primary forms of literature: poetry, fiction, and drama. Focus is on a detailed examination of the elements of each form of literature, and reflective and critical writing in response to literature. Students read, discuss, and write about literary works representing a rich diversity of authors'

voices and backgrounds.

Prerequisites: "C-" or better in +ENG\* 101 or 101S

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

#### ENG\* 103: COMPOSITION II 3 CREDITS

The focus of this course is on critical writing and reading of various types of essays: reflection, research, analysis, evaluation, argument. Building on work begun in English 101, students are instructed in the process of writing through activities such as brainstorming, drafting, organizing, revising, and peer collaboration. Students are also instructed in strategies for critical reading of essays representing a rich diversity of authors' voices and backgrounds.

Prerequisite: "C-" or better in +ENG\* 101 or 101S

Offered: Fall, Spring

#### **ENG\* 114: CHILDREN'S LITERATURE 3 CREDITS**

This course examines the best literature available to children including works by major writers and forms such as fable, folk tale, fairy tale, nursery rhyme, and short story. The course presents an overview of children's literature including picture books, traditional literature and contemporary children's fiction. Topics include critical analysis, the relationship of illustration and text and oral interpretation of children's literature.

Prerequisite: None

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

#### ENG\* 171: JOURNALISM I 3 CREDITS

The primary aim of the class is to teach the basics of print journalism. Toward that end, students will engage in a series of exercises and assignments as they learn how to report news. Additional areas of exploration may include newspaper history, investigative work, and feature and sports reporting. Internships with the college newspaper or newspapers in nearby towns are possibilities. We will also attempt to acquaint those interested in journalism as a career choice with workplace environment. See also +COM\* 121.

Prerequisites: "C-" or better in +ENG\* 101 or 101S

Offered: Spring

#### ENG\* 172: SPORTS REPORTING 3 CREDITS

This course introduces students to the fundamentals of sports reporting. Students will analyze sports reporting in print, broadcast, and online. Assignments emphasize practical skills grounded in journalism, including interviewing, writing and editing. Students will produce both written and recorded (audio/video) assignments to demonstrate course competencies. See also +COM\* 122.

Prerequisite: Eligible for +ENG\* 101 or +ENG\* 101S

Offered: Fall

#### ENG\* 202: TECHNICAL WRITING 3 CREDITS

This course examines the writing tasks most often required in the professional world, including memos, letters, job-search correspondence, electronic correspondence, reports, technical descriptions, instructions, proposals, integrating text with graphics, and technical

editing. Students will write as a recursive process that includes prewriting, drafting, workshopping, revising, and editing.

Prerequisite: "C-" or better in +ENG\* 101 or 101S

Offered: Spring

**Note:** The hands-on courses, Literary Magazine Production I and II, will produce Asnuntuck's literary magazine, <u>Freshwater</u>, and organize the annual Freshwater Poetry Festival that celebrates the magazine's publication. Since each course will involve different aspects of producing the magazine and working on the festival, students are not required to take both courses nor to take them in sequence if they choose to take both courses.

### ENG\* 206: LITERARY MAGAZINE PRODUCTION I 3 CREDITS

This course focuses on developing and using literary and professional skills to plan and produce the college's annual professional literary magazine, ongoing college events related to creative writing, and the annual spring literary festival. Students serve on the editorial board of the literary magazine and on the planning board for college creative writing activities and the literary festival. +ENG 206 is offered in the fall semester and focuses on preliminary work for the magazine and the literary festival: soliciting, reading, and evaluating magazine submissions; researching magazine publishing and marketing options; planning the student writing contest; selecting and inviting professional writers for the festival; and planning the festival program. In addition, students will work on their own creative writing in a small-group workshop setting, producing a final portfolio of original poetry, fiction, and/or creative nonfiction. Note: +ENG 206: Literary Magazine Production I and +ENG 207: Literary Magazine Production II are distinct courses. Each course involves different aspects of producing the magazine and the festival, as well as writing new creative works for each course. Students do not have to take +ENG 206 before +ENG 207, so students may take both courses or take either one individually in any order. This course satisfies the Fine Arts requirement.

Prerequisite: "B" or better in +ENG\* 101 or 101S Offered: Fall

### ENG\* 207: LITERARY MAGAZINE PRODUCTION II 3 CREDITS

This course focuses on developing and using literary and professional skills to plan and produce the college's annual professional literary magazine, ongoing college events related to creative writing, and the annual spring literary festival. Students serve on the editorial board of the literary magazine and on the planning board for college creative writing activities and the literary festival. +ENG 207 is offered in the spring semester and focuses on completing production of the magazine and the literary festival: making final selections of submitted work for the magazine; carrying out magazine publishing and marketing plans; completing the student writing contest; coordinating professional writers for the festival;

finalizing the festival program; and overseeing festival operations. In addition, students will work on their own creative writing projects in a small-group workshop setting, producing a final portfolio of original poetry, fiction, and/or creative nonfiction. Note: +ENG 206: Literary Magazine Production I and +ENG 207: Literary Magazine Production II are distinct courses. Each course involves different aspects of producing the magazine and the festival, as well as writing new creative works for each course. Students do not have to take +ENG 206 before +ENG 207, so students may take both courses or take either one individually in any order. *This course satisfies the Fine Arts requirement*.

Prerequisite: "B" or better in +ENG\* 101 or 101S and

permission of instructor

Offered: Spring

#### ENG\* 210: FICTION 3 CREDITS

This course examines fiction from different time periods, genres, and cultures, examining intersections between fiction and a variety of topics such as critical theory, popular culture, history, mythology, etc. Students will read, analyze, discuss, and practice critical writing about multiple forms of fiction such as the novel, the novella, the short story, and others.

Prerequisite: "C-" or better in +ENG\* 101 or 101S

Offered: Spring

#### ENG\* 211: SHORT STORY 3 CREDITS

This course examines the short story as a distinct literary form. Students will practice critical reading, discussion, and analysis of short stories from a range of historical periods, cultural traditions, and literacy genres, and will explore how authors have attempted to interpret, comment on, and construct the human experience through and within the limitations of the short story form. Writing assignments ask students to support original theses about assigned stories using textual analysis.

Prerequisite: "C-" or better in +ENG\* 101 or 101S

Offered: Fall

#### ENG\* 213: POETRY 3 CREDITS

The nature and variety of poetry, some reasonable means for reading it with appreciative understanding, and ideas of how to evaluate it. Deals with such elements as imagery, the use of figurative language—metaphor, symbol, allegory, paradox and irony, for example—and the use of rhythm and meter. Focus is on how understanding these elements adds to the delight of reading and understanding poetry, as well as giving students the confidence to approach more advanced levels of reading literature, whether formally or informally. This course satisfies the Fine Arts requirement.

Prerequisite: "C-" or better in +ENG\* 101 or 101S

Offered: Not regularly offered

#### ENG\* 214: DRAMA 3 CREDITS

This course focuses on the study of dramatic plays as a literary form that has, since the time of ancient Greeks,

staged stories that entertain audiences while asking them to question themselves, their place within culture and history, and notions of reality. Students will learn the theatrical conventions that playwrights employ to manipulate an audience's experience with dramatic material, and how some writers have bent and broken such conventions in order to create new meaning.

Prerequisite: "C-" or better in +ENG\* 101 or 101S

Offered: Not regularly offered

# ENG\* 220: STUDIES IN AMERICAN LITERATURE 3 CREDITS

This course offers students an introduction to American literature, and surveys American literary works from colonial times to the present. It examines America's literary traditions, the development of a national identity through literature, and the ways in which different voices have explored what it means to be American.

**Prerequisite:** "C-" or better in +ENG\* 101 or 101S **Offered:** Spring

#### ENG\* 221 AMERICAN LITERATURE I 3 CREDITS

This course offers students an introduction to American Literature, surveying American literary works up to the U.S. Civil War. The course covers literature beginning with Native American mythology and culminates in a study of the "new" American identity forged by early United States authors such as Washington Irving, Edgar Allan Poe, and the Transcendentalists.

Prerequisite: "C-" or better in +ENG\* 101 or 101S

Offered: Spring

#### **ENG\* 222 AMERICAN LITERATURE II 3 CREDITS**

This course offers students an introduction to American Literature and surveys American literary works from the U.S. Civil War to present. It examines America's literary traditions, the development of a national identity through literature, and the ways in which different voices have explored what it means to be American. ENG 221 is not a prerequisite.

Prerequisite: "C-" or better in +ENG\* 101 or 101S

Offered: Spring

#### ENG\* 233: SHAKESPEARE 3 CREDITS

An introduction to Shakespeare's plays and the fundamentals of the genres. Students study at least one Shakespearean play intensively in addition to those covered by the class as a whole. Students explore a number of critical approaches to the study of Shakespeare.

Prerequisite: "C-" or better in +ENG\* 101 or 101S

Offered: Spring

#### ENG 245: EARLY WESTERN LITERATURE

3 CREDITS

This course introduces students to Western World literature from classical antiquity to the Renaissance. Students will read works by authors such as Homer, Sophocles, Euripides, Virgil, Dante, Chaucer, and Shake-

speare. Students will examine narrative and poetic strategies and discuss the evolution of Western ideas about good and evil, tragedy, redemption, heroism, gender, and/or religion.

Prerequisite: "C-" or better in +ENG\* 101 or 101S

Offered: Not regularly offered

#### ENG\* 281: CREATIVE WRITING 3 CREDITS

Students may work in poetry, fiction, drama, or a combination of these genres. Work in progress is presented each week to the class for critique and response. Readings are assigned on an individual basis. There is no limit as to the number of times a student may take this course, but a maximum of six credits will be allowed toward graduation. This course satisfies the Fine Arts requirement.

Prerequisites: "C-" or better in +ENG\* 101 or 101S

Offered: Fall

## ENG\* 282: CREATIVE WRITING POETRY 3 CREDITS

Students read and write poetry in a variety of forms, including the sonnet, the villanelle, terza rima, rimas dissolutas, syllabics, and the sestina. Learn to use meter, rhyme, imagery, metaphor and other tools of writing poetry, but most of all the delight and paradoxical freedom of writing in form. This course satisfies the Fine Arts requirement.

Prerequisite: "C-" or better in +ENG\* 101 or 101S.

Offered: Spring

#### ENG\* 283: CREATIVE WRITING -FICTION 3 CREDITS

This course will focus on fiction, both to learn about the elements of fiction and to write with the techniques of fiction. Instruction will guide writing practice, and drafts of works in progress will be presented to classmates and the instructor for feedback to shape revision. Reading assignments in fiction will be assigned and self-selected with the approval of the instructor. This course satisfies the Fine Arts requirement.

Prerequisite: "C-" or better in +ENG\* 101 or 101S.

Offered: Spring

#### ENG\* 285: MEMOIR WRITING 3 CREDITS

Memoir is an increasingly popular form of writing that draws on personal history and memory as inspiration for writing about life experience. The primary focus of this class will be writing several memoir essays over the course of the semester. Students will share, discuss, revise, and explore opportunities for publishing their memoir essays. Students will also read a range of published memoir and study one author of their choosing in depth for the purpose of examining the qualities and characteristics of memoir. This course satisfies the Fine Arts requirement.

Prerequisite: "C-" in +ENG\* 101 or 101S or permission

of instructor.

Offered: Summer

### ENG\* 289: POETRY AND POLITICS: WRITING TO MAKE CHANGE 3 CREDITS

Poets have always written in passionate response to suffering and inequality, calling attention to the need for change, insisting that we pay attention not only to what is right and beautiful but also to what is wrong and terrible in the world. In this course, we will examine a number of questions, beginning with working toward a clear definition of politics, so that we can understand the complexity of that concept and thus comprehend the effect that politics in the broadest definition has on our lives. The other two questions we will examine are "What is political poetry?" and "What makes a good political poem?" - exploring the challenge of writing poetry that tries to make a point without sliding into preaching. Student poems will be read and discussed in class, and students will produce a final portfolio of poems, rewritten in response to that class discussion. At the end of the semester, students will give a public reading of their work in the Asnuntuck Coffee House, and we will also put together a collection of work written for the course. We will be learning from one another. The instructor welcomes suggestions, and encourages students to bring in additional published poems to enhance the assigned reading, so that we can broaden the scope of our exploration. You will need to provide copies for the class of any poems you bring in. This course satisfies the Fine Arts requirement.

Prerequisite: "C-" or better in +ENG\* 101 or 101S.

Offered: Spring

### **GRAPHIC DESIGN**

#### GRA\* 151:GRAPHIC DESIGN I 3 CREDITS

An introduction to visual communication design and basic studio skills with an emphasis on developing the ability to convert creative concepts into a visual medium. The course covers design layout, typography, the development of graphic identity, portfolio development and mechanical preparation. This course satisfies the Fine Arts requirement.

**Prerequisite:** None **Offered:** Spring, Fall

### **HEALTH**

#### HLT\* 103: INVESTIGATIONS IN HEALTH CAREERS

3 CREDITS

This course is designed to assist students in meeting the expectations of a health care curriculum and career. The students will become familiar with the rigors of higher education and the specific skills needed to maximize the student's opportunity for academic and clinical success. The course will include a comprehensive overview of the duties and responsibilities associated with clinical competency. Interdisciplinary learning strategies, correlating clinical and didactic education, life management skills, work ethics, and critical thinking

skills necessary for all health providers will be empha-

Prerequisite: None Offered: Spring, Fall

### HLT\* 141: TECHNIQUES OF PHLEBOTOMY

4 CREDITS

This course consists of classroom theory and simulated laboratory settings where students will learn the skill of phlebotomy. Students will demonstrate successful specimen collection with venipunctures, skin punctures. Students will be able to demonstrate knowledge of infection control and safety; understand the importance of specimen collection in the overall patient care system; demonstrate proper techniques to perform venipuncture and capillary puncture; understand requisitioning, specimen transport, and specimen processing. After successful completion of the program, students will have the necessary skills to draw blood. from patients or donors in hospitals, blood banks, clinics, doctors' offices, laboratories or similar facilities for medical purposes. Students will practice their techniques in the clinical setting of the classroom.

Prerequisite: None
Offered: Winter, Summer

#### HLT\* 291: PHLEBOTOMY EXTERNSHIP

3CREDITS

This course requires the student, in the controlled environment of an approved phlebotomy externship site, to experience the hands-on application of blood collection procedures. This course requires the student to complete 45 hours of supervised practical experience in a program-approved site.

**Prerequisite:** HLT\* 141 Offered: Spring, Fall

# HEALTH INFORMATION MANAGEMENT

# HIM\* 102 INTRODUCTION TO HEALTH CARE SYSTEMS

3 CREDITS

This course introduces the student to the field of health information technology. Topics to be covered include the health care organization and career possibilities. Focus is on the medical record's purpose, format, content, and accuracy. Medical record retention, policies and procedures, documentation, and accurate coding will be discussed. Legal aspects concerning the medical records such as confidentiality and privacy will be covered.

Prerequisite: None Offered: Spring, Fall

Courses 98 www.asnuntuck.edu

### HIM\*201 HEALTH INFORMATION MANAGEMENT PRINCIPLES 3 CREDITS

This course emphasizes sources, definitions, collection and presentation of health data. Topics will include health care data systems, tumor registry, birth and death certificates, utilization and review, risk management and quality assurance. Issues concerning management, retrieval, and retention of health records, and compliance and regulations will be discussed along with current trends in health information technology.

Prerequisite: Co-requisite HIM\* 102

Offered: Fall, Spring

#### HIM\*210 CODING I

3 CREDITS

This course focuses on the Physician's Current Procedural Terminology (CPT) code book and data abstracting techniques. Students will acquire the knowledge and skills necessary to code various diagnostic procedures and examinations. Various health insurance systems and HCPCS will be discussed.

Prerequisite: HIM\* 102, MED\* 125

Offered: Fall, Spring

#### HIM\*211 ADVANCED CODING

3 CREDITS

This course is a continuation of coding procedures presenting history and overview of ICD-10 CM coding. Emphasis is placed on diagnostic coding utilizing ICD-10 coding systems. Diagnostic related groups, various health insurance systems, and claim processing will be discussed.

Prerequisite: HIM\* 102, MED\* 125

Offered: Fall, Spring

### **HISTORY**

A grade of C- is the passing grade for pre-requisites in this category unless otherwise noted.

Students interested in majoring in history should consider the CSCUTransferTicket in History Studies (see CSCUTransferTicket degrees on the web site.) By completing this Asnuntuck associate degree, students can transfer to the Connecticut State Universities (CSU: Central, Eastern, Southern, and Western) and Charter Oak State College (COSC) with a junior status and complete their BA/BS degree. Contact Lisa (Elle) Van Dermark (860-253-3148 or Ivandermark@asnuntuck. edu) for further details.

#### HIS\* 101: WESTERN CIVILIZATION I 3 CREDITS

A survey of ancient civilization through classical Greece, Rome, and Medieval Europe to the formation of modern nation states, emphasizing the political, economic, and social development of institutions and ideas.

**Prerequisite:** "C-" or better in +ENG\* 101 or 101S or concurrent enrollment in +ENG\* 101 or 101S

Offered: Fall, Spring

#### HIS\* 102: WESTERN CIVILIZATION II 3 CREDITS

A survey of modern civilization in the era of the Enlightenment, the resulting social, political, and economic changes and revolutions, and the development of governments based on popular participation.

**Prerequisite:** "C-" or better in +ENG\* 101 or 101S or concurrent enrollment in +ENG\* 101 or 101S

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

#### HIS\* 201: U.S. HISTORY I

3 CREDITS

This course examines the political, economic, social and cultural development of the United States from the pre-European period through Reconstruction. Major emphasis is on the Colonial Era, national growth, sectionalism and the Civil War.

**Prerequsite:** "C-" or better in +ENG\* 101 or 101S or concurrent enrollment in +ENG\* 101 or 101S

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

#### HIS\* 202: U.S. HISTORY II 3 CREDITS

This course focuses on the growth of the United States from Reconstruction to the present with special emphasis on underlying political, economic and social trends and movements that have influenced American development and values.

**Prerequisite:**"C-" or better in +ENG\* 101 or 101S or concurrent enrollment in +ENG\* 101 or 101S

Offered: Fall, Spring

#### HIS\* 213: THE U.S. SINCE WORLD WAR II

3 CREDITS

This course deals with both domestic and foreign affairs beginning with the Cold War through the present. The course will include the Civil Rights Movement, as well as the Vietnam War, the rise of conservatism, and the dominant concern of national security.

**Prerequisite:** "C-" or better in +ENG\* 101 or 101S or concurrent enrollment in +ENG\* 101 or 101S **Offered:** Every 4th year - check Course Bulletin

# HIS\* 215: HISTORY OF WOMEN IN THE U.S.

3 CREDITS

This course is a survey of the history of women and their experiences in the U.S. from the Colonial Era to the present with a special emphasis on the diversity of women's lives and contributions.

**Prerequisite:** "C-" or better in +ENG\* 101 or 101S or concurrent enrollment in +ENG\* 101 or 101S **Offered:** Every 4th year - check Course Bulletin

# HIS\* 222: INTRODUCTION TO AMERICAN LABOR HISTORY 3 CREDITS

An introduction to the history of labor in the United States, beginning with the Industrial Revolution. Emphasis is on the development and operation of unions and the changing role of governments in this process.

**Prerequisite:** "C-" or better in +ENG\* 101 or 101S or concurrent enrollment in +ENG\* 101 or 101S **Offered:** Every 4th year - check Course Bulletin

#### HIS\* 224: THE AMERICAN INDIAN 3 CREDITS

An introduction to American Indian culture generally, and to four tribes in particular. Examines the condition of tribes before the coming of the Europeans, continuing to the present day, looking at the American Indian in contemporary society.

**Prerequisite:** "C-" or better in +ENG\* 101 or 101S or concurrent enrollment in +ENG\* 101 or 101S **Offered:** Every 4th year - check Course Bulletin

### **HUMAN DEVELOPMENT**

#### HDEV 101: FIRST YEAR EXPERIENCE 3 CREDITS

First Year Experience is a required course for the General Studies and Liberal Arts degree programs. The purpose of this class is to introduce students to higher education practices, effective academic strategies and the resources of Asnuntuck Community College. The learning activities in this class prepare students for college coursework through practice in key academic abilities: information literacy, study skills, using academic sources, critical thinking, formulating academic-based responses, metacognition, online learning platforms and time management. Academic planning, transfer preparation and career exploration are also emphasized. The course incorporates reading, writing and speaking assignments as well as enrichment and online assignments.

Prerequisite: None Offered: Fall, Spring

#### HDEV 110: PERSONAL FINANCE 3 CREDITS

An introduction to personal financial planning. Includes development of financial goals and implementing plans to achieve these goals. Course topics will include the financial planning process, economic environment, time value of money, legal environment, and financial analysis. This course is useful to all students. May not be taken by students who have completed BFN\* 110: Personal Finance.

Prerequisite: None

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

#### HDEV 125: CAREER DEVELOPMENT 3 CREDITS

Career-entry strategies and resources are explored to prepare students for a successful job search and to develop effective methods for career advancement. Activities include self-evaluation, goal setting, company research, personal marketing plans, resume and cover letter preparation, and interviewing practice. Mid-career planning strategies and resources are also examined to maximize advancement potential and long-term professional growth. Through practical applications, students develop product knowledge, research and planning skills, and ways to execute their job search and career-advancement strategies. Each student assembles a final portfolio to be used for career-development opportunities and needs.

Prerequisite: None Offered: Spring

### **HUMAN SERVICES**

A grade of "C-" is the passing grade for prerequisites in this category unless otherwise noted.

## HSE\* 101: INTRODUCTION TO HUMAN SERVICES

3 CREDITS

This course covers the basic concepts, philosophy, and historical development of national, social, and rehabilitative service. Includes professionalism, ethics, confidentiality, and rights of human services consumers. Examines the psychological, sociological, economic, and political factors which influence policy formulation in public and private social organizations.

**Prerequisites** None

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

## HSE\* 170: INTRODUCTION TO GERONTOLOGY

3 CREDITS

Gerontology is the study of biological, psychological, and social aspects of aging. Gerontologists include researchers and practicioners in such diverse fields as lcal and occupational therapy, psychology, psychiatry, sociology, economics, political science, architecture, pharmacy, and anthropology. This course will be a careful examination of the research and practices dealing with he aging.

Prerequisite: None

Offered: Fall

#### HSE\* 236: LEGAL ISSUES IN HUMAN SERVICES

3 CREDITS

An overview of the law as it affects the social service worker. Addresses such topics as guardianship, involuntary commitment, informed consent to medical treatment, confidentiality and the social work privilege, the rights of the client, the family and the right to privacy, social work malpractice, licensing, and the criminal justice system.

Prerequisite: None

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

### HSE\* 237: MEDICAL ASPECTS OF HUMAN SERVICES

3 CREDITS

Many components of human services interface with medical and/or medically related facilities. Human service workers need a working knowledge of health and illness and how they impact the service recipient. Course examines limitations resulting from selected disabilities and dynamics of a number of medical conditions human service workers encounter. Students have an opportunity to explore in depth a medical topic of their choice.

Prerequisite: HSE\* 101
Offered: Not regularly offered

Courses 100 www.asnuntuck.edu

# HSE\* 241: HUMAN SERVICES AGENCIES AND ORGANIZATIONS 3 CREDITS

This course covers the study of community organizations and their method of practice. The objective is to analyze the practice of planning and implementation of social services programs directed toward some component of community change. The skills, methods and organizational functions of community service workers are explored and integrated into the other skills and methods of social service practice that are a part of a student's overall learning experience in the human services program.

Prerequisite: HSE\* 101

Offered: Spring

#### HSE\* 281: HUMAN SERVICES FIELD WORK I

3 CREDITS

Provides students interested in working in human services with an opportunity to learn experientially at a human services agency in the community. Focus is on students learning how an agency functions as an organization. Students are allowed to participate in activities of the agency under the joint supervision of personnel in the assigned organization and the human service instructor. 120 hours in a human services agency is required.

Prerequisites: HSE\* 101 and PSY\* 111

Offered: Fall, Spring

### **HUMANITIES**

A grade of "C-" is the passing grade for prerequisites in this category unless otherwise noted.

#### HUM\* 141: THE FUTURE AND ORGANIZATIONS

3 CREDITS

An introduction to the study of the future from an organizational perspective. Emphasis is on examination of the effect population has on the future, learning different methods of futures forecasting, development of future-oriented thinking, environmental scanning techniques, and networks to increase our capabilities to address and adapt to change. See also BBG\* 125.

Prerequisite: None

Offered: Not regularly offered

### HUM\* 145 LEADERSHIP IN SOCIETY

3 CREDITS

Provides an in-depth examination of the nature and importance of leadership concepts and principles as applied to organizational effectiveness. Leadership research, practice, and skills are emphasized in light of modern theories and applications. This course utilizes personal inventories, journals, service opportunities, discussion, and critical reflection to develop leadership skills and build an understanding of the role of leadership in organizations. See also BMG\* 203.

Prerequisite: None

Offered: Not regularly offered

### HUM\* 171: THE BLACK EXPERIENCE

3 CREDITS

A study of the experiences of Black Americans using material from history, sociology, and literature. Attempts to illuminate the search for viable identity. A grade of C- is the passing grade for pre-requisites in this category unless otherwise noted.

Prerequisite: None

Offered: Not regularly offered

#### HUM\* 185: PROBLEM SOLVING AND DECISION MAKING

3 CREDITS

Develops problem-solving skills necessary to have successful independent careers. Students explore different types of problems, learn various thinking skills, and develop communications abilities. Most class work is done in small groups to enhance group problem-solving skills. Innovative thinking techniques are woven into the course. Problems and problem analysis are presented from an organizational perspective. Extensive writing required.

Prerequisite: Completion of 24 credits of college

work.

Offered: Spring

# INFORMATION SYSTEMS TECHNOLOGY

# CSA\* 105: INTRODUCTION TO SOFTWARE APPLICATIONS

3 CREDITS

This course teaches the use of computers as an office productivity tool rather than how computers work. It offers instruction and practice on the use of personal computers and a variety of application software. Emphasis in this course is on developing practical applications for business and personal productivity. Currently, the Microsoft Office software products Word, Excel, PowerPoint and Access are being taught. This course also covers file-management using the Microsoft Windows operating system, computer science topics, and other skills, to the extent that they support the applications approach. This course is available online and on ground. Basic computer touch-typing skills required.

Prerequisites: None

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

# CSA\* 125: EXPLORING WORD PROCESSING AND DESKTOP PUBLISHING 4 CREDITS

This course is designed to prepare students for the contemporary business environment in which they are expected to complete a variety of projects using computer hardware technology and application software. The complexity of an office project often dictates the software to use. This course introduces the concepts of word processing and includes an overview of desktop publishing. Students will learn to create and format

a document, organize the content and customize the office software to facilitate communication. Applications include preparing personal documents (arranging paragraphs, manipulating text, tables, formatting graphics including tables, graphs and charts), letterhead, business cards, newsletters, brochures, specialty promotional documents, charts, presentation materials, reports, flyers, and booklets. (This course is intended for the business office professional and not the graphic artist.)

Prerequisites: Strong Windows skills and typing skills

Offered: Fall

### CSA\* 135: SPREADSHEET APPLICATIONS

3 CREDITS

This course will introduce students to Microsoft Excel and demonstrate how this popular spreadsheet program can be utilized for business applications. Through a series of critical thinking exercises and problem solving approach, students will gain a deep understanding of the functionality of Excel by: demonstrating a solid working knowledge of the fundamental aspects of spreadsheet design, consolidating workbooks; linking information among worksheets; simulating "what if" scenarios; utilizing spreadsheet functions to solve problems; creating and analyzing graphs and charts; utilizing a spreadsheet to analyze data; creating macros to complete repetitive tasks; and integrating spreadsheet data among other Office products.

Prerequisites: Touch typing and working with Win-

dows or equivalent

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

#### CSA\* 145: DATABASE MANAGEMENT

3 CREDITS

This course will introduce students to Microsoft Access and to the fundamental concepts and principles associated with designing, managing and administering a database system. Through a series of problem solving exercises, students will learn to create and build a database structure using Access and to edit and use the tools for data retrieval such as queries, forms, reports and labels. Further study topics include: data maintenance, principles of table relationships, advanced custom form and report design, integrating data with other applications including Excel, filtering records, creating a macro switchboard interface, and viewing SQL statements in queries.

Prerequisites: Typing and Windows or equivalent OS

Offered: Spring

#### CST\* 150: WEB DESIGN AND DEVELOPMENT I

3 CREDITS

This course introduces students to the principles and concepts of designing a website for the Internet. Students will study the underlying structure of a Web page. Students will learn the basics of HTML (Hypertext Markup Language) to create a home page that incorporates text and graphics. This course covers additional features including Cascading Style Sheets (CSS), working with image maps, and a short introduction to

Javascript. Each student will design a home page as a course requirement. The present and future advancements of the Internet will be discussed. There are one and a half hours of classroom instruction and one and a half hours of laboratory.

Prerequisite: None

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

#### CST\* 250: WEB DESIGN AND DEVELOPMENT II

3 CREDITS

This course is designed for students who have a solid background in HTML and CSS and who want to learn to create dynamic websites using advanced design concepts and client-side programming technologies such as JavaScript, advanced CSS, and DHTML. Students will explore: the development life cycle, user interoperability, and website management standards to create professional and appealing websites. Students will gain an understanding of what is involved in building and maintaining interactive, commercial websites on various browser platforms. The specific topics covered in this course may change from semester to semester based on industry demand.

Co-requisite: CST\* 150 or permission of instructor

Offered: Fall, Spring

### **MANUFACTURING**

### MFG\* 051: MANUFACTURING MATH I 3 SEMESTERS HOURS

A first course in manufacturing mathematics. A study of arithmetic and algebraic operations applied to manufacturing circumstances. Fractions, decimals, tolerances, percentages, signed numbers, powers and roots, the metric system, as well as rations and proportions are studied in depth.

Prerequisite: MFG\* 050 or permission of instructor

# MFG\* 100: INTRODUCTION TO ADVANCED MANUFACTURING 3 CREDITS

Introduction to Advanced Manufacturing is designed to provide the community college student the opportunity to survey the major advanced manufacturing methodologies, technical skills requirements, and various career opportunities in the 21st century Manufacturing sector. This hands-on, team based, course is designed to provide students with instruction and skills through rotations in three key content areas: machining, welding, and electronics. Each of the three content areas is broken down into modules where a theory overview is presented in a classroom environment and demonstrations and hands-on applications are performed in a laboratory environment. In each area, advanced manufacturing equipment, processes, and techniques are introduced. Students will be able to identify the terminology of each area, and examine each career skill requirements, and gain a fundamental understanding of each area. A strong sense of personal effectiveness and responsibility, team work, communication, and respect

is emphasized. The role and importance of shop floor etiquette, workplace cleanliness, and safe work practices will be emphasized. Practical cases and real-world examples are investigated and discussed.

Prerequisite: None

#### MFG\* 105: MANUFACTURING MATH II 3 CREDITS

Second course in manufacturing mathematics. A further study of arithmetic and trigonometric operations applied to manufacturing circumstances. The following geometric entities are studied in detail: the circle, regular and irregular polygons, the right triangle and oblique triangles. The application of angular arithmetic including the study of: angle decimal conversion, the Pythagorean theorem, Sin, Cos, and Tan functions, and the Law of Sines and Law of Cosines.

Prerequisite: MF 101 Offered: Fall, Spring

#### MFG\* 107: CMM

A review of CMM fundamentals: the principles, practices, and use of coordinate measuring using the Browne and Sharpe Gage 2000 Coordinate Measuring Machine. Introduction to CMM system, CMM software programming, part coordinate system, alignments, datums, translations, rotations, measured and constructed features, projections, tip compensation, and practice exercises.

3 CREDITS

Prerequisite: MFG\* 256

#### MFG\* 110: SOLIDWORKS 3 CREDITS

SolidWorks design focuses on parametric modeling while introducing the student to the paperless computer based design process utilizing the parametric 3-D design software SolidWorks. The course reviews the following topics: design process, design engineering, assembly modeling, mechanism analysis, rapid prototyping, team design, geometric dimensioning and tolerancing, and the analysis of tolerance stackups. Students will participate in individual & team design projects.

Prerequisite: None

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

#### MFG\* 120: METROLOGY 3 CREDITS

Metrology is applied in such areas as: manufacturing, aerospace, telecommunications, electrical power, transportation, medicine, pharmaceuticals, food production, packaging, construction, atmospheric research and environmental protection. The course provides the student with an introduction to the usage of inspection tools and automated inspection equipment and provides a comprehensive set of hands- on exercises to determine the dimensional characteristics of a variety of manufactured parts. The emphasis of this metrology course is metrology in manufacturing. The student will utilize the following tools: vernier caliper, micrometer, precision height stand, dial bore gage, snap gage, V block, dial test indicator, Sine bar, gage block set, Angle block, and CMM & CMM programming.

**Prerequisite:** MFG\* 266

#### MFG\* 124: BLUEPRINT READING I 2 CREDITS

First course in blueprint reading. The study of orthographic projection. Topics include lines and their uses, auxiliary views, sectional views, basic and special dimensioning, dimensioning practices for holes, chamfers, angle, tapers, keyways, diameters and radii. Also, geometric tolerancing and dimensioning is covered.

Prerequisite: MF 121

#### MFG\* 125: BLUEPRINT READING II 3 CREDITS

Second course in blueprint reading. A further study of simple and complex drawings for machining or assembly purposes. Topics include the application and meaning of geometric characteristics and controls, the metric system, weldment, forging and casting drawings and procedures, communication with freehand sketches, blueprint terms and abbreviations.

Prerequisite: MFG\* 124

# MFG\* 128: BLUEPRINT READING FOR WELDERS 3 CREDITS

A second course in blueprint reading, the focus of which is on interpreting drawings related to the welding field. Topics include various weld and joint type symbols that are used in welding blueprints. Supplemental symbols are also covered, including size, shape, location and finish requirements of the various weldments. Interpretation of testing requirements on simple and complex blueprints is introduced.

Prerequisite: MFG\* 124

### MFG\* 133: MATH FOR ELECTRICITY AND ELECTRONICS 3 CREDITS

This course is intended for the student who needs indepth knowledge of the mathematics of electronics and electricity. It will review several areas that the student may be familiar with and move into advanced areas that are necessary for the understanding of electronics functions and analysis of complex circuits. The completion of this course will enable the student to move more quickly through future courses that require the use of complex math.

Prerequisite: MAT\* 095

#### MFG\* 137: CIRCUIT THEORY 3 CREDITS

Circuit Theory is an introduction to direct current (DC) circuits. Circuit Theory will introduce the student to electrical/electronic components; the nature of electricity (voltage, current, and resistance); Ohm's Law of measurement; the concept of energy and power; types of circuits (series, parallel, and series-parallel); Thevenin's and Norton's Theorems of circuit simplification, and magnetism and electro-magnetism.

Prerequisite: MFG\* 132, MFG\* 135

#### MFG\* 138: DIGITAL FUNDAMENTALS 3 CREDITS

Digital circuitry is the foundation of computers and automated control equipment in our industries. Digital circuitry is the basis for many of our appliances, alarm

systems and heating systems. Our newer automobiles utilize digital circuits and devices to make them safer and more energy efficient. Consequently, a basic understanding of the elemental nature, design, theory, and operation of digital circuits is a must for any electronics student. This course provides the basic foundation necessary for the understanding of digital logic. The student is introduced to the concepts of digital vs. analog wave forms, digital and other numbering systems, digital codes, and Boolean algebra. The student is then introduced to the various logic gates that are incorporated into all logic systems from that of a computer to a microprocessor in a household appliance. This course explores the combinational circuits, data control devices, sequential logic (flip-flop and counters) circuits and shift registers, and finishes with an interface with the world of analog. (Formerly offered for four credits.)

Prerequisite: MFG\* 133, MFG\* 135

#### MFG\* 139: CIRCUIT THEORY II 3 CREDITS

Circuit Theory II completes an introduction to the fundamental building block for all electrical and electronic devices: the circuit. Circuit Theory II completes the review of basic circuits by guiding the student through a thorough review of alternating current circuits including the RC, RL, and RLC circuits. The student will also be introduced to several electrical devices including capacitors, inductors, and transformers. (Formerly offered for four credits.)

Prerequisite: MFG\* 133, MFG\* 135

#### MFG\* 140: ROBOTICS 3 CREDITS

Robotics provides the student with a brief history of the application of Robotics to the manufacturing process to date and a vision of future applications of Robotics. Robotics provides an overview of the Robotic hardware, software, and programming necessary to specific applications. Robotics reviews the following: electromechanical systems, fluid power systems, sensing systems, end-of-arm tooling, PLC's, digital electronics, programming, and industrial applications.

**Prerequisite:** MFG\* 133, MFG\* 135, MFG\* 137, MFG\* 138, MFG\* 139

### MFG\* 142: ELECTRONIC CIRCUITS & DEVICES 3 CREDITS

Electronic circuits and devices are commonplace in the industrial manufacturing process; consequently, a complete understanding of control circuits and devices is necessary for anyone who intends to have a career in manufacturing control, maintenance, or engineering. Electronic Circuits & Devices provides an introduction to electronic materials, components, circuits, devices and their applications. The course will provide an overview of semiconductors, diodes, transistors (bi-polar, field-effect and unijunction), applications of SCR and Triac to circuits, and application of components to rectifiers, amplifiers, and relays.

**Prerequisite:** MFG\* 133, MFG\* 135, MFG\* 137, MFG\* 138, MFG\* 139

### MFG\* 143: INDUSTRIAL MOTOR CONTROLS

3 CREDITS

The process of motor control is integral to the flow of the product from raw material to finished product. Industrial Motor Controls will familiarize you with the following: principles of solid-state control devices and their components (such as: semiconductors, PN junction, Zenor diodes, and the transistors); AC and DC motor controls; motor drives; control circuits; motor starters and pilot devices.

**Prerequisite:** MFG\* 133, MFG\* 135, MFG\* 137, MFG\* 138, MFG\* 139

## MFG\* 145: ELECTRONIC VARIABLE SPEED DRIVE SYSTEMS 3 CREDITS

The flow of product in the manufacturing process can be as simple as an on/off motor control switch or as complex as a variable speed drive that incorporates a feedback system. Most large and small companies utilize the more technologically advanced systems, hence they incorporate one or more variable speed drive(s) in their production process. Electronic Variable Speed Drive Systems will introduce the student to AC and DC drive fundamentals, switching amplifier field current controllers, SCR armature voltage controllers, brushless DC motor controllers, chopper circuits, voltage inverters, and flux vector drives.

**Prerequisites:** MFG\* 133, MFG\* 135, MFG\* 137, MFG\* 138, MFG\* 139

# MFG\* 146: PROGRAMMABLE LOGIC CONTROLLERS 3 CREDITS

The incorporation of the PLC is one of the fastest growing sectors in the field of electronics as the PLC replaces electromechanical control system, such as electromagnetic relays and programmable logic devices (PLD's). Programmable Logic Controllers provides you with an overview of the PLC, its hardware, numbering systems and codes, logic fundamentals, programming timers and counters, program control and data manipulation instructions, math instructions, sequencers and shift register instructions, and PLC installation, editing and troubleshooting. (Formerly offered for four credits.)

**Prerequisites:** MFG\* 133, MFG\* 135, MFG\* 137, MFG\* 138, MFG\* 139

# MFG\* 147: MICROPROCESSOR/ MICROCONTROLLER 3 CREDITS

This course is designed to give the student an overview of the microprocessor and microcontroller by reviewing the fundamentals of 8085A architecture, software, and interface applications; and by reviewing the architecture, software, and interface applications of the 8051 microcontroller.

**Prerequisites:** MFG\* 133, MFG\* 135, MFG\* 137, MFG\* 138, MFG\* 139

#### MFG 149\* INTRODUCTION TO METAL FABRICATION

3 CREDITS

Introduction to Metal Fabrication will provide the student with fundamental metal fabrication skills. The course will introduce the student to the following: safety, design & layout, related math & blueprint applications, metallurgy, Cutting, Bending, and Forming Tools & Equipment; and will provide the student the opportunity to utilize welling skills in the formation of projects denoted in work order or blueprint directives.

Prerequisite: MFG\* 266

### MFG\* 150: INTRODUCTION TO MACHINE TECHNOLOGY 3 CREDITS

Introduction to Machine Technology introduces the student to the fundamentals of Metal Machining Technology. The student is introduced to the basic metal machining equipment including Lathe, Miller, Drill Press, Saw, and Grinding Wheels. Students will perform basic lathe operations which will consist of facing, center-drilling, chuck turning, turning between centers, boring, grooving, tapers, knurling, and single point threading. Students will identify the major parts of the vertical and horizontal mill, align a vise, use an indicator, edge finder, and boring head, determine speeds and feeds, perform simple indexing, mill, flat, square surfaces and slots, dirll, bore, and tap holes.

Prerequisite: None

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

#### MFG\* 157: WELDING I 3 CREDITS

Introduction to theory and lab activities in welding areas of Shielded Metal Arc Welding, Gas Tungsten Arc Welding, Gas Metal Arc Welding and Oxyfuel Welding processes. Safety issues, equipment knowledge and demonstration of various welding processes/techniques will be explored.

Prerequisite: MAT\* 095

#### MFG\* 158: PNEUMATICS AND HYDRAULICS

3 CREDITS

Fluid power is on the increase in the process of manufacturing due to its simplicity and to cost effectiveness. Hence, any person who wishes to be involved in the manufacturing process in a repair, control or engineering role should be familiar with the fundamentals of pneumatics and hydraulics. This introductory course is a study of the principles, concepts and equipment used in the field of pneumatics and hydraulics. Course emphasis is placed upon systems design, applications, and maintenance and repair. The following concepts are reviewed in this course: fluid power principles, fluid power cylinders, control valves (3 & 4 and 4 & 5 way), fluid power pumps, and other fluid power components.

Prerequisites: None

## MFG\* 159: INDUSTRIAL MAINTENANCE

3 CREDITS

The Industrial Maintenance course is designed to give the student an overview of the electro-mechanical nature of industry. Even though electronic devices have made great inroads in industry, the mechanical nature of production remains nearly unchanged over the years. The expression "the wheels of industry" remains as true today as it did yesterday. This course will provide the skills necessary to install and to maintain the electronic and mechanical parts and machines that provide the ability of manufacturers to produce products, e.g. automobiles, appliances, etc. The course covers the following areas: safety, tools, fasteners, industrial print reading, belts and sheaves, chains and sprockets, gears and gear boxes, bearings, shafts, lubrication, seals and packing, pumps and compressors, fluid power, piping systems, and preventive maintenance.

Prerequisites: None

# MFG 160\*: GD&T: INTRODUCTION TO GEOMETRIC DIMENSIONING AND TOLERANCING 3 CREDITS

Geometric Dimensioning and Tolerancing is a language used on mechanical engineering drawings composed of symbols that are used to efficiently and accurately communicate geometry requirements for associated features on components and assemblies. GD&T is, and has been, successfully used for many years in the automotive, aerospace, electronics and the commercial design and manufacturing industries. In today's modern and technically advanced design, engineering and manufacturing world, effective and accurate communication is required to ensure successful end products. Topics include the following: introduction to symbols and terms, limits to size, data reference frame, form tolerance, geometric system functionality, orientation tolerances, position tolerances, profile tolerances, coaxial tolerances, tolerance analysis, and applications.

**Prerequisites:** MFG\* 256

### MFG\* 162: CNC MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR I 3 CREDITS

CNC Maintenance and Repair I is the first course of a two-semester course sequence that provides the student with an introduction to Computer Numeric Control (CNC) machinery including the CNC miller and CNC lathe. Topics include: CNC safety, basic CNC components, basic operations of a CNC, overview of the control unit and operator's unit, CNC part programming, CNC operation and interfacing (PMC system), measurement devices, and troubleshooting techniques. This course is designed to give the student an in-depth overview of the design, programming, and operation of CNC machinery, thereby providing the foundation for CNC maintenance and repair.

**Prerequisites:** MFG\* 133, MFG\* 135, MFG\* 137, MFG\* 138, MFG\* 139, MFG\* 140, MFG\* 142, MFG\* 143, MFG\* 145, MFG\* 146, MFG\* 147

#### MFG\* 163: CNC MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR II

3 CREDITS

CNC Maintenance and Repair II is the second course of a two-semester course sequence and provides the student basic troubleshooting strategies, explores all major CNC systems needing maintenance and repair, reviews troubleshooting techniques used to identify components in need of repair, and provides insights into making the necessary repairs. Topics include: Troubleshooting plan of action (strategy); troubleshooting power supplies, troubleshooting the interlock system and operator controls; troubleshooting the servo drive, interface, parameter, and I/O (input/output) systems; and troubleshooting the hydraulic and pneumatics, lubrication and mechanical systems. The course provides the rationale for establishing and utilizing a regular maintenance plan.

**Prerequisites:** MFG\* 133, MFG\* 135, MFG\* 137, MFG\* 138, MFG\* 139, MFG\* 140, MFG\* 142, MFG\* 143, MFG\* 145, MFG\* 146, MFG\* 147, MFG 162

## MFG\* 164: ELECTRO-MECHANICAL SEMINAR/INTERNSHIP 4 CREDITS

The Electro-Mechanical Internship is designed to be a capstone activity. The student is required to have completed successfully both electronic certificate programs, Manufacturing Electronics Fundamentals and Manufacturing Electronics Systems & Controllers, and to be in the latter stage of his or her Mechanical Certificate Program. The internship will commence within the last four (4) weeks of the Mechnical Certificate semester and will require sixty (60) hours of electro-mechanical industrial maintenance and repair supervised activity. Regional manufacturers will provide the student with on-site laboratory activities in regular maintenance and in repair. The student will be required to troubleshoot CNC mill, lathe and other electronically driven equipment in need of repair under the direct supervision of qualified company staff. Time will be provided in Pneumatics and Hydraulics, Industrial Maintenance, and CNC Maintenance and Repair to discuss, to review, and to reinforce the troubleshooting and maintenance experiences learned at the work site.

**Prerequisites:** MFG\* 133, MFG\* 135, MFG\* 137, MFG\* 138, MFG\* 139, MFG\* 140, MFG\* 142, MFG\* 143, MFG\* 145, MFG\* 146, MFG\* 147

### MFG\* 165: INTERMEDIATE MACHINE TECHNOLOGY 3 CREDITS

Intermediate Machine Technology provides the student an in-depth exposure to the lathe and milling manual operations. Students will perform lathe operations consisting of center alignment, facing, center drilling, chuck turning, turning between centers, boring, reaming, tapping, grooving, tapers, knurling, and threading. Vertical and Horizontal Milling Operations will include an introduction fo the Offset Boring Head, Side Milling Cutters, and Face Milling Cutters.

Prerequisite: None

#### MFG\* 166: MANUFACTURING MACHINERY -BENCHWORK 1 CREDIT

A basic course in the fundamentals, principles, practices, and tools used in semi-precision and precision layout and in the various tools, methods, and procedures for common machine shop benchwork. Topics will include measurement systems, layout principles, hand tools, and power tools.

Prerequisite: None

### MFG\* 170: INTRODUCTION TO AUTOMATED MANUFACTURING 3 CREDITS

Introduction to Automated Manufacturing introduces the role that PC computers; PLC's (Programmable Logic Controller); microprocessors and controllers; sensors; local area networks (LANs); Flexible Manufacturing Cells (FMC); and automated manufacturing systems (AMS), including material handling, storage and retrieval, assembly, and inspection plays in the modern day manufacturing environment.. Topics include Flexible Manufacturing System (FMS); Major components of a FMS; FMS Configurations; Major components in a FMS Computer Control System (CCS); and Introduction to Local Area Networks.

Prerequisite: None

### MFG\* 171: INTRODUCTION TO LEAN MANUFACTURING 3 CREDITS

The purpose of this course is to provide the student with the fundamental knowledge of current continuous process improvement methodologies in use today within competitive manufacturing environments. This introductory course will expose the student to the basic concepts of Lean Manufacturing theory and the various tools and techniques involved with a lean implementation. This course will be presented following the lean-six sigma process methodology of DMAIC (Define, Measure, Analyze, Improve, Control) to ensure that at the completion of the course, the student will be competent to participate effectively as a team member in lean implementation projects.

Prerequisite: None

# MFG\* 172: INTRODUCTION TO LEAN SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 3 CREDITS

This course is an introduction to the basic principles of methodologies of Supply Chain Management. The course reviews the lean manufacturing principles needed to understand and maintain the supply chain. Key concepts are covered such as Value Stream Mapping, customer/supplier roles, supplier types, metrics, quality systems, quality audits, communication, and information flow. Class activities, group assignments, and case studies are emphasized for real-world learning experiences.

Prerequisite: None

Courses 106 www.asnuntuck.edu

### MFG\* 173: INTRODUCTION TO ADDITIVE MANUFACTURING 3 CREDITS

Additive Manufacturing is changing the landscape of manufacturing design and production formats. Today, goods are produced primarily through a machining process [subtractive manufacturing] for short-run and batched production or through the use of casting and dies for long-run production. Additive Manufacturing allows companies to produce end products from an initial CAD File [Computer Assisted Design File] for short-run production saving time and money. Introduction to Additive Manufacturing provides the student an overview of several Additive Manufacturing processes including: Photopolymerization, Powder Bed Fusion, Extrusion, 3D Printing, Sheet Lamination, Direct Metal Laser Sintering [DMLS] and Beam Deposition.

Prerequisite: None

## MFG\* 174: ADDITIVE MANUFACTURING MATERIALS 3 CREDITS

Additive Manufacturing (AM) Materials provides the student an overview of materials require by SLA, SLS, Printing, FDM, and other AM Processes. Reviews the generic family of Photopolymer [SLA & 3D Printing Materials]; Thermoplastics, e.g., ABS [FDM process & 3D Printing materials]; Metal, Metal Alloys, Ceramic Powders & Thermoplastics [SLS materials]; DMLS [Alloy Metals] and provides an overview of some Proprietary AM Materials used in FDM, Printing, SLA, And SLS Processes. The student is also introduced to AM Quality Control and AM Materials Testing.

Prerequisite: None

#### MFG\* 175: AM APPLICATIONS 3 CREDITS

Additive Manufacturing (AM) Applications provides the student the opportunity to work with additive manufacturing software & hardware produced by multiple additive manufacturers starting with the consumer level to high end state of the art production metal machines. The student will work with many of the current level technologies including: FDM (Fused Deposition Modeling), SLA (Stereo Lithography), MJM (Polyjet/Multijet), and SLS (Selective Laser Sintering). This will include all their applicable software. The student will create 3D CAD files and import & export these files using Solidworks, Catalyst EX, and Materialise Magics software and any other machine specific proprietary software. First and foremost, the student will learn the safety training involved with each specific method of Additive Manufacturing. The student will learn to orient the model correctly, chose the correct materials, review software interface, slice & modify the model, generate supports and tool paths, submit model to the machine and will learn basic machine maintenance as well as post-processing of parts.

Prerequisite: None

#### MFG\* 176 AM INTERNSHIP 4 CREDITS

The Additive Manufacturing (AM) Internship is designed to be a capstone activity. The student is required to have completed successfully Introduction to Additive Manu-

facturing, AM Materials, Solidworks and be within the last four weeks of AM Applications before the internship begins. Regional manufactures will provide the student with on-site laboratory experience and activities designed to enhance goals and objectives inherent in AM Applications.

**Prerequisite or Co-requisite:** MFG\* 175

#### MFG\* 211 CAD/CAM

CAD/CAM is an introduction to Mill & Lathe tool path programming using word address format, including coordinate system, cutter compensation, and Canned & Manual programmed cycles. CAD/CAM introduces Lathe and Mill Programming; sub programming; work coordinate system; and the use of macros.

Prerequisite: None

#### MFG\* 212 MULTI-AXIS MACHINE PROGRAMMING

3 CREDITS

3 CREDITS

Multi-Axis Machine Programming is an advanced CAM course involving programming in MasterCAM software from solids, surfaces and wireframe geometry. The Master Cam software program is utilized with multi-axis Lathes & Milling Centers. This Multi-Axis Machine Programming course provides the student an overview of Mastercam multiaxis toolpaths for Vertical Milling Machines with rotary 4th axis & five axis indexing Machining Centers and CNC lathe with live tooling. Students will also be introduced to Vericut software enabling the student to review simulated tool paths.

Prerequisite: MFG\* 256

#### MFG\* 213: CAPSTONE PROJECTS 4 CREDITS

The Capstone Projects course provides the student projects designed to culminate all skills learned in CAD/ CAM, MultiAxis Machine Programming, GD&T, and Metrology II. The student will machine 2, 3 and 5 axis projects. Given a print or work order the student will create CAD/CAM document files; apply appropriate software commands to create toolpaths based upon print requirements; edit programs when necessary; plan machining operations, select tooling, and set machining parameters; use verification software to analyze the effects of speeds, feeds and depth of cut and total volume of material removal; and machine and validate projects.

Prerequisite: None

#### MFG\* 225: INDUSTRIAL SAFETY 3 CREDITS

This course studies industrial accident prevention and industrial hygiene covering such topics as management's responsibilities and functions in accident prevention. Topics include: OSHA regulations, machine guarding techniques and personal protective equipment, fire prevention and control, electrical and hand tool hazards, employee training and communications, injury data, hazards, accident analysis and hygiene problems caused by industrial environments.

Prerequisite: None

### MFG\* 230: STATISTICAL PROCESS CONTROL

3 CREDITS

An introduction to the concepts of manufacturing statistical process control. Topics include: measures of central tendency, measures of variation, normal distribution theory, process run charts, process control charts for variable and attributable data, normal probability plots, Pareto diagrams and cause-and-effect diagrams.

Prerequisite: "C" or better in MAT\* 137

# MFG\* 249 :ADVANCED METAL FABRICATION

3 CREDITS

Advanced Metal Fabrication will provide the student with advanced metal fabrication skills. The student will learn CNC programming skills applicable to metal forming & cutting equipment. Advanced Metal Fabrication projects will require an ever increasing sophistication with each project thereby requiring extensive use of design skills, math applications, GD&T Skills, and blueprint reading skills. Topics include: safety, design & layout, related math & blueprint applications, metallurgy, CNC Cutting, Bending, and Forming Tools & Equipment; and will provide the student the opportunity to utilize welling skills in the formation of projects denoted in work order or blueprint directives.

Prerequisite: MFG\* 125: Blueprint Reading II

#### MFG\* 257: WELDING II

3 CREDITS

Theory and advanced lab activities in welding areas of Shielded Metal Arc Welding, Gas Tungsten Arc Welding, Gas Metal Arc Welding and Oxyfuel processes. Safety issues, advanced equipment knowledge and proficiency in various welding processes/techniques will be developed further in preparation for Welding III.

Prerequisite: MAT\* 095, MFG\* 124, and MFG\* 157

# MFG\* 264: METAL FABRICATION PROJECTS 4 CREDITS

The Metal Fabrication Capstone Projects course provides the student projects designed to culminate all skills learned in Introduction to Metal Fabrication, Advanced Metal Fabrication, Metrology, and MFG 110 SolidWorks. Given a print or work order the student will Apply industrial safety practices; InterpretTechnical Drawings; Perform Advanced Manual and Automated Cutting Processes; Produce Welds to Industry Standards; Produce Precision Fabricated Parts and Assemblies to Specified Drawings; and Perform inspection of welds, parts and assemblies.

**Prerequisite:** MFG\* 120, MFG\* 149, MFG\* 249, CAD\*

#### MFG\* 265: WELDING III 3 CREDITS

Advanced theory and lab activities that prepare the student to make code acceptable weldments in Shielded Metal Arc Welding (SMAW) and in Gas Metal Arc Welding (GMAW) in various positions and upon various metals.

Prerequisite: MAT\* 095, MFG\* 125, and MFG\* 257

#### MFG\* 266: WELDING IV

3 CREDITS

This is an advanced course that includes theory and lab activities that prepare the student to make Gas Tungsten Arc Welding (GTAW) code acceptable weldments in plate and pipe in all positions.

Prerequisite: MAT\* 095, MFG\* 125, and MFG\* 265

#### MFG\* 267: METALLURGY

3 CREDITS

This is an introductory course that reviews the basic principles of metallurgy. This course will describe their uses in industrial applications and explain why certain material properties are desired and how these properties are attained.

Prerequisite: MAT\* 095 and MFG\* 257

#### MFG\* 268: WELDING V

3 CREDITS

This advanced welding course includes theory and lab activities that prepare students to make GTAW code acceptable weldments upon specialty metals such as aluminum, magnesium, copper and steel alloys, stainless steel, and titanium. Lab activities will include code acceptable weldments.

Prerequisites: MAT\* 095, MFG\* 124, MFG\* 125, MFG\*

157, MFG\* 257, MFG\* 265, MFG\* 266

#### MFG\* 269: WELDING VI 3 CREDITS

This advanced welding course includes theory and lab activities that prepare students to make GMAW and FCAW (Gas Metal Arc Welding and Flux Cored Arc Welding) code acceptable weldments on various metals.

**Prerequisite:** MAT\* 095, MFG\* 124, MFG\* 125, MFG\* 157, MFG\* 257, MFG\* 265, MFG\* 266, MFG\* 268

## MFG\* 270: WELDING AUTOMATION AND PROCESSES 3 CREDITS

This advanced welding course introduces the student to automatic and specialty welding processes. The student will review semiautomatic, automatic, robotic, CNC, resistance welding, LBW, as well as other welding procedures.

**Prerequisite:** MAT\* 095, MFG\* 124, MFG\* 125, MFG\* 157, MFG\* 257, MFG\* 265, MFG\* 266, MFG\* 268.

# MFG\* 271: ADVANCED LEAN MANUFACTURING 3

3 CREDITS

The purpose of this course is to provide the student with the knowledge to implement lean improvements within the production environment using a systematic approach. This course will follow an improvement project (from the student's current employer or case study) through the five stages of the DMAIC problem solving methodology. At the completion of the course, the student will be competent to effectively lead a lean implementation project within a company.

Prerequisite: MFG\* 171

Courses 108 www.asnuntuck.edu

### MFG\* 272: IMPLEMENTING LEAN SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 3 CREDITS

The course covers the benefits and elements needed for implementing supply chain management. Team building and communication skills are shown as crucial factors in supply chain management. Topics emphasized in the course are measuring the velocity of the supply chain, developing partnerships, logistics, software tools, hardware, and continuous improvement. Class activities, group assignments and case studies are emphasized for real-world learning experiences.

Prerequisite: MFG\* 172

## MFG\* 273: WELDING CODES, TESTING, AND CERTIFICATIONS 3 CREDITS

This advanced welding course prepares students to become certified in one or several welding requirements. Certification tests are designed to ensure that the weldment meets specific standards as to the specific welding process, type and thickness of metal, joint design, position(s) and other requirements. There are many code requirements initiated by government(s) and business(es). All are designed to ensure product, building, or other structural safety. The course will review the American Welding Society (AWS) structural welding code(s) and prepare the student for such requirements. AWS Aerospace specification AWS D17.1 will also be reviewed.

**Prerequisite:** MAT\* 095, MFG\* 124, MFG\* 125, MFG\* 157, MFG\* 257, MFG\* 265, MFG\* 266, MFG\* 268, and MFG\* 269.

# MFG\* 296: MANUFACTURING INTERNSHIP 2 CREDITS

The manufacturing internship represents the capstone of the machine technology program. This course provides students with the opportunity to apply classroom theory, laboratory and school shop experiences in an actual work setting related to their program of study. Thirty (30) hours of manufacturing work are provided at affiliated sites under the guidance of the program director.

Prerequisite: MFG\* 124, MFG\* 151, MFG\* 152, MFG\*

153, MFG\* 154, MFG\* 155, MFG\* 156

### **MASSAGE THERAPY**

## MAS\* 101: MASSAGE THEORY AND PRACTICE

3 CREDITS

This course will discuss therapeutic massage by exploring professional touch, the history of massage and review of scientific research into the effects of massage therapy including indications, contraindications, universal precautions, health related issues and wellness education. Professional environment. Students will learn the physiological as well as the psychological effects of touch.

**Prerequisite:** None **Offered:** Fall, Spring

#### MAS\* 104: MASSAGETHERAPY I 4 CREDITS

Through lectures, discussion, and demonstration students will: learn how to set up and adjust the massage table, proper body mechanics, effects and usage of effleurage, petrissage, and compressions, proper draping of back, gluteals, anterior and posterior legs, chest, and abdominals; perform a full body massage which includes the back, gluteals, posterior legs, feet, anterior legs, abdominals, chest, neck, and face incorporating all learned techniques of massage.

**Prerequisite:** Open to Massage Therapy Majors only.

Offered: Fall, Spring

# MAS\* 122: MUSCULOSKELETAL ANATOMY 4 CREDITS

Through lectures and discussion, students will learn the basic structure and functions of the Skeletal and Muscular anatomy of the upper and lower body. Students will learn the muscle names, origin, insertion, actions and commonalities of the muscles. This course is open to all but does NOT satisfy the 4-credit Lab Science requirement for an Associates Degree.

Prerequisite: None Offered: Fall, Spring

#### MAS\* 133: PATHOLOGY I 3 CREDITS

Through lectures, discussion, and demonstration students will learn: pathologies of the Integumentary, Musculoskeletal, Nervous and Cardiovascular systems. In addition, learn the indications and contraindications for pathologies of the fore mentioned system as they relate to massage therapy. Open to declared Massage Therapy majors only.

**Prerequisite:** Open to Massage Therapy Majors only.

Offered: Fall, Spring

#### MAS\* 148: MASSAGETHERAPY II 4 CREDITS

Through lectures, discussion, and demonstration students will learn: further techniques. How to set up and adjust the massage table, proper body mechanics, effects and usage of massage therapy, including cross-fiber, friction, tapotement, and vibration.

Prerequisite: +MAS\* 104 Offered: Fall, Spring

# MAS\* 170: MASSAGE BUSINESS AND ETHICS 3 CREDITS

This course presents an overview of the contemporary Massage Therapy business world, focusing on operation, finance, marketing, planning, personnel management, client confidentiality, and client file/record maintenance. Emphasis is also placed upon licensing requirements and business ownership and entrepreneurship in the Massage Therapy practice. Basic Corporate entities such as "C", "S", and Professional corporations will be discussed. This course also acquaints massage therapy students with State and National law and ethics guidelines, ethical practices and basic personal psychology concepts. Students will also be

introduced to the concepts of self-assessment and selfesteem in an effort to assist them in understanding the process involved with making the changes necessary in their lives to facilitate success in their chosen career.

Prerequisite: Open to Massage Therapy Majors only

Offered: Fall, Spring

#### MAS\* 222: KINESIOLOGY 4 CREDITS

Through lectures, discussion, students will learn the basic structure and functions of the anatomy, biomechanics and muscle types including the principles of the human movement. In addition, students will learn the neuromuscular concepts and principles. Students will also learn how these concepts apply to massage therapy.

Prerequisite: MAS\* 122 Offered: Fall, Spring

#### MAS\* 233: PATHOLOGY 2 3 CREDITS

Through lectures, discussion, and demonstration students will learn: pathologies of the Lymphatic, Respiratory, Digestive, Endocrine, Urinary, Reproductive systems, as well as Principles of cancer. In addition, learn the indications and contraindications for each pathology as they relate to massage therapy.

Prerequisite: Open to Massage Therapy Majors only

Offered: Fall, Spring

#### MAS\* 248: MASSAGETHERAPY III 4 CREDITS

Through lectures, discussion, and demonstration students will learn: How to set up and adjust side lying position, proper body mechanics, effects and usage of trigger point, myofascial release, and hydrotherapy

Prerequisite: +MAS\* 148 Offered: Fall, Spring

#### MAS\* 260: MASSAGE THERAPY CLINICAL INTERNSHIP 4 CREDITS

Throughout this clinical internship students will complete 100 hours of massage on clients from the general public. Student will have the opportunity to apply knowledge obtained throughout the Massage Therapy program in a true therapeutic environment.

Prerequisite: +MAS\* 148 Offered: Fall, Spring

### **MATHEMATICS**

A grade of C is the passing grade for prerequisites in this category unless otherwise noted.

Students interested in majoring in mathematics should consider the CSCUTransferTicket in Mathematics Studies (see CSCUTransferTicket degrees on the web site.) By completing this Asnuntuck associate degree, students can transfer to the Connecticut State Universities (CSU: Central, Eastern, Southern, and Western) and

Charter Oak State College (COSC) with a junior status and complete their BA/BS degree. Contact Arben Zeqiraj (860-253-3079 or azeqiraj@asnuntuck.edu) for further details.

# MAT\* 085: PREALGEBRA & ELEMENTARY ALGEBRA 6 SEMESTER HOURS

This course provides a concentrated review of beginning algebra concepts and basic arithmetic skills. Includes basic computation, integers, fractions, decimals, ratio and proportion, and percents. The course also includes a study of the basic properties and theorems of rational numbers; expressions and equations with polynomials, rational and radical expressions, and integer exponents; linear equations in one and two variables; systems of linear equations in two variables; functions; and applications in geometry and algebra. A TI-83 or TI-84 calculator is required for this course. Note: This course is not open to student who successfully completed MAT\*075 with a "C" or better.

Prerequisite: Mathematics Assessment

Offered: Fall, Spring

# MAT\* 095: ELEMENTARY ALGEBRA FOUNDATIONS 3 SEMESTER HOURS

This course includes a study of the basic properties and theorems of rational numbers; expressions and equations with polynomials, rational and radical expressions, and integer exponents; linear equations in one and two variables; systems of linear equations in two variables; functions; and applications in geometry and algebra. ATI-83 or TI-84 calculator is required for this course.

Prerequisite: "C" or better in MAT\* 075 or Mathemat-

ics Assessment Test

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

#### MAT\* 104: QUANTITATIVE REASONING 3 CREDITS

A survey course to develop the abilities to interpret and reason with information that involves mathematical ideas or numbers. This course will prepare students for the mathematics they will encounter in other college courses and in their career, as well as help develop critical thinking and problem solving skills needed in all areas of life. Topics include: principles of reasoning, problem solving techniques, basic statistics, every day mathematical models, and the mathematics involved in personal finance, the arts, careers, and society in general. ATI-83 orTI-84 graphing calculator is required for this course.

Prerequisite: "C" or higher in +MAT\* 085 or +MAT\*

095, or Mathematics Assessment Test

Offered: Fall, Spring

# MAT\* 137S: INTERMEDIATE ALGEBRA EMBEDDED WITH ELEMENTARY ALGEBRA 4 CREDITS

This course provides a concentrated review of elementary algebra concepts embedded within an intermediate algebra course. The course is a further study of algebra and mathematical modeling of functions and relations represented by tables, graphs, words, and symbols.

Polynomial functions and expressions with special attention to linear, quadratic, exponential, rational, and radial functions are studied. There is an emphasis on modeling and applications for all topics. A TI-83 or TI-84 is required for this course. This course meets the same outcomes as MAT\*137: Intermediate Algebra.

**Prerequisite:** "C" or higher in +MAT\* 085 or +MAT\*

095, or Mathematics Assessment Test

Offered: Fall, Spring

#### MAT\* 137: INTERMEDIATE ALGEBRA 3 CREDITS

This course is a further study of algebra and mathematical modeling of functions and relations represented by tables, graphs, words, and symbols. Polynomial functions and expressions with special attention to linear, quadratic, exponential, rational, and radial functions are studied. There is an emphasis on modeling and applications for all topics. ATI-83 or TI-84 calculator is required for this course.

Prerequisite: "C" or higher in +MAT\* 085 or +MAT\*

095, or Mathematics Assessment Test

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

#### MAT\* 146: MATHEMATICS FOR THE LIBERAL ARTS

#### 3 CREDITS

A survey course for students whose major field of study requires no specific mathematical preparations, such as in liberal arts and general studies. It is designed to convey the nature and diversity of mathematics and its role in society through applications to a variety of disciplines. Mathematics topics include voting theory, financial mathematics, and additional topics such as the following: graph theory, patterns and symmetry, linear and exponential applications, introduction to probability, linear programming, cryptography, the performance arts, and history of mathematics. ATI-83 orTI-84 recommended.

**Prerequisite:** "C" or better in +MAT\* 137S, +MAT\* 137,

or Mathematics Assessment Test.

Offered: Fall, Spring

## MAT\* 167: PRINCIPLES OF STATISTICS

#### 3 CREDITS

The purpose of this course is to enable students to organize, present, and analyze data by applying descriptive and inferential statistical methods and processes. Topics include exploratory data analysis, graphing techniques, measures of central tendency and variability, the normal distribution, correlation and regression, basic sampling theory, mean and proportion sampling distributions, confidence intervals, statistical inference, elements of hypothesis testing, and one and two sample tests for means and proportions. Graphing calculator required; TI-84 recommended.

Prerequisite: "C" or better in +MAT\* 137S, +MAT\*

137, or Mathematics Assessment Test **Offered:** Fall, Spring, Summer

#### MAT\* 186: PRECALCULUS

4 CREDITS

An introduction to analysis skills necessary for success in the study of calculus. Includes study of inequalities, absolute value function, algebraic relations and algebraic functions, logarithmic and exponential functions, trigonometry, and analytic geometry. Extensive use is made of the programmable-graphing calculator and mathematical software. ATI-83 or TI-84 calculator is required for this course.

Prerequisite: "C" or better in +MAT\* 137 or Mathemat-

ics Assessment Test

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

#### MAT\* 254: CALCULUS I

4 CREDITS

Includes a study of functions, limits, continuity, differentiation of algebraic and trigonometric functions, applications of derivatives, definite integrals, approximate integration, and applications of the definite integral. Mathematical software and programmable-graphing calculators are used extensively. ATI-83 orTI-84 calculator is required for this course.

Prerequisite: "C" or better in +MAT\* 186 or Mathemat-

ics Assessment Test **Offered:** Fall, Spring

#### MAT\* 256: CALCULUS II

4 CREDITS

Includes a further study of differentiation of trigonometric, exponential, and logarithmic functions as well as an exploration of the techniques of integration, improper integrals, indeterminate forms, and infinite series. Mathematical software and programmable-graphing calculators are used extensively. ATI-83 orTI-84 calculator is required for this course.

Prerequisite: "C" or better in +MAT\* 254

Offered: Spring

#### MAT\* 268: CALCULUS III: MULTIVARIABLE

4 CREDITS

Includes vectors in three dimensions, curves and parametric equations in three dimensions, geometry of surfaces, differential calculus of functions of more than one variable with applications, multiple integrals and their applications, and the differential and integral calculus of vector fields. Mathematical software and use of programmable-graphing calculators to solve problems included. ATI-83 or TI-84 calculator is required for this course.

Prerequisite: "C" or better in +MAT\* 256

Offered: Fall

#### MAT\* 285: DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS 3 CREDITS

Introduction to ordinary differential equations and their applications, linear differential equations, systems of first order linear equations, numerical methods. ATI-83 or TI-84 calculator is required for this course.

Prerequisite: Grade of "C" or better in +MAT\* 256

Offered: Spring

### **MEDICAL ASSISTING**

## MED\* 111: ADMINISTRATIVE MEDICAL ASSISTING 3 CREDITS

The course presents the students with a basic overview of front office procedures in a medical facility. Emphasis is on the daily office procedures, financial management, insurance, and computer literacy needed for the health care industry today.

Prerequisite: None Offered: Fall

# MED\* 112: MEDICAL INSURANCE AND CODING 3 CREDITS

This course gives an overview of developments of health insurance in this country, managed care, the life cycle of an insurance claim, legal and regulatory issues, and the process of generating an insurance claim. Students will learn the procedures for ICD-10-CM and CPT coding. Federal and commercial insurance plans will be discussed.

Prerequisite: MED\* 125 Offered: Spring

# MED\* 116: ANATOMY AND PHYSIOLOGY FOR MEDICAL ASSISTANTS 4 CREDITS

This course is a basic study of the structure and functions of the human body. It is designed to provide the fundamental knowledge of how each system functions. The anatomy and physiology of the integumentary system will be discussed. The skeletal system and the muscular system will be covered in detail. Blood, cardiovascular system, lymph system, and the digestive system will also be discussed. Disorders and medical treatments particular to each system will be highlighted.

Co-requisite: MED\* 125

Offered: Fall

#### **MED\* 125: MEDICAL TERMINOLOGY 3 CREDITS**

The goal of this course is acquire basic medical terminology for students who will be entering into a medical profession. Standard roots, suffixes, and prefixes will be covered. Terms associated with each body system as well as common diseases to each body system will be covered. Anatomy and Physiology will be covered in order to make learning more interesting and the terms associated with each body system more easily understood. Correct spelling will be emphasized.

Prerequisite: None Offered: Fall

# MED\* 133: CLINICAL MEDICAL ASSISTING 4 CREDITS

Skills that will be covered in this course include taking vital signs and measurements, documenting medical histories, charting pertinent findings, and assisting during routine and specialty medical exams and treatments. Medical asepsis is stressed. Through the use

of lectures, discussions, role-playing, and hands-on practice, the student will develop competency in these skill areas.

**Prerequisite:** MED\* 125\*

Offered: Fall

## MED\* 142: CLINICAL LABORATORY PROCEDURES AND PRACTICES I 4 CREDITS

Through lectures, discussion, role playing and practice sessions this course demonstrates the concepts of urinalysis, pharmacology, medication administration, the use of the PDR, procedures for performing EKGs. Students will also become familiar with preparing and assisting in radiologic procedures..

Prerequisite: MED\* 125\*

Offered: Fall

# MED\* 170: LAW AND ETHICS FOR HEALTH CAREERS 3 CREDITS

The legalities and ethical behavior associated with the medical practice or facility are discussed with emphasis on the legal and ethical responsibilities of health care practitioners. Federal regulations and guidelines pertinent to medical practices are reviewed. Students will develop an understanding of dealing with patients within a professional code of ethics. Basic concepts of human resource management are covered.

Prerequisite: None Offered: Fall, Spring

# MED\* 216: ELECTRONIC MEDICAL RECORDS MANAGEMENT 3 CREDITS

This course will be dedicated to the Electronic Health Records (EHR) focusing on the day-to-day operation in the front office, coding and billing, and clinical care necessary to complete the patients encounters required for complete and accurate reimbursement.

Prerequisite: None Offered: Spring, Fall

# MED\* 240: PSYCHOLOGY AND COMMUNICATION IN HEALTHCARE FOR MEDICAL ASSISTING 3 CREDITS

This course is an overview of the history of the medical practice and an insight of aspects impacting the medical profession, patients, and medical practice in today's health care profession. It introduces the professional and personal aspects of medical assisting. Therapeutic communications skills are stressed. Particular focus is on specific skills needed to appropriately communicate with a variety of patient profiles. The underlying psychology of specific patient populations is examined.

Prerequisite: None Offered: Fall

# MED\* 242: CLINICAL LABORATORY PROCEDURES AND PRACTICES II 4 CREDITS

Students role-play and practice skills needed in a medical office. They learn the purpose of laboratory testing, types of tests, laboratory request forms, specimen collection, and storage procedures are covered. Students learn blood collection methods and general hematology tests performed in a medical office. Medical asepsis and sterilization procedures are stressed. Students will learn to set up sterile fields for surgery and learn the different types of sutures most commonly used in a physician's office. Basic microbiology is discussed and the safe handling of microbiological specimens is stressed

Prerequisite: MED\* 142

Offered: Fall

# MED\* 250: PRINCIPLES OF PHARMACOLOGY

3 CREDITS

This course presents the need for patient education concerning pharmaceuticals including dosages and administration. Emphasis on drug classifications and legal issues surrounding them. In addition the legislation and ethical considerations will be discussed.

Prerequisite: MED\* 125

Offered: Fall

## MED\* 280: MEDICAL ASSISTANT EXTERNSHIP 4 CREDITS

This course requires the student, in the controlled environment of an approved medical assisting externship site, to experience the hands-on application of the administrative, clinical and professional procedures necessary to the field of medical assisting. This course requires the student to complete 225 hours of supervised practical experience in a program approved site.

**Prerequisite:** Successful completion of ten (10) Medical Assistant classes with a grade of "C-" or better.

Offered: Fall

### **MUSIC**

All MUS\* courses satisfy the Fine Arts requirement.

#### MUS\* 101: MUSIC HISTORY & APPRECIATION I

3 CREDITS

Introduces students to the elements of music: melody, rhythm, harmony, tone, color, and form. A repertory of music literature is achieved through a brief survey of historical development.

Prerequisite: None Offered: Fall

#### MUS\* 141: GUITAR I 3 CREDITS

This course is designed to offer students an introduction to guitar performance. No previous musical training is required or assumed. Through the study of easy solo repertoire pieces, the student will learn musical notation and general music theory. Development of left and right hand technique and good practice habits will

be stressed. The student will also work on the important musicianship skill of auditory training: recognition of pitch, intervals and tone at an introductory level and basic improvisation. Students will form small groups for the purpose of practicing in ensemble. Students must provide their own instruments. *This course satisfies the Fine Arts requirement*.

Prerequisite: None Offered: Fall, Spring

#### MUS\* 142: GUITAR II

3 CREDITS

This course is a continuation of Guitar I. Through the study of classic solo and ensemble pieces that gradually increase the sophistication and difficulty, we will continue the learning of musical notation and general music theory as it applies to guitar performance. Continued emphasis of left and right hand technique, good practice habits, and performance etiquette will be stressed. In this course, we will advance our understanding of the fingerboard into fifth (V) position and will study music and chord development in keys other than C major. We will also expand our working knowledge of harmony to extend into 7th chords, introduce standard jazz repertoire and practice basic improvisation through the study of keys/modes and diatonic scale relationships. This course satisfies the Fine Arts requirement

**Prerequisite:** MUS\* 141 or permission of instructor

Offered: Spring

### **OCEANOGRAPHY**

# OCE\* 101: INTRODUCTION TO OCEANOGRAPHY

3 CREDITS

This course is an introduction to ocean science, designed to familiarize students with basic oceanographic principles and current issues concerning humans' relation with the ocean. Topics include: physical characteristics of the ocean (light, salinity, density, temperature), waves, tides and currents; the ocean floor; ocean zones; types and classification of marine life; effects of the environment on marine life; marine ecology; marine resources (biological and physical); ocean pollution and its effects on marine life; marine law; and nautical charts.

Prequisite: None Offered: Fall

### **PHILOSOPHY**

A grade of "C-" is the passing grade for prerequisites in this category unless otherwise noted.

## PHL\* 101: INTRODUCTION TO PHILOSOPHY

3 CREDITS

We will focus on the questioning of ideas, inquiry into modern philosophical problems, and appreciation for the wonder of the mind, thinking process, and the 'critical' eye. Areas of thought to be studied include knowledge and reality, religious belief, morality, social philosophy, and personal philosophy. 'Doing' philosophy is emphasized. A historical view of changing concepts, and thoughtful consideration of our own time, place, and multi-cultured society.

Prerequisite: None Offered: Fall, Spring

#### PHL\* 111: ETHICS

3 CREDITS

3 CREDITS

Such fundamental issues as social morality and individual rights, justice, and the nature of the good life are explored through historical and contemporary writings. Areas of study include multiculturalism in our democracy, and ethical issues in business, medicine, and media. The ends sought for every student are a stronger sense of consistency between intention and behavior, and growing skills of critical analysis.

Prerequisite: None

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

#### PHL\* 151: WORLD RELIGIONS

Survey of the structures of major world religions and the social and political consequences of such beliefs. Covers varieties of Christianity, Judaism, Buddhism, Hinduism, and the various Muslim sects. Others are studied as time allows.

Prerequisite: None Offered: Spring

### PHYSICAL EDUCATION

HPE\* 261: YOGA 1 CREDIT

This class is an introduction to Hatha yoga postures. The class consists of fundamental yoga techniques to stretch, tone and relax each part of the body. Students learn basic warm-ups, postures, and exercises. Correct breathing and relaxation techniques are also introduced. Beginners and individuals with injuries and physical limitations should start at this beginner level. Modifications are given to provide both safety and the appropriate challenge for students. The Sun Salutation sequence is also introduced to students. No previous training is required or assumed. Graded pass/fail.

Prerequisite: None Offered: Fall, Spring

#### HPE\* 262: YOGA LEVEL I

1 CREDIT

In addition to the material offered in beginner's level, HPE\* 261: Yoga, this class offers increased challenges to those who have become comfortable with entry level material. Students practice holding postures longer to build greater strength and stamina. Alignment and form are studied in more depth at this level. More advanced sequencing of postures is introduced and practiced. Students should have a working understanding of the principles and practice of beginning yoga to fully benefit from this course. Graded pass/fail.

**Prerequisite:** HPE\* 261 or permission of instructor **Offered:** Fall, Spring

### **PHYSICS**

A grade of C- is the passing grade for prerequisites in this category unless otherwise noted.

Students interested in majoring in physics should consider the CSCUTransferTicket in Physics Studies (see CSCUTransferTicket degrees on the web site.) By completing this Asnuntuck associate degree, students can transfer to the Connecticut State Universities (CSU: Central, Eastern, Southern, and Western) and Charter Oak State College (COSC) with a junior status and complete their BA/BS degree. Contact Amely Cross (860-253-3119 or across@asnuntuck.edu) for further details.

#### PHY\* 110 INTRODUCTORY PHYSICS 4 CREDITS

An introduction to physics, including selected topics from mechanics, heat, electricity and light, and modern physics.

Prerequisite: MAT\* 095 with a grade of "C" or better.

Offered: Fall

#### PHY\* 121: GENERAL PHYSICS I 4 CREDITS

Basic concepts of mechanics and thermodynamics. (3 hours lecture/3 hours lab.)

**Prerequisite:** MAT\* 137 with a grade of "C" or better, or two years of high school algebra, or math assessment test.

Offered: Not regularly offered

### **POLITICAL SCIENCE**

A grade of "C-" is the passing grade for prerequisites in this category unless otherwise noted.

Students interested in majoring in political science should consider the CSCU Transfer Ticket in Political Science Studies (see CSCU Transfer Ticket degrees on the web site.) By completing this Asnuntuck associate degree, students can transfer to the Connecticut State Universities (CSU: Central, Eastern, Southern, and Western) and Charter Oak State College (COSC) with a junior status and complete their BA/BS degree. Contact Lisa (Elle) Van Dermark (860-253-3148 or Ivandermark@asnuntuck.edu) for further details.

Courses 114 www.asnuntuck.edu

# POL\* 103: INTRODUCTION TO INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS

3 CREDITS

This course examines the major theories, structures and issues in the study of global politics with an emphasis on significant trends including international organizations, the problem of war, economic globalization and the global environment.

Prerequisite: None

Offered: Not regularly offered

#### POL\* 111: AMERICAN GOVERNMENT 3 CREDITS

This course is an introduction to the foundations and institutions (legislative, executive and judicial) of American politics as well as the key concept of political participation in America with an emphasis on current issues and problems at the national level.

Prerequisite: None

Offered: Fall, Spring, every other Summer

# POL\* 112: STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT

3 CREDITS

This course examines the role, functions, and processes of state and local governments with an emphasis on the diversity and revitalization of state governments as key factors in addressing public policy issues. This course draws heavily from ongoing events in state governments particularly in Connecticut in order to identify the key problems facing states and localities.

Prerequisite: None

Offered: Fall, Spring, every other Summer

### POL\* 208: AMERICAN PUBLIC POLICY

3 CREDITS

This course investigates the policy-making process in the United States. Using a functional approach, students analyze public policy in a sequential manner, from the initial identification of a problem to its solution, including the assessment and appropriate revision or termination of policy. Examines case studies and analyzes current policy issues.

Prerequisite: None

Offered: Not regularly offered

# POL\* 212: CONSTITUTIONAL LAW AND CIVIL RIGHTS

3 CREDITS

Introduction to individual rights guaranteed by the U.S. Constitution, the workings of the U.S. Supreme Court, the Bill of Rights and their application to individual states, the significance of constitutional law, and how judges' interpretation of the Constitution transforms society. See also CJS\* 210.

Prerequisite: None Offered: Summer

## POL\* 295: POLITICAL SCIENCE INTERNSHIP

6-12 CREDITS

An opportunity to work closely in a political setting, either with a local legislator or in an office of the legislature

**Prerequisite:** Written permission of the instructor

Offered: Spring

### **PSYCHOLOGY**

A grade of "C-" is the passing grade for prerequisites in this category unless otherwise noted. NOTE: A grade of C or better is required to transfer to the UCONN Psychology Department.

Students interested in majoring in psychology should consider the CSCUTransferTicket in Psychology Studies (see CSCUTransferTicket degrees on the web site.) By completing this Asnuntuck associate degree, students can transfer to the Connecticut State Universities (CSU: Central, Eastern, Southern, and Western) and Charter Oak State College (COSC) with a junior status and complete their BA/BS degree. Please note: There is also a transfer agreement between Asnuntuck Community College and the University of Connecticut for students majoring in psychology. See the plan of study under Liberal Arts in this catalog.

Contact Dr. Heather D'Orlando, Social and Behavioral Sciences Coordinator at hdorlando@asnuntuck.edu for details.

#### PSY\* 104: PSYCHOLOGY OF ADJUSTMENT

3 CREDITS

This course examines personal adjustment, personal growth, and interpersonal relationships over the lifespan. We examine those changes within personal and social contexts. Students gain knowledge of topics that relate to understanding others and ourselves in a changing world including motivation, emotions, stress, work, the body and health, human sexuality, freedom and decision making. Events, individuals and choices are interrelated. This course examines those connections and their impact on the individual.

Prerequisite: None Offered: Fall, Spring

#### PSY\* 109: PSYCHOLOGY OF THE FAMILY 3 CREDITS

This course is a study of American family dynamics along with the psychological conditions influencing them. The course examines the micro perspective of family dynamics. Topics include marriage, power, conflict and communication in families, birth order and its effects on mating and parenting styles, family stress and crises, divorce, remarriage and family life from an individual and social-psychological perspective. The course focuses on the psychological impact families have on individual members.

**Prerequisite:** None **Offered:** Fall, Spring

#### PSY\* 111: GENERAL PSYCHOLOGY I 3 CREDITS

This is a survey course that provides an overview of introductory topics in the science of psychology. Topics include historical and scientific origins, research, biological foundations, life span development, learning, memory, thinking, language, intelligence, motivation, and emotion. This course is the first half of a two semester sequence of PSY\* 111 and 112. PSY\* 111 is recommended, but not required prior to taking PSY\* 112.

Prerequisite: None

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

#### PSY\* 112: GENERAL PSYCHOLOGY II 3 CREDITS

This course is a survey course of psychology as a behavioral science. Topics include states of consciousness, sensation and perception, theories of personality, social psychology, abnormal psychology, therapeutic treatment, and health psychology. This course is the second half of a two semester sequence of PSY\* 111 and 112. PSY\* 111 is recommended, but not required prior to taking PSY\* 112.

Prerequisite: None

Offered: Fall, Winter, Spring, Summer

## PSY\* 140: PSYCHOLOGY OF ADDICTION

3 CREDITS

This course is an overview of addiction including potential causes and personal/social consequences. Addiction is examined from a number of perspectives. Topics include: alcohol, heroin, cocaine, food, sex, relationships and work. Included is an examination of current state and federal legislation related to specific addictions. Course content includes a variety of treatment modalities utilized in addressing the symptomatology of addiction.

Prerequisite: PSY\* 112
Offered: Not regularly offered

#### PSY\* 143: COUNSELING SKILLS 3 CREDITS

This course explores the role of the counselor in a variety of therapeutic settings. Topics include theories of counseling, various counseling models, individual and group counseling, components of successful counseling, and conditions leading to and ways to prevent burnout. Students practice a variety of counseling techniques.

Prerequisite: PSY\* 112 Offered: Fall, Spring

#### PSY\* 201: LIFE SPAN DEVELOPMENT 3 CREDITS

This course explores the development of the whole person from the prenatal period through late adulthood. We examine the stages and issues related to social, emotional, intellectual, and physical development. Developmental principles are applied to understand family issues, communication, self-image, and adjustments to life's transitions. Students learn both theory and practice.

Prerequisite: PSY\* 111 Offered: Fall, Spring

#### PSY\* 203: CHILD DEVELOPMENT 3 CREDITS

This course examines contemporary ideas and issues in child psychology. It includes such topics as cognition, intelligence, language, early experiences, genetics, sex typing, learning, motivation, perception, and personality from a developmental point of view. Objectives include introducing students to modern methods of the study of children; increasing interest, understanding, and concern for children. Topics include learning, motivation, perception, and personality from a developmental point of view.

**Prerequisite:** *PSY\* 111* **Offered:** Fall, Spring

# PSY\* 204: CHILD AND ADOLESCENT DEVELOPMENT 3 CREDITS

This course examines the changes in the individual from infancy through adolescence. This survey course examines the theories and methodologies of the cognitive, emotional, and social development of the individual during childhood and adolescence. We employ both theory and practice in our approach to the material.

**Prerequisite:** PSY\* 111 **Offered:** Not regularly offered

#### PSY\* 207: ADOLESCENT PSYCHOLOGY 3 CREDITS

This course examines a broad theoretical and practical basis for the understanding of this dynamic period of development. Theoretical models of social, cognitive, and development are reviewed within the context of important issues of the adolescent experience. Cultural differences and similarities are presented throughout the course.

Prerequisite: PSY\* 111
Offered: Not regularly offered

#### PSY\* 210: DEATH & DYING 3 CREDITS

This course examines contemporary and cultural attitudes toward death and dying, and the process of grief and loss. Students examine approaches toward death from psychological, social, moral, and ethical perspectives. A number of issues of the multifaceted concept of death are explored including: death of children, death due to accidents, factors that precipitate death, the personal struggle of the terminally ill, and the impact of death on the family and significant others. The ethical issue of terminating life is also explored.

Prerequisite: PSY\* 111 Offered: Fall, Spring

#### PSY\* 211: PSYCHOLOGY OF WOMEN 3 CREDITS

This course examines leading psychological theories and issues about women in contemporary society. It examines social expectations and personality development, achievement motivation and identity formation.

**Prerequisite:** PSY\* 104 or PSY\* 111 **Offered:** Not regularly offered

Courses 116 www.asnuntuck.edu

#### PSY\* 212: HEALTH PSYCHOLOGY 3 CREDITS

This course examines the effects of cognitive and emotional states and the environment on wellness. Students learn a variety of theories and research methods used to evaluate the impact of acute and chronic illness on psychological health. Students learn a variety of coping skills to promote sound psychological wellbeing. Prevention, stress management, psychotropic intervention, talk therapy, and other coping strategies are examined.

**Prerequisite:** PSY\* 112 **Offered:** Fall, Spring

# PSY\* 215: PSYCHOLOGY OF DREAMING

3 CREDITS

This course surveys the physiology of the dreaming process in the context of stages of sleep and the neurobiology of dream states. The theories of Freud, Jung and Gestalt psychologists are applied to an understanding of the dream process and dream interpretation. The course also examines the influence of culture and myth upon the dreaming process and the dreamer.

**Prerequisite:** PSY\* 112 **Offered:** Fall, Spring, Summer

#### PSY\* 220: EDUCATIONAL PSYCHOLOGY 3 CREDITS

This course covers the basic theories of learning and teaching. The focus of the course will be on the learning process and related ideas such as development, individual differences, cognition, effective learning environments, motivation and exceptionalities. Students learn a variety of theoretical constructs that pertain to learning and the educational environment.

Prerequisite: PSY\* 111
Offered: Not regularly offered

#### PSY\* 240: SOCIAL PSYCHOLOGY 3 CREDITS

This course is a survey of theory and research in social psychology, including the topics of conformity, obedience, attitudes, persuasion, group dynamics, the self, forming impressions and explaining behavior, altruism, aggression, romantic attraction, prejudice, and social conflict.

**Prerequisite:** PSY\* 112 **Offered:** Fall, Spring

#### PSY\* 243: THEORIES OF PERSONALITY

3 CREDITS

This course examines the nature of personality and practical implications for everyday living from the view-points of major personality theorists. The psychodynamic, behavioristic, ego psychology, humanistic, and transpersonal models are explored.

Prerequisite: PSY\* 112
Offered: Not regularly offered

#### PSY\* 245: ABNORMAL PSYCHOLOGY 3 CREDITS

This course is an inquiry into social and cultural perspectives of abnormal behavior, focusing on clinical situations, causal factors, therapy, and the outcomes

of various maladaptive behaviors. Contemporary approaches to assessment, treatment, and prevention of abnormal behavior are explored.

Prerequisite: PSY\* 112 Offered: Fall, Spring

# PSY\* 250: PSYCHOLOGICAL ASPECTS OF HUMAN SEXUALITY 3 CREDITS

This course explores current information, attitudes, and place of sexuality as a positive and enriching force in life. Biological origins, psychological determinants, social factors, and various forms of sexual expression are explored.

**Prerequisite:** PSY\* 104 or PSY\* 111 **Offered:** Not regularly offered

#### PSY\* 256: PSYCHOLOGY OF GENDER 3 CREDITS

This course examines the different roles of men and women from a psychological perspective, examining both traditional roles and the current changing roles of men and women. Students explore psychological messages about masculinity and femininity, media messages, and patterns of communication. *This course was formerly called Psychology of Men and Women.* 

**Prerequisite:** PSY\* 104 or PSY\* 111 **Offered:** Not regularly offered

#### PSY\* 270: PSYCHOLOGY OFTRAUMA 3 CREDITS

This course introduces students to the field of psychological trauma. It includes a brief history of the field and current approaches to understanding trauma from cognitive, neuropsychological, developmental, and clinical viewpoints. It explores topics such as childhood trauma, adult sexual assault, domestic violence, acts of war, combat related disorders, and natural disasters. Films and selected readings are used to explore these topics. A disclaimer is communicated at the beginning of class concerning possible accidental trauma to students because of the nature of the materials covered. A list of area providers of psychological services is distributed in class.

Prerequisite: *PSY\* 112*Offered: Not regularly offered

### **QUALITY CONTROL**

### QUA\* 114: PRINCIPLES OF QUALITY CONTROL

3 CREDITS

First course in statistical quality control. Topics covered include determination of process capabilities, estimation of process standard deviation from sample data, use of control charts, calculation of probability of simple events. Student will develop SPC and TQM Manufacturing Plans.

**Prerequisite:** Completion of Machine Technology Level I Certificate or consent of instructor.

### SIGN LANGUAGE

#### SGN\* 101: SIGN LANGUAGE I 3 CREDITS

American Sign Language (ASL) is the sign language most deaf people use when communicating among themselves. Students will learn grammatical features, vocabulary and conversational skills including expressive and receptive skills of ASL. In addition, students will learn the culture of the deaf community, the history of ASL, and the relationship of ASL to other forms of signing.

Prerequisite: None Offered: Fall

#### SGN\* 102: SIGN LANGUAGE II 3 CREDITS

This course is a continuation of Sign Language I. Students will learn grammatical features, vocabulary and conversational skills including expressive and receptive skills of ASL. In addition, students will learn the culture of the deaf community, the history of ASL, and the relationship of ASL to other forms of signing.

Prerequisite: A grade of C- or higher in SGN\* 101

Offered: Spring

### **SOCIAL WORK**

Students interested in majoring in social work should consider the CSCUTransferTicket in Social Work Studies (see CSCU Transfer Ticket degrees on the web site.) By completing this Asnuntuck associate degree, students can transfer to the Connecticut State Universities (CSU: Central, Eastern, Southern, and Western) and Charter Oak State College (COSC) with a junior status and complete their BA/BS degree. Contact Heather D'Orlando (860-253-3103 or hdorlando@asnuntuck.edu) for further details.

### SOCIOLOGY

A grade of "C-" is the passing grade for prerequisites in this category unless otherwise noted.

Students interested in majoring in sociology should consider the CSCUTransferTicket in Sociology Studies (see CSCUTransferTicket degrees on the web site.) By completing this Asnuntuck associate degree, students can transfer to the Connecticut State Universities (CSU: Central, Eastern, Southern, and Western) and Charter Oak State College (COSC) with a junior status and complete their BA/BS degree. Contact Laurie Chancey (860-253-3152 or Ichancey@asnuntuck.edu) for further details.

#### SOC\* 101: PRINCIPLES OF SOCIOLOGY 3 CREDITS

This course introduces the sociological perspective as a way to look at and make sense of our complex and changing world. Students study basic concepts, principles, and methods of sociological analysis. Subject areas include culture, social structure, socialization, groups, social inequity, and social change, taught using a global perspective. This is an introductory class designed to be a student's first experience with the study of sociology at the college level. Students will be prepared to either go on to higher-level sociology classes and/or use this basic understanding of sociological thinking as a foundation for greater understanding of themselves and society.

Prerequisite: None

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

#### SOC\* 114: SOCIOLOGY OF AGING 3 CREDITS

This course provides an overview of the pertinent aspects of aging. Students gain an understanding of the aging process including the biological, psychological, and sociological factors. Physiological changes are discussed from the perspective of life span development. Emotional and behavioral components of aging are presented. The socially changing role of the elderly, and covers contemporary problems that senior citizens face.

Prerequisite: None

Offered: Not regularly offered

#### **SOC\* 117: MINORITIES IN THE U.S.** 3 CREDITS

This course is a study of the social, economic, and political conditions affecting the status of major ethnic and racial groups in the United States. Attention is focused on selected minority groups, emphasizing patterns of immigration, intercultural conflict, accommodation, and assimilation.

Prerequisite: None

Offered: Not regularly offered

#### **SOC\* 120: GROUP DYNAMICS** 3 CREDITS

This course is an overview of the dynamics of human interaction in small groups. Students study the dynamics of the small group through direct experience and analysis of group process, and through the major theories of small group development. Topics covered are leadership, roles, nonverbal behavior, communicating, conflict, and power.

Prerequisite: None

Offered: Not regularly offered

#### SOC 190: SELF AND OTHERS: DYNAMICS OF DIVERSITY

3 CREDITS

This course explores the meanings of inequality based on factors including class, race, gender, ethnicity and sexual orientation as they structure individual identities, group interaction, life changes and social outcomes. Students use the sociological perspective to explore the intersections of these social differences on both academic and experiential levels. Twenty hours of service learning conducted during the semester is required.

Prerequisite: None

Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

## SOC\* 201: CONTEMPORARY SOCIAL ISSUES 3 CREDITS

This course is a comprehensive and critical analysis of problems facing American society. Topics include race, gender, role changes, bureaucracies, education, the family, the young and old, violence, drugs, and homelessness. This course assesses the impact of these problems on American social institutions.

Prerequisite: SOC\* 101 Offered: Fall, Spring

## SOC\* 210: SOCIOLOGY OF THE FAMILY 3 CREDITS

This course uses the sociological perspective to focus on contemporary family structures. Family is one of the major institutions in society. The course emphasizes the sociological aspects of changing family forms from a macro perspective. It examines social forces, including other social institutions, that shape the contemporary American family within a historical context. It explores changing sociological patterns of marriage, power, parenting, family crises, divorce, remarriage and alternative family lifestyles. The course focuses on the global impact of other social institutions on the family.

Prerequisite: SOC\* 101
Offered: Fall, Spring, Summer

#### SOC\* 211: SOCIOLOGY OF GENDER 3 CREDITS

This course examines the processes by which gender is socially constructed, along with the distinction between biological sex and gender, the causes and consequences of gender inequality, and a historical overview of gender relations in different social institutions and societies.

Prerequisite: SOC\* 101
Offered: Not regularly offered

#### SOC\* 240: CRIMINOLOGY 3 CREDITS

This course introduces the fundamental principles of criminology: theories related to the causes of crime, trends in criminal behavior, and problems that are encountered in the administration of the current justice system. The course examines the different rehabilitative and treatment services provided to offenders. (See also CJS\* 201.)

Prerequisite: SOC\* 101

Offered: Fall

#### **SOC\* 241: JUVENILE DELINQUENCY 3 CREDITS**

This course explores the multifaceted concept of juvenile delinquency, and explores the relationship between social attitudes and definitions of youthful law violations, and examines some of the popular causal factors of juvenile delinquency. (See also +CJS\* 202.)

Prerequisite: SOC\* 101

Offered: Spring

### **SPANISH**

#### SPA\* 101: ELEMENTARY SPANISH I 3 CREDITS

For students with little or no background in Spanish. Stresses pronunciation, aural comprehension, and conversation, as well as the principles of grammar. Reading and writing of simple Spanish are developed.

Prerequisite: None Offered: Fall, Summer

#### SPA\* 102: ELEMENTARY SPANISH II 3 CREDITS

A continuation of Spanish 101. Expanded grammar, pronunciation, and conversation to improve the reading, writing, and speaking of the language. Elementary reading materials for vocabulary building, exercises, and discussion.

Prerequisite: A grade of C- or higher in SPA\* 101

Offered: Spring, Summer

### **THEATER**

AllTHR\* courses satisfy the Fine Arts requirement.

#### THR\* 110: ACTING I 3 CREDITS

Students read plays and participate both as actors and critics. They acquaint themselves with theater and engage in improvisations as well as in particular plays. All students do some acting and an attempt is made to videotape student actors engaged in rehearsal and performance. Some writing and directing is possible. This course satisfies the Fine Arts requirement.

Prerequisite: None Offered: Fall, Spring

#### THR\* 107: HISTORY OF FILM 3 CREDITS

Students view and analyze a series of films from the silent era to the present day. They explore the changes that have occurred in this art form, how it is defined, and the varied ways in which it can be understood and appreciated. An understanding of film's unique physical and spatial characteristics begins this study. *This course satisfies the Fine Arts requirement.* 

Prerequisite: None Offered: Fall, Spring

#### THR\* 210: ACTING II 3 CREDITS

The second core-acting course in the Theater Arts curriculum. This course is designed to help students reflect upon their work from Acting I in order to improve their acting skills and technique. Acting II is a performance-based class and all students are required to perform in front of the class for evaluation. The course will focus primarily on scene study and text analysis. Units of study will include improvisation, voice, physical action, emotional exploration, monologue study, scene study, and Shakespeare's sonnets. This course satisfies the Fine Arts requirement.

Prerequisite: THR\* 110

Offered: Spring

# Personnel FACULTY & STAFF

#### HAILEKIROS ABERA

College Connections Coordinator Advanced Manufacturing Technology Ctr. B.S. University of he District of Columbia M.S. Indiana Wesleyan University M.S. FAMU-FSU School of Engineering

#### JENNIFER ANILOWSKI

Interim Director of Admissions B.A. University of Rhode Island M.Ed. Ohio University

#### **ROLAND ATKINSON**

Evening Coordinator Student Services A.A. Asnuntuck Community College A.S. Asnuntuck Community College

#### **MUHAMMED AWAIS**

Advanced Manufacturing Technology Ctr. B.S.I.E. Weber State University M.B.A. University of Belleview

#### **MELISSA BANNING**

Financial Clerk Administrative Services

#### JOSEPH BERENGUEL

Assistant Professor, Developmental Writing A.S. Middlesex Community College B.A. Central Connecticut State University M.A. University of Connecticut

#### **MARY BIDWELL**

Interim Dean Advanced Manufacturing Technology Ctr. B.A. Western Connecticut State University M.S. University of New Haven

#### **ANNE BROOKS**

Custodian Building Services

#### JENNIFER BROWN

Director of Non-Credit Programs Workplace Development & Continuing Education B.S. University of Connecticut

#### JAMES BUNTING

Advanced Manufacturing Technology Ctr. B.A. Iowa State University

#### RYAN CALLINAN

Custodian
Building Services
A.S. Northwestern Connecticut
Community College
B.A. Central Connecticut State University

#### MAIREAD CARNEY

Advanced Manufacturing Technology Ctr. Certificate AMTC Asnuntuck Community College

#### **GARY CARRA**

Business, Industry & Marketing Coordinatior Workforce Development/Continuing Ed. B.A. Keene State College

#### **CATHERINE CARTER**

Academic & Career Advisor
Ctr. for Advising & Student Achievement
B.S. University of Connecticut
M.S. Eastern Connecticut tate University
M.A. University of Connecticut

#### SUSAN Y. CHAMPAGNE

Program Specialist, Workforce Development Continuing Education A.S. Manchester Community College

#### **LAURIE CHANCEY**

Instructor, Sociology B.A. McNeese State University M.A. Louisiana State University

#### DIANE B. CLOKEY

Registrar B.A. Quinnipiac College M.Ed. University of Vermont

#### MICHELLE A. COACH

Interim Chief Executive Officer CEO's Office B.S. Westfield State College M.B.A. University of Massachusetts M.S. Saint Joseph's College

#### **DANIEL COFFIN**

Advanced Manufacturing Technology Ctr. Machine Technology Certificate

#### JULIE A. COTNOIR

Academic Affairs College Career Pathways Coordinator, B.A. Central Connecticut State University

#### **AMELY CROSS**

Assistant Professor, Chemistry/Physics B.S. University of Puerto Rico M.S. University of Saint Joseph

#### CHERYL A. CYR

Interim Director of Human Resources Human Resources A.S. Asnuntuck Community College B.S. Charter Oak State College

#### KAREN S. DARDANELLI

Student Services Assistant A.S. Asnuntuck Community College B.A. Bay Path College

#### **GENNARO DEANGELIS**

Interim Dean of Administration/Strategic Enrollment, Management & Institutional Assessment Administrative Services B.S. Springfield College M.Ed. University of Maine

#### TOMMI DEMICHAEL

Advising Services Assistant Ctr. for Advising & Student Achievement A.A. Asnuntuck Community College

#### MICHAEL P. DEMERS

Associate Professor, Art B.F.A. Florida Atlantic University M.A. Academy of Art M.F. A. Ohio University

#### **HEATHER D'ORLANDO**

Assistant Professor, Psychology B.A. Salve Regina University M.A. University of Montana Ph.D. University of Montana

#### J. BENJAMIN DURANT II

Coordinator of Media Services InformationTechnology B.A. Bradford College M.S. Marlboro College

#### **BETH-ANNE EGAN**

Interim Director, Financial Aid Services Administrative Services B.A. Framingham State College

#### **MARK ERICKSON**

General Trades Worker Buiding Services

#### PAUL A. FELICI

Academic Associate
Advanced Manufacturing Technology Ctr.
B.S.B.A. American International College

#### JOSEPH C. FINCKEL

Associate Professor, English B.A. SUNY Plattsburgh M.A. University of Connecticut

#### HEIDI E. FITZGERALD

Professor, Business B.S. George Mason M.B.A. George Mason

#### LISA FITZSIMMONS

Advanced Manufacturing Technology Ctr. Certificate Mfg. Technology Middlesex Community College B.S. Bryant University

#### TERESA E. FOLEY

Interim Dean of Academic Affairs Academic Affairs B.S. University of Connecticut M.Ed. Ohio University Ph.D. University of Connecticut

#### CHRISTOPHER FOSTER

Manufacturing Technology Instructor Advanced Manufacturing Technology Ctr. A.S. Asnuntuck Community College B.S. Central Connecticut State University

#### JUSTIN GETCHELL

Advanced ManufacturingTechnology Ctr. Certificate Welding Asnuntuck Community College

#### PETER GIBBS

Academic Associate Advanced Manufacturing Technology Ctr. B.A. Plymouth State College

#### CHAD GLABACH

Associate Director of Finance & Administrative Services B.A. Westfield State University M.B.A. Western New England University

#### **BOGDAN GLOGOWSKI**

Manufacturing Technology Instructor Advanced Manufacturing Technology Ctr. RapidTech Certificate of Completion on Additive Manufacturing Technologies

#### JENNIFER GRAY

Director of Finance and Administrative Services B.S.B.A. Western New England College M.B.A., M.S.A. Western N.E. College

#### PETER HAFFNER

Acting Director InformationTechnology B.S. Ithaca College

#### **MATTHEW HALL**

Director, Library Services B.A. Bowdoin College M.L.S. Simmons College M.A. Southern Connecticut State University

#### TABITHA HEAVNER

Reference /Information Literacy Librarian B.A. University of Rhode Island M.A. Hartt School M.L.S. Southern CT State University Ph.D. University of Connecticut

#### KAMALA HILL

Success Coach
Continuing Education
A.S. Halifax Community College
B.A. California State University
M.A. Liberty University

#### ANGELINA HINOJOSA

Director of AcademicTutoring Center B.A. California State University M.S. Simmons College

#### **LUIS HOMS**

Lead Custodian - 2nd Shift Building Services

#### MICHELE HOWARD-SWAN

Assistant Professor Allied Health Coordinator Academic Affairs B.S. Boston College M.S. University of Connecticut

#### SAMUEL IRIZARRY

Associate Professor, Business B.S. Central Connecticut State University M.S. Central Connecticut State University

#### CHAY IV

Secretary II Academic Affairs

#### TAWANA JEWELL

Biology Lecturer
A.S.SpringfieldTechnical Community College
B.S. Westfield State College
M.S. St Joseph College

#### JENNA-MARIE JONAH

Interim Assistant to the Dean Academic Affairs A.S. Asnuntuck Community College

#### **COLLEEN KEARNEY**

Project Grant Director of OVW B.A. Eastern Connecticut State University M.P.A. Florida Gulf Coast University

#### **MONICA KEDZOIR**

Financial Aid Assistant Administrative Services A.A. Asnuntuck Community College B.A. Baypath University

#### **VINCENT KEDZOIR**

Admission Service Specialist Student Services A.A. Asnuntuck Community College A.S. Asnuntuck Community College B.A. University of Hartford

### PAMELA J. KEENAN

Reading Room Coordinator A.S. Asnuntuck Community College B.S. Charter Oak State College M.Ed. Western New England University

#### **BRIAN KENNY**

A.S. Manchester Community College B.S. Central Connecticut State University M.S. Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute

#### **DEBORAH KOSIOR**

Associate of Student Accessibility/ Disability Services Student Services St. John's University

#### **CHARLES KNUREK**

Information Technology Technician II
Information Technology
Homeland Security Level IV and
Sensitive Security Information, American
Board of Homeland Security Certification
Computer Operator, Dept. of Labor Cert.

#### A. STANLEY KOCHANEK

Business & Industry Instructor Advanced Manufacturing Technology Ctr. B.S. Worcester Polytechnic Institute

#### MICHAEL KUNZE

Advanced Manufacturing Center Certificate, Manufacturing Technology Center Asnuntuck Community College

#### **CAROL LALIBERTE**

Associate Professor, Early Childhood Education B.S. Massachusetts College of Liberal Arts M.Ed. Westfield State College

#### ROBERT LAVIN

Interim Assistant Director
Information Technology
B.S. Central Connecticut State University

#### WILLIAM LEAHY

Advanced Manufacturing Technology Ctr. Certificate Mfg. Technology Asnuntuck Community College Certificate Mfg. Technology CAM Naugatuck Community College

#### NICLES LEFAKIS

Professor, Accounting B.S. Central Connecticut State University M.B.A. American International College

#### MICHAEL LOMBARDI

Advanced Manufacturing Technology Ctr. B.A. University of Connecticut

#### JAMES P. LOMBELLA

North-West Regional President M.M. Cambridge College Ed.D. Nova Southeastern University

#### AMANDA LOONEY-GOETZ

Academic & Transfer Advisor Ctr. for Advising & Student Achievement B.S. Illinois State University M.A University of Illinois at Springfield

#### **QING LIN MACK**

Director, Institutional Research B.A. People's Public Security University of China M.S. Central Connecticut State University

Ed.D. University of Hartford

#### **KEITH MADORE**

Director, Institutional Advancement & Community Engagement B.A. University of Maine at Presque Isle

#### JEAN MAIN

Interim Associate Dean of Enrollment Management Administrative Services

#### JOSE MARCELINO

Academic Associate
Advanced Manufacturing Technology Ctr.
Machine Technology Certificate

#### **GARY MARUCA**

Advanced Manufacturing Technology Ctr. Certificate, Technical Careers Institute. A.S. Asnuntuck Community College

#### DIANE K. MISTOS

Administrative Assistant Advanced Manufacturing Technology Ctr. A.S. Springfield Technical Community College

#### CORY MITCHELL

ITTechnician
MCSA & Security Tract Certificate
New Horizons Computer Learning Ctr.
Computer Electronics Specialist Certificate
Goodwin College

#### RITA MORIARTY

Advanced Manufacturing Technology Ctr. B.A. University of Connecticut M.S. Hartford Graduate Center

#### **ERIC MOSHER**

Assistant Professor, Biology B.A. Wesleyan University D.C. New York Chiropractic College M.S. University of Connecticut

#### MICHAELA C. MULLARKEY

Professor, English B.A. Hampshire College M.A. Stetson University

#### JOSEPH J. MULLER

Building Superintendent III
A.S. Asnuntuck Community College
B.S. Charter Oak College
M.S. Rochester Institute of Technology

#### RICHARD MUNROE

Advanced Manufacturing Technology Ctr. Senior Certified Welding Inspector Certified Welding Educator

#### TAM NGUYEN

Advanced Manufacturing Technology Ctr. Machine Technology Certificate

#### MARY C. (KATIE) O'CONNELL

Director of Education Technology Academic Affairs B.A. University of Saint Joseph M.A. Marlboro College

#### SHERRY PAQUETTE

Director of Student Activities
A.S. Asnuntuck Community College
M.A. Bay Path University

#### MARIA A. PATENAUDE

Administrative Assistant Information Technology A.A. Springfield Technical Community College A.S. Springfield Technical Community College

#### KELLIE PAYNE

Advisor

Advanced Manufacturing Technology Ctr. B.A. University of Massachusetts M. Ed. Cambridge College

#### **EILEEN PELTIER**

Dean of Workforce Development & Continuing Education
A.S. Hartford College for Women
B.A. Smith College
M.A.L.S. Wesleyan University

#### SUSANNA PHILLIPS

Evening Librarian Library Services

#### JESSICA L. POIRIER

Continuing Education Coordinator Workforce Development & Continuing Education A.S. Asnuntuck Community College

### KIMBERLEY QUINN

Secretary II Student Services A.S. Asnuntuck Community College B.A. Bay Path University M.S. Bay Path University

#### MARIA D. RAGNO

Associate Registrar
Student Services
A.S. Asnuntuck Community College
B.G.S. Eastern Connecticut StateUniversity

#### MARY BETH RAJCZEWSKI

Math Lecturer Academic Affairs B.S. Siena College M.S. Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute

#### ANN REILLY

Human Resources Associate B.A. Elms College

#### **GARY REVICKI**

Manufacturing Technology Instructor Advanced Manufacturing Technology Ctr. Certified in Electronic Controls, Connecticut School of Electronics

#### KENNETH REVICKI

Manufacturing Technology Instructor Advanced Manufacturing Technology Ctr. Certificate, Asnuntuck Community College

#### **CONRAD RIOUX**

Academic Associate Advanced Manufacturing Technology Ctr. Certificate, Asnuntuck Community College

#### **CELESTINE ROBBINS**

Custodian, Building Services A.S Albertus Magnus B.A. Albertus Magnus

#### JONATHAN D. ROBINSON

Custodian, Building Services Certificate, Graphic Arts, Essex County Technical Careers Center Certificate, Machine Technology, Asnuntuck Community College

#### **MARCOS RODRIGUEZ**

Interim Coordinator of Academic & Administrative IT
A.S. Capital Community College

#### MARISA RUBERA

Coordinator of Advanced Manufactuing Advanced Manufacturing Technology Ctr. A.A. Greater Hartford Community College B.A. Smith College M.Ed. Springfield College Sixth Year, University of Connecticut

#### JILL A. RUSHBROOK

Director of Advising Ctr. for Advising & Student Achievement B.A. Gordon College M.Ed. Springfield College

#### TIMOTHY P. ST. JAMES

Interim Dean of Student Services Student Services B.S. Western New England College M.Ed. Springfield College

#### SHERRI SEEKINS

Administrative Assistant Human Resources

#### JOHN M. SHEIRER

Professor, English B.A. West Virginia Wesleyan College M.A. Ohio University

#### KRISTEN SIMONS

Fiscal Administrative Assistant, Administrative Services A.S. Manchester Community College

#### ANDREA J. SKIDGEL

Secretary II, Student Services A.S. Asnuntuck Community College

#### **SCOTT SMITH**

InformationTechnologyTechnician I InformationTechnology IT Certificate, Branford Hall Institute

#### **KOBIE STEWART**

Assistant Professor, Criminal Justice B.A. Rivier University M.A. American International College

#### **PETER STANTON**

Advanced Manufacturing Technology Ctr.

#### THAYRE TRZEPACZ

Academic Associate Biology Lab Assistant B.A. Westfield State University

#### CHERYL T. TURGEON

Professor, Information Systems Technology B.S.B.A. Western New England College M.B.A. Western New England College

#### MARILYNN S. TURNER

Professor, English B.S. Northeastern University M.A.L.S. Wesleyan University

#### SHIRLEY TYLER

Secretary II
Building Services/Academic Affairs
A.A. Asnuntuck Community College
B.S. Charter Oak State College
M.S. Southern New Hampshire University

#### EDWARD VAGHINI

Advanced Manufacturing Technology Ctr.

#### **ROBERT VAIDA**

Business & Industry Instructor Advanced Manufacturing Technology Ctr. A.S. Hartford State Technical Institute B.S. University of Hartford

#### MARGARET VAN COTT

Executive Assistant to the President President's Office A.A. Roger Williams University B.S. Roger Williams University

#### LISA (ELLE) VAN DERMARK

Associate Professor, History A.A. Grossmont College B.A. San Diego State University M.A. San Diego State University

#### MARCIN WARDAK

Support, Manufacturing Technology Ctr.

#### JODY L. WELLER

Interim Associate Director of Financial Aid Services, Administrative Services A.S. Asnuntuck Community College B.B.A. American International College M.S.A.T. American International College

#### JAMES E. WILKINSON

Professor, Business B.S.B.A. Western New England College M.B.A. Western New England College M.S. American International College

#### SHARNTAE WILSON

Interim Executive Assistant CEO's Office

#### ALLEN WOOLEY

Tutor, Advanced Manufacturing Technology Center

#### YHARA ZELINKA

Title IX Coordinator & Advisor Ctr. for Advising & Student Achievement B.S. Fundacion Del Area Andina M.S. Central Connecticut State University

#### ARBEN ZEQIRAJ

Instructor, Mathematics B.S. Central Connecticut State University M.A. Central Connecticut State University

#### **QIONG ZOU**

Librarian, Library Services
B.A. Jiang Xi University
M.L.S. Kutztown University of Pennsylvania

### **EMERITI**

#### **ESTHER ALAIMO**

Professor Emerita of Accounting B.S. University of Connecticut M.S. University of Hartford

#### ROBERT S. BERGQUIST

Professor Emeritus of English A.A. Worcester Jr. College B.A. Worcester State College M.A. University of Michigan

#### DONALD W. BOYD

Professor, Criminal Justice A.S. Danville Junior College B.S. Western Illinois University M.S. University of Cincinnati

#### ANTHONY P. CIRONE

Professor Emeritus of Art B.A. University of Connecticut B.F.A., M.F.A. University of Hartford

#### DONALD P. CRONAN

Professor Emeritus of Electrical Engineering and Mathematics B.S.E.E. University of Connecticut M.S.E.E. University of Connecticut

#### PAUL H. DUVAL

Professor Emeritus of Economics B.A. University of Massachusetts M.A. University of Massachusetts

#### JEAN M. EGAN

Professor, Psychology
A.A. University of Kentucky at
Elizabethtown Community College
B.A. University of New Orleans
M.A. American International College
Ph.D. University of Connecticut, CFLE

#### **VINCENT S. FULGINITI**

Dean Emeritus of Student Services B.A. Saint Charles College M.A. Saint John's University

#### **ELAINE A. FOLKERS**

Professor Emerita of Computer Information Systems

B.S. Hamline University M.A. University of Connecticut A.B.D. Syracuse University

#### JOSEPH L. GERVASCIO

Professor Emeritus of Accounting/ Computer Information Systems/ Management B.S. University of Connecticut M.P.A. University of Hartford

#### FRANK GULLUNI

Director Emeritus of Advanced Manufacturing Technology Ctr. B.S. University of Massachusetts M.Ed. University of Massachusetts

#### JAMES E. HAHESY

Dean Emeritus of Student Services B.A. Boston College M.Ed. Springfield College

#### PATRICIA L. HIRSCHY

Professor Emerita of Mathematics B.S. University of Delaware M.S. University of Delaware Ed.D. Nova Southeastern University

#### HARVEY S. IRLEN

President Emeritus B.S. Northwestern University M.A. University of Minnesota Ph.D. University of Minnesota

#### **BEVERLY JEMISON**

Counselor Emeritus
A.A. Ferris State University
B.S. SUNY Albany
M. Ed. University of Massachusetts
C.A.G.S. University of Massachusetts

#### MADONNA JONES-SEARLE

Director Emerita of Financial Aid Services A.S. Asnuntuck Community College B.S. Charter Oak College M.S. Central Connecticut State University

#### CATHERINE JUOZOKAS

Director Emerita of Academic Tutoring Center

A.S. Elmira College
B.A. American International College
B.S.N. Columbia University
M.S. Central Connecticut State
University

#### JOANNE G. KANE

Director Emerita of The Center for Professional and Community Education B.S. Central Connecticut State University M.A. University of Connecticut

#### DONNA LANDERMAN

Professor Emerita of Psychology/Sociology A.A. Hartford College for Women B.A. University of Wisconsin M.S.W. University of Connecticut

### CHERYL A. LIBBY

Professor Emerita of Marketing B.S. Husson College M.B.A. University of Hartford

#### M. ELINOR LOWELL

Professor Emerita of Biology B.S. State University College of New York at Buffalo M.S. State University College of New York at Buffalo D.P. E. University of Connecticut

#### PEGGY (MAKI) MCHENRY

Counselor Emerita
A.A. Miami Dade Junior College
B.S. Florida Atlantic University
M. ED. Florida Atlantic University
M.A. Central Michigan University
M. ED. Bridgewater State University

#### **MARTHA MCLEOD**

President Emerita
B.A. SUNY New Paltz
M.A. Vermont College
Ed.D. Nova Southeastern University

#### MICHAEL J. MORAN

Director Emeritus of Library Services B.A. Assumption College M.S.L.S. Simmons College M.A. Antioch University

#### VINCENT J. MOTTO

Professor Emeritus of Mathematics & Computer Science
A.A. St.Thomas Seminary College
B.A. Providence College
M.A. State University of NewYork at

M.S. Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute

#### MICHAEL K. ROOD

Fredonia

Professor Emeritus of Psychology B.A. Westfield State College M.A. University of Connecticut Ph.D. University of Connecticut

#### CHRISTOPHER ROSSING

Professor Emeritus of Developmental Studies M.A. Jersey State College

### WILLIAM S. SEARLE

Professor Emeritus of Business Administration and Computer Information Systems B.A. Trinity College M.A. Trinity College M.S. University of Hartford

#### JUDITH K. SHAFFER

Dean Emerita of the College and Dean of Students Professor Emeritus of Philosophy B.A. Michigan State University M.A. Michigan State University Ph.D. Michigan State University

#### DONNA L. SHAW

Director Emerita of Admissions B.S. Springfield College M.Ed. Springfield College

#### JOSEPH J. SIMANSKI, JR.

Director Emeritus of Human Resources B.A. Providence College M.B.A. Western New England College

#### FREDERIC J. SOKOL

Professor Emeritus of English B.A. Hobart College M.A. Goddard College Ph.D. Union Graduate School

#### HAROLD R. SOWELL

Dean Emeritus of Administration B.A., B.S. University of Hartford M.B.A. Western New England College Ph.D. Columbia Pacific University

#### FREDRIC S. STEFANOWICZ

Professor Emeritus of Computer Information Systems B.S. University of Connecticut M.A.L.S. Wesleyan University

#### EDWINA A. TRENTHAM

Professor Emerita of English B.A. Wesleyan University M.F.A. University of Massachusetts

#### KATHLEEN G. WRIGHT

Professor Emerita of Business B.S. American International College M.B.A. Western New England College

### **ADJUNCT FACULTY**

#### **CAROLINE ALEXOPOULOS**

A.S. Asnuntuck Community College B.S. St. Joseph College M.A. St. Joseph College

#### **WAYNE BARR**

B.A. Western New England College M.A. Boston College

#### TRACEY BENNETT

B.S. Virginia Commonwealth University M.B.A. DePaul University

#### MARY BERGAMINI

B.A. Western New England College M.P.A. American International College J.D. New England School of Law

#### ADAM BERNARD

B.A. Keene State College M.F. A. Art Institute of Boston

#### JOHN J. BOUDREAU

B.S.E.E. Lowell Technological Institute
M.S.E.E. Lowell Technological Institute
M.A.M.T. Western New England College

#### WILLIAM BREYER

B.B.A. University of Massachusetts M.B.A. University of Massachusetts

#### **ELIZABETH BROWN**

B.A. University of Connecticut M.A. University of St. Joseph

#### **CHRISTINE CALDWELL**

B.A. Austine College M.S. Abilone Christian University

#### **MOLLIE CECCOTTI**

B.S. University of Connecticut M.S. University of Connecticut

#### JOHN J. CERRATO

B.S. American International College J.D. Western New England Law School

#### SHARROYA CHARLES

Ph.D. Howard University

#### SUSAN CIRIELLO

A.S. Naugatuck Valley Community College B.A. Western Connecticut State University M.S.N. Fordham University

#### **DEVRA DAIGLE**

B.S. Central CT State University M.S. Walden University

#### SUSAN DALO

B.S. Southern Connecticut State University M.S. Southern Connecticut State University M.A. Central Connecticut State University

#### **MARK DENNIS**

B.S. Eckerd College
M.E.O. Central Connecticut State University

#### AIDA DIAZ-LA CILENTO

B.A. Central Connecticut State University M.S. Capella University

#### WILLIAM N. DICKENS

B.A. University of Connecticut M.A. Oklahoma State University

#### TOWOUDJEBA DOLOU

M.A. Central CT State University B.A. Central CT State University

#### **AMY EGAN**

B.S. University of Connecticut M.A. Westfield State University

#### WILLIAM A. ELRICK

A.B. Bates College M.A. Trinity College

#### **BRIAN EVARTS**

B.S. Central Connecticut State University M.S.S. Bryn Mawr College

#### LINDA C. FLEMING

B.S. Adelphi University
M.S. Long Island University
M.S. University of Bridgeport

#### SANDRA FOWLER

A.S. Greater Hartford Community College B.G.S. University of Connecticut M.Ed. Cambridge College

#### **HEATHER FREEMAN**

B.S. Virginia Tech M.P.H. University of Northern Colorado

#### RICHARD GRECO

A.A. SpringfieldTechnical Community College B.S. American International College M.S. University of St. Joseph

#### JEFFREY J. GOLDEN

B.A. Central Connecticut State University M.S. Western New England College

#### JEFFREY GOWDY

**B.S. Central Connecticut State University** 

#### **DENNIS GRANT**

B.A. University of Connecticut M.A. University of Connecticut

#### DEBORAH HALLADAY-PIERCE

B.A. Westfield State College M.Ed. Westfield State College

#### JESSICA E. HANDLY

A.S. Asnuntuck Community College B.A. Bay Path College M.A.L.A. Elms College

#### **DONALD HANOVER**

B.A. Purdue University M.A. Binghamton University Ph.D. Binghamton University

#### **BRITTNEY HELDDON**

B.A. University of Northern Colorado M.A. University of Northern Colorado

#### **REAGAN HOLT**

M.F.A. University of CT B.F.A. Montserrat College of Arts

#### **BRUCE JOHNSON**

B.A. University of Massachusetts M.Ed. University of Massachusetts Ed.D. University of Massachusetts

#### **BRIAN KENNY**

A.S. Manchester Community College B.S. Central Connecticut State University M.S. Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute

#### CHRISTOPHER J. LEARY

A.A. Holyoke Community College B.A. St. Hyacinth College M.Div. St. Anthony-on-Hudson M.S. Loyola College

#### MERJA LEHTINEN

B.A. Mount Holyoke College

#### TIMOTHY LIPTRAP

B.S. Fitchburg State College M.B.A. Southern New Hampshire University Ed.D. University of Hartford

#### **DOUG MAHER**

B.M. Berklee College M.M. University of Miami

#### **LAUREN MARIEN**

B.S. SUNY New Paltz M.S.Ed. Hunter College

#### RAYMOND J. MERCIK

B.A. American International College M.Ed. University of Hartford

#### LYNNE MILLER

A.S. Springfield Technical Community College

#### **NUTAN MISHRA**

B.A. Univeristy of Lucknow M.A. Univeristy of Lucknow Ph.D. Univeristy of Lucknow

#### EILEEN B. MONCRIEF

B.A. George Mason College of the University of Virginia M.Ed. University of Virginia

#### KENNETH A. O'KONIS

B.A. St. Anselm College M.Ed. Harvard University

#### KATHRYN PEPE

B.A. University of Washington-Seattle M.S. University of Washington-Bothell

#### KATHLEEN POWERS

B.A. St. Michael's College M.A. University of Chicago

#### **DEBRA RAJANIEMI**

B.S. University of Texas M.S. New York University

#### **ADAM RIVERS**

Discipline - Communications

#### **DENISE SCHNEIDER**

B.S. Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute M.S. Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute

#### ROBIN SCHOFIELD

B.S. Rochester Institute of Technology M.Ed. Worcester State College

#### JEFFREY SHUMAN

B.S. University of Hartford M.S. Charter Oak State College

#### WILLIAM SCHWANBECK

B.A. University of Washington M.S. Illinois State University

#### CARL SFERRAZZA

A.S. Asnuntuck Community College B.S. Western New England College M.S. Western New England College

#### LUCILLE SHEPARD

B.S. Westfield State College M.Ed. University of Massachusetts

#### **MICHAEL SPRY**

B.A. Concordia University M.A. Concordia University

#### **AMYTHIBODEAU**

Certificate, Porter and Chester Certificate, STCC

#### **TAMMY TUDRYN**

A.A. Asnuntuck Community College B.S. Springfield College M.Ed. Springfield College

#### DAVID C. VANIA

B.S. University of Hartford M.Ed. University of Hartford

#### **WENDY VEGA**

B.S. University of Connecticut M.A. University of Connecticut

#### MARCIN WARDACK

M.S. University of Massachusetts

#### **VANESSA WOOD**

A.S. Bay Path B.S. Bay Path M.S. Bay Path

#### TRICIA WOODS

B.A. Northern Kentucky University M.S. Bay Path University

#### LORIE WOODSON

B.S. University of Hartford M.S. University of Hartford

# **Connecticut Board of Regents** for Higher Education

### **Executive Staff**

Mark E. Ojakian President

Jane McBride Gates
Provost & Senior Vice President of Academic & Student Affairs

David Levinson
Vice President for Community Colleges

Elsa Nuñez Vice President for State Universities

### **Members**

Matt Fleury, Chair

Yvette Meléndez, Vice Chair

Richard J. Balducci

Aviva D. Budd

Naomi K. Cohen

Dr. Lawrence J. DeNardis

Dr. Merle W. Harris

**Holly Howery** 

David R. Jimenez

Felice Gray-Kemp

JoAnn Ryan

Elise E. Wright

# ASNUNTUCK COMMUNITY COLLEGE FOUNDATION & REGIONAL ADVISORY COUNCIL

#### **Officers**

Stuart Rosenberg, Chairperson Johnson Memorial Hospital

Ed Palomba, Vice Chair

Richard Tkacz, Treasurer Rich's Oil Service

Carolyn McCaffrey, Secretary Attorney

#### **Ex-Officio Members**

James Lombella, President Asnuntuck Community College & Tunxis Community College

Keith Madore,
Director of Institutional Advancement
and Community Engagement
Asnuntuck Community College

#### **Board of Directors**

Graham Bazarian Andrew Associates

Mary Anne Burke

Joyce Keating, Keating Real Estate

Charles Miller, Shop Rite of Enfield

Kiran S. Majmudar, L. P. Consultants

Barbara Walton The LEGO Group

Dr. Stacey Willard Eppendorf

William Searle Emeriti, Asnuntuck Community College

Teresa Foley Faculty, Asnuntuck Community College

Carol LaLiberte
Faculty, Asnuntuck Community College

Mary McCarthy Andrew Associates

> Brandon Lorey United Bank

Jacki Tamayo Camerota Truck Parts

Jeff Lomma Habitat for Humanity

### Asnuntuck Community College 2019-2020 Academic Calendar

#### Fall 2019

August 26 Monday	Last Day for 100% Tuition Refund. Fees are non-refundable
August 27 Tuesday	Classes Begin
August 31-September 1 Saturday-Sunday	College Closed, No Classes Held
September 2 Monday	Labor Day (College Closed, No Classes Held)
September 3 Tuesday	
September 9 Monday	End of Course Drop Period
	Last Day for 50% Tuition Refund
September 17 Tuesday	Constitution Day Observed (College Open, Classes Held)
September 24 Tuesday	Last Day to Change to/from Audit Status
October 9 Wednesday	
October 14 Monday	Columbus Day (College Open, Classes Held)
October 22 Tuesday	Reading Day (College Open, No Classes Held)
October 28 Monday	Registration Begins for Wintersession 2019 & Spring 2020
November 5 Tuesday	Last Day to Make Up Incompletes from Spring 2019
November 11 Monday	Veteran's Day Observed (College Open, Classes Held)
November 12 Tuesday	Last Day to Withdraw with Instructor's Signature
November 27 Wednesday	College Open, No Classes Held
November 28-December 1 Thursday-Sunday	
December 2 Monday	Deadline to Apply for December 2019 Graduation
December 7 Saturday	Last Day of Class
December 9-14 Monday-Saturday	
December 20 Friday	Final Grades Available Online at http://my.commnet.edu

<sup>\*\*</sup>Students can change their schedules by adding and swapping courses through the first week of the fall and spring semesters. Courses may be dropped but not added in the second week.

### Wintersession 2019

December 26 Thursday December 27 Friday	Last Day for 100% Tuition Refund. Fees are non-refundable Classes Begin
December 27 Friday	Last Day to Add
Decemeber 31-January 1 Tuesday-Wednesday	Holiday, College Closed
January 3 Friday	Last Day to Change to/from Audit Status
January 9 Thursday	Last Day to Withdraw Without Instructor's Signature
January 14 Tuesday	Last Day of Classes
January 16 Thursday	Final Grades Due by Noon
January 18 Saturday	Final Grades Available Online at http://my.commnet.edu

### Asnuntuck Community College 2019-2020 Academic Calendar

### Spring 2020

January 22	End of Course Add/Swap**
February 12 Wednesday February 14 Friday	Lincoln's Birthday (College Open, Classes Held) Lincoln's Birthday Observed (College Closed, No Classes Held)
February 15-16 Saturday-Sunday	College Closed, No Classes Held
February 17 Monday	President's Day/Washington's Birthday Observed
February 19 Wednesday	(College Closed, No Classes Held) Last Day to Change to/from Audit Status
March 6 Monday	Last Day to Withdraw without Instructor's Signature
March 16-22 Monday-Sunday March 30 Monday Monday	Registration Begins for Summer 2020 & Fall 2020
April 10 Friday	Day of Reflection (College Closed, No Classes Held)
April 11-12.	Last Day to Make Up Incompletes from Fall 2019 Last Day to Withdraw with Instructor's Signature Reading Day (College Open, No Classes Held) Awards Ceremony
May 11-16 Monday-Saturday	Instructors' Final Grades Due by 12 Noon Final Grades Available Online at http://my.commnet.edu

<sup>\*\*</sup>Students can change their schedules by adding and swapping courses through the first week of the fall and spring semesters. Courses may be dropped but not added in the second week.

### **INDEX**

A	High School Partnership Program 7
Academic Advising 2, 12	Human Services 24, 53, 64, 78, 79, 100, 101
Academic Calendar 2, 129, 130	
Academic Departments 2	
Academic Honors 13	Immunization Requirements 7
Academic Policies and Procedures 2	Incomplete Grades 9
Academic Standards 13	Information Technology Resources 46, 47
Academic Tutoring Center 26, 27, 121	Intimate Partner Violence Policy 42
Accident Insurance 19	
Accounting 53, 54, 55, 56, 76, 77, 79, 82, 83, 86, 87, 122, 123, 124	
Add/Drop and Withdrawal Policy 11	Liberal Arts Degree 65, 66, 67, 70, 71, 74, 100, 115, 121
Admissions 5	Liberal Arts - Fine Arts Option 67
Advanced Manufacturing Technology Center 28	Liberal Arts - UCONN Transfer 66
Auditing Courses 10	Library 26, 27, 50, 121, 122, 123, 124
В	N/A
Board of Regents 127	Mandatad Paparting Policy 42
Book Store 27	Mandated Reporting Policy 43
Business Administration 53, 56, 76, 101	Technology Studies 53, 70, 72, 73, 74, 75, 79, 80
Business & Industry Division 28	Marketing 79 Massage Therapy 68, 109, 110
Dusiness & muustry Division 26	Massage Merapy 66, 109, 110
C	0
Campus Activities Board 25	Office User Specialist 79
Career Development 12	Office Oser Specialist 75
Certificate 70, 73, 74, 76, 77, 78, 79, 80, 81, 93, 106, 117, 120,	P
121, 122, 123	Personnel 120-126
Certified Administrative Medical Office Skills 76	Phi Theta Kappa Honor Society 25
Child Care 25	Phlebotomy Technician 76
College of Technology: Engineering Science 62	Placement Assessment 6
Communications 47, 48, 49, 53, 57, 58, 59, 86, 88, 89, 90, 126	Prerequisite Waivers 10
Communications: Broadcasting Option 58	Programs of Study 2, 53
Communications: Journalism Option 59	
Computer Labs 27, 50	R
Course Descriptions 82	Radio Station (WACC) 27
Course Substitutions 10	Refund Policy 18
Uniform Campus Crime Report 52	Registered Medical Assistant 69, 79
Criminal Justice 25, 53, 60, 90, 91, 123	Repeated Courses 10
D	S
Directory Information 51	Sexual Misconduct & Assault Policy 42
Drugs and Alcohol Policy 52	Smoking Policy 52
_	Student Code of Conduct 29
E	Student Disabilities
Early Childhood Education 61, 77	Services 23
Entrepreneur 53, 78	Student Government 24, 25
-	Student ID Cards 25
F	Student Records and Confidentiality 50
FERPA 16, 35, 44, 50, 51	Student Services 2, 3, 15, 23, 38, 52, 120, 121, 122, 123, 124
Application Procedure 20	<b>-</b>
Financial Aid 2, 8, 10, 11, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 120, 121, 123, 124	T
Satisfactory Academic Progress 21	Teaching and Learning Center 27
Work-Study Program 20	Title IX & Diversity 12
Froch Start Option 10	Transcripts 16
Fresh Start Option 10	Transfer 15
G	Transfer Advising 12
General Studies Degree 53, 63, 100	V
Gerontology 53, 78, 100	V Veteran Benefits 23
Grade Point Average (GPA) 9	Veteran Educational Benefits 23
Graduation Requirements 13	veteran Educational Deficition 25
S. assactor requirements 20	W
Н	Ways of Obtaining College Credit 14
Health Career Pathway 78	Web Designer 81
Health Information Management Technician 78	Workforce Development & Continuing Education 28

